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1 January 18, 2013 1 KELLY,Q.C:
2 (9:06 am.) 2 Q. Right, and that obviously didn't happen for
3 MS.GLYNN: 3 reasons which you explained somewhat
4 Q. Mr. Chair, before we start for the morning, 4 yesterday, and the point that you pointed to
5 there' sjust acouple of housekeeping items. 5 was the downgrades in the United States and
6 The consumer advocate has filed the decision 6 the downgrade, | guess, to alesser extent in
7 of the Regie, which was Undertaking #14, and 7 France.
8 we do have another Information Item which will 8 DR.BOOTH:
9 be marked as Information Item #21, and that is 9 A. That'scorrect. | regardthe United States
10 the series of graphsthat Dr. Booth had on the 10 problems as part of the sovereign debt crisis.
11 screen as he was doing his direct yesterday. 11 KELLY, Q.C.
12 CHAIRMAN: 12 Q. Okay, and, in fact, you pointed that out in
13 Q. | think we're ready to commence - you're 13 the answer to NP-CA on number 1, that that was
14 finished with your Examination-in-Chief, so 14 something that you couldn’t have anticipated
15 it'sover to Mr. Johnson, | believe, isthat 15 when you were giving your testimony back then?
16 correct. 16 DR. BOOTH:
17 KELLY, Q.C.. 17 A. | thinkit'sfair to say that the severity of
18 Q. Theother way around, Mr. Chairman. 18 the crisis, nobody would have anticipated the
19 CHAIRMAN: 19 downgrade of the United States to below AAA.
20 Q. Pardon? 20 Whenever there' sarecession, the government
21 KELLY, Q.C: 21 deficits increase, tax revenues go down,
22 Q. Other way around, back to me for Cross- 22 spending goes up, debt increases, so that’sa
23 Examination. 23 normal byproduct of any recession. What's
24 CHAIRMAN: 24 been striking inthis periodissimply the
25 Q. I'msorry, geez, what am | doing, what am | 25 fact that it’ sthe first major recession when
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1 thinking. | beg your pardon. Okay, sir, go 1 the European countries have been part of the
2 ahead. 2 Eurozone, and questions of the ability of
3 DR. LAURENCE BOOTH - EXAMINATION BY KELLY, Q.C.: 3 those countries or some of those countriesto
4 KELLY, Q.C.: 4 pay back their debt hasbeen a paramount
5 Q. Good morning, Dr. Booth. 5 concern in the international financial
6 DR.BOOTH: 6 markets.
7 A. Good morning, Mr. Kelly. 7 KELLY, Q.C.
8 KELLY, Q.C: 8 Q. Right. Sothe economic problemswhich existed
9 Q. Dr.Booth, I'dliketo start by talking with 9 began in 2008. Those have morphed, if | can
10 you about long Canada bond rates, and when we |10 use that phrase, through the Eurozone crisis
11 were here in 2009, therate that you were 11 into the current problems which we havein the
12 using for your 2010 test year was 4.5 percent 12 United States, including the huge infusion of
13 asthe anticipated long Canadabond yield, 13 funds by the Federal Reserve, etc?
14 correct? 14 DR. BOOTH:
15 DR. BOOTH: 15 A. That'sabsolutely correct. Theinitial crisis
16 A. |think that’s correct, yes. 16 came out of thefinancial systemin theus.
17 KELLY, Q.C.: 17 We had a rea recession. Governments
18 Q. Right, and at that stage, from your testimony 18 responded the way they normally respond, only
19 you were very confident that long Canadabond |19 this time several of the companies,
20 rates were going to go up. At one point, you 20 particularly in Europe, basically the debt was
21 said over the next few yearsthey’ll be 5, 5.5 21 aready, if | may paraphraseit, at the limit
22 percent over the next few years? 22 on the credit card.
23 DR. BOOTH: 23 KELLY, Q.C.
24 A. That'scorrect. That was the consensus at 24 Q. Andthe downgrade, of course, inthe usis
25 that point in time. 25 largely in effect as a result, as opposed to
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1 the event in itself? 1 thisis going any time soon, isthere?
2 DR.BOOTH: 2 DR.BOOTH:
3 A. That'scorrect. | would say the us downgrade 3 A Yes, there is certainty. As | think |
4 isreally not even part of the ability of the 4 mentioned three years ago, booms follow
5 United States to pay back its debt. It's 5 recessions, recessions follow booms. There's
6 really a reflection of the sguabbling in 6 a regular sequence to the business cycle.
7 Congress between the Republicans and the 7 What we have now ismore akinto the 1930s.
8 Democrats, and the willingness of Republicans 8 We are having along drawn out recovery from
9 to basically default on the us Government 9 what we call a balance sheet recession, which
10 debt. Nobody would have anticipated that 10 was the amount of debt that consumers got into
11 three years ago. 11 and that's the adjustment that we're going
12 KELLY, Q.C.. 12 through. The differenceis that in previous
13 Q. And those problems continue inthe United 13 recessions, the governments have had the
14 States. | think the next onethey’'re up 14 capacity to undertake fiscal policy to offset
15 against isthe debt ceiling, and we had the 15 that, and asa result, we've had normal
16 other rating agency, Fitch, out there aweek 16 recoveries. This time, we're essentially
17 or so ago threatening to downgrade their 17 having no government fiscal policy that's
18 rating on the United States of they didn’t get 18 offsetting that recession. So we've got the
19 their act together. 19 absence of fiscal policy. Monetary policy has
20 DR.BOOTH: 20 amost shot its bolt and we're having a slow
21 A. Notjust Fitch, Moody’s - 21 recovery. So that’sthe difference now, but
22 KELLY, Q.C: 22 nothing in economics stays the same forever.
23 Q. And Moody’saswell. 23 We will get arecovery, it’sjust going to be
24 DR.BOOTH: 24 longer than was anticipated three years ago.
25 A. Moody’s has basically given a very clear 25 KELLY, Q.C:

Page 6 Page 8
1 warning that unless Congress getsits act 1 Q. Right, and I’m not really disagreeing with you
2 together, they’re going to downgrade the Us as 2 there. What I’'m trying to focus on isthe
3 well, soyou'll have aunanimous non AAA 3 question of any kind of certainty asto where
4 rating for the us Government, which | think is 4 and over what period of time long Canada bond
5 remarkable. 5 yields are going to change because -
6 KELLY, QC. 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 Q. Sowe havethese problems continuing through 7 A. ThatI'll agreewith. Threeyears ago, we
8 the United States, continuing through Europe 8 were confident that interest rates would
9 and - do we agree with that much? 9 recover pretty quickly. Asl pointed out,
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 even when | put together my testimony from May
11 A. Oh, 100 percent, yes. 11 of this year, | went back to the summer of
12 KELLY, Q.C.: 12 2011 and sort of asked myself what would |
13 Q. Perfect, okay, and asaresult of all that, 13 have done in 2011 to forecast 2012, and at
14 interest rates didn't go up, thelong term 14 that point RBC or the forecasters were
15 Canada yieldsdidn’'t goup. Asyou said 15 forecasting a back to normal, that interest
16 yesterday, they’'re now down to 2.5 percent 16 rateswould beup at 4.55 percent by 2014,
17 approximately? 17 2013. That hasn’t happened. What we' re going
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 to haveisaslower recovery, interest rates
19 A. That'scorrect. What | would regard as non- 19 aregoing to belower for longer periods of
20 equilibrium interest rates, and most 20 time than we anticipated because of the
21 economists say these are unsustainable or 21 actions of the global policy maker, and there
22 they’ re non-equilibrium. 22 is more uncertainty surrounding those interest
23 KELLY, Q.C. 23 rates.
24 Q. Now the problemthat I'm going to suggest to 24 KELLY,Q.C:
25 you is, of course, there’ s no certainty where 25 Q. Right, and that’sthe point that | want to get
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1 to. Now inyour report, | tried to figure out 1 A | thinkit's fair to say that when Alan
2 what you think the current interest rates are 2 Greenspan was Governor of the Fed, we used to
3 going to be for 2013, and | didn’t really find 3 say he was the strongest man in the world. If
4 aclear answer to that because at the end of 4 he got out of alimo and he coughed, everyone
5 the day, you come to the conclusion, well, 5 would say what’s the meaning of that, because
6 I’ve got to adjust it to 380 because that’s - 6 everything hinged around the Fed. Right now
7 I'vegot toget a least there beforeit’s 7 that's exactly the same situation that
8 going to make any difference. 8 Governor Ben Bernanke isin. He just came out
9 DR.BOOTH: 9 a couple of weeks ago to clarify theusFed's
10 A. Ithink your reading is absolutely correct, 10 policy. They’ve announced they’re going to
11 Mr. Kelly. 11 keep interest rates low, not just
12 KELLY, Q.C.. 12 indefinitely, but until the us unemployment
13 Q. Okay. 13 rate drops to 6.5 percent. What we regard as
14 DR. BOOTH: 14 the non-accelerating rate of unemployment in
15 A. When| re-read my testimony in May, | saidI'm |15 the United States, which issort of full
16 pretty clear what | would have recommended for |16 employment, the lowest rateis about 5.3, so
17 2012. For 2013, when | wrote that testimony, 17 that’snot a particularly low unemployment
18 it was already the spring of 2012, and we had 18 rate inthe United States, but there's 6
19 the sign of a significant drop in interest 19 percent spare capacity in theus, and that
20 rates, and | said there’ salot of uncertainty 20 clarification, people have looked at that and
21 surrounding interest rates. So even though 21 said, well, 6.5 percent unemployment
22 the forecast long Canada rate at that time, | 22 indefinitely keeping their overnight rate or
23 think, had already dropped to 3.5 percent, at 23 the Federal Fundsrate in the usat between 0
24 that time | said for 2013 there’'sso much 24 and 25 basispoints, indefinitely buying 85
25 uncertainty surrounding those interest rates, 25 billion dollarsworth of securities every
Page 10 Page 12
1 I"'m quite happy to keep my recommended ROE at 1 month, or that trandates into the fact that
2 8.15 percent, even in the face of a 2 the global policy maker, the Fed, not the
3 significant drop in long Canada rates. 3 capital market, is going to be driving long
4 KELLY, Q.C.. 4 term interest rates for at least the next two
5 Q. And]I think we can we can sit here today and 5 to three years.
6 say with a fair degree of confidence that 6 KELLY,Q.C.
7 interest rates on average in 2013 are going to 7 Q. Exactly, andthat’sagood explanation. Not
8 be significantly below 3807 8 quite an answer to my question which is, |
9 DR.BOOTH: 9 take it from that explanation, you're not
10 A. I'drecommend you don’t buy long Canada bonds, 10 expecting interest ratesin 2014, and maybe
11 Mr. Kelly. 11 not even out into 2015, to get up to 3.80, 4
12 KELLY, Q.C. 12 percent?
13 Q. Okay. 13 DR. BOOTH:
14 DR.BOOTH: 14 A. That'scorrect. Intermsof the Chairman’'s
15  A. | agree with you. 15 question of what's normal, theonly thing
16 KELLY, Q.C.: 16 about capital markets at the moment that is
17 Q. Okay. My next question then iswhat are you 17 abnormal isthe state of thelong term bond
18 saying in relation to 2014 because | 1ook, for 18 yield, which is being driven not just by the
19 example, at the consensus forecast, Mr. 19 Fed, but also by the European Central Bank and
20 McDonald has done a nice summary in his report 20 the -
21 out through 2013 and 2014, and he still only 21 KELLY,Q.C.:
22 has a 3.04 percent averagethrough’13 and 22 Q. Drivenlow, and you expect it to stay there
23 " 14, so the consensus forecast would seem to 23 for several years out into the future?
24 be we're not going to 380 even through 2014? 24 DR.BOOTH:
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 A. That'scorrect, which iswhy when we look at
Page 9 - Page 12
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1 that, | think that’s a disconnect between the 1 in fact, the discussion of the business risk
2 basic trade off between risk and return that 2 of Newfoundland Power, | would suggest, was
3 we see in the capital market between private 3 rather skimpy because they don't feel that it
4 investors, and what we' re seeing is that risk 4 wasincreasing, and from that assessment, |
5 return trade off does not reflect, in my 5 honestly can’t see anything in the business of
6 judgment, current long term Canada bond yields | 6 Newfoundland Power that would indicate
7 of 2.5 percent, because it’s not being driven 7 anything unusual. It's the company that would
8 by private investors. 8 put forward something that’s unusual, and they
9 KELLY, Q.C: 9 haven't done that.
10 Q. Soasaresult of the disconnect then, don’t 10 KELLY, Q.C.:
11 we have a disconnect between long Canadabond |11 Q. And so you're not suggesting any change in the
12 yields and what a utility’s return on equity 12 overal risk profile for Newfoundland Power
13 is going to be, which iswhy you've built the 13 since the last hearing in 20097
14 floor into your type of mechanism? 14 DR. BOOTH:
15 DR. BOOTH: 15 A. ldon't see any substantial changes. The
16 A. That'scorrect. | don't think at the current 16 provincial growth rate probably is alittle
17 point intimethat if you did what | call a 17 bit greater because of Hebron and some of the
18 naive CAPM, which isjust take the forecast 18 major construction projects, but - so the
19 long term Canada bond yield, add in atypical 19 provincial economy may be slightly stronger,
20 market risk premium, it givesa reasonable 20 but apart from that, | don’t see anything.
21 estimate of theinvestor’s opportunity cost 21 KELLY, Q.C:
22 for investing in a utility, and as | explained 22 Q. Dr.Booth, can | takeyou over to PUB CA-32,
23 yesterday, we can seethat because of the 23 whereyou were asked by the Board staff a
24 yields on preferred shares that are not 24 question on, "Haveyou compared the use of
25 directly affected by these global policy 25 deferral accounts by Newfoundland Power to
Page 14 Page 16
1 makers. 1 those of other Canadian utilities, other than
2 KELLY, Q.C. 2 Nova Scotia Power, and if yes, provide
3 Q. I'd liketo come back tothe naive CAPM 3 details'. Your answer was, "No". In other
4 discussion in afew minutes later on. Let me 4 words, you hadn’t done that comparison and the
5 move to another areal want to explore a 5 rest of the answer is on the screen.
6 little bit withyou. 1 went through your 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 evidence, including theRrFIs, and | didn’'t 7 A. I'mglad| said, "no", becausethe answer is
8 find anywhere that you suggest that there's 8 no.
9 any change in Newfoundland Power’s risk 9 KELLY, Q.C.
10 profile from the last hearing in 2009. Have | 10 Q. Okay.
11 got that correct? 11 DR. BOOTH:
12 DR. BOOTH: 12 A. ltendto- | think I mentioned yesterday that
13 A. | think that’s correct, Mr. Kelly. Normally, 13 you can get bogged down into the minutia of
14 intervenor witnesses rely upon the company’s 14 individual risk differences between utilities
15 business risk testimony. So for example, we 15 and we tend to get dragged into that area and
16 went through in great detail Ms. McShane's 16 through qualitative discussion. | prefer to
17 business risk testimony for Terason Gas FEl, 17 look at the objective factor whether they earn
18 and normally the company - normally, to be 18 their allowed ROE. That'sthe output, the
19 absolutely honest, the companies always say 19 result of all of thisregulated protection.
20 their business risk is increasing - not 20 KELLY, Q.C:
21 always, but at least frequently. Then there's 21 Q. So many of your comments about deferral
22 the question sort of how do you react to the 22 accounts and mechanisms like that are what 1'd
23 risk factors that the company put forward. My 23 call somewhat impressionistic because what
24 observation was that Newfoundland Power didn't |24 you've really focused on is whether the
25 put forward any increased risk factors, and, 25 utility, whether it’sthis utility or some

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Page 13 - Page 16




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

NP Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Page 17 Page 19
1 other utility, has earned its allowed return 1 account, he just hunkered down and got the job
2 or not? 2 done, and by deferring ONM expenses el sewhere
3 DR.BOOTH: 3 to make sure that Newfoundland Power camein
4 A. That'sright, but there’ stwo factors that go 4 and earned its ROE, but that’ s what you would
5 into that. It could earn itsalowed ROE 5 expect of good management, and the
6 because there's absolutely no uncertainty 6 shareholders shouldn’t be rewarded because of
7 whatsoever, or it could earn its allowed ROE 7 good management doing their job.
8 because there'salot of uncertainty and the 8 KELLY, Q.C:
9 regulator reacts to that uncertainty by 9 Q. Butinordertoearn thereturn, amongst the
10 allowing extensive regulated protection. So 10 factors you mentioned, is aso good
11 that’ s why - 11 management?
12 KELLY, Q.C. 12 DR. BOOTH:
13 Q. Canl suggest - I'm sorry, go ahead. 13 A. That'sabsolutely correct. If youlook at
14 DR. BOOTH: 14 this and you have hopelessly incompetent
15 A. That's why | mentioned, for example, the 15 management that keeps making mistakes, then
16 TransCanada Mainline, | would put that as 16 you would get unstable earnings and then
17 probably the riskiest utility in Canada at the 17 you'rein a paradox to then give the equity
18 moment because of the emergence of supply 18 holders a higher rate of return because they
19 basins that has basically bypassed the 19 hired incompetent management.
20 mainline. It does not show up in 20 KELLY, Q.C:
21 TransCanada s ability to earn its allowed ROE 21 Q. Right, now to comeback tothe discussion
22 because of the extensive regulated 22 about deferral accounts and other mechanisms,
23 reprotection that the NEB allows it, but 23 take it you haven't looked at American
24 sooner or later there’'s limitsto what the 24 utilities and their particular use of deferral
25 regulator can do, and that’s exactly what's 25 accounts. You haven't done any type of
Page 18 Page 20
1 facing the NEB at the moment. 1 analysis of American utilities, have you?
2 KELLY, QC: 2 DR.BOOTH:
3 Q. Right. Canl suggest, Dr. Booth, that in 3 A, That'scorrect, Mr. Kelly. I’ ve been dragged,
4 addition to thetwo factorsyou mentioned, 4 not quite screaming, into looking at the
5 which were kind of lack of uncertainty and 5 American utilities, but | fundamentaly
6 good regulation, there's actually a third 6 believethat the usis aforeign country,
7 factor whichis the utility can earn its 7 which | think everybody would accept, and it
8 alowed return if it has good management that 8 has different laws, procedures, and cultural
9 actually works hardto earnthereturn and 9 factors, and I’ ve been very loath to look at
10 provide the service, do you not concede that 10 the Us, as are most regulators in Canada, but
11 there's an important managerial role in that? 11 forces have basically dragged me into looking
12 DR. BOOTH: 12 at usutilities because we frequently get
13 A. | would concede that. It’sthe job of the CEO 13 primarily uswitnesses presenting Us evidence
14 of the company to hire peopleto manage the 14 which is what they’'re familiar with. |
15 utility and they get paid for doing that, and 15 started looking at a set of utilities that
16 incidentally, | wasstruck by Mr. Ludlow’s 16 were common to Ms. McShaneand Dr. Vilbert
17 comment about the 1.4 or the 1.8 million 17 simply to avoid saying, well, how did you
18 dollar 2002 extra expenditures because- | 18 choose these utilities. Basically, my answer
19 forget what it was, but a hurricane or 19 is| didn’'t choose them, they’ re the nexus or
20 whatever. 20 the intersection of two groups of low risk
21 KELLY, Q.C:: 21 utilities, so | don't think that's
22 Q. Hurricanelgor. 22 controversial. In the same way, I've now
23 DR. BOOTH: 23 started looking at the ability of us utilities
24 A. That hit Newfoundland, and he said that unlike 24 to earn their allowed ROES. I’ m being dragged
25 other utilities, hedidn't ask for a deferral 25 into looking at Us utilities to counter
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1 testimony before the Board. 1 Q. Butit's actualy inthe company’sevidence
2 KELLY, Q.C: 2 that it’s way back in the 1960s, 1968.
3 Q. My question, to come back to it again, isyou 3 DR.BOOTH:
4 haven’t done an analysis of deferral accounts, 4 A. Yeah.
5 operating mechanisms, recovery mechanisms, 5 KELLY, Q.C.
6 across utilitiesin the United States? 6 Q So-
7 DR.BOOTH: 7 DR.BOOTH:
8 A. That'scorrect, for the same reason | haven’t 8 A. Buttoshort circuit this, Mr. Kelly, canl
9 doneit in Canada. | look at the output, 9 take you to Appendix C of my testimony where
10 Canada allowed ROE, how unstable are their 10 I've actually got beta coefficients for
11 ROES. That's what investorsare concerns 11 utilitiesgoing back tothe 60s, and it's
12 about. They want to know if this utility 12 quite clear that the beta coefficients, the
13 earned 5 percent and it was allowed to earn 10 13 relative risk of utilities was significantly
14 percent, that’s a bad thing to some extent. | 14 higher in the 60s and 70s, and -
15 mean, obvioudly, they’re concerned about what |15 KELLY, Q.C.:
16 generated that substandard ROE, but to a great 16 Q. My question isnot about beta coefficients.
17 extent, it’s the variability in those profits 17 Mine is about the detail of analysis, if any,
18 that the investors look at. 18 of the actual mechanismsin place. | take
19 KELLY, Q.C. 19 your answer is that you haven’t done that?
20 Q. AndI’m glad you came back to Canada, because |20 DR.BOOTH:
21 evenin relation to Newfoundland Power, you 21  A. That'strue. Asl said, | look at the output
22 haven’'t done a detailed anaysis of 22 of these measures, which iswhat the stock
23 Newfoundland Power’s operating deferral 23 market looks at, and there’ s no question that
24 accounts and mechanisms, have you? 24 utilities were regarded as a lot riskier back
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 in the days before they had future test years
Page 22 Page 24
1 A. No,it'slikelooking at acake. I'm tasting 1 and a lot of these mechanisms, and | agree
2 the cake and telling you what the cake looks 2 with you - | didn’'t look to see when weather
3 like. I"'m not telling you what goes into the 3 normalization can into effect for Newfoundland
4 cake. 4 Power.
5 KELLY, Q.C: 5 KELLY, QC.
6 Q. Thereason | ask that is because yesterday in 6 Q. Right, okay. Now the next areal want to talk
7 your opening comments at page 181, if we just 7 to you about isan areathat I'm puzzled asto
8 go therefor asecond, at about Line 5, you 8 exactly what you’ re recommending, so | want to
9 made a comment about pass through accounts and 9 be sure we understand what your positionis
10 suggested that - I'll wait until Chris brings 10 here. Inyour report, you recommend a rate of
11 itup onthe screen. Do you remember the 11 return for Newfoundland Power, as | read it,
12 discussion? It'sat about line 5, "In fact, 12 at 7.5 percent for 2013?
13 if you look at my testimony, you'll see that 13 DR. BOOTH:
14 when we go back to the 60s and 70s, utilities 14 A. Correct.
15 were a higher risk than they are now, and 15 KELLY, Q.C:
16 that’s because we didn’t have the amount of 16 Q. That'swhat | read in your report.
17 regulated protection, etc". 17 DR.BOOTH:
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 A. That'scorrect.
19 A. Yesh. 19 KELLY, Q.C.
20 KELLY, QC:: 20 Q. Andifl - I'll take youto page 64 of your
21 Q. Doyou know, for example, when Newfoundland 21 report because it's probably worth putting
22 Power first got its weather normalization? 22 this on the screen, because | have a bunch of
23 DR. BOOTH: 23 questionsthat kind of flow out of it. 64,
24 A. No. 24 Chris. Go down alittle more. Okay, if you'll
25 KELLY, Q.C. 25 stop there. If 1 gotoline 14, Dr. Booth,
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1 you make that comment of the range of 6.95 to 1 KELLY,Q.C:
2 8 percent for 2013, but | didn’t find in your 2 Q. So evenon your alternative approach, you
3 report atest year analysisfor 2014. 3 would say the Board could fix it at a- set a
4 DR. BOOTH: 4 particular rate, and the utility could apply
5 A. That'sbecause | recommend that the Board use 5 if circumstancesgot out of - came to a
6 an adjustment mechanism, which would basically | 6 different conclusion?
7 then key off what the 2014 should be based 7 DR.BOOTH:
8 upon the starting point of 7.5 percent and 8 A. That'sright, my understanding islegally the
9 whatever happensto spreads and long term 9 company has that right.
10 interest rates for 2014. 10 KELLY, Q.C.:
11 KELLY, Q.C. 11 Q. If circumstances changed is perhaps the best
12 Q. Right, so you haven't actually made a 12 way to put it.
13 recommendation then for 2014 per se, except - 13 DR. BOOTH:
14 DR.BOOTH: 14 A. AndI think I mentioned somewhere, this is
15 A. Wdl, | havetwo recommendations, Mr. Kelly. 15 what we call afree option infinance. It's
16 Oneisthat | think an adjustment mechanism 16 valuableto the utility because essentially if
17 solvesa lot of the problemsof repetitive 17 interest rates come down, they’ll say, well,
18 hearings. If the Board decidesthat it’s not 18 we'll take the 8.25 and we won't come in, but
19 appropriate to have an adjustment mechanism, | |19 if the interest rates come up, they’re going
20 made an alternative recommendation for 8.25 20 to say we're going to come in and get a higher
21 percent fixed for an indefinite period, and | 21 rate of return.
22 was asked in - | forget who asked the 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 information request, but | was asked how long 23 Q. Andthecorollary, of coursg, isthe Board can
24 isindefinite, and | said five years because 24 awayscall the utility inif it feelsthat
25 that’sgenerally -1 don’t think any Board 25 the rate of return needs to be reviewed?
Page 26 Page 28
1 would allow the ROE to be fixed for alonger 1 DR. BOOTH:
2 period than fiveyears. There are some 2 A. That'strue, but the idea of fixing it either
3 contractual relationships between companies, 3 through an adjustment mechanism of a fixed
4 but five years, | think, islong - 4 rateisto allow the Board to focus on other
5 KELLY, Q.C. 5 areas, and rarely do | see boards actualy
6 Q. Inthisjurisdiction, under Section 80 of the 6 bringing utilitiesin, other than on sort of a
7 Public Utilities Act, the Board hasto set a 7 prefixed schedule. Like, the OEB hasafive
8 return - the utility is entitled to earn the 8 year period when it says it would review its
9 appropriate return annually. So fixing it for 9 formula, as did the AuC.
10 a period becomes problematic from a 10 KELLY, Q.C..
11 jurisdictional point of view, and | won’t get 11 Q. That'sto review the formula.
12 into a debate on the law with you. 12 DR. BOOTH:
13 DR. BOOTH: 13 A. Wdl, yes, but reviewing the formula is
14 A. That'sright. Generaly, there, Mr. Kelly, 14 reviewing the ROE, Mr. Kelly.
15 when I’ ve been questioned on that, I’ve said 15 KELLY, Q.C.:
16 my understanding is the utility always has the 16 Q. Now where | want to go next with this
17 right to comein and question an award based 17 discussion, because thisiswhat kind of set
18 upon thefact that it feelsitis unfair or 18 up the piece that’s puzzling me, if | take you
19 unreasonable. So even if, for example, like 19 ahead to page 68 in your testimony, thisis
20 the Aucfixing it at 8.75, or 9 percent back 20 the discussion you had with Mr. Johnson - can
21 in 2009, my understanding isthat if the 21 we bring it up alittle bit further, Chris,
22 interest ratesdramatically increased, for 22 the other way, so we get thetablein there.
23 example, they could say, look, thisisunfair, 23 Therewego. What | tried to figureout - I'm
24 we need a hearing. 24 just alawyer, but | alsotried to get some
25 (9:30am.) 25 Newfoundland Power peopleto try to figure
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Page 31

1 this out, this is based off the NEB, of 1 - there stwo issuesthe Board has to face.
2 course, which now doesn’t have a formulain 2 What isafair rate of return, which might be
3 place, in any event, but - 3 regarded as the entering ROE for an adjustment
4 DR. BOOTH: 4 formula, and how do we adjust thatin the
5 A. Wadll, it does, Mr. Kelly. It till publishes 5 future, and those are separate issues. |
6 aformulaand there are still companies that 6 think | say somewhere that the Board can
7 get their ROE fixed by the NEB formula. What 7 accept what 1’m suggesting as an adjustment
8 the NEB has simply said iswe will not use the 8 mechanism, even if it doesn’t accept my ROE.
9 formulato set the ROE in new hearings. 9 KELLY, Q.C:
10 KELLY, Q.C.: 10 Q. Right.
11 Q. Right, andl don't want to get into the 11 DR. BOOTH:
12 quibble over that. 12 A. Andinordertolook at the validity of what
13 DR. BOOTH: 13 I’m recommending as adjustment formula, | went
14 A. It'snota quibble. Thereare pipelinesin 14 down and used the data that Ms. McShane
15 Canada that get their ROE set by the NEB 15 provided in the Line 9 hearing, to avoid any
16 formula 16 controversy over the numbers, and we used the
17 KELLY, Q.C.. 17 NEB formula, (&) because it was before the
18 Q. Thepoint | want to cometo, Dr. Booth, isin 18 NEB, and (b) because it’s the longest period
19 this mechanism here, you start from in 2010 19 of data that we have. Theonly other one
20 with 8.92, which from the discussion 20 would be the Bcuc, but they kept changing
21 yesterday, | take it, you take it as 21 their adjustment mechanism.
22 essentially 9 percent that the Board awarded 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 for 2010. 23 Q. Butwhat seemsto bethe corollary out of
24 DR. BOOTH: 24 that, Dr. Booth, isto use this mechanism and
25 A. Yes, I'mjust saying that that’s close enough 25 to have these numbers come up, you would have
Page 30 Page 32
1 to 9that, | mean, would the Board have 1 to use it with parameters for 9 percentin
2 brought the - would the Board have considered 2 2010, isthat not correct?
3 that difference between being material, and we 3 DR.BOOTH:
4 asked Ms. Perry, and she didn’t regard it as 4 A. Canyou rephrase that again? | think | missed
5 material. | don't regard 8 basis points as 5 the -
6 being material. Given the range of my 6 KELLY,Q.C.
7 estimates for 2013, it would be difficult for 7 Q. Inorder to apply the formula, asyou’ ve kind
8 me to say 8 basis pointsis material. 8 of set out here, and to have it comeupto 9
9 KELLY, Q.C. 9 percent or 8.92 percent for 2010, you'd have
10 Q. Butyour recommendation at the timefor 2010 |10 to have parametersin the formulato generate
11 was 7.75 percent, correct? 11 a9 percent rate of return, not 7.75 or 7.5?
12 DR. BOOTH: 12 DR. BOOTH:
13 A. That's correct. These are not my 13 A. That'sright. | mean, justto clarify, al
14 recommendations, Mr. Kelly. 14 I’'mdoing hereis saying when NEB set its
15 KELLY, Q.C.: 15 formulain 1994 for the 1995 test year, we
16 Q. Right, and that’swhere’m puzzled because 16 didn't have good data on spreads. Infact,
17 you take us to this and the implication amost 17 when the information went beforethe Aucin
18 appeared to be that you were recommending 9 |18 2003/2004, they said we're not going to do
19 percent for 2010. 19 anything with corporate spreads because there
20 DR.BOOTH: 20 isn't good data, there isn't agood series
21 A. No, I’'mnot. 21 that’ sreliable enough to base anything off
22 KELLY, Q.C: 22 corporate utility costs. So that’s partly why
23 Q. That'snot the case? 23 we never did that earlier on, it’s partly why
24 DR.BOOTH: 24 we had aonefactor model, the ROE isonly
25 A. No, that’snot the case. What I’ve done here 25 affected by forecast long Canadayields. All
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1 have gone back and said, well, if the NEB had 1 generate your recommendation, correct?
2 made the sort of adjustments the regulators 2 DR.BOOTH:
3 madein 2009 in theface of the financial 3 A. No
4 crisis, which | would say was closeto 50 4 KELLY,Q.C.:
5 percent of the change in the spreads, what 5 Q. Okay, I’ll give you an opportunity to -
6 would the ROES havelooked like over this 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 previous period, and if the NEB had done that, 7 A. What's changed since 2009, Mr. Kelly, | used
8 the NEB formula would have predicted something | 8 CAPM, | would say, asaframework, and | don't
9 close to what this Board allowed for 2010 for 9 think anybody objectsto the ideathat there
10 NP. Sothat'sall I'm saying here is that you 10 arethree basic principlesin finance; time
11 can fix upa formulaso that it basically 11 valued money, risk free rate, risk valued
12 mimics what regulators did in 2010, and that 12 money or risk premium, and thetax valued
13 was the situation up until the summer of 2011, 13 money, that, in fact, rates of return are
14 and | think Ms. McShane and | would both agree |14 affected by taxes, and | think | said in 2009
15 on that. 15 because I’ ve been saying it for decades, that
16 KELLY, Q.C.. 16 thefirst two principles are captured in the
17 Q. Andthat’'s putting inputsinto it to make it 17 CAPM, that there'sa risk free rate and
18 historically go back to have the same result? 18 there' sarisk premium. All that capPm saysis
19 DR. BOOTH: 19 that that risk premium is a market risk
20 A. That'sright, and that’swhat the Regie said 20 premium and a beta coefficient. It doesn’'t
21 was very important, that you haveto - if you 21 say where the market risk premium comes from.
22 change your formula, you have to sort of back 22 It doesn’'t even say what therisk freerate
23 test that formula to make sure that it gave 23 is. SO it'supto witnessesand expertsto
24 in, say, 2003 resultsthat we felt were fair 24 put content into the cAPM formula. 1n 20009, |
25 and reasonable in 2003, andif it ends up 25 think | - I’d haveto go back and see what |
Page 34 Page 36
1 giving results that are significantly higher 1 was doing, but, | mean, I'm pretty sure | was
2 or significantly lower, it’simplicitly saying 2 looking at the historic risk premium in Canada
3 that what we did then was wrong, and the Regie 3 because there isinformation of what has
4 didn't like the idea that Ms. McShane's 4 happened in the past, and | started using the
5 formulathat she proposed in Gazifere implied 5 survey data from Professor Fernandez. What's
6 the decisions that it made prior in previous 6 happened sincethen is really illustrated
7 years were wrong. 7 where in now compare on page 61, if | can take
8 KELLY, Q.C. 8 you to that, therisk premium model with the
9 Q. Okay, now - 9 discounted cashflow model, and | would say
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 that in 2009, | wasn't putting much emphasis
11 A. Itwas minebasicaly rubber stamped, within a 11 on discounted cashflow models, and what I've
12 small difference, that what they did in 12 started to do islook at what | call anaive
13 previous years was correct. 13 DCF model, and DCF just meansthe dividend
14 KELLY, Q.C.. 14 yield plus the growth, and a naive risk
15 Q. Okay, what | wanted to turn to next isto talk 15 premium model, | call it cCAPM, but it’sreally
16 about the methodologies of how we go about 16 just arisk premium, the risk premium over the
17 getting ROES, and you and | had some of this 17 long treasury yield - the long Canada yield,
18 discussion in 2009, and we have substantially 18 and these should be exactly the same.
19 the same Board here, so | think alot of it we 19 Theoretically, they should be exactly the
20 can cover - 20 same, but by doing this, you can see that
21 DR.BOOTH: 21 there’' s been periods, extensive periods, when
22 A. Quickly. 22 there' s been substantial divergences between
23 KELLY, Q.C: 23 the DCF estimate and a risk premium estimate.
24 Q. Quickly, because we discussed this the last 24 In particular, if you look at the graph, the
25 time. Now you used capPMm exclusively to 25 last five years the DCF has been significantly
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1 higher than the risk premium model, whichis 1 several times about the role of judgment, and
2 why | now look at my estimates and rather than 2 my standard answer isif you want somebody to
3 just using the historic risk premium, or even 3 add up a bunch of numbers, go and hire a
4 the survey data, | use the DCF model to 4 dtatistician; if you want somebody to
5 estimate what is areasonable return on the 5 interpret those numbers and tell you what
6 market, which hinges al of the capm 6 happened to generate those numbers, you ask an
7 estimates. Soit’snot totally cCAPM. The 7 economist, and I’'m here not just smply to add
8 final analysislookslikea capwm, butit'sa 8 up numbers, I'm here to tell the Board what
9 question of the datathat goesinto those 9 generated those modelsand why we've had
10 values. So I'm putting much more greater 10 problemsin the past with DCF estimates, and
11 emphasison DCF now than | did threeyears 11 why we've had problemswith the capm, and |
12 ago. 12 fully acknowledge that | would judge asimple
13 KELLY, Q.C. 13 application of the capm under current market
14 Q. Andwhileyou got the graph on the screen, you |14 conditions as giving unrealistic low estimates
15 pointed out that there are periods where DCF 15 to the fair rate of return.
16 has been higher, but do | takeit, it aso 16 KELLY, Q.C.:
17 shows that capm has been higher? 17 Q. Right,infact -
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 DR. BOOTH:
19 A. Absolutely. Infact,if youlook at it, | 19 A. Andit'snotjust aquestion that I'm saying |
20 would say one of the reasonsthe Boardsin 20 think it'slow. I’'m providing the reasons why
21 Canada downplayed DCFestimates wasin the |21 | think it’slow, and | think they’re entirely
22 early 1990s, we had a collapse in inflation, 22 consistent with any reasonable understanding
23 we had very high real interest rates, and asa 23 of current capital markets.
24 result, the risk premium estimates were 24 KELLY, Q.C::
25 significantly higher than DCF estimates. 25 Q. And it becomeswhy you have to exercise
Page 38 Page 40
1 KELLY,Q.C: 1 judgment in the parameters, do you agree with
2 Q. And, of course, thedifficulty is wetaked 2 that?
3 about afew minutes ago isthe Board hasto 3 DR.BOOTH:
4 set arate of return annually, like, for - 4 A. I'veaways exercised judgment, Mr. Kelly.
5 DR. BOOTH: 5 One thing that' s characterized my testimony is
6 A. True 6 alot of discussion and a significant amount
7 KELLY, Q.C.. 7 of judgment. | don’'t think thisis just a
8 Q. Under Section 80 of the Public Utilities Act. 8 question of just adding up number.
9 So there may be periods where tests diverge, 9 KELLY, Q.C.
10 and so the questionis what’'s- how do you 10 Q. Exactly the point. Now | want to come back to
11 deal with that issue. That’'s the nub of the 11 that discussion again in amoment or two, but
12 problem we're now currently dealing within 12 let me take you to this next piece of
13 terms of the fact that, to use your language, 13 discussion. Can we agree that since the last
14 amechanical application of the capm giveslow |14 hearing beforethis Board, in other words
15 numbers. 15 2009, that there has been a shifting emphasis
16 DR. BOOTH: 16 among regulators from cAPMm towards DCF, and
17 A. | would say mechanical application of any 17 I’m not by the question suggesting that other
18 model gives- 18 regulators have simply embraced DCF, but that
19 KELLY, Q.C.: 19 there has been a shift in emphasis across the
20 Q. Hasthepotential to give low numbers. 20 country in terms of the use of DCFwith CAPM?
21 DR.BOOTH: 21 DR.BOOTH:
22 A. Or high numbers, and all I’'m doing is pointing 22 A. | agreewiththat. | think it'sfair to say
23 out here, and | listened to some of the 23 that regulators - generally they’'re pretty
24 witnesses, and 1'm not responding to these 24 sophisticated. They know what’sgoing on,
25 particular witnesses, but I've been asked 25 they read the newspaper, and they can
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1 understand that when somebody puts together a 1 dividend yields, what are reasonable long run

2 simple capm model, whether or not that makes 2 rate returnsfor the capital market as a

3 sense, and they’ve sort of felt their way 3 whole, and that’swhere | put my emphasison

4 towards a reasonable decision, andin this 4 the DCF.

5 discussion al I'm doing isproviding the 5 (9:45am.)

6 economic back drop that supports the fact that 6 KELLY,Q.C.

7 | would regard current risk premium estimates, 7 Q. We'll comeback toyour DCF alittle bit

8 naive ones, as being too low. Y ou have to put 8 later, I’'m not going to forget it. Can we go

9 some judgment into them, whichis what I've 9 next to NP-CA-15. If you - this dealswith
10 done. 10 the Ontario Energy Board, and the quote from
11 KELLY, Q.C.: 1 the 2009 decision, "The use of multiple tests
12 Q. Now canwe then go over to NP-CA-05, and if 12 to directly and indirectly estimate the ERPis
13 you'll scroll down, Chris- this dealswith 13 a superior approach to informing its judgment
14 the Bc Utilities Commission. Perhapsif you 14 than reliance on a single methodology", and if
15 cantakeit - back up to the top of it. There 15 you could scroll down tothe answer, you
16 wego. If yougoto line 19, you were asked 16 confirm the answer, but then you pointed back
17 to confirm, "That in arriving at its 9.5 17 to an OEB decision all the way back to 2004,
18 percent ROE for TGlI, it gave most weight to 18 before we got into all thisfinancial trouble.
19 the DCF approach, lesser weight to the ERP and 19 DR. BOOTH:
20 CAPM approaches, and avery small amount of 20 A. All theway back sort of impliesit wasalong
21 weight to the CE approaches’, and - can you 21 way, Mr. Kelly, but I'll -
22 scroll down to the answer, please. You 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 confirmed that that's correct, though you 23 Q. Itwasbeforethe-
24 thought at the time it was ahbit of an 24 DR.BOOTH:
25 outlier. 25 A. | remember 2004 very well.

Page 42 Page 44

1 DR. BOOTH: 1 KELLY,Q.C:

2 A. | still think it sabit of an outlier. It was 2 Q. But2004 was beforethe crash, before the

3 the second highest allowed ROE in Canada that 3 market collapsed and we got into the

4 year. 4 difficultieswe're currently in.

5 KELLY, QC. 5 DR. BOOTH:

6 Q. I'mnotworried - I’'m not asking you, though, 6 A. Thatiscorrect, but al I’'m referring to here

7 Dr. Booth, about the rateof return. I'm 7 isthe fact that one panel of the oEB combined

8 asking about the methodology that in British 8 another, and we have one panel that decided

9 Columbia, they gave most weight to the DCF 9 that the most important thing wasto use the
10 approach. 10 correct methodology rather than multiple tests
11 DR. BOOTH: 11 and then five years later we had another panel
12 A. That's correct, and that was an outlier 12 of the OEB saying we should use multiple
13 because no other regulator has put that sort 13 tests.
14 of weight on the DCF, and here | would have to 14 KELLY, Q.C.:
15 qualify, Mr. Kelly, I did not put a lot of 15 Q. Right, but thefiveyear spanis now 2009,
16 weight on individual DCF estimates. | think 16 once we're into the current mess that we'rein
17 for individual companies, they’'re highly 17 economically that wetalked about earlier -
18 unreliable, and | think we heard that 18 Chris, can you scroll down to -
19 yesterday from Dr. Vander Weide when hesaid |19 DR. BOOTH:
20 don’'t look at any one, look at the sample. | 20 A. We'renot in amess economically, Mr. Kelly.
21 would go even further than that and say, well, 21 KELLY, Q.C:
22 the unreliable DCF estimate is what TD 22 Q. Sorry?
23 Economics does, RBC does, and what Mercer |23 DR. BOOTH:
24 does, which is look at the overall economy, 24 A. We'renotinamess economically. Canadais
25 what sort of growth rates, what sort of 25 now almost back to full employment.
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1 KELLY, Q.C: 1 KELLY,Q.C:
2 Q. lwas speakingina global sense. Inthis 2 Q. Okay, andif I understand you correctly now in
3 one, Dr. Booth, at line 18, you say, "In this 3 this hearing, you' re saying that more judgment
4 respect, the 2009 statements of the OEB are an 4 isrequired in today’s environment than back
5 outlier compared to its previous decisions’. 5 in 20097 Can we go to PUB-CA-18.
6 So we got the Bcuc being an outlier, and the 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 OEB being an outlier, we can’'t have too many 7 A. That'scorrect. | would say that it isthe
8 outliers because there’ s only afew boards. 8 normal - we're not - as I've sort of
9 DR.BOOTH: 9 repeatedly said, | think capital marketsin
10 A Wdl,al I'mdoing is- | mean, I'm just 10 Canada are normal, except for the level of the
11 saying an outlier is pretty obvious that the 11 long Canada bond yield, and unfortunately,
12 OEB changed its decision. 12 that isone of the coreingredients for the
13 KELLY, Q.C. 13 CAPM, the way in which regulators have applied
14 Q. Exactly my point. We now have the OEB and the |14 it. It's not acoreingredient of the capm
15 BCUC saying let’s look at multiple tests, 15 for many other uses of the CAPM.
16 correct? 16 KELLY, Q.C.:
17 DR. BOOTH: 17 Q. Andthis is ananswer that you gaveto a
18 A. That'scorrect, and | have no problem with 18 request for information from the PUB staff,
19 that. I’m looking at multiple tests. 19 where they were asking you about the
20 KELLY, Q.C: 20 application of capm in current conditions, and
21 Q. Okay, and in therecent decision, and Mr. 21 you challenged the assumption built into it,
22 Johnson took you to it - took several of the 22 but you go on to say, "Dr. Booth states that a
23 witnesses toit, in 2011in Alberta, the 23 simple mechanical application of the capm
24 AlbertaBoard looked at both caAPM and DCF 24 resultsin estimates that are not appropriate
25 tests, didn't they? 25 at the moment. He isdtill relying onthe
Page 46 Page 48
1 DR. BOOTH: 1 cAPM formula, only more judgment is required
2 A, Wadll, I think it'sfair to say that there was 2 at the current point in time since the capital
3 avariety of testsput beforethe Alberta 3 markets are dominated by the actions of the
4 Board and they commented on all of them, and 4 global policy maker". Agree?
5 they used their own caPM, and then they made 5 DR. BOOTH:
6 adjustments. They also looked at bond ratings 6 A. Absolutely. I think that’s been the theme of
7 and things. 7 everything I’ ve said today and yesterday.
8 KELLY, QC:. 8 KELLY, QC.
9 Q. Andthey looked at DCF and gave weight to all 9 Q. Okay, andif wethen go - let'sjust go to the
10 of them? 10 next one, PUB-CA-19, where the PUB staff asked
11 DR. BOOTH: 11 you another question, and you were asked,
12 A. | can't remember exactly what weight the 12 "Please explain whether your adjustments to
13 applied to thedifferent tests, but that 13 the standard cApPM formula are supported by
14 wouldn’t surprise me. 14 finance theory, and if yes, provide details",
15 KELLY, Q.C.. 15 and again you said there's a misunderstanding
16 Q. Right, okay. Now | want to come back to the 16 in the question, "Dr. Booth is using a
17 discussion that we were having about judgment |17 standard capm formula, finance theory does not
18 that goes into these, and if we talk about 18 support any particular estimation method for
19 cAPM for a moment, there are the three 19 the parameters that go into that formula', and
20 elements. There' sthe market risk premium, 20 then you go ahead and comment further. Well,
21 the beta, and, of course, therisk freerate, 21 if finance theory doesn’t tell us what to put
22 and all of those require an exercise of 22 into the parameters, doesn’t it become the
23 judgment. 23 judgment of the person applying the model ?
24 DR. BOOTH: 24 DR.BOOTH:
25 A. Correct. 25 A. To some extent, yes, Mr. Kdly. I've
Page 45 - Page 48
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1 consistently said about the capm that it's 1 the range of market risk premiums were between
2 morereliable than, for example, discounted 2 5and 6 percent, very similar to now, and |
3 cashflow estimates because it's judgment 3 said, well -
4 constrained by facts. | think | said that in 4 KELLY,Q.C.:
5 2009, and the facts normally relateto the 5 Q. Wereamost -
6 fact that we have a lot of historic 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 information going back 80 yearson therisk 7 A. My judgment is’5 percent, but I’'m going to pay
8 return trade off, and that’ s about, 1'd say, 5 8 attention to the actions or the responses of
9 to 6 percent, historically in Canada 4. 5 9 800 of my colleagues, and | said, well, |
10 percent, historically in theuss.7, and so 10 could below, 1I"'m adding amargin of error,
11 coming along and saying, well, that's 10 11 and what I'vedone since then is simply
12 percent, that adjustment | would say is not 12 directly incorporate that into my market risk
13 reasonable. We have to be constrained by the 13 premium estimates.
14 facts before us similarly on beta
15 coefficients. |f somebody comesalong and
16 says the beta coefficient for utilitiesis.7,
17 | would say, well, there's absolutely no
18 judgement, there’s no empirical evidence to
19 support that. So we canlook at al of the
20 evidence and then say, well, you got some
21 judgment as to how these would change in the
22 future, but you are constrained by facts.
23 KELLY, Q.C.
24 Q. Now let's next gothen to NP-CA-29, and in
25 thisoneif you go to the answer first, you
Page 50
1 confirmed - take it subject to check, but the 1 KELLY, Q.C::
2 summary appears to be correct, it's the 2 Q. Andinfact, that margin of error, asyou've
3 summary of the recommendationsthat you've 3 just explained, smply related to the
4 made since about August, 2009. 4 parameters that you were using?
5 DR. BOOTH: 5 DR. BOOTH:
6 A. Yes | think that's correct. 6 A. That'sright.
7 KELLY, QC: 7 KELLY, QC:
8 Q. Andif we go over to the second column on the 8 Q. Right.
9 right, adjustments to base ROE and reasons for 9 DR.BOOTH:
10 adjustment, when we were herein 2009, the 10 A. It'sa question of what isthe market risk
11 only type of adjustment that you made to the 11 premium. We canlook at historic evidence,
12 CAPM application was amargin of error in the 12 five percent, andthen if you get 7,000
13 use of the formula?
14 DR.BOOTH:
15 A. That’scorrect, and thereason for that was
16 simply - I mean, if | go back and remember,
17 the Fernandez survey results only came out in
18 2008, and prior to that, | waslooking at
19 historic evidence, 4.5and 5 percent for
20 Canada, and | was relying upon the 80 years of
21 capital market history in Canada in terms of
22 therisk returntrade off. When | get new
23 information, Mr. Kelly, | evaluate it and if
24 it makes sense, | make adjustments, and at
25 that time the Fernandez survey indicated that
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1 responses saying it’s between fiveand six 1 crisis premium, which is, | take it,
2 percent, I'm not blind to the reaction of all 2 essentially the same adjustments you were
3 of these other expertsin the area. 3 making back in June?
4 KELLY,Q.C. 4 DR.BOOTH:
5 Q. Okay. Now if we godown then, by June of 5 A. That'sright. There werejust basically a
6 2010, which wasayear -- not quite ayear 6 process of going from saying "well, how can we
7 later, in Quebec you had incorporated a half a 7 make subjective assessment?' to "how can we
8 percent for the crisis -- what you called the 8 incorporate thisin an objective way into the
9 crisis premium, correct? 9 estimates, particularly so that they’ re useful
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 for an adjustment mechanism that somebody
11  A. That's correct. That wasessentially the 11 might like to use?' and for an adjustment
12 credit spread adjustment, whichis what I’'m 12 mechanism, it’s not good enough to say "well,
13 making now, and when we look at theserisk 13 my subjective assessment is 50 basis points,
14 premium estimates, we look at these historic 14 based upon credit market conditions." You
15 estimates. We always accept that there is 15 haveto have some objective datato make an
16 variability, that | mean, every year, therisk 16 adjustment.
17 premium isn’t exactly the same. So that’s why 17 KELLY, Q.C..
18 | say historic evidence constrained by the 18 Q. Andas wego down through theright side,
19 facts and the question is how do you condition 19 let’skeep an eye over on the left-hand side
20 or how do you change thisrisk premium? Some |20 for the forecast long Canada bond yield. At
21 boards don't like you to change the risk 21 that point intime, we're seeing that come
22 premium. The Regie doesn't like extra 22 down from four and a half percent. Now by
23 instability by changing the historic risk 23 September 2011, your forecast out for 2012 was
24 premium. And there'sa variety of thingsin 24 four percent.
25 theliterature that we use to condition or 25 DR. BOOTH:
Page 53 Page 55
1 change the risk premium, based upon the state 1 A. That'sright. You needtosee adropinthe
2 of the capital markets, and all I’ ve done here 2 forecast interest rates.
3 issort of condition the risk premium based 3 KELLY, Q.C.
4 upon the state of the corporateness of the 4 Q. Okay.
5 government bond market, the spread. 5 DR.BOOTH:
6 KELLY,Q.C.: 6 A. Andl mean, that'smy forecast but it's--
7 Q. And the perception at that point in time asto 7 obviously | donot rely totally onmy own
8 where, in simple terms, the world was going to 8 judgment. | use RBC and | use a consensus as
9 go and to be more precise about it, where 9 well.
10 interest rates are going to go? 10 KELLY, Q.C:
11 DR.BOOTH: 11 Q. Now, come down to the next one, which is March
12 A. Exactly, Mr. Kelly. If we go back to the 12 of 2012, which is -- at that stage, | take it
13 Canadian Financial Conditions Index, those 13 thisisthefirst time that you incorporate a
14 were extraordinary timesin 2008 and 2009 and 14 full one point -- what | would call your full
15 to say that therisk premium wasjust an 15 1.2 percent adjustment, whichisnow ahalf
16 historic average understated possibly the 16 percent credit adjustment, instead of .5 --
17 severity of the crisis from September 2008 to 17 sorry, a.4 percent credit adjustment instead
18 March 2009. 18 of .5 and your Operation Twist of .8.
19 KELLY, Q.C. 19 (10:00 am.)
20 Q. Right. But now we're up to June of 2010 and 20 DR.BOOTH:
21 let’sjust go to the next one, whichis July 21  A. That'sright. That was when, as| mentioned
22 of 2011, and perhaps we can ook at the next 22 yesterday, Operation Twist went into effect
23 two, September of 2011, and at that point in 23 September, | think it was, of 2011. It was
24 July, you were using a.325 spread adjustment 24 announced in August. Thisisnot thefirst
25 and in September, half a percentage financial 25 time the Fed has done an Operation Twist. In
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1 1961, they did an Operation Twist. And just 1 Q. Otherswill speak for themselves.

2 to put things in perspective, twist just means 2 DR.BOOTH:

3 to twist the yield curve, which isin between 3 A Alll can sayis that| don't make these

4 thelong terminterest rates and the short 4 decisionsinisolation. It was the general

5 term interest rates. The academic research 5 consensus. It was the consensus economics. |
6 that went into the 1961 was it wasn't 6 think the whole forecasting business, whole
7 effective. It'sambiguous research, but at 7 group of forecasters hasbeen consistently
8 that time the 1961 conditions were not as 8 wrong for thelast two years, interms of

9 severe as they are now. So, it wasn't certain 9 where interest rates are going, and it’s taken
10 that the Fed wasgoing to affect interest 10 awhileto adjust to that, and that’ s really

11 rates. By the time | put together my 11 what we're seeing now. There's some
12 TransCanada hearing, when | looked at what had |12 acceptance that interest rates are going to be
13 happened to the interest rates in the fall of 13 low for the indefinite future. | suspect, to

14 2011, it had become clear that the Fed 14 be absolutely honest, that things will not be
15 actually was affecting long term interest 15 the same. | suspect the USeconomy is going
16 rates. 16 to recovery a little bit stronger than most

17 KELLY, Q.C.. 17 people think.

18 Q. Okay. Now, Chris, canyou just bring the 18 KELLY, Q.C..

19 screen down another bit there? Then in -- the 19 Q. Theprablemisthe uncertainty, isn't it?
20 next one is May. We had your application here 20 DR.BOOTH:
21 in Newfoundland and you have the .4 percent 21 A. Um-
22 financial crisis spread and then .4 percent 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 plus .8 for Operation Twist, essentially the 23 Q. Wdll, let me putit toyou thisway, Dr.
24 1.2 percent again? 24 Booth. The problem for alittle utility on an
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 island in the north Atlantic trying to run an

Page 57 Page 59

1 A. Correct. | mean, the- 1 electrical system when you got to be dealing
2 KELLY, Q.C. 2 with cost of capital issues, that uncertainty

3 Q. ButeveninMay of - 3 is problematic.

4 DR.BOOTH: 4 DR.BOOTH:

5 A. Therewas amost no changes. | mean, the 5 A. It'sawaysproblematic, Mr. Kelly. | mean,
6 testimony was based upon essentially the same 6 if the cost of capital could be reduced to

7 data as the previous one. 7 sort of just looking in the newspaper, then
8 KELLY, Q.C: 8 none of us would be here. We wouldn’t have
9 Q. If welook back to the left-hand side, at that 9 been here for four or five days. Thefactis
10 stage you're still thinking, in May of 2012, 10 there's alwaysuncertainty in the capital

11 that interest rates aregoing torise, as 11 markets. | don’t think there' s been any one
12 opposed to what happened to them? 12 period, if you sort of track the media, when
13 DR. BOOTH: 13 there hasn't been uncertainty, when there
14 A, Wdl, not just me, but | mean, I’d haveto 14 hasn’'t been acrisisin one form or another.
15 caution you, Mr. Kelly, I mean - 15 As|’ve said repeatedly, the only thing we --
16 KELLY, Q.C. 16 problem we've got in Canada at the moment is
17 Q. You'rethewitness, sol'm - 17 in fact -- and from the point of view of the
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 estimate of the cost of capital, is thelow

19 A. I’'mthewitness. 19 level of the long Canadabond yield, and
20 KELLY, Q.C: 20 that’ swhy I’'m perfectly happy for this Board
21 Q. I'm putting the questions as to your 21 to fix the ROE based upon five percent long
22 knowledge. 22 Canada bond yield, which | would regard asa
23 DR. BOOTH: 23 normal bond yield average for the business
24 A. Well, that’strue. 24 cycle, and that’swhat my 8.25 percent fixed
25 KELLY, Q.C.: 25 rate recommendation is based upon.
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Page 60 Page 62
1 KELLY, Q.C: 1 DR. BOOTH:
2 Q. Basedonfive percent? 2 A. | generaly don’t comment on other witnesses
3 DR.BOOTH: 3 reports.
4 A. Based upon five percent, yes, becauseas | 4 KELLY, Q.C.
5 mention in my testimony, RBCwascomingupto | 5 Q. Now, you've been freein terms of -
6 4.55 within the next 18 monthslast year, 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 sorry 2011, and asrecently asthe middle of 7 A. No, I've been forced to.
8 the last business cyclein 2006, long Canada 8 KELLY, Q.C.
9 bond yields were about 5.3 percent. So | 9 Q. You'vebeenfreeinterms of Ms. McShane and
10 regard five percent as reasonable and | based 10 Dr. Vander Weide.
11 afixed rate on that 8.2 for five percent long 11 DR. BOOTH:
12 Canadabond yield and that’s significantly 12 A. Butthat'sabit of adifference. Dr. Vander
13 higher obviously than the current bond yields. 13 Weide has done 400 rate cases. | mean, he's
14 KELLY, Q.C.. 14 not exactly an inexperienced witnessand Ms.
15 Q. Canl ask youthisquestion, Dr. Booth? Mr. 15 McShane, | saw Ms. McShanetestify for the
16 MacDonald uses acApPM application in his 16 first time with Steve Sherman, | think, in the
17 report and | takeit you've had a chanceto 17 late’80s. So | know exactly what Ms. McShane
18 look at that? 18 has been doing and | know exactly what Vander
19 DR. BOOTH: 19 Weideisdoing. But with due respect to Mr.
20 A. | wasworking onthat until about-- Mr. 20 MacDonald, this is the first time he's
21 Johnson would verify -- 11:30 last night. 21 testified, and | remember thefirsttime |
22 KELLY, Q.C: 22 testified, | wasfeeling my way. SoI’'m not
23 Q. Okay. | thought maybe you might have read it 23 going to criticize him for -
24 alittle earlier than that, but - 24 KELLY, Q.C::
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 Q. No,| don'twant to suggest any criticism.

Page 61 Page 63
1 A. Oh,lreaditearlier. | saidl wasworking 1 What | would like the Board though to be -- to
2 onit. Mr. Johnson wanted meto help with 2 get somewhat serious about the question, |
3 Cross-examination questions. 3 would like the Board to have the benefit of
4 KELLY, Q.C. 4 your views on how he applied the capwm.
5 Q. Oh, I see okay. 5 Because you area significant proponent of
6 DR.BOOTH: 6 CAPM.
7 A. Sothat’sabit different. 7 DR.BOOTH:
8 KELLY, Q.C: 8 A. |l wouldsay if | criticized Mr. MacDonald, it
9 Q. Butintermsof Mr. MacDonald’s application - 9 would be because | don't think he's applied
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 any judgment to hisestimation techniques,
11  A. Sol wasupa long -- latelast night, so 11 whether they’re the historic risk premium,
12 let’sjust say that. 12 whether they’re the capm or whether they’re
13 KELLY, Q.C. 13 DCF. He'sbasically just added up the numbers
14 Q. Wadl, I will try not to keep you here too long 14 and said these are the numbers.
15 today. InMr. MacDonald s application, he 15 KELLY, Q.C..
16 doesn’'t make any of these adjustments. He 16 Q. Now, Dr. Booth, wetalked afew minutesago
17 comes up with a6.84 percent. Can | get you 17 about what I'd call the shift by regulators
18 to comment on Mr. MacDonald’ s application? 18 from simply looking at cAPm to looking at I'll
19 DR. BOOTH: 19 call it morebalanced -- looking at a DCF
20 A. I'd say that’swhat a statistician does. It's 20 approach as well, andif | take youto a
21 not what an economist does. 21 question from the pUB staff, No. 26, PUB-CA-
22 KELLY, Q.C: 22 26, and the staff asked you "please explain
23 Q. Okay. Soyou think that lacks the application 23 why the DCF methodology wasnot used as a
24 of sufficient judgment or any judgment? How 24 primary technique?' and you go through the
25 would you phrase that? 25 first part. 1'll skip down tothe second
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Page 64 Page 66

1 sentence. "As indicated in Dr. Booth's 1 We usedto have Union Gas, Unicor, as a

2 testimony, he has started to look more 2 privately owned company. Consumers Gas, which

3 seriously at DCF models since the actions of 3 has now become Enbridge Gas Distribution, had

4 the global policy maker has disrupted the bond 4 apublic float. So, therewasa variety of

5 market. Note Dr. Booth’'s Appendix D hasan 5 companies that we could useto estimate DCF

6 extensive discussion of DCF models, and until 6 equity costs.

7 the shift to ROE adjustment formulain 1993, 7 So three out of the four techniques that

8 Dr. Booth routinely placed 50 percent weight 8 | usedto use simply youcan't use them

9 on DCF modelsand 50 percent on risk premium 9 because thereis no data for them. But
10 models." Sol takeit you're-- even you are 10 conceptually bcr and risk premium models are
11 signalling some shift here in approach? 11 equally valid asways of estimating the fair
12 DR. BOOTH: 12 rate of return.

13 A. No. What I'm saying, Mr. Kelly, isthat asa 13 KELLY, Q.C:
14 professor of finance -- my Us textbook came 14 Q. Okay. That'shelpful. | noticein the answer
15 out two weeksago, my third edition of my 15 that one of the reasons you give for the shift
16 Canadian textbook will be out in about four 16 to simply cAPm was the fact that ROE
17 months -- | have two chapters on DCF models. 17 adjustment formulas became common and | think
18 It'sthe basic model which we use to value 18 we can agree today that they are not as common
19 bonds. With extensions, we useit to value 19 asthey were. There's not the regulatory
20 equities. And 1 got three chapters dealing 20 consensus there once was for them. Would you
21 with risk return models and the caApPm and other 21 go back to putting more weight on bcrF?
22 risk premium base models. There's no chapter 22 DR.BOOTH:
23 on comparable earnings. That's not an 23 A. Asaconceptua justification and then there's
24 acceptableway of estimating fair rates of 24 the empirica fact of whether you can get
25 return, the investors opportunity cost. So, 25 enough data to input to come up with
Page 65 Page 67

1 conceptually, | have absolutely no problem 1 reasonable estimates. | usea DCFon the

2 with using discounted cash flow. It implies 2 capital market asawhole, as| said, similar

3 the investors required rate of return, whereas 3 to TD Economics and other people. | may --

4 the cAPM and risk premium models, it's 4 I’ve been thinking about this, to be

5 normative and prescriptive, thisiswhat they 5 absolutely honest, Mr. Kelly.

6 should be. They should give exactly the same 6 KELLY,Q.C.

7 answers. 7 Q. | thought you would actually.

8 And up until, as| mention here, my late 8 DR.BOOTH:

9 colleague, Dr. Berkowitz, and I, we had four 9 A. | might haveto go back and start looking at
10 estimation techniques, two risk premium 10 Enbridge and Canadian utilities, because
11 models, one CAPM, another risk premium model 11 remember also, | mentioned the companies that
12 based upon premiums over preferred shares and 12 have gone out of existence. Emera and Fortis
13 two sets of DCF estimates, one from a sample 13 were not players ten years ago. So we' ve got
14 of Canadian telecommunications companies and 14 Emeradata now, ten years of data on Emera
15 one from energy companies. At that time, the 15 that we can actually look at start doing some
16 tel-cos were rate of return regulated and we 16 DCF estimates on Emera and we can start
17 had -- before we had Aliant, we had 17 looking at Fortis, and there, you may have
18 Newfoundland Tel and we had BC Telephone and 18 gained from some of the cross-examination
19 we had Quebec Tel and we had Island Telephone 19 questions, it's very important that any
20 in PEI. We had alot of local rate of return 20 estimates of future growth for a utility
21 regulated telephone companies. They've 21 reflect reasonable constraints on the fact
22 disappeared. Sowecan't do the DCF based 22 that these are slow growing mature companies.
23 upon companies that no longer exist. The 23 Andthat’s whereyou need historic data to
24 energy companies, we've lost -- Maritime 24 verify any future estimates of growth, and
25 Electric used to be a privately owned company. 25 that’sone criticism clearly | have against
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1 some other evidence that’s before the Board, 1 they be fixed up? What's going on?' And as|
2 that none of those standard checks have been 2 said, it'snot just aquestion of adding up
3 done. Andinfact, | used to -- part of that 3 numbers. The Board wants to know what’s going
4 testimony when | put together DCF and CAPM, | 4 on.
5 used to go through awholelist of standard 5 KELLY,Q.C:
6 checksthat had to be done for DCF estimates 6 Q. Sure. Let'sgo next, Dr. Booth, to page 64 of
7 to make sure they're internally consistent and 7 your evidence, which we had up on the screen a
8 valid estimates of the fair rate of return. 8 few moments ago. Because | understand you
9 KELLY,Q.C.: 9 actually did bcrtests, and let’sjust -
10 Q. So as we get these changing economic 10 DR. BOOTH:
11 conditions, but more importantly, the changes 11  A. That'scorrect. | looked at -
12 or the disruption inthe marketsfor long 12 KELLY, Q.C:
13 Canada bonds, the need to look to other 13 Q. Just wait until Chris gets itup on the
14 methodol ogies becomes more important and even |14 screen.
15 you are thinking about how you should approach |15 DR. BOOTH:
16 that? 16 A. Sure
17 DR. BOOTH: 17 KELLY,Q.C:
18 A. Evenme. | would - 18 Q. Beforewe getinto the test, | just havea
19 KELLY, Q.C: 19 question first. Chris, go a little further
20 Q. Well, you'reoneof the strongest proponents 20 down, alittle bit further. Okay. Dr. Booth,
21 for cAPM. 21 in the middle of the page, you have -- under
22 DR.BOOTH: 22 DCF, there are three entries. Oneisfor the
23 A. | think the whole academic finance community |23 Canadian equity market return as awhole, 9.3,
24 is the strongest proponents of CAPM. 24 and then I'll skip through the next one. Then
25 KELLY, Q.C.: 25 you have, atline 26, alow risk ussample
Page 69 Page 71
1 Q. Butyouarelooking at this? 1 median DCF at 8.73, andif | -- later onin
2 DR.BOOTH: 2 your report, you reference that asyour 8.73
3 A. I'mnow looking at the factorsI’ve -- | mean, 3 asthe DCF result. My question, first of all,
4 I’ve got extensive discussion, Mr. Kelly, that 4 isif I go back to the risk premium one at the
5 sort of points out the problemswith risk 5 top, you have the 50 basis points adjustment
6 premium versus bcF models and I’ m not aware of 6 in it, but you do not reflect itin the
7 any other witnessthat has actualy gone 7 bottom. Do you not need to add the 50 basis
8 through and said "what are the pros and cons 8 points adjustment to make your -- to bring
9 of these particular techniques? What are the 9 your DCF number to afinal number?
10 biases over particular periodsintime?' And 10 (10:15am.)
11 I’m thefirst to admit that you have to look 11 DR.BOOTH:
12 at these estimatesand say "well, what's 12 A. That'sreasonable, Mr. Kelly, but | produced
13 driving the difference?' You mentioned Mr. 13 thisinformation -- first of all, explain why
14 MacDonald, but I mean, he producesa DCF -- 14 I’ve done this, and why I’ve done thisis -
15 sorry, a CAPM estimate which he said was below 15 KELLY, Q.C:
16 what he regards as afair rate of return. 16 Q. Theanswer to the question that | put was -
17 That'sthefirst step. You comeup with an 17 DR.BOOTH:
18 estimate and as an academic | say "whoa, 18 A. No, you're absolutely correct.
19 there’ s something wrong with that." The next 19 KELLY, Q.C:
20 stepis: what'swrong with it? What isit 20 Q. -wascorrect, okay.
21 that’s generating the problems with that 21 DR.BOOTH:
22 technique? And I'm not aware of anybody in 22 A. If l'was using that,| would havehad a
23 Canadafor the last two yearsthat’s gone 23 floatation cost, but I'm not using it. What
24 through and tried to look atit and say 24 I’m doing here isin previous hearings, people
25 "what' s wrong with these estimates and how can 25 have said "you’'re just using capm" and | don't
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Page 72 Page 74

1 just use CAPM. | use awhole series of other 1 Dr. Velbert and they were what | would regard

2 information. So thisisreally areaction, 2 as the unanimously low risk utilities used by

3 I’'m just going to putin a whole set of 3 USwitnesses.

4 information here to indicate all the estimates 4 KELLY, Q.C.

5 that I’ve made, because| comeup with one 5 Q. Andout of these-

6 recommendation and people say "oh, just CAPM, 6 DR.BOOTH:

7 dismissit. Youshould beusing multiple 7 A. And| presented their Betas and when | started

8 tests." | used multiple tests. It’'sjust 8 doing this, | thought well, an obvious

9 that | don’t put them in atable and | decided 9 information request from the company would be:
10 to put them in atable here, or at least a set 10 you're using the betas, where's the DCF
11 of estimates hereto indicateto the Board 11 estimates. So | produced the DCF estimatesin
12 that I’'m not just simply using CAPM. I've 12 exactly the sameway as other Us witnesses
13 looked at a variety of other estimates. 13 have used them.

14 KELLY,Q.C. 14 KELLY,QC:

15 Q. Sothe comparable DCF number would be 8.73 |15 Q. Andall of the companies, with the exception

16 plus 50 basis points or 9.23? 16 of New Jersey Resource, are in Ms. McShane's

17 DR. BOOTH: 17 sample, correct?

18 A. That’scorrect. But as| aso mentioned, Mr. 18 DR. BOOTH:

19 Kelly, I mean, abroken clock tells the right 19 A. Yeah, they were consistently Ms. McShane's and

20 time twice aday, and - 20 they were alsoin, as| said, Dr. Velbert's.

21 KELLY,Q.C. 21 KELLY, QC::

22 Q. CanwegotoAppendix -- becausel’d liketo 22 Q. Okay. Inthis case, you added New Jersey for

23 see whereyou get your 8.73. Canwe go to 23 some reason. | takeit you selected that one?

24 Appendix D and your analysis starts at page 11 24 DR.BOOTH:

25 and if we go over to page 14? Startsat 11 25 A. Thatused tobein -- no, I've aways used
Page 73 Page 75

1 with your discussion of individual company 1 that one because that wasin a sample when |

2 results and, Chris, we can go through that and 2 set these utilitiesup, | think it wastwo

3 come over to page 14, at the top of the page. 3 years ago.

4 Sorry, give me just aminute. Sorry, top of 4 KELLY, Q.C.

5 page 15, | think. Yes, top of 15. Thereyou 5 Q. Allright.

6 go, Dr. Booth. 6 DR.BOOTH:

7 DR.BOOTH: 7 A. And | think that’s probably dropped out of --

8 A. Yeah 8 | mean, it may have dropped out of Ms.

9 KELLY, Q.C: 9 McShane' s sample now, but that was one that
10 Q. Youused asample and the sample that you used |10 she’'s aways regarded as being low risk
11 to do your DCF estimate -- because you 11 utility.

12 actually did two. Thefirst oneyou did was 12 KELLY, Q.C..

13 on aselect group of companies -- are American |13 Q. Okay. So your DCFanalysisusing this more
14 utilities, correct? 14 limited sample gave 8.73 and just so the Board
15 DR. BOOTH: 15 knowswhereto find it, if we go over to the
16 A. Correct. 16 third column from the right, the 8.73 isthe

17 KELLY, Q.C.: 17 median number under K, correct?

18 Q. Andthe American utilities, in order to select 18 DR. BOOTH:

19 a sample, you're looking for comparable 19 A. That'scorrect. | wouldn’t use an averagein
20 investment grade utilities, correct, or 20 this case because averages are sometimes
21 comparable investment utilities? 21 skewed by outliers, and inthiscase, it's

22 DR.BOOTH: 22 skewed by AGL, which has got a negative growth
23  A. As | explained earlier, these are the 23 forecast.

24 utilities that were the nexus or the 24 KELLY, Q.C:

25 intersection of a set used by Ms. McShane and 25 Q. Perfect, okay. Now then canwego over to
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Page 76 Page 78

1 Schedule 11, whichis your other analysis? 1 owned utilities ROEs dlowed in 2012?" and you

2 And still in that Appendix, Chris. 1t should 2 say "utility allowed ROEs are in Schedule 3 to

3 bea big table, Chris. It's on page 29. 3 Ms. McShane's testimony and average 9.08

4 Therewe go. It'sthetop half of the block, 4 percent for 2012."

5 Chris, if youcan -- now, Dr. Booth, if | 5 DR. BOOTH:

6 follow this correctly, thisis your DCF on the 6 A. That's right, the ones in Ms. McShane's

7 S& P electric index from the us? 7 schedule, that's -- | have no reason to

8 DR.BOOTH: 8 question those allowed ROES. | will point out

9 A. That'sright. Inordertogetinto the S&P 9 some of themare for utilities that are
10 500, there were certain constraints.  One of 10 demonstrably more risky than Newfoundland
11 itisintermsof market capitalization. So 11 Power, so they’ re not benchmark ROEs, they’re
12 these are the big -- the bigger companies. It 12 just an average of al of the allowed ROEs.
13 comprises about 85 percent of the market value |13 KELLY,Q.C:
14 for the us capital market. So these are the 14 Q. Now can | takeyou nextto PUB-CA-15? I'm
15 ones that were big enough to get into the S& P 15 going to shift gears here alittle bit now as
16 500 index. 16 wetalk about capital structure. In May of
17 KELLY, Q.C: 17 2012 when Newfoundland Power applied, you
18 Q. Right. So if we-- first of all, we had a 18 filed areport in that caseand did not
19 little small samplethat gave us8.73. Then 19 suggest any changesto Newfoundland Power’'s
20 we have the whole electrical utility index for 20 capital structure. And the PuB staff asked
21 electrics, and if we go over tothe K column 21 you the question "please describe the changes
22 again, which is-- what’ s that, five from the 22 in capital markets since your previous expert
23 right -- the bottom number, you actually get 23 report on Newfoundland Power dated May 2012,
24 the same result, 8.73. 24 which supported no change in capital
25 DR.BOOTH: 25 structure.” That’sthe’ 12 report. And your

Page 77 Page 79

1 A. Yeah, but that's atime series average rather 1 answer was"capital market parameters are

2 than an average at a particular point in time. 2 essentially the same since its external

3 That's the average going back to 1993. 3 factors,” et cetera. So the capital markets

4 KELLY,Q.C: 4 really haven't changed in any way in relation

5 Q. Right. 5 to capital structure, have they?

6 DR.BOOTH: 6 DR.BOOTH:

7 A. Andwe can see, for example, in 2001, it was 7 A. No. |think, what -- sorry, yes, | think

8 10.28 percent because that was the middle of 8 you're correct. The only thing that’ s really

9 the tech crisis and we can see that in2008 9 -- | mean, we're alittle bit better off now
10 and 2009, it was 9.6 percent or so, which was 10 than we werein the spring. The stock market
11 the financial crisis. So, the cost of equity 11 has recovered. There’s more confidence in the
12 clearly varies with capital market conditions. 12 equity markets, particularly last three weeks.
13 So that's just an average over the last 20 13 Long Canada bond yields have just gone down.
14 years. 14 But, so that answer isabsolutely correct.
15 KELLY, Q.C: 15 Y ou probably remember, Mr. Kelly, in 2009 |
16 Q. Okay. Now then the last piece of thisthat | 16 said you should revisit Newfoundland Power’s
17 wanted to touch onrelates towhat's been 17 common equity ratio, but | felt at that time
18 awarded in Canada, especialy in 2012? And | 18 it was premature, even though | felt that it
19 take it, you are in agreement with Ms. McShane 19 should be lowered. And the filing in May, I'd
20 that the average awardsin Canadain 2012 by 20 have to go back, but there's no discussion of
21 regulators work out to 9.08 percent, if we go 21 adjustment mechanism and there’ s no discussion
22 to PUB-CA-23. And in the answer -- thiswas a 22 of changing the common equity ratio, because
23 question asked by Board staff again, and you 23 that wastto fix the allowed ROE going back for
24 were asked, "how does your cAPM conclusion and 24 2012, since the Board suspended the formula.
25 the ranges set out compare to other investor 25 KELLY, Q.C.:
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Page 80 Page 82
1 Q. Butjust asecond now, Dr. Booth. We all know 1 KELLY, Q.C:
2 that ROE and capital structure are related. | 2 Q. So well agree --1 take it we are in
3 mean, you'renot goingto sit thereas a 3 agreement that there’ s nothing changed since
4 finance professor and tell me that somehow ROE | 4 2012 in the markets that would affect
5 is-- you separate it. Take, for example, the 5 Newfoundland Power’s capital structure?
6 Alberta Board where they balance capital 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 structure with ROE. So - 7 A. That'scorrect, and as| think we will agree
8 DR. BOOTH: 8 that I’ ve put amarker down for Newfoundland
9 A. That'scorrect. 9 Power’s common equity ratio and I've now
10 KELLY, Q.C.: 10 exercised that marker inthe sensethat |
11 Q. -you'retoo smart for that. |1 know that. 11 think the capital market conditions -- when we
12 DR. BOOTH: 12 say there’s nothing changed, nothing has
13 A. Wdl, Itake it that’'sa compliment, Mr. 13 changed except the long Canada bond yield, and
14 Kelly. 14 with that is the fact that Canadian Utilities
15 KELLY, Q.C.. 15 Inc., the parent company of ATCO Gas, ATCO
16 Q. Absolutely. 16 Pipeand ATcoO Electric, just issued 50-year
17 DR. BOOTH: 17 debt at 3.8 percent. 50-year debt at 3. -- |
18 A. In financia theory, there is very clear 18 mean, that's incredibly low interest rates.
19 balancing of businessrisk and financial risk. 19 And Fortis Alberta, | think it was, issued 40-
20 For utilities, it isnot so clear, smply 20 year debt at sub four percent. So the change
21 because -- | agree 100 percent here with Dr. 21 in the low Canada bond yields has brought down
22 Vander Weide that as far as the equity holder 22 the financing cost for utilities and they’re
23 is concerned, the imposition of debt imposes 23 now able to issue debt at incredibly
24 fixed charges and it magnifies the return to 24 attractive terms, terms that nobody ever
25 the common shareholder, and | think if you go 25 anticipated afew years ago.
Page 81 Page 83
1 back and look at thetranscript yesterday, 1 KELLY,Q.C:
2 that’sexactly what Dr. Vander Weide says, 2 Q. Whenyou need to go to the market though.
3 because that's what leverage does, it 3 DR.BOOTH:
4 magnifies returns.  When you look at 4 A. When you need to go to the market.
5 utilities, you got to ask what is it 5 KELLY, Q.C.
6 magnifying and the fact is, it isn't 6 Q. Youdon't borrow money and just haveit sitin
7 magnifying anything because utilities do not 7 the bank because, asyou explainedto the
8 have negative returns in the sense of below 8 Board the other day, that would be a negative
9 their allowed ROE. So | don't see any 9 return.
10 evidence that the actual imposition of debts 10 DR. BOOTH:
11 for any Canadian utility over thelast 20 11  A. That'strue, unlessyou felt that interest
12 years has magnified the risk to the common 12 rates were going to change. If you think that
13 shareholders, not interms of the short run, 13 interest rates are going to suddenly ramp up,
14 ability to earn the allowed ROE or the impact 14 and I'd suggest, Mr. Kelly, if you've got a
15 on the shareholder. 15 mortgage and you look at it and say, "well, |
16 KELLY, Q.C. 16 currently can borrow -- get amortgage at
17 Q. So, onthis- 17 three percent” and you listto all of the
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 stuff and say "well, | think interest rates
19 A. Theoreticaly, it's correct and | can 19 aregoing to go up to five percent,” then |
20 understand why the AlbertaBoard did that, and |20 suggest you should borrow as much as you can
21 in fact, the Alberta Board was just following 21 at three percent.
22 the National Energy Board in 1993-4 when it 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 set the common equity ratios for the gas pipes 23 Q. Yes. But you're not suggesting, Dr. Booth,
24 at 30 percent and the oil pipes at 45 percent, 24 and I’'m sure you're not  suggesting this, the
25 when through exactly the same reasoning. 25 embedded cost of debt of Newfoundland Power,
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Page 84 Page 86
1 which isin, for the most part, 30 year bonds, 1 that changed the common equity ratio to
2 you can't call them. They roll over when they 2 reflect both capital -- well, to change the
3 roll over and so you deal with embedded debt 3 ROE and the common equity ratio to reflect
4 when you get to that point in time. 4 capital market conditions.
5 DR. BOOTH: 5 And as we went through with Ms. McShane,
6 A. That'sabsolutely correct. My understanding 6 Terason Gas FEl is facing significant risk
7 isthat NP has got about 60 million dollarsin 7 changes. At one point, people were proposing
8 long term debt with a over ten percent coupon 8 a$15 agigajoule tax, carbon tax, on FEI when
9 coming to you over the next couple of years. 9 the cost of gas was only about seven dollars,
10 But relative to the overall - 10 because that’'s the only way in British
11 KELLY, Q.C.: 1 Columbia that it can reduce greenhouse
12 Q. Soyou'll deal with - 12 emissions because they regard natural gas as
13 DR. BOOTH: 13 being a bad fuel. Everywhere elsein the
14 A. -financing, it'sgoingto marginaly lower 14 world wethink it'sagreat fuel, butin BC,
15 the embedded debt cost. 15 they got so much hydro that they’ re trying to
16 KELLY, Q.C.. 16 shift people off gas. So those business risk
17 Q. Not material. 17 factorsfacing FEI in 2009 that prompted an
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 increase in common equity ratio, and I'll say
19 A. No. Wdl, | wouldn't say not material. | 19 exactly the same, the National Energy Board
20 mean, every - 20 has effectively increased the TransCanada
21 KELLY, Q.C: 21 Mainline’s common equity ratio for specific
22 Q. Every dollar helps. 22 business risk reasons.
23 (10:30am.) 23 KELLY, Q.C:
24 DR. BOOTH: 24 Q. But one of thefactors that influenced those
25 A. Exactly. 25 boardsaswell, and | grant your point that
Page 85 Page 87
1 KELLY,Q.C: 1 some of them have specific factors relating to
2 Q. Now other regulators, and can we agree on this 2 the individual companies, but the Alberta
3 point, other regulators, for example, Alberta 3 Board in particular, and oneof the factors
4 and BC, took steps for some of their utilities 4 for al of theincreaseswere the financial
5 to actually strengthen their capita 5 conditionsin the financial markets, and I’'m
6 structures during the 2009 period. Ms. 6 not hearing you disagree with that.
7 McShane sets this out in her evidence and she 7 DR.BOOTH:
8 was examined on it. 8 A. No,I'mjust -- no, I'm not disagreeing.
9 DR. BOOTH: 9 KELLY, QC:
10 A. That'scorrect. Thishasbeena subject of 10 Q. No, okay.
11 some disagreement as to whether there's a 11 DR. BOOTH:
12 trend increase common equity ratiosand | 12 A. Asyouindicated, Mr. Kelly, inthe face of
13 think it'simportant on the record to indicate 13 increased risk, you can increase the common
14 that in 2009 the AlbertaBoard, the AUC, 14 equity ratio. Y ou can increase the ROE. What
15 increased the common equity ratios and set the 15 | take exception to is people saying "well,
16 alowed ROE to reflect capital market 16 look, there's been an increase in common
17 conditions. So unlike other boards that said 17 equity ratios because of whatever reasons.”
18 capital market conditions are pretty bad, 18 What I'm saying is that some boards just
19 we'regoing to set the ROE based upon those 19 increase the ROE. Other boards increase the
20 capital market conditions, the AUC gave an 20 common equity ratio and theROE. So when
21 across the board one to two percent increase 21 you're looking at sort of comparisons, it’s
22 in the common equity ratio, which reduces the 22 important to go through and say "well, thisis
23 risk to the common shareholders and also set 23 what this board did. It’s just ROE and common
24 the ROE to reflect capital market conditions. 24 equity ratio. Whereasthis board is just
25 That'sthe only board, asfar as I’'m aware, 25 ROE."
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1 KELLY, Q.C: 1 be established has a stand-alone utility
2 Q. | accept that, okay. Now have you examined 2 because the Board was concerned that -- the
3 Newfoundland Power’s ability to issue 3 former Consumer Advocate was one of the
4 preferred shares, Newfoundland Power 4 proponents, but the Board had a concern that
5 specifically? 5 with the risk that a holding company could be
6 DR.BOOTH: 6 downgraded, imposing a burden on the utility.
7 A. No. Newfoundland Power hasn't accessed the 7 And sothat firewall was put in place. Are
8 preferred share market. For that, you'd have 8 you now suggesting that that should be undone?
9 to go and talk to an investment dealer and say 9 DR.BOOTH:
10 "what are the terms and conditionsunder which {10  A. No. | 100 percent agree with that.
1 we can issue preferred shares?' What | have 11 KELLY, Q.C.:
12 doneis look at Fortis. Fortis issued 200 12 Q. No, of course not.
13 million dollars of preferred sharesjust six 13 DR. BOOTH:
14 weeks ago. 14 A. Infact, that’swhat we call ring fencing.
15 KELLY, Q.C.. 15 KELLY, Q.C..
16 Q. Fortis isa huge big entity, relative to 16 Q. Exactly.
17 Newfoundland Power, isit not? 17 DR.BOOTH:
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 A. Becausethe standard problem, and | can see
19 A. Absolutely, and Canadian Utilities Inc. isa 19 this, for example, Enbridge Inc. israted A-
20 huge entity, relativeto ATCO Gasand ATCO 20 by DBRsand Enbridge Gas Distribution and
21 Electric and ATCcO Pipelinesand what cu does 21 Enbridge Pipeline arerated A, but both of
22 isissue preferred shares and debt and then 22 them arerated A- by Standard & Poors because
23 just mirrors down the cost to its subsidiaries 23 Standard & Poors looks at that and says well,
24 and Fortis can do exactly the same thing. 24 the subs are ring fenced and Enbridge Inc. can
25 KELLY, Q.C: 25 do thingsto damage the credit rating of the
Page 89 Page 91
1 Q. Oh,no,no, no, no. Justasecond now, Dr. 1 operating subsidiaries.
2 Booth. Can't let that go. 2 KELLY,Q.C.:
3 DR.BOOTH: 3 Q. Right. So Newfoundland Power is-
4 A. They may not want to doit, but they cando 4 DR. BOOTH:
5 it. 5 A. Sol'vebeen advocating ring fencing for at
6 KELLY, Q.C. 6 least the last ten years, Mr. Kelly.
7 Q. No, no, just asecond now. ThisBoard, back 7 KELLY, Q.C.:
8 in 2003, ' 04, ' 05, I've forgotten theright 8 Q. Butthat’'sinconsistent with what you said to
9 time frame, has mandated Newfoundland Power to 9 the Board afew moments ago, that Fortis can
10 be a stand-alone utility and has to operate as 10 run -- drop down these preferred shares. We
11 astand-alone utility. If Fortis were to have 11 are ring fenced. We are a stand-alone entity,
12 preferred shares drop downto Newfoundland 12 Dr. Booth. You will agree with that?
13 Power, those preferred shares would have a 13 DR. BOOTH:
14 Fortis credit rating, would they not? 14 A. Oh,look, I 100 percent agree with that.
15 DR. BOOTH: 15 KELLY, Q.C..
16 A. Itwould. 16 Q. Okay.
17 KELLY,QC: 17 DR.BOOTH:
18 Q. They would, and that would be contrary to this 18 A. Thepoint of ring fencing is to make sure that
19 Board’s order that Newfoundland Power be set 19 the rate payersin Newfoundland only pay the
20 up as a stand-alone utility. 20 cost of service attached to Newfoundland.
21 DR.BOOTH: 21 KELLY,Q.C.
22 A. TheFortis credit ratingis not as good as 22 Q. And theresult of that isthen that for
23 Newfoundland Power’ s credit rating. 23 preferred shares to beissued, Newfoundland
24 KELLY,Q.C. 24 Power would have to issue them. So the next
25 Q. ThisBoard has ordered Newfoundland Power to 25 question | want to ask you is -- because you
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1 said you wanted these -- your suggestionis 1 was the shorter the maturity and the fact that
2 that they should be redeemable and/or 2 the maturity is paid off in cash, not in other
3 retractable so that they could be paid out 3 preferred shares or anything else, then they
4 after afive-year period. Inthat case, the 4 will treat them as debt for the purposes of
5 credit rating agencies would treat those 5 presentation in their financial statements.
6 dividends asif they were interest for credit 6 Doesn't change thefact that to meet an
7 rating purposes, don’t they? 7 interest coverage ratio in abond indenture,
8 DR. BOOTH: 8 they’re not included as interest and they do
9 A. Itdepends uponthe termsof the preferred 9 affect the interest coverage ratio and allow
10 shares. But the important thing as far asthe 10 the utility to have financial flexibility and
11 capital marketsare concerned isthat any 11 accessin capital markets.
12 preferred share dividends, evenif they're 12 KELLY, Q.C..
13 five-year retractable, are dividends. They're 13 Q. Soyou haven't looked at Newfoundland Power’s
14 paid out of after-tax income and a utility can 14 ability to issuethem. Haveyou looked at
15 stop paying those dividends without causing 15 Newfoundland Power’ s bond requirements?
16 the utility to commit an act of a bankrupt or 16 DR. BOOTH:
17 allowing the bond holders to petition for 17 A. My understanding isthat in terms of the issue
18 immediate payment of their debt. 18 requirements for Newfoundland Power, it hasto
19 KELLY, Q.C.: 19 meet atime times what we call new issue test.
20 Q. We'renot going to hang our feet so closeto 20 That new issuetest, if | remember correctly,
21 the cliff that we' re courting bankruptcy, Dr. 21 you take the earnings for 12 months out of the
22 Booth. That would - 22 best 24 and then you include interest. Y ou do
23 DR. BOOTH: 23 not include dividends. So the fact that I'm
24 A. No,no, no. I'mjust sayingthat legaly 24 recommending the common be replaced with
25 there is a difference between preferred shares 25 preferred sharesis not negative in terms of
Page 93 Page 95
1 and debt and the rating - 1 the ability of Newfoundland Power to access
2 KELLY, Q.C: 2 the debt markets.
3 Q. Butfor credit - 3 KELLY, Q.C:
4 DR. BOOTH: 4 Q. Ms. Perry,you were herefor Ms. Perry’s
5 A. Holdon. And therating agencieslook at that 5 testimony, and she said the only practical -
6 and you can structure apreferred share to 6 DR.BOOTH:
7 look almost exactly like debt. In fact, 7 A. No,| wasn't. | wasin Toronto giving a
8 revenue -- at onetime, in the 1980s, a series 8 lecture.
9 of Canadian companies issued 30-day preferred 9 KELLY, Q.C.
10 shares. Basically, they were commercia paper 10 Q. Oh,I'msorry. Shetestified, and you may or
11 and they were called preferred shares and 11 may not have had a chanceto look at the
12 Revenue Canada said "thisisridiculous. You 12 transcript, that the only practical way to
13 can't have shareholders equity that’srolled 13 reduce the capital structure was to borrow 42
14 over every 30 days. It violates the 14 million dollarsto pay it out.
15 assumption that this is ownership" and it 15 DR. BOOTH:
16 disallowed the treatment of 30-day preferred 16 A. Wadll, the obvious thing to do is that
17 shares as preferred shares. So sincethey’re 17 Newfoundland Power issue 40-42 million dollars
18 acontract, you can design preferred shares to 18 worth of preferred shares, get the cash and
19 look exactly like any form of debt that you 19 then pay it out as adividend to Fortis.
20 like to think of, and what the rating agencies 20 KELLY, Q.C:
21 doisthey look at those preferred shares and 21 Q. That assumes that that is doableand at an
22 they say "well, ook, thislooks like debt. 22 appropriate cost, which you haven’t examined,
23 We'regoing to treat it asdebt." So there 23 correct?
24 were certain types of preferred sharesthat 24 DR.BOOTH:
25 they will treat as debt and the major criteria 25 A. Well, what | do know, Mr. Kelly, isthat that
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1 cost is going to be nowhere close to the cost 1 the gas distributors in Canadain a prospectus
2 of thereturn on equity. | mean, preferred 2 of the -- not the prospectus, but the
3 shares, if you look at the retractable 3 agreement with the trustee that allows them to
4 preferred, they’re at about 3.7. If you look 4 issue medium term notes and other securities,
5 at the redeemable preferreds that Fortis 5 they have a two times interest coverage
6 issued, they were4.7. They might befive 6 restriction.
7 percent. 7 KELLY, QC:
8 KELLY, QC. 8 Q. Soyoure-
9 Q. Andthenthey haveto be grossed up for tax, 9 DR.BOOTH:
10 don’t they? 10 A. Sothey can'tissue, literally cannot issue
11 DR. BOOTH: 11 say medium term notes, unless they satisfy the
12 A. Wdll, that'strue, but so doesthe return on 12 interest coverage ratio restriction as
13 the common equity. So you’'ve got to compare |13 calculated in the covenant.
14 likewith like. As| said in the presentation 14 KELLY, Q.C.:
15 yesterday, | regard my recommendation asbeing (15 Q. So, | must say, I'm somewhat astonished that
16 extremely conservative, but I'm just saying 45 16 you're sitting here and essentially telling
17 percent go 40 percent common, five percent 17 the Board that you're going to be concerned
18 pref. Sol'mnot saying go immediately to 18 when weget to alevel of interest coverage
19 what Fortis Alberta has got, 40 percent common |19 that Newfoundland Power is on the brink of no
20 and 60 percent debt. I've got a halfway 20 longer being ableto borrow inthe capital
21 house. If | was looking at replacing them 21 markets. That's whenyou're goingto get
22 with debt, the savings in terms of the 22 concerned?
23 reduction in the revenue regquirement would be 23 DR. BOOTH:
24 alot more significant. But | think at this 24 A. No,no. Look,I’'msaying -- | said I'd be
25 point, | think a halfway house with preferred 25 more concerned. | mean, | didn’t say | don’t
Page 97 Page 99
1 shares, | think that’s a very reasonable 1 get concerned. Two timesisthe litmus test.
2 proposition. It still gives Newfoundland 2 Even there, Mr. Kelly, Enbridge Gas
3 Power pretty much the best capital structure 3 Distribution dropped below two times and it
4 across Canada, in terms of utilities. 4 came before the Ontario Energy Board and said
5 KELLY, Q.C. 5 basically "the sky isfalling. We can't issue
6 Q. Have you considered the company’s credit 6 medium term notes. We' ve got to get immediate
7 metrics? 7 financial relief." The OEB ignored them and
8 DR. BOOTH: 8 their interest coverage ratio recovered. In
9 A. Yes 9 their case, it was dueto warmer weather
10 KELLY, Q.C.. 10 causing a lower return on equity. Terason
11 Q. Canl takeyou to NP-CA-27? Inthe answer to 11 Gas, FEl, has had interest coverage ratio
12 this question, you point out that you' re not a 12 around two, all the way up until 2009 and its
13 bond rater, andif | take you downto the 13 parent at the time, West Coast Energy, had an
14 latter part of the answer, 17, 18, "rating 14 interest coverage ratio of about 1.6, 1.7 and
15 agencieslook primarily to the strength of 15 they still had an investment grade rating.
16 regulatory protection and place less weight on 16 Andyou look at the parent, Fortis, doesn’'t
17 financial metrics. However, interest coverage 17 have a two times interest coverage ratio. So
18 of 2.8 timesiswell above the standard for an 18 I’m saying that the -- you get concerned, I'd
19 Arating of agas or electric distributor in 19 be more concerned if you drop below two. I'm
20 Canada. Given other factors relevant to NP, 20 not concerned about a reduction of 2.88 to
21 Dr. Booth would be more concerned if it 21 2.8. | don't think that’s material.
22 dropped to the two times level ." 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 DR. BOOTH: 23 Q. Dr. Booth, youindicated you'd looked at
24 A. Yeah, that'sthe litmus test for interest 24 Newfoundland Power’s credit metrics. Did you
25 coverage ratios because most -- certainly all 25 do any kind of an analysisof the combined
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1 effect of your proposals and the depreciation 1 common equity ratio in order to support the
2 recommendations that the Consumer Advocateis | 2 credit metrics?' i.e. does the equity holder

3 advocating from Mr. Pous? 3 get rewarded inorder totarget particular

4 DR.BOOTH: 4 credit metrics? And | think her answer was
5 A. | didn't look a the depreciation 5 no.

6 recommendation. 6 (10:45am.)

7 KELLY, QC: 7 KELLY, QC:

8 Q. Sorry,youdidor didn’'t? 8 Q. Mr. Chairman, we're coming up to 10 to 11 and
9 DR. BOOTH: 9 I”’m about to shift to another area, which will
10 A. |didnot. 10 take more than ten minutes, but I'm -- we've
11 KELLY, Q.C. 11 actually made very good time this morning. |
12 Q. Youdid not. 12 would estimate another half an hour and I'll
13 DR. BOOTH: 13 be done. Sothis would be agood time to

14 A. Thedepreciation affects the cash flow. 14 break, if it's convenient to the Board?
15 KELLY, Q.C.. 15 CHAIRMAN:
16 Q. Yes 16 Q. Absolutely.
17 DR.BOOTH: 17 MS. GLYNN:
18 A. Itwon't affect theinterest coverage or the 18 Q. Yes, it'sonly a15-minute break.
19 yield, the debt ratio. It will affect the 19 KELLY, Q.C.:
20 cash flow flowing towards debt, whichisone 20 Q. 15 minutes, yeah, that’sfine.
21 of the ratios that people look at. 21 (BREAK - 10:46 a.m.)
22 KELLY, Q.C: 22 (RESUME - 11:07 a.m.)
23 Q. Andyou haven't looked at -- you haven’t done 23 CHAIRMAN:
24 that analysis? 24 Q. S0, let us press forward.
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 KELLY, Q.C..
Page 101 Page 103
1 A. | wasn't aware of the depreciation information 1 Q. Thank you, Chair. Dr. Booth, the next areal
2 that was put forward. Thisis-- | was asked 2 want to turn to isthe formula. | just want
3 to look at what the fair ROE was. 3 to have a quick discussion with you over some
4 KELLY,Q.C.: 4 of theissues surrounding that. | takeit,
5 Q. Right,and- 5 first of al, we can agree that any formulais
6 DR.BOOTH: 6 a construct or a device to give us an
7 A. Depreciationisn't afactor in thefair ROE. 7 approximation of cost of capital. It's not an
8 Depreciation may bea factor in the credit 8 absolutely correct calculation in any event?
9 metrics. Theinterest -- and when | look at 9 DR. BOOTH:
10 this, | think it was Mr. MacDonald asked me to 10 A. That's correct. If you wanted something
11 put my combined results together and | didn’t 11 absolutely correct, you'd probably have to
12 dothat and | didn'tdo that because it's 12 have a quarterly cost of capital hearing and
13 perfectly legitimate to look at the common 13 set the cost of capital on a quarterly basis,
14 equity ratio in terms of the financial 14 because cost of capital changes every single
15 strength of the utility ability to earn 15 day.
16 capital. Soit’s perfectly legitimate to sort 16 KELLY, Q.C.
17 of say well, if you replace the common with 17 Q. Sure. Andit'sreally aproxy or asubstitute
18 preferred shares, how does this affect the 18 for having a cost of capital hearing?
19 financial integrity of the utility, whichis 19 DR. BOOTH:
20 what I’ve done in this question here. Itis 20 A. That'scorrect. Exactly thesame way as a
21 not legitimate to look at the return on equity 21 fixed rateis.
22 and think of that in terms of the credit 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 metrics, and we specifically asked Ms. Perry 23 Q. Now the particular formula that you've
24 "do you think the equity holder should be 24 proposed has a couple of elementsto it that
25 rewarded in terms of a higher ROE or bigger 25 I'dliketo discusswith you. The firstis
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1 the factor for adjusting long Canada bonds 1 it wasback in the early mid 1990s. Inthe
2 that you use is75 percent and just without 2 mid 1990s, some of us will remember the
3 taking forever with it, just give the Board an 3 Government of Canada had a deficit approaching
4 explanation of why you use 75 percent. 4 ten percent of GDP and the NEB, when it set
5 DR. BOOTH: 5 its formula, the forecast long Canada rate was
6 A. Thisisin my testimony. Originaly, in 1993, 6 9.25 percent and we had significant
7 before the Bcuc, my late colleague and | 7 inflationary problems that were just coming
8 recommended 80 percent. Beforethe Manitoba | 8 down. So therewas ageneral perception that
9 Public UtilitiesBoard, we recommended 80 9 long Canada bond yields were going to change
10 percent. And the ManitobaPuB acceptedan 80 |10 significantly. That'sall changed. The Bank
11 percent adjustment. TheBcucwent with 100 |11 of Canadahas had a one to three percent
12 percent adjustment. The NEB then went with a 12 target agreed to with the Federal Government
13 75 percent adjustment. So there was a variety 13 for thelast 20 yearsand that’s held in the
14 of decisions when the automatic adjustment 14 capital markets. People generally believe now
15 formulawere put in. Subsequently, I'd see no 15 that we' re not going to get inflation outside
16 material difference between 80 percentand 75 |16 of a oneto three percent range.
17 percent and | went with 75 percent. The 17 So, if youask me-- orif the Regie
18 empirical work that we did back in the early 18 asked me, isit important to be consistent
19 90swas not precise enough to say there'sa 19 with what they did in 2001 or 1995, | would
20 difference between 80 percent and 75 percent. 20 say not really. |don't think we're ever
21 The second reason is relates to internal 21 going to get nine percent long Canada bond
22 consistency and | discussthis in my report. 22 yieldsagain. It would mean everything the
23 If the beta of autility stock is.5 and the 23 Bank of Canada and the Government have done
24 adjustment model is .5, it indicates although 24 over the last 20 years has evaporated.
25 thereturn on the utility would change, it 25 KELLY, Q.C:
Page 105 Page 107
1 implicitly states that the expected return on 1 Q. Canl summarize alittle bit of what you said
2 themarket isconstant. Soif you take an 2 with acouple of comments? First of al, |
3 adjustment mechanism of .5 and you judge a 3 takeit from atheoretical point of view,
4 typical utility to have arisk of .5, whichis 4 you'd view 75 percent as more appropriate than
5 what | do, then what directly follows out of 5 say a 50 percent adjustment, as one comment,
6 the arithmetic is that the assumption isthe 6 and the second comment isthat even that
7 expected return on the market is constant. 7 having been said, given the current interest
8 And that’s an assumption | cannot live with. 8 rate environment with long Canada bonds out
9 We've seenin the forecast, the long run 9 into any sort of time frame, it'snot as
10 forecast from Mercer, the long run forecast of 10 important afactor in any event? Arethose -
11 TD Economics, that they don’'t judge the long 11 DR. BOOTH:
12 run return on the market to be constant. So, 12 A. That'sexactly correct.
13 | don’t think that isvalid. | prefer .75, as 13 KELLY, Q.C.:
14 | explained towards the Regie, because it 14 Q. Thosearethe two points!’m picking out of
15 resultsin estimates that are consistent with 15 what you're saying?
16 what the Regie didin earlier periods and 16 DR. BOOTH:
17 that’ simportant. That a board, whenever it 17 A. That'sright. Conceptualy, I think .5 is
18 changes aformula, hasto sort of say "well, | 18 incorrect because it violates basic economic
19 wouldn’t -- by using this formula, do we now 19 assumptions. But doesit matter? | don’'t
20 say that everything we've donein the past is 20 think it matters as much now asit did in the
21 wrong?' and that’s what -- that was something 21 1990s and the 2000s. So I’'m not -- | wouldn’t
22 the Regie thought was important. 22 fight tooth and nail over .75 the way that |
23 Having said all of that, | state in my 23 would have 10-15 years ago.
24 testimony | don't think that the adjustment to 24 KELLY,Q.C:
25 long Canada bond yields is as important now as 25 Q. Okay. Now many regulators have now
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1 discontinued the use of the formulas or 1 Q. Okay. Now the next placel’dliketo goisto
2 suspended their operation. | guess Ontario, 2 the second part of a proposition that we just
3 because it has a whole panaopy of utilities, 3 talked about, which isthe fact that we arein
4 still uses aformula? 4 this low interest rate environment. Your
5 DR. BOOTH: 5 formulathat you're proposing iswhat I'll
6 A. That'scorrect. Theproblem with Ontariois 6 call aconstrained formulain that it hasthis
7 it regulates what used to bethe municipal 7 floor, so atleast the long Canada bond
8 eectric utilities and there’s -- | forget how 8 component is not even going to move until
9 many, 60-70-80 of them, and they can't 9 you're over 380 basis points, until you're at
10 possibly have rate hearings for all of these 10 3.8 percent.
11 little utilities. 11 (11:15am.)
12 KELLY, Q.C. 12 DR. BOOTH:
13 Q. And many of them are very small utilities. 13 A. That'scorrect. Intermsof the Chairman's
14 DR. BOOTH: 14 comments, until the long bond market is back
15 A. Tiny. Sothey basically deem not just the 15 to normal, because at the moment, | don’t
16 ROE, but also the A bond yield cost, the 16 think either myself or Ms. McShane think the
17 short-term cost. They basically deem the cost 17 current long Canada bond yields are normal.
18 of capital for these utilities. 18 They’re not.
19 KELLY, Q.C. 19 KELLY, Q.C.
20 Q. Sothey have an administrative need that for a 20 Q. Andsothat’s intheorder of magnitude, if
21 mechanism that this Board, for example, 21 we'reat two and a half now, or 2.6 now,
22 doesn’t have the same need for? 22 that’s 1.2, 1.3 percentage points rise that
23 DR. BOOTH: 23 we' d have to get before we' d even get to that?
24 A. That'scorrect. 24 DR.BOOTH:
25 KELLY, Q.C: 25 A. Yeah, 130 basis pointsor my 3.8, 150 on the
Page 109 Page 111
1 Q. Right, okay. And their formulais50 -- uses 1 basis of Ms. McShane’s four.
2 the 50/50 mode!, if | can call it that? 2 KELLY, Q.C:
3 DR. BOOTH: 3 Q. And based upon the discussion that we had this
4 A That'sright. Thatwas --1 cantak at 4 morning, that doesn’t appear to bein the
5 length how they arrived at that, Mr. - 5 cards until somewhere around 2015 or beyond.
6 KELLY,Q.C. 6 Would you agree with that?
7 Q. No,I- 7 DR.BOOTH:
8 DR. BOOTH: 8 A. | would agree that that’sthe perception of
9 A. Butl don'tthink you' d want to hear it. 9 most forecasters. Capital market conditions
10 KELLY, Q.C.. 10 can change quiterapidly. Asl said, June
11 Q. | don’tthink we need to go there. 11 2011 wewere looking at long Canada bond
12 DR. BOOTH: 12 yields going back to 4.55 percent and it was
13 A. Butsufficeit tosay it wasnot alitigated 13 the action of the Fed and | don't -- and it
14 hearing and the justification for .5 came out 14 al depends, to be absolutely honest, Mr.
15 of utility witnesses that have been advocating 15 Kelly, it depends upon political action in the
16 Sfor thelast 20 years andin litigated 16 United States. Ben Bernankeis not very
17 hearings, they never won .5. The NEB 17 popular amongst the Republicansand if we'd
18 specificaly reected it.  The AuC 18 had a different presidential election in the
19 specifically rejected it.  The OEB 19 United States, | don’'t think Ben Bernanke
20 specifically rejected it in previous hearings. 20 would be there in another year.
21 Andthey gotto .5in 2009 mainly because 21 KELLY, Q.C:
22 therewas no other -- it wasn't alitigated 22 Q. Canl suggesttoyou then, Dr. Booth, that
23 hearing and there was no other evidence to the 23 thereisn't agreat need for urgency in doing
24 contrary. 24 anything with the formula? The Board, one of
25 KELLY, Q.C: 25 the very real options the Board has before it
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1 isto set therate of return, especially we 1 Currently the spread’s still about 170-180

2 have atwo test year basis here now, and wait 2 basis points, based upon the generic AUS, not

3 and see what happens with the capital markets. 3 the utility Bloomberg yields. If, over the

4 Is that not an option that the Board 4 next two years, long Canada bond yields pick

5 realistically can consider here? 5 up 100 basis pointsand the spreads collapse

6 DR.BOOTH: 6 back to 100 basis points, it would indicate to

7 A. | thinkthat's reasonable. It's why, in 7 me that the bond market is-- theyield on a

8 addition to the formulal recommended to the 8 long Canada bond isnot being determined as

9 Board, if it doesn’t want to go with the 9 much by the global policy maker and that
10 formula, thenit canfix the rateand my 10 capital isgoing into the A bonds aswell as
11 recommendation on afixed rate which would be |11 into the long Canada bond market, indicating
12 based upon anormal bond yield of five percent 12 reduction in credit spreads.
13 would be 8.25 percent, and that’ s alittle bit 13 So, if you put to me what would your
14 more than | recommended this spring of 8.15 14 recommendation beat the moment, with the
15 because that was based upon just the next two 15 current long Canada bond yields, but instead
16 years, whereas the 8.25 | recommended isfixed |16 of 180 basis point spread, a60 basis point
17 for afive-year period. 17 spread, which would generally indicate good
18 KELLY, Q.C.. 18 capital markets, | would say that my rate of
19 Q. I’'mnot going to get into adebate with you 19 return recommendation would be lower because
20 over rates. We'll - 20 the credit markets are indicating that there's
21 DR.BOOTH: 21 less credit risk, default risk out there, and
22 A. Tenbasispoints. 22 that’ s a separate component to the long Canada
23 KELLY, Q.C: 23 bond yield.
24 Q. Well, we'll argueabout al that in due 24 KELLY, Q.C::
25 course. But what | do want to focus onis 25 Q. Butyou will agreethat the operation of your
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1 this question: I’m sure you either heard Ms. 1 formula, if it was-- if the Board wereto

2 Perry or had an opportunity to read her 2 adopt it, would have -- could have aresult in

3 evidence. Oneof the concerns that she 3 which long Canada bond rates rise but the

4 expressed -- and let me give you the 4 utility’ s equity, return on equity isin fact

5 proposition first from the finance point of 5 reduced?

6 view and seeif you agree. 6 DR.BOOTH:

7 DR.BOOTH: 7 A. Yeah, that's-- and | would say that that’s --

8 A. Yeah. 8 in this current environment, given the floor

9 KELLY, Q.C. 9 I’ve got on the long Canada bond yield, I'd
10 Q. Ifthelong Canadabond ratesdorise, let's 10 say that'san entirely reasonable result,
11 say within that 120 basis point range that 11 because it would -- we would reflect
12 we're talking to, so they start to bump up to 12 significant improvements in the credit
13 three and a half or 3.75 or some range like 13 markets, independent of the actionsof the
14 that, isit not likely, more likely than not, 14 global policy maker in the long bond market,
15 that the credit spreads on corporate bonds 15 and that's what you get when you go froma
16 will narrow? 16 single factor adjustment model to a two-factor
17 DR. BOOTH: 17 adjustment model. Assoon asyou havetwo
18 A. Let'shopethat they do. The credit spread is 18 things, credit spreads and long Canadas, you
19 afunction basically of two things, what's 19 obviously have the potential that when oneis
20 been going on in the long Canada bond market |20 rising, if the other one goes down, you'll end
21 and a perception of credit risk per se. Prior 21 up with aresult that long Canada bond yields
22 to Operation Twist in the summer of 2011, the 22 go up and the ROE can go down. If you had
23 credit spread was at 170-180 basis points and 23 three, you'd get even more complicated
24 that was based upon forecast long Canadabond |24 adjustments.
25 yields, four, four and a half percent. 25 KELLY, Q.C:
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1 Q. Exactly,and so you -- sothese formulas, 1 Canada bond market at the moment and I’ m not
2 especially as webuild infloorsand other 2 lowering the allowed ROE. If you allowed the
3 factors into them, like deadbands, et cetera, 3 ROE to go down with long Canada bond yields,
4 we are adding a degree of complexity now into 4 you'dend up with CAPM estimateslike Mr.
5 how we're going todo all this mathematical 5 MacDonald, six and a half percent. And |
6 calculation with the result of then what falls 6 don’'t regard those as afair ROE. They’re not
7 out of it has elements of uncertainty. 7 my recommendation. But if you went that way,
8 DR. BOOTH: 8 you'd end up with six and a half percent and
9 A. Ifyou're telling meif youwant to get an 9 then you'’ d get your result, rising long Canada
10 accurate description of acomplex world, then 10 bond yields, risingROE. Do | think that
11 you need a complex model, then I'd 100 percent |11 that’ s fair to Newfoundland Power? The answer
12 agree with you. When we put in the adjustment 12 is no.
13 formulasin themid 1990s, as | said, the 13 KELLY, Q.C.:
14 dominant thing was very high long Canadabond |14 Q. Sowhat the -- one other alternative, whichis
15 yields and very high -- afear in the capital 15 the one we discussed a few moments ago, is
16 market that the Federal Government wouldn’t 16 actually not to adopt aformula, to set arate
17 follow through on all of its budget cuts and 17 of return and see where this develops out into
18 tax increases, but instead would just inflate 18 the future?
19 itsway out of its budget problems. That was 19 DR. BOOTH:
20 what motivated the original models. And | 20 A. That'scorrect and that’swhy | did propose an
21 think by and large, they did avery good job 21 aternative fixed rate of 8.25 percent.
22 of picking up the decline in the long Canada 22 KELLY, Q.C:
23 bond yield, the declinein inflation and the 23 Q. Okay.
24 improvement in the Canadian capital markets. 24 DR.BOOTH:
25 Isthat still appropriate now when that’s 25 A. Andincidentaly, Mr. -
Page 117 Page 119
1 not the dominant theme? Instead the dominant 1 KELLY, Q.C::
2 themeiswhat’s happened to the long Canada 2 Q. Kdly.
3 bond yield and default spreads, credit 3 DR.BOOTH:
4 spreads. Then you get amore complicated 4 A Sorry, | was-
5 model. 5 KELLY, Q.C.:
6 KELLY,Q.C. 6 Q. | knowyou had along night. Mr. Johnson’'s
7 Q. And here sthe problem. When we look back to 7 fault.
8 2009, the thrust of your evidence, and other 8 DR. BOOTH:
9 experts, not just you, was that okay, 100k, 9 A. Exceptfor thecredit spread adjustment, my
10 long Canada bond rates are going to rise. As 10 adjustment formulais afixed rate because if
11 long Canada bond rates rise, the utility’s 11 the long Canada bond yields don’t change and
12 cost of equity will risewith it. Now we're 12 they don’t hit the floor, apart from the
13 in afunny environment where what you've just |13 credit spreads, the ROE is constant. So all
14 explained, we could have long Canada bond 14 I’'mdoing is sort of basically saying well,
15 rates rise and utility cost of capital 15 you got afloor to the ROE providing thereis
16 actually decline, which would be a very 16 no dramatic improvement in the credit markets
17 unusual situation. Would you not agree? 17 and a dramatic improvement in the credit
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 markets means the economy is doing very well,
19 A. No, | wouldn't regard that as unusual. What | 19 credit risk is disappearing and as aresult,
20 would say is what's unusual is the starting 20 risk aversion has gone down.
21 point and the starting point at the moment is 21 KELLY, Q.C:
22 long Canada bond yields of 2.3, two and a half 22 Q. Waéll, no, but now you' ve added in no dramatic
23 percent forecast, 2.7 percent. That'swhat’s 23 changein the credit spread. As| understand
24 unusual. So what I'm saying isthat I'm 24 your formula, your formula picksup every
25 making adjustments because of the unusual long |25 changein the credit spread.
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1 DR. BOOTH: 1 KELLY,Q.C:
2 A. That'scorrect. But | mean, to have - 2 Q. I'dmissall thefun. | won't go back through
3 KELLY, Q.C: 3 the jurisdictional issues that arise from
4 Q. Right. It'snot just dramatic. 4 that. But | takeit from what you did say
5 DR. BOOTH: 5 that one of the reasons you even put forward
6 A. - amateria impact on the ROE, if the credit 6 the formula was because you were asked to do
7 spread dropped from 180 to 60, that’s avery 7 so. So not having the formulaisavery live
8 important indication that something important 8 option for you?
9 has happened in the capital markets and we're 9 DR.BOOTH:
10 into this catch 22. The Regie didn’t like 10 A. Correct. It's likeyour mortgage. | don't
11 thisformula, becauseit addsalittle bit 11 know whether you' ve got a mortgage, Mr. Kelly,
12 more instability, but they said "well, we'll 12 but you can have a fixed rate mortgage or you
13 live with it because it does capture the 13 can have avariable rate mortgage, where the
14 credit market impacts.” But they seem to want 14 variable rate changes every six months.
15 a smooth, aconstant sort of predictable 15 They're both eminently fair. They're just
16 formula. The OEB came out and saidweneeda |16 different ways of solving what the cost is of
17 formulathat gives the exact ROE every single 17 financing ahouse. And it’s exactly the same
18 year as accurately as possible with no 18 for a utility. You can have an adjustment
19 smoothing over the business. So they accepted 19 mechanism that changes the ROE every single
20 the credit risk adjustment. Different 20 quarter if you want or every year or you can
21 regulators have responded to the adjustment 21 go with a fixed rate, which is eminently
22 mechanisms depending on whether they're quite |22 feasible, over athree-year period or afive-
23 happy with the ROE changing by ten basis 23 year period or aten-year period.
24 points or 15 basis points every year because 24 KELLY,Q.C:
25 "it's more accurate" versus a more stable ROE. 25 Q. Okay.
Page 121 Page 123
1 And I’'m recommending an adjustment formula | 1 DR.BOOTH:
2 here because| was asked to recommend an 2 A. Thereare utilities out there in Canada that
3 adjustment formula and in order to capture 3 have got 10-year fixed ROES.
4 what’s going on in the capital markets at the 4 KELLY, Q.C.
5 moment, which are not normal in terms of the 5 Q. Let memovetoacouple of very smal points
6 long Canada bond yield, | think this 6 that | want to pick up. We' ve covered most of
7 accurately reflects the fair ROE for the next 7 the discussion we need to have this morning,
8 few years. It’'s not the only way of doing it 8 but there are two pointsthat | want to ask
9 and I'm not wedded to it. | mean, if the 9 you about specifically in relationto your
10 Board wantsto fix ROE for the next -- and | 10 testimony, just to be sure I’ m understanding
11 would say 8.25 percent for five years because 11 you correctly. If we go to page 28 of your
12 it's based upon the long Canada bond averaging 12 report -- no, page 28 in the main body of the
13 five percent, and as weindicated, | don't 13 report. Therewego. Just scroll up. There
14 think it's going to do that for the next two 14 you go. At line seven, you're talking about
15 years, but that’sa perfectly legitimate way 15 the graph, and I'll just read it. "What is
16 of saying well, we'll fix therate at 8.25 16 important to note isthat utility yields were
17 percent. If Newfoundland Power feels that 17 consistently lower than the generic A yields
18 there’'sa problem with that say intwo or 18 asthe financia crisis started to emerge and
19 three yearstime, it has theright, as every 19 remained so until the recent collapse in bond
20 utility does, to say it'san unfair rate of 20 yields. This is consistent with the
21 return. Wewill comeinand ask for arate 21 experience of the Fortis BC Energy bond
22 hearing. Andif wefixitat 8.25 for five 22 yields." Wewerepuzzled. Does FortisBC
23 years, | think that’s reasonable, and you 23 Energy have anything to do with that? Is that
24 won't have to cross-examine mefor another 24 supposed to be -- isthat just a -
25 fiveyears, Mr. Kelly. 25 DR. BOOTH:
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1 A. No, that was -- Mr. Kelly, that was because 1 crisis that wewent through in 2008-2009
2 this particular section is exactly the samein 2 disappears, the effect of that in the
3 my Fortis Energy BC testimony. 3 estimation wind" it says -- maybe "wind
4 KELLY, Q.C. 4 gradually disappears as well."
5 Q. Sothat should just be deleted? 5 DR. BOOTH:
6 DR.BOOTH: 6 A. Yeah.
7 A. Notreadly. 7 KELLY, Q.C:
8 KELLY, Q.C. 8 Q. Now Chris, if we could just put the chart up
9 Q. Oh, okay. 9 on the screen, whichis Schedule 3, Appendix
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 C.
11  A. Because FortisBC Energy isaCanadian utility 11 MR. HAYES:
12 and what we have here are the Bloomberg yields (12 Q. It'sactually also on page 30 of Dr. Booth’s
13 and the Bloomberg yields are derived yields. 13 testimony.
14 What they do isthey look at all of the yields 14 (11:30am.)
15 on Canadian utilitiesand they basically run 15 KELLY, Q.C..
16 through an algorithm that smooths them to the 16 Q. Okay. No,it's-
17 implicit yield. The Fortis BC Energy yields 17 MR. HAYES:
18 are the actual yields on a Canadian utility. 18 Q. Thechart, right?
19 KELLY, Q.C. 19 KELLY, Q.C.
20 Q. Youhaven'tlooked at like Newfoundland Power [20 Q. No, it'sthe onewe had yesterday. It'sat
21 bond yields? 21 Appendix C, Schedule 3.
22 DR.BOOTH: 22 MS. GLYNN:
23 A. No, that’scorrect. That's something that | 23 Q. That was Information Item No. -
24 could have done. 24 KELLY, Q.C::
25 KELLY, Q.C.: 25 Q. Andit's asoin thelnformation Item from
Page 125 Page 127
1 Q. Okay. Thenext place | wanted to gotoisto 1 yesterday.
2 one of the chartsthat you had up yesterday 2 MS.GLYNN:
3 whichis thebeta chart. Let metell you 3 Q -2L
4 right from the beginning, | do not want to get 4 KELLY, Q.C.
5 into a discussion with betas with you, but | 5 Q. Therewego. Canwe--can'tturn that one
6 just want to give you an opportunity to 6 sideways, can we?
7 perhaps clarify a statement that you made to 7 DR.BOOTH:
8 the Board yesterday. 8 A. | think the one -- no, never mind.
9 DR. BOOTH: 9 KELLY, QC:
10 A. Okay. 10 Q. Thisis justtogive youan opportunity to
11 KELLY, Q.C.: 1 clarify or correct for the Board because when
12 Q. If we--we'll cometo the chartin aminute, 12 | listened to your testimony yesterday and |
13 butif | takeyoufirst to page 173 of the 13 looked at the chart, the big drop which you
14 transcript from yesterday and in the 14 seem to be describing bottoms out at January
15 transcript, you were talking about the 15 04 and of course, January '04 isfour years
16 dramatic drop and if 1 go back tokind of 16 before we get to the financial crisis of 2008.
17 about line five, so when you look at that, 17 So | take it you're not suggesting that the
18 what you seeisthat utilities were reasonably 18 big drop here is really because of the
19 stable at about .5, a little more, until the 19 financial crisis? Andyou may have left a
20 financial crisis, then we see a dramatic drop. 20 misimpression with the Board yesterday in your
21 Then you talk about the cross-examination and 21 testimony.
22 then you go down to about line 16, "the stock 22 DR.BOOTH:
23 market collapsed and the prices for utilities 23 A. Well, I'll takethe opportunity to correct
24 didn't," et cetera, and so, then at line 19, 24 that misimpression. We've got thedrop --
25 "so asthe effect of the horrific financial 25 see, what happensis whenever there’sadrop
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1 inthe stock market, all the betadoes is 1 DR. BOOTH:
2 measure if the stock market drops 20 percent, 2 A. Thank you.
3 what happens to the price of shares of -- the 3 GREENE, Q.C.:
4 question, the company inquestion. If it 4 Q. Good morning, Dr. Booth.
5 dropped -- if it doesn’'t drop, then you got no 5 DR.BOOTH:
6 correlation. The beta sequal to zero. It's 6 A. Good morning.
7 independent of what happens to the stock 7 GREENE, Q.C.:
8 market. What we see here isthe drop during 8 Q. Dr. Booth, you may be happy to hear that Mr.
9 the financia crisis, and these are estimated 9 Kelly did cover most of the areasthat | had
10 over five-year periods, so the drop related to 10 developed or wehad developed a line of
11 the financial crisisisthe most recent drop. 11 questions for you, but there are still afew
12 KELLY, Q.C.: 12 that | would like to follow up on. Thefirst
13 Q. Yes. It'sthelittleblip. 13 one concerns the discussion that you had with
14 DR. BOOTH: 14 Mr. Kelly relating to judgment being applied
15 A lwouldn't say it’slittle. 15 with respect to your opinion that you have
16 KELLY, Q.C.. 16 provided to the Board, and my understanding of
17 Q. Wdl, relativeto the big trough that you show 17 the discussion that you had with Mr. Kelly and
18 in your graph, Dr. Booth. 18 the references to the RFIs that we looked at,
19 DR. BOOTH: 19 it isyour opinion that now more judgment is
20 A. Okay, that’s correct. 20 required than in the past, given the condition
21 KELLY, Q.C: 21 of the market. |sthat correct?
22 Q. It'sthe smaller dip onthefar right-hand 22 DR.BOOTH:
23 side, consistent with about midway between 23 A. That'scorrect. Asl mentioned for the risk
24 January ' 08 and January ’ 09, correct? 24 premium models, the long Canada bond yield is
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 acritical ingredient and needs significant
Page 129 Page 131
1 A. That'scorrect. 1 judgment in interpreting that.
2 KELLY, QC: 2 GREENE, Q.C.:
3 Q. Correct. 3 Q. Andobvioudly, as | think you also may have
4 DR. BOOTH: 4 indicated, thisis not asmple matter. If it
5 A. That'sthe effect of thefinancial criss. 5 were, we would not have been here for four
6 Thebig drop isthe TecRec. That's NorthTel 6 days of expert evidence, if it wereasimple
7 and JDs Uniphase. 7 matter of adding up two and two isfour to get
8 KELLY, Q.C: 8 afair ROE. Isthat correct?
9 Q. Andyou may have given the Board a different 9 DR.BOOTH:
10 sense of it, because that was what | took out 10 A. That'scorrect. I'dsay thismore -- more
11 of it. 11 than ever at this particular point intime,
12 DR. BOOTH: 12 giventhe focusin Canadatraditionally on
13 A. Okay. Soit'sdiscussed in Appendix C wherel 13 risk premium models and the role of -- the
14 go in detail about the fact that JDs Uniphase 14 central role of thelong Canada bond yield,
15 and NorthTel at one time comprised 35 percent 15 judgment is involved and more important at the
16 of the market value of the Toronto Stock 16 current point in time than ever before.
17 Exchange. So when they collapse -- whenthey |17 GREENE, Q.C.:
18 boomed and then they collapsed, utility shares 18 Q. Andwiththat as abackground, tolook at it
19 didn’t change, but the stock market went up 19 from ahigh level, what we have here before
20 and down because there was such areally heavy |20 the Commissioners who are tasked with making
21 component of the Tsx. So the changesin the 21 the decision asto what is afair return, we
22 betas during the early 2000s was all TecRec. 22 have four different experts who have used
23 KELLY, Q.C: 23 different approaches, and | won't go through
24 Q. Dr.Booth, it'sbeen a pleasant discussion. 24 each methodology, but | think we will agree
25 Thank you for your time. 25 that of the four experts, there is a
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1 differencein how they have approached the 1 look at what TD Economics and the Royal Bank
2 determination of the fair ROE. We have three 2 of Canada and Mercer are saying because
3 different recommendations. We have the 3 they’re not here as expert witnesses. They’'re
4 utility witnesses fortuitously agreeing on 4 just providing information readily for all of
5 roughly what afair return isfor Newfoundland 5 their clientsand | don’t think it’s very easy
6 Power for 2013 and '14. We have Mr. 6 to get independent economists projecting long
7 MacDonald' s recommended ROE and we have your 7 run returns on acapital market, the equity
8 recommended ROE and there's afair spread 8 market greater than seven, seven and a half
9 between them, from seven and a half, which is 9 percent, which if you convert to an arithmetic
10 your recommendation for 2013 and the 10.4 of 10 basisis looking at nine, nine and a half
11 I’ll say Ms. McShane and Dr. Vander Weide. 11 percent. So giving ten and a half percent to
12 What level of comfort canyou giveto the 12 what everybody recognizesis at very worst an
13 Board that you're the one who has gotten it 13 average risk Canadian utility, given current
14 right in terms of judgment? 14 capital market conditions, I'd ask them just
15 DR. BOOTH: 15 to question themselves "if | wasto earn that
16  A. | constantly tell people that cost of capital 16 inmy RRsPorif | wasto earnthat inmy
17 isnot as complicated as experts make it, 17 defined benefit pension plan, what does that
18 which isto say | would suggest that the 18 mean?"
19 members of the panel look in the newspaper and 19 GREENE, Q.C.:
20 think about themselves what their personal 20 Q. In talking about the 10.4, that’'s the
21 financial advisors have recommended in terms 21 recommendation of -
22 of investments, what their -- if they look at 22 DR.BOOTH:
23 their own -- if they’ ve got a defined benefit 23 A. Dr.Vander Weide.
24 pension plan, look at their own statements 24 GREENE, Q.C.:
25 about the assumptionsthat are embedded in 25 Q. Right. Socanwelook at PUB-CA-23? And this
Page 133 Page 135
1 their pension plan that their actuaries have 1 wasto look at the recommendation compared to
2 suggested is fair rates of return, and | think 2 others, and would you agree that your
3 I'm completely objective. | might not be 3 recommendation of seven and a half percent for
4 objective. Nobody knows whether they're 4 2013 would be, if not the lowest, and | think
5 completely objective, but I've tried to rely 5 if we go tothe nextRFI, it'sa similar
6 upon TD Economics, Mercer, Royal Bank of 6 question, PUB-CA-24, and they illustrate that
7 Canada, and these are not difficult to get. 7 your recommendation at seven and a half
8 They're freely available on the internet and 8 percent would be, if not the lowest in Canada,
9 these arethings that are not donefor a 9 would be very near that.
10 specific regulatory hearing. They're done 10 DR. BOOTH:
11 because this iswhat independent economists 11  A. That'scorrect. | did point out that there's
12 judge future capital market rates of return to 12 acouple of pipelinesthat still get the NEB
13 be. 13 formula. | think it’'s Enbridge Northwest
14 So | would say it'snot just mein this 14 which isan oil pipeline in northwest Alberta
15 hearing room and it's not just three other 15 that’s getting 7.58, the NEB formula. Trans-
16 witnesses. Wealso have evidence from the 16 Northern isamajor pipeline owned by Imperia
17 Royal Bank of Canada, TD Economics and others, 17 Oil in the province of Ontario, gets alittle
18 and | would say to the Board if it says"well, 18 bit more. Gaz Metropolitan, for 2013, is
19 look, Booth was very impressive but Ms. 19 goingto beallowed a 7.95 percent ROE and
20 McShane was dynamite on the stand. Shedid a 20 that at the moment is subject to some
21 great job. Dr. Vander Weide, well, look at 21 litigation or concerns before the Regie, but
22 all of hisestimates. They were very good." 22 that is the allowed ROE for 2013. The OEB
23 And Mr. MacDonald, I'm sure he'll do agreat 23 formula, | think it gives 8.93 percent or 8.95
24 job, and if they think oh, it's asore-off 24 percent. That's amatter of public record.
25 (phonetic), then | think they should go and 25 The decision came out | think it was two weeks
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1 ago. Soyou'vegot a range of allowed ROES. 1 ratios and the fact is every utility in Canada
2 TheBcuc had ahearing inthe beginning of 2 has got a market to book ratio of about 1.4 to
3 December. 3 1.8. Ithink thelowest isEmera. Which
4 So when you look at those allowed ROES in 4 means every singledollar that the utility
5 Ms. McShane' s schedule that | referred to, you 5 investsin rate base, every equity dollar is
6 have to remember two things. Oneisthat some 6 immediately worth $1.40 at a minimum and
7 of these utilities are above average risk. 7 generaly it'sa$1.80to $2.00 and I'd just
8 Maritime Electric, for example, both Ms. 8 ask everybody inthis room, how would they
9 McShaneand | testified in that hearing and 9 react if every dollar they putinto their
10 said it was an above average risk utility. So 10 RRSP, the next day they looked at it and said
11 you can't take the 9.75 as reasonable. You'd 11 "wow, it'sworth $1.80" what does that mean?
12 have toreduce it for abenchmark or an 12 It means that investors are very, very happy
13 averagerisk utility. The Bcuc hasjust had a 13 with allowed ROES in Canada and the relevance
14 hearing and | hope and | would expect the 14 of market to book ratios have been a subject
15 allowed ROE to go down. And we do havethese |15 to discussion in regulatory hearings for the
16 formularesults for 2013 that will end up with 16 last -- at least for the last fiveor six
17 lower allowed ROESfor Gaz Metro and for the 17 years. Thisnever usedto bethecase. It
18 Ontario utilities. 18 used to be the market to book ratios, up until
19 GREENE, Q.C.: 19 1981-82 were below one because when we got
20 Q. Andthat’swhat you refer to in the answer to 20 those rising interest rates, there was
21 PUB-CA-24, but | believe you have agreed, Dr. 21 regulatory lag and the market to book ratios
22 Booth, that your recommendation of 7.4 would 22 were below one, indicating ROES were too low.
23 be, in my view, and outlier with risk on the 23 Sincethe collapsein interest rates, market
24 low side? 24 to book ratios for utilities have gone well
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 above oneindicating that investors are very
Page 137 Page 139
1 A, ltcertainly isanoutlier interms of the 1 happy with the allowed ROES.
2 fact that if you ask me the question "Dr. 2 So am | disturbed that my recommended ROE
3 Booth, have your recommendations ever been 3 islessthan that adopted by the boards? |
4 accepted by aboard?' then my answer wouldbe | 4 would say no. | would say the observation in
5 no. 5 the capital market of market to book ratios
6 GREENE, Q.C.: 6 indicates that my recommendation, if anything,
7 Q. That was my next question, thank you. 7 isalittle bit on the high side.
8 DR. BOOTH: 8 (11:45am.)
9 A. Andif you ask that question of Ms. McShane or 9 GREENE, Q.C.:
10 Dr. Vander Weide, | can’t vouch for them, but 10 Q. And Dr. Booth, | believe you were here
11 | would suggest their recommendations have 11 yesterday when | asked Dr. Vander Weideif he
12 never been accepted. The boards have a 12 believed that the allowed ROEs in Canada have
13 balancing act to do and my observation of that 13 been too low and that the regulators had got
14 balancing act isthe resulting ROEis aways 14 itwrong. Hisanswer, inan nutshell, was
15 at the top end of my range. | think I've 15 yes. I'll ask you the same then. If the
16 testified before every board, except the OEB, 16 boards have not accepted what your fair
17 and said that the allowed ROE | regard as at 17 recommendation is and you see the increase in
18 the top end of areasonable range. The OEB, | 18 the market to book ratio you just talked
19 told them it was above a reasonable range. | 19 about, the conclusion would seem to be that,
20 regarded a 9.75 percent for publicly owned 20 of course, you would think that the regulators
21 utilitiesin Ontario as being well above a 21 have been too high with respect -- generally,
22 reasonablerange at that pointin time, but 22 asagenera statement, without going down in
23 you have to ask how do the capital markets 23 the weeds and looking at individual ones, asa
24 react to this. 24 general trend, they’ve awarded much higher
25 And that’ swhy we look at market to book 25 than you recommended and as seen by the
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1 reaction in the capital markets, they’ ve been 1 And this has been a period when we' ve had
2 abit too high? 2 alot of hearings in Canada, which means that
3 DR.BOOTH: 3 not just thisBoard got it wrong, but the
4 A. There' stwo thingsthere. First of all, | can 4 Regie got it wrong, the OEB got it wrong, the
5 take you to my Appendix D where | do have the 5 AUCgot it wrong, the NEB got it wrong, the
6 market -- on page 18, I'vegot the closing 6 BCuC got it wrong. Everybody in Canada has
7 market to book ratios for the Standard & Poors 7 somehow been having these very in-depth four
8 gas and electric utilities. 8 or five day hearings into the cost of capital
9 MR. JOHNSON: 9 and somehow we've been getting it wrong for
10 Q. Just one second now, Dr. Booth. 10 the last 15 years. | don’t think that's
11 DR.BOOTH: 11 credible. | don't think -- it means that
12 A. Wdl, theworld’s gone upside down. 12 every regulator in Canada, every panel has
13 GREENE, Q.C.: 13 been deficient in evaluating the evidence put
14 Q. Now sideways. 14 before them.
15 DR. BOOTH: 15 | think what is absolutely clear is that
16  A. These are the market to book ratios of the S& P 16 since Canada solved its budget problemsin the
17 gasand electric utilities. 1"ve been asked 17 mid 1990s and the Government of Canada moved
18 consistently what information can you get from |18 into surplusin 1997, long Canada bond yields
19 thisand | say it's likelooking through a 19 have lost that premium over the usand we've
20 dirty window. We'renot actually looking at 20 now got significantly lower bond yield,
21 the utility operations. We're looking at the 21 Government of Canada bond yields in Canada and
22 utility holding companies. So you can't 22 the United States. The us has yet to make the
23 absolutely certain what’s going on, but the 23 harsh adjustments that we made almost 20 years
24 fact that the market to book ratios for 24 ago. Andto basically ignorethat and say
25 companies that are predominantly regulated 25 well, we' Il ignore 20 years of what we' ve done
Page 141 Page 143
1 utilities, even in the United States, are well 1 in Canadato get our financial health in order
2 above one and that basically means, as| said, 2 and to lower interest rates in Canada and
3 immediately they reinvest a dollar in the 3 instead use data from the United States where
4 retained earnings. The market values at 4 they’ ve yet to make those adjustments | think
5 $1.50, $1.70 which isnot a bad investment. 5 is absolutely incorrect.
6 That indicatesto me that if | wasto ask to 6 GREENE, Q.C.:
7 testify in the United States, my 7 Q. Let'sgoback tothe question that we --in
8 recommendation would be significantly lower 8 looking at judgment, and | believe you said
9 than current allowed ROES because one of the 9 more judgment is required and you also said
10 first things we're taught in finance islisten 10 that judgment was constrained by facts. You
11 to the market. Don't try and run against the 11 have acknowledged that in your recommendation,
12 market. If you listento the market, the 12 it would be -- and you have acknowledged that
13 market is telling us those allowed ROES in the 13 your recommendations have not been accepted by
14 usare too high. 14 regulatory boards in Canada and the decisions
15 Y ou then go to Canada and we had a series 15 have been higher than your recommendations.
16 of Us witnesses coming into Canada 16 I'll give you the other -- you've also said,
17 increasingly bringing in Us evidence asto the 17 of course, that the recommendations of the
18 fair ROE and one witness talked about a 18 utility experts have been higher than what
19 fairnessgap between Canada and the United 19 have been accepted by regulatory boards in
20 States because our ROES were |ess than those 20 Canada. So | come back to my earlier
21 in the United States. Dr. Vander Weide didn’t 21 question. With that background, one
22 say that therewas afairness gap, but by 22 objectively might think that there comes a
23 saying the us have got it right and we got it 23 bias of both the utility experts and the
24 wrong, he's essentially saying that there's a 24 Consumer Advocate' sexperts. | come back to
25 fairness gap. 25 my question: what level of comfort can you
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1 give the Board that you’ re more right than Ms. 1 costsyou 7.5 percent. I’'m recommending that
2 McShane and Dr. Vander Weide? 2 if the Board wants to put in place an
3 DR.BOOTH: 3 adjustment mechanism, that adjustment
4 A. Obvioudy I think I'm right. I’'m not going to 4 mechanism should include an adjustment to
5 tell you I think I’'mwrong. 1’d give up. 5 credit spreads, and | would recommend a floor
6 It's not going to happen. What | would say is 6 be placed onthe long Canada bond yield
7 if the Board -- and this is a standard thing 7 because of all the problemsin sovereign debt
8 wedo infinance and economics. You don't 8 markets, and that is my recommended formula.
9 look at the levels. Look at the changein the 9 If the Board decides 7.5 percent istoo low,
10 levelswhich meansto say ook at the change 10 wethink 8.5 percent istheright ROE, then
11 inthe ROE recommendations of Newfoundland |11 given my formula, | would suggest they use 8.5
12 Power and its experts compared to 2009. Look 12 percent as the starting rate and then make an
13 at not their recommendations, but the actual 13 adjustment of 75 percent of the forecast
14 details at which they arrived at those 14 change in the long Canada bond yield above 3.8
15 recommendations, the DC estimates on the 15 percent. So if it doesn't get above 3.8
16 monthly basisfor both Dr. Vander Weide and 16 percent, nothing changes, plus 50 percent of
17 Ms. McShane. They indicate that their DCF 17 the change in the credit spreads. So the - my
18 estimates have dropped not by half a percent 18 recommended formulais independent of the
19 but they’ ve dropped by two-three percent since 19 starting ROE. | think it should be 7.5. If
20 2009 and they averaged itin with al the 20 thisBoard looks at all of the evidence and
21 other estimates to hide that, but the fact is, 21 decides it's 8.5 or 875 or 8, that's
22 their estimates indicate avery significant 22 independent of the adjustment mechanism, and
23 drop inthe DCFequity cost. They indicate 23 asafall back, if they don’t like any of the
24 that their recommendations are 50 to 60 basis 24 adjustment mechanisms, they think it's too
25 points down. My recommendationsaren't asfar |25 complicated, fix the ROE and in which case I’ d
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1 down asthat because | put this floor under 1 recommend 8.25 for afive year period.
2 the long Canada bond yield. But if the Board 2 GREENE, Q.C.:
3 doesn’t say, appox (phonetic) onall their 3 Q. Socoming back, your first recommendationis
4 houses, we don't believe any of them, all we 4 7.5 and then adjust it by aformulafor 2014.
5 believe is the direction. They're al 5 Coming to your alternative, which is one of my
6 unanimous that it goesdown. Then | think 6 questions, you're saying if the Board doesn’t
7 that iswhere al of theexperts are in 7 like that, you've given them an alternative,
8 unanimous agreement that the recommended ROE 8 which is8.25 indefinitely, or in your view
9 has gone down by 50-60 basis points. And if 9 five years?
10 they think nine percent was fair in 2009, that 10 DR. BOOTH:
11 means alevel of 8.4 or 8.5 percent. 11  A. That'scorrect.
12 GREENE, QC:: 12 GREENE, Q.C.:
13 Q. Moving to another subject, it's your 13 Q. Andthereisthisissue of whether that can be
14 recommendations and just wanted to make sure 14 done under the legidlation, etc, but your
15 we understood what you’ re recommending and you 15 8.25, what doesthat mean? Does that mean
16 did discussthis alittle bit with Mr. Kelly. 16 that from your perspective Newfoundland Power
17 | wanted to ensure that we understood your 17 would over earnin 2013 and 2014, and then
18 position. Y ou are recommending 7.5 percent 18 they would under earn over your average
19 for 2013 and that aformula be used to adjust 19 business cycle, which you - and you had said
20 that return for 2014. Is that your first 20 five years, so that they would over earn and
21 recommendation? 21 then under earn, and somehow it will balance
22 DR.BOOTH: 22 out.
23 A. I'm recommending that the opportunit 23 DR.BOOTH:
24 (phonetic) of cost, the fair rate of return on 24 A. Yeah, but that’s exactly what - | mean, that’s
25 acapita market, plus flotation cost issue, 25 absolutely correct. That'swhat we call the
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1 term structure of interest rates. If you look 1 DR. BOOTH:
2 at your mortgage and you say, well, | can fix 2 A | think formulas have got a lot of
3 it for 3 percent, but for the next year | pay 3 administrative efficiency, and | actualy like
4 2.5 percent on afloating rate mortgage, do 4 testifying, it's the applied side of my
5 you think you’re getting a good deal, and the 5 research and it bringsin alot of interesting
6 answer is no, you're getting 3 percent on the 6 things. Mr. Kelly might have been atough
7 fixed because the banks look at the interest 7 cross-examination, but | actually enjoy doing
8 rates and think interest rates are going to go 8 this. Do | want to do this 10, 11, 12 times a
9 up, and they think that if you get 2.5 percent 9 year like Dr. Vander Weide, no, I’ ve got a day
10 now, okay, they’'reonly getting 50 basis 10 job, I've got other things | need to do. Is
11 pointsless than the fixed, but in another 11 it efficient that we do this as often aswe
12 year or two year’stime you'll be paying 3.5 12 do, no, itisn't. So just about everything |
13 percent. So on average, that’sfair because 13 talk about iswhat | regard as generic. It's
14 you'refixing it, but there's awhole series 14 generic capital market information, and I’'ve
15 of financial theory goinginto what we call 15 recommended to every Board for thelast 15
16 the yield curve and the fact that short term 16 yearswhy don't all of you get together and
17 rates, medium term rates, long term rates, are 17 have one Canada generic hearing every year or
18 al different, and they reflect where people 18 every couple of years. Of course, the
19 think interest rates aregoingtogo. Sol 19 regulators can't do it because they have to
20 have no problem with fixing it at 8.25. As 20 administer a particular Act that they’'re
21 for the legality, if this Board just sayswe 21 responsible for, but the fact is most of this
22 assessed all the information, for 2013 we 22 material is generic and it doesn’t change very
23 fixedit at 8.25, 2014, 8.25, 2105, 8.25, 23 much. So the solution in the early 90s before
24 2016, 8.25,and 2017, 8.25,1 don't know 24 the NEB and BcuC's, we' ve heard this before,
25 whether that satisfies the legal requirement, 25 we heard the same witnesses saying the same
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1 butit's essentially the same aswhat I'm 1 thing one year ago, two years ago, three years
2 recommending. 2 ago, let’sget rid of all of thisrepetitive
3 GREENE, Q.C.: 3 testimony and I’ll be quite happy to get rid
4 Q. Theonly thingl wanted to ensurethat we 4 of this repetitive testimony and just have a
5 understood was that from your perspective that 5 generic hearing every three years. Whether
6 would mean that they were over earning if the 6 that means an adjustment mechanism versus a
7 fair return should be 7.5, but it’sfixed at 7 fixed rate, as | think I'veindicated, an
8 8.25, they actually would be over earningin 8 adjustment mechanism made alot of sensein
9 201372 9 the mid 90s because we expected interest rates
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 to comedown. A lot of uncertainty, but we
11 A. That'scorrect. My estimate for next year 11 expected them to come down. At the current
12 would be like a floating rate mortgage. That 12 pointintime, | don't seelong Canada bond
13 isbelow what | expect it to average out over 13 yields ever getting back to 9 percent in
14 the term of the mortgage. 14 Canada, not unless something really dramatic
15 GREENE, Q.C.: 15 happensin the capital markets or basically
16 Q. And thelast area of questioning is with 16 thereal economy. Sol’'mlesswedded to an
17 respect to your position on theformula, I'm 17 automatic adjustment formula now than | would
18 not quitesure if you are recommending a 18 have been 10 or 15 yearsago. What I'm more
19 formula or not the way you havelaid it out, 19 infavour of isa commitment not to havea
20 and | know you have agreed with Mr. Kelly that |20 hearing for another three years.
21 oneoption is towait and seeif the market 21 (12:00 p.m.)
22 conditions stabilize and then look at the 22 GREENE, Q.C.:
23 formula, soisyour recommendation that this 23 Q. However we do that, either the formula or
24 Board consider continuing aformula at this 24 fixing your rate indefinitely?
25 point in time? 25 DR. BOOTH:
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1 A. That'scorrect. 1 accounting. | think it generates huge
2 GREENE, Q.C.: 2 volatility infinancial statements, and |
3 Q. Thank you, Dr. Booth. That concludes my 3 certainly don’t believe in some of these scare
4 questions. 4 tactics that look at all of these future
5 COMMISSIONER NEWMAN: 5 liabilities and discount all the future
6 Q. Noquestions, thank you. 6 liabilities without looking at all of the
7 DR. LAURENCE BOOTH - EXAMINATION BY THE CHAIRMAN: 7 future tax revenues.
8 CHAIRMAN: 8 CHAIRMAN:
9 Q. I've read, Dr. Booth, with respect, for 9 Q. Butwhat about the problem with adwindling
10 instance, to this debt issue, that if the us 10 pool of taxpayers versus retirees?
11 calculated its total obligationsunder GAAP 11 DR.BOOTH:
12 rules, it would be up to 80 trillion. Isthat 12 A. Wedon't have that problem in Canada. When |
13 true? 13 cameto Canada, | think there was 22 million
14 DR.BOOTH: 14 people here. Now we've got 36 million. 1've
15 A. Yeah,it'strueand it's nonsense. 15 accounted for two of them. That's apretty
16 CHAIRMAN: 16 hefty increase in the population of Canada.
17 Q. It'snonsense? 17 We have pretty good demographics in Canada.
18 DR. BOOTH: 18 It isaproblem for some countries like Japan
19 A. Yeah, sure, of course, it's nonsense. 19 that refuses to accept any immigration and
20 CHAIRMAN: 20 they’ ve got some really severe problems.
21 Q. Okay, tell mewhy? 21 CHAIRMAN:
22 DR.BOOTH: 22 Q. Yeah, they'redying?
23 A. Do youwant meto explain why? 23 DR.BOOTH:
24 CHAIRMAN: 24  A. Yeah, oh, you're absolutely right, but in
25 Q. Uh-hm. 25 Canada, we don't have that problem. | mean,
Page 153 Page 155
1 DR. BOOTH: 1 the United States doesn’t have that problem
2 A It'sbecause they add up all of thefuture 2 either.
3 pension liabilities, al of the future benefit 3 CHAIRMAN:
4 liabilities, without taking into account all 4 Q. Europedoes.
5 of the futuretax revenues that will be 5 DR. BOOTH:
6 generated to pay for those liabilities. So 6 A. Certainareasof Europedo. The UK doesn’'t
7 it's- it doesn't make alot of sense. 7 because the uk hashad alot of immigration.
8 CHAIRMAN: 8 The UK demographics are pretty good, but when
9 Q. Why wouldit berequired of corporations? 9 you look at southern Europe, surprisingly, the
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 Italians and the Greeks are well below 2.1
11 A. A very,very good question. | think you 11 children per female, which is the cut off in
12 should ask that question to Mr. MacDonald, 12 terms of replacement of population, so we
13 he’san accountant, but I think one of the 13 definitely got situations wherein Italy, they
14 worst things accountants have ever done is 14 got a stagnant economy and declining
15 what we call mark to market accounting, which |15 population, and all of that benefits come out
16 istaking all of these future benefits, future 16 of the state which poses huge potential
17 costs, and putting them on the balance sheet. 17 problems.
18 | don’'tthink for one minute that with a 18 CHAIRMAN:
19 defined benefit pension plan, any gap between 19 Q. Yousaidinyour testimony that the financial
20 the funding gap should be on the balance sheet 20 crisisstarted in 2008 is akin to the 1930s.
21 of acorporation or agovernment, because 21 When in your opinion did the Great Depression
22 these are redly, redly long lived 22 end?
23 liabilities and there’ s so much uncertainty, 23 DR. BOOTH:
24 future changes in capital markets can get rid 24 A. When the Germans invaded Poland. It’'sbeen
25 of them. So | don’'t believe in mark to market 25 debated along time by economists. The uswas

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Page 152 - Page 155




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

NP Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Page 156 Page 158
1 getting out of recession or depression 36/37, 1 their growth rate. They’ve just about blown
2 and then the Fed clamped on the brakes and 2 every single dollar in monetary policy.
3 started increasing interest rates, which was 3 There's so much liquidity in the United States
4 premature, and Bernanke has admitted this. He 4 that, | mean, the banks are flush with cash,
5 said we caused the Great Depression. The us 5 theinterest ratescan’t get any lower, so
6 should have got out of itin’37, and then 6 there' s nothing that monetary policy can do at
7 there was the stock market crash because of 7 the current point in time, and as | mentioned,
8 the actions of the Fed, but the us 8 85 hillion amonth, that’s atrillion dollars
9 unemployment only came down when the Germans 9 ayear in cash that’s being gjected into the
10 invaded Poland and the UK Government started 10 Us economy.
11 sending huge contractsto the United States 11 CHAIRMAN:
12 for war material because the UK economy 12 Q. Sohow long can they keep that going? | mean,
13 couldn’t withstand the amount of production. 13 when are they going to end up like Zimbabwe?
14 The uk dragged the usout of recession, and 14 DR.BOOTH:
15 then, of course, when the Japanese bombed 15 A. Yeah, but the thingis - we talk about
16 Pearl Harbour, the us economy readly got 16 Zimbabwe, but, | mean, in the us, al of their
17 going. 17 cashis ending up at the Federal Reserve.
18 CHAIRMAN: 18 They buy all of this stuff, they go to the
19 Q. Sowarisgood for business. 19 bank, the banks put it back on reserve at the
20 DR.BOOTH: 20 Fed. It's not going into the economy to be
21 A. Unfortunately, everybody hatesthat. What's 21 spent. So | don't see any incipient inflation
22 good for business iswhen people work hard, 22 in the United States, and the Fed hasto tools
23 and for whatever reason - obviously, when your 23 to reversethat. Now Zimbabwe, we don’t know
24 country isin danger, people work alot harder 24 what theinflationisin Zimbabwe. In fact,
25 and you employ everything going. It's 25 the chief statistician in Zimbabwe had to
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1 survival and asa result, the economy does 1 report to the IMF, he didn't know what the
2 well. | wouldn’t recommend that. 2 inflation rate was, and they came back and
3 CHAIRMAN: 3 said, why isthat, and he said, well, there's
4 Q. | guessI’'mtrying to find out what's going to 4 nothing in the shops and if there’ s nothing in
5 happen with us after 2008, because if you look 5 the shops, wecan't get the pricesand we
6 at the data actually for civilian consumption 6 can't tell you what the rate of inflation is.
7 during the war, civilian consumption in the us 7 CHAIRMAN:
8 economy in 1945/1946 was the samelevel as 8 Q. Butthat’snot new when you have these kinds
9 1933/1934, the worse of the depression. So to 9 of inflations. This happened before.
10 say that the Us, from the point of view of the 10 DR. BOOTH:
11 consumer, exited the depression in 1937/1938 11 A. Yeah, but they just -
12 isnot true, it'smore like it's 1945/1946. 12 CHAIRMAN:
13 DR. BOOTH: 13 Q. |l guesswhat I'mtryingto doisget ahandle
14 A. That'sright. 14 on what's the relationship between these
15 CHAIRMAN: 15 recessionary type conditions that we're facing
16 Q. | wonder arewe facingasimilar situation 16 and if it'songoing, how is that going to
17 here. Y ou know, isthis going to drag on for 17 affect our bond ratings, and how is that going
18 another five or ten years. 18 toflow through for companies, regulated or
19 DR. BOOTH: 19 unregulated, in terms of returns on equity? |
20 A. Well, forecasts are always wrong, but we need 20 mean, we're pretty well ring fenced herein
21 them because we need them for planning 21 Canada, isthat what you're kind of saying?
22 purposes. The current forecast is quite doom 22 DR.BOOTH:
23 and gloom. Theus economy was ina slow 23 A. We'rering fenced -
24 recovery, they don’'t have agreement on the 24 CHAIRMAN:
25 fiscal policy to pull them out of - speed up 25 Q. Because our public finances are in such good
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1 shape. 1 A. Wadll, at the moment -
2 DR.BOOTH: 2 CHAIRMAN:
3 A. The Government of Canada isin very good 3 Q. | got something thismorning | just picked up.
4 shape. 4 Thisis something - the Fed now in the States.
5 CHAIRMAN: 5 DR. BOOTH:
6 Q. Yeah. 6 A. Yeah.
7 DR.BOOTH: 7 CHAIRMAN:
8 A. | mean, we' ve had some stimulus spending, its 8 Q. It's an index caled "us Recession
9 got adeficit, but a themoment it's 3 9 Probabilities Index".
10 percent of GDP, and our economy is growing at 10 DR. BOOTH:
11 2.5 percent, so the debt isnot increasing in 11  A. Yeah
12 asignificant way in Canada, and - although 12 CHAIRMAN:
13 spending is going down. So there's no problem 13 Q. Andthe Fed indicator saysthere’s anew crash
14 in terms of the Federal Government and the AAA |14 ahead.
15 bond rating. 15 DR. BOOTH:
16 CHAIRMAN: 16  A. | don't see anew crash ahead. There would be
17 Q. So that should put downward pressure on 17 - we had the fiscal cliff discussions and that
18 Canadian bonds? 18 would have amounted to about 600 billion
19 DR. BOOTH: 19 dollars ayear taken out of the US economy to
20 A. Oneof thereasonsinterest rateswascoming 20 basically close the us government’s deficit.
21 downin the 2000's, one thing that was put 21 So if you add up all of the tax increases, the
22 forward was the shortage of Government of 22 Bush cuts that would have been reversed, all
23 Canada bonds, and the fact that we use them as 23 of the spending increases, it was about 600
24 benchmarks. Infact, it shocks people now 24 billion dollars. Y ou cannot take 600 billion
25 that in 2000, the Us had a surplus, the uk had 25 dollars out of the useconomy without it
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1 asurplus, and it was aserious policy issue 1 slowing down. Y ou cannot take that sort of
2 what happens when there’ s no longer any usor 2 money out of - or proportionately the same
3 UK government bonds out there, what do we use 3 money out of Spain, Greece, Italy, Portugal,
4 as benchmarks, and we look back now and say, 4 without their economies going down. So
5 did wereally think about that. That wasa 5 there’ s no question in Europe, we're getting
6 serious policy issue because we had surpluses 6 this posterity driven recession as a necessary
7 and we could seethe debt going down. Now 7 adjustment for longer term financial health.
8 we'rein the opposite, the debt isgoing up in 8 In the Us, they didn’t make that 600 billion,
9 the United States; in Canada, it’'snot. So 9 but they just responded for six weeks, two
10 unlesswe suddenly - when the US recovers, 10 months, and you've now got Obama coming out
11 Canada is going to have much - we're going to 11 and saying to the Republicans, we' re not doing
12 beunder alot of pressure, good pressure, 12 anything on the debt ceilings, you increase
13 because at the moment we' ve got arecovery in 13 the debt ceilings. So there's a huge game of
14 Canada without the us having arealy strong 14 chicken going on in the United States. Did
15 recovery. Sowe've been able to manage that 15 the Us deserve to get downgraded from AAA; no,
16 onthe strength of commaodity prices, global 16 but thenyou look at what'sgoing on in
17 demand for resources, and the internal 17 Congress, and you say, how come these guys
18 strength of the Canadian economy. When theus |18 can’'t come up with areasonable solution, and
19 picks up, that’s obviously big news for 19 as long as there doesn't seemto be any
20 Canada, and our economy isgoing to beundera |20 ability to compromisein Congress, thereisa
21 lot of inflation pressure. 21 significant fear that in another six weeks
22 CHAIRMAN: 22 they do not get a debt ceiling increase, and
23 Q. When do you think that’slikely to - what kind 23 you do have Republicansin the United States
24 of time frame have you got there? 24 and Congress saying we think adefault would
25 DR. BOOTH: 25 be agood thing for the Us, get the us
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1 government to stop paying some of its workers. 1 Europe, you can understand it, they’re not a
2 We'll pay the bonds, but we won’t pay civil 2 country. Sotrying to get Italians and
3 servants, and they don’t seem to realize that 3 Spanish and Greeks and Germansand Dutch to
4 when you look at - typically when you look at 4 agree, forget it, it's not going to happen
5 bond contracts, adefaultis non-payment on 5 unless you put a gun to their head.
6 any contractual obligation, so if the 6 CHAIRMAN:
7 Republicans follow through on this and we get 7 Q. Just afinal question on this preferred shares
8 al of asudden the Federal Government can’t 8 versus equity business, | mean, can't that be
9 pay civil servants and all sorts of things, 9 modelled? | mean, there’ s two scenarios here.
10 the rating agencies would drop the bond rating 10 There' sthe current capital structure and the
11 of the United States. 11 one you' re proposed.
12 CHAIRMAN: 12 DR. BOOTH:
13 Q. So, | mean, these conditions are making 13  A. Yeah
14 Canada, | mean, an attractive place to invest 14 CHAIRMAN:
15 iswhat you're - 15 Q. Can'tthat - | mean, there shouldn't betoo
16 DR. BOOTH: 16 much argument about what’s more efficient from
17 A. Andthat’swhat the Governor of the Bank of 17 a point of view of an efficient capital
18 Canada said. There's absolutely no question, 18 structure. Isit difficult to do that?
19 foreign capital iscomingto Canada because 19 DR. BOOTH:
20 we're one of the few AAA rated countries, and 20 A. No.
21 it's not just any foreign capital, what it is 21 CHAIRMAN:
22 is essentidly the Central Bank of major 22 Q. Weheard from the Chief Financia Officer of
23 countries around the world saying wheredowe |23 Light and Power who said there’ s no market for
24 put our foreign exchange reserves, do we put 24 preferred shares. | mean isthat true? Do
25 them in the Euro and there' s a possibility the 25 you think it's true, | should say? She
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1 Euro breaking up, do we put themin theus 1 believesit'strue. NLPistoo small, nobody
2 when there'sa possibility of significant 2 wants to buy preferred sharesin NLP, | guess
3 depreciation, we'll put some of it in Canada. 3 iswhat she said.
4 CHAIRMAN: 4 DR.BOOTH:
5 Q. Sowould that be afactor in your opinion that 5 A. Wdll, there's 1 percent preferred shares
6 utility ROESin the States versus Canada, | 6 already outstanding for Newfoundland Power,
7 mean, Canada isa more secure place for 7 and we have other utilities that are smaller
8 investment, therefore, returns could be 8 than Newfoundland Power that have preferred
9 expected to be lower? 9 shares outstanding. There may be no public
10 DR. BOOTH: 10 market because for a public market, you need
11 A. | think there'sno question that returns are 11 to have enough volume that people are going to
12 expected to be lower. We' ve seen those in the 12 trade it through established prices.
13 Mercer Report comparing 2009 with now. Their |13 CHAIRMAN:
14 forecast for the long run equity returnsis 14 Q. Uh-hm.
15 down by at least 1 percent. We see that in 15 DR. BOOTH:
16 the TD economicsreport. | think - to be 16 A. Evenin partsof the corporate bond market, a
17 honest, 1 think they’'re a little bit 17 lot of thedebtis never ever traded, it's
18 pessimistic. | tend to believe that all 18 just placed directly with pension funds,
19 things pass. Perhaps|’m an optimist, but | 19 insurance companies, and fixed income funds.
20 tend to believe that we will find solutionsto 20 So she'sright inthe sensethat 42 million
21 these problems and the us is a flexible 21 dollars, they’ d probably have to go through a
22 economy, very competitive, and if they could 22 private placement, and the yieldson that
23 solve their political problems, | think the us 23 they’re probably gone up now from November,
24 economy should rebound, but it's lack of 24 2012, when Fortis issued its preferred shares
25 leadership politicaly in the United States. 25 because interest rates have actually come up
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1 the last six weeks, but | don’'t see that asa 1 common and 60 percent debt. So if someone
2 great impediment. Put it thisway, you go to 2 tellsmeit’simpossible, Newfoundland Power
3 an investment banker and say for afee, 3 3 can't dothis, | just don't believeit. It

4 percent, 4 percent, can you place 42 million 4 just doesn't make any sense. | don't judge

5 dollars of preferred shares; if you tell me 5 Fortis Albertaon 8.75 percent ROE on 40

6 the investment bank is going to come back and 6 percent common equity, | don't regard that as

7 say it's impossible, 1 would say that’s 7 being an unattainable goal for Newfoundland
8 ridiculous. It'sthe investment bankers job 8 Power.

9 to goout and sell these securities and you 9 CHAIRMAN:

10 give then 3 percent, you give them a 10 Q. Ithink that'sit for me. So will we take our

11 commission, those securitieswill be placed 11 lunch break now and start anew, or do you want
12 somewhere. It may beeither placed with 12 to start -

13 Ontario teachers or afixed income fund, and 13 MS. GLYNN:

14 they're not marketable, so they can’t 14 Q. Mr. Chair, we had discussed getting Mr.

15 subsequently trade them, but | have no doubt 15 MacDonald's directin, but wedo estimate
16 whatsoever that Newfoundland Power can sell 42 |16 about half hour for that. So the break might

17 million dollars worth of preferred shares. 17 be more appropriate at this time.

18 CHAIRMAN: 18 CHAIRMAN:

19 Q. Andyou're sayingthat asaconsequence of 19 Q. Solet’sbreak now and come back at quarter
20 that or thesaleof apart of it, | think 20 after one. Isthat what you want to do?
21 you're talking about phasing it in, that would 21 DR.BOOTH:
22 result in savings to consumers because you're 22 A. Isthereany re-direct?
23 trading the 5 percent equity or a percentage 23 CHAIRMAN:
24 of a 5 percent equity for apercentage of 24 Q. Oh, I'msorry, | beg your pardon. Yeah, I’'m
25 preferreds? 25 sorry, | forgot about that.

Page 169 Page 171

1 DR. BOOTH: 1 MR. JOHNSON:

2 A. That'sright. | mean, and unlike the debt, 2 Q. There snore-direct.

3 al you do islook at the difference in the 3 CHAIRMAN:

4 1:08:33) on the preferred shares and the 4 Q. Who doyou like better, Keynes or Hayek?

5 allowed ROE. 5 DR. BOOTH:

6 CHAIRMAN: 6 A. After | went back on Tuesday, | started out my
7 Q. Uh-hm. 7 lecture with a U-Tube video, and you might say
8 DR. BOOTH: 8 why would a professor use a U-Tube video, but
9 A. Andyoutake that percentage - if you issue 9 it contrast Keynes with Hayek, and that U-Tube
10 the preferred shares, say, at 5 percent, and 10 video is brilliant, and it al depends on

11 you decide 8.5 percent for the common equity, 11 short run versus long run. On long run, Hayek
12 you've got a 3.5 percent spread. So the 12 is right; short run, you're condemning 50

13 savings as far as the rate payers are 13 percent of the youth in Spain to unemployment,
14 concerned isjust a 3.5 percent saving on 5 14 and you got to think of the human tragedy of
15 percent of the capital structure, timesthe 15 the number of people you're condemning to
16 rate base, adjusted for theincome tax, the 16 basically ruining their lives.

17 fact that they're after tax. So there'sno 17 (12:18 p.m.)

18 question that the overall cost of capital paid 18 CHAIRMAN:

19 by therate payerswould go down, just that 19 Q. Anyway, 1:15.
20 there’ s no question that the overall capital 20 (ADJOURNED FOR LUNCH)
21 structure of Newfoundland Power will still be 21 (1:21 p.m.)
22 one of the most conservative in Canada. Asl 22 CHAIRMAN:
23 stressed, Fortis Alberta is an electric 23 Q. I think, Ms. Greene, you're goingto bein
24 utility in Alberta, it's bigger than 24 charge? Arethere any preliminary matters
25 Newfoundland Power, butits got 40 percent 25 before we turn to our next order of business?
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1 GREENE, Q.C.: 1 MR. MACDONALD:
2 Q. Hejust hasto be swornin, Mr. Chair. 2 A. | received aBachelor of Commence maoring in
3 MR. TROY MACDONALD (SWORN) 3 accounting from St. Mary’s University in 1994.
4 GREENE, QC.: 4 GREENE, Q.C.:
5 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. MacDonald. 5 Q. Prior tojoining Grant Thornton, where did you
6 MR. MACDONALD: 6 work?
7 A. Good afternoon. 7 MR. MACDONALD:
8 GREENE, Q.C.: 8 A. | joined Emerain 1999 and worked there until
9 Q. You prepared areport on capital structure and 9 | joined Grant Thorntonin 2003. Prior to
10 a fair return on equity for Newfoundland 10 Emera, | worked with a chartered accountant
11 Power, which report isdated November, 2012 11 firmin Halifax.
12 and which was filed with this Board on 12 GREENE, Q.C.:
13 November 28th, 2012. Arethereany updatesor |13 Q. What was your role with Emera?
14 revisions to this pre-filed evidence that you 14 MR. MACDONALD:
15 would like to make at this time? 15 A. lwasinitialy in thefinancia planning and
16 MR. MACDONALD: 16 forecasting group and then soon transferred
17 A. There are no updatesor revisionsto my pre- 17 under the corporate development group.
18 filed evidence. 18 Corporate development group was responsible
19 GREENE, Q.C.: 19 for evaluating new growth opportunities.
20 Q. Doyou adopt your pre-filed evidencein this 20 During my time with that group, | wasinvolved
21 proceeding? 21 inmany potential acquisitions of regulated
22 MR. MACDONALD: 22 and non-regulated assets, including successful
23  A. Yes, | do. 23 acquisition of Bangor Hydro Electric.
24 GREENE, Q.C.: 24 GREENE, Q.C.:
25 Q. Now, your cv isattached as Appendix Btoyour |25 Q. Thisisyour first time appearing as an expert
Page 173 Page 175
1 report, but 1 would liketo havea little 1 witnessisa cost of capital proceeding, is
2 discussion with you about your background and 2 that correct?
3 your qualifications at this point. 3 MR. MACDONALD:
4 MR. MACDONALD: 4 A Yes, thatis correct. While | regularly
5 A. Super. 5 advise clientsin matters related to cost of
6 GREENE, Q.C.: 6 capital, thisis thefirst time that1l a
7 Q. What is your current position with Grant 7 appearing as an expert witness. | have
8 Thornton? 8 provided regulator support to thecity of
9 MR. MACDONALD: 9 Edmonton on two occasions, the valuation of
10 A. | ama partner in the corporate finance and 10 the Gold Bar Waste Water Plant and the Epcor
11 infrastructure group at Grant Thornton based 11 Water Services, 2012 to 2016 PBR proposal. In
12 in Toronto, aswell asthefirm's national 12 regardsto the Gold Bar Waste Water Plant
13 corporate financeleader. | joined Grant 13 valuation, | testified in city council and
14 Thornton’s corporate finance group in 2003 14 received questions from both the councillors
15 based in Halifax. | was aso part of the 15 and the general public.
16 capital market group with Grant Thornton based |16 GREENE, Q.C.:
17 in UK in 2006 and 2007. 17 Q. What was the scope of your engagement for the
18 GREENE, Q.C.: 18 Board for this proceeding?
19 Q. What areyour professional designations, Mr. 19 MR. MACDONALD:
20 MacDonald? 20 A. My report wasprepared on behalf of the
21 MR. MACDONALD: 21 Newfoundland and Labrador Public Utilities
22 A. I’'ma chartered accountant and a chartered 22 Board to provide an independent expert opinion
23 business valuator. 23 on the capital structure, return on equity and
24 GREENE, Q.C.: 24 automatic adjustment formulafor the 2013 and
25 Q. What university degree to you hold? 25 2014 test years. My opinionisbased on my
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1 conclusion that Newfoundland Power is an 1 respect to the weighting that you gave to your
2 average risk utility. 2 CAPM results given your opinion that the
3 GREENE, Q.C.: 3 resultsfrom caPM did not providea clear
4 Q. Andwhatis your conclusion with respect to 4 return for Newfoundland Power. How did you
5 thefair return on equity for Newfoundland 5 address that concern in coming to your
6 Power for the two test years, 2013 and 2014? 6 opinion?
7 MR. MACDONALD: 7 MR. MACDONALD:
8 A. My conclusionis8.91 percent isafair return 8 A. I'vechosen to adopt an approach that involves
9 on equity. 9 subjective application of the three
10 GREENE, Q.C.: 10 methodologies. | then used my professional
11 Q. Now in arriving at that opinion or that 11 judgment in applying the weightings to each
12 conclusion, what methodologies or methodsdid |12 method to consider matters that need further
13 you use? 13 adjustment. As I’ve concluded that my fair
14 MR. MACDONALD: 14 return equity should be 8.91 percent, this
15 A. lutilized acapMm, discounted cashflow and 15 reflects a 206 basis point increase to my CAPM
16 historical equity risk premium method. As all 16 results of 6.84. This 206 basis point
17 methods have challenges, | considered multiple |17 adjustment addresses the concerns regarding
18 methodologiesto ensurethat | had a broad 18 the impact of the abnormally low risk free
19 view in developing my opinion regarding the 19 rate. 1 would note that this is comparable
20 fair return on equity. The selected 20 with Ms. McShane's cApm conclusion of 8.7 to 9
21 methodologies provided multiple points of 21 percent.
22 insight, including historical market returns, 22 GREENE, Q.C.
23 forward looking market data, significant 23 Q. There'sbeen much discussion during this week
24 Canadian based dataand a carefully selected 24 with respect to the use of us companies. Why
25 us based data. Thisis particularly important 25 have you chosen to use a set of US companies
Page 177 Page 179
1 today due to the abnormally low risk free 1 in your analysis?
2 rates that can cause distortionsin results on 2 MR.MACDONALD:
3 methods such as the capm. My approach was to 3 A. To apply the bcF methodology, we need to
4 quantity each method in the most objective 4 access comparable companieswith sufficient
5 manner possible and then use my professional 5 information to conduct the analysis. The us
6 judgment to develop aweighting to determine a 6 market has a significant number of utilities,
7 fair return on equity that addresses the 7 thereforeit providesarange of comparable
8 potential adjustments that required further 8 companies to choose from that have significant
9 consideration. 9 infformation available. The comparable
10 GREENE, Q.C:.: 10 companies selected have significant regulatory
11 Q. What were someof the adjustmentsthat you 11 assets over 85 percent, significant regulatory
12 considered in devel oping your weighting? 12 earnings, over 90 percent, stable dividends
13 MR. MACDONALD: 13 and identical bond ratingsto Newfoundland
14 A. | considered theimpact of the unusually low 14 Power. Whilethey are not identical to
15 risk free ratesand the adjustments required 15 Newfoundland Power’s regulatory environment,
16 tothe capm method. | also considered the 16 they were all rated with similar levels of
17 potential differences between usand Canadian 17 regulatory support of either BAAor A by
18 utilities relative to the bcr methodology. In 18 Moody’s. Itis alsoworth noting that it
19 addition, | also considered the potential 19 would be challenging for any of the Canadian
20 fluctuations over time in the ERP method, 20 publicly listed utility companies to be
21 particularly as it relatesto the companies 21 comparable to Newfoundland Power based on the
22 that are included and the eventsin time. 22 criteria that | have established. In
23 GREENE, Q.C.. 23 selecting these comparable companies, |
24 Q. Now, you were here when Ms. McShane testified 24 recognize there are differencesrelative to
25 and Ms. McShane expressed some concern with 25 Newfoundland Power related to subsector,
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1 competition, regulatory support and customer 1 demographics, operating environment, power
2 mix. | also note that there are significant 2 supply, regulatory environment, regulatory
3 offsetting factors in regards to the size and 3 mechanisms, credit ratings and credit matrix.
4 diversity of the comparable set. As | 4 I’ve alsoreviewed the pressreleases and
5 concluded that thefair return on equity 5 annual reports of the Canadian peer group of
6 should be 8.91 percent, this reflects an 6 publicly traded companies. This allowed meto
7 adjustment of 72 basis points to my DCF result 7 assess any new information since 2009 that may
8 of 9.63. This 72 basis point adjustment 8 change Newfoundland Power’ s position relative
9 addresses the concerns regarding differences 9 toits Canadian peers. | did not note any
10 between usand Canadian companies. Thisis 10 changesthat were sufficiently material to
11 consistent with the BCUC 2009's statement that 11 lead me to believe that Newfoundland Power’s
12 a50 to 100 basis point adjustment should be 12 risk profile haschanged since 2009. |
13 applied for us comparable companies. 13 therefore concluded that Newfoundland Power
14 GREENE, Q.C.: 14 continues to be an average risk utility
15 Q. Turning now to a dlightly different topic, 15 relative to its Canadian peer group.
16 what isyour view onthe current overal 16 GREENE, Q.C.:
17 economic condition? 17 Q. Turning now to theissue of the appropriate
18 MR. MACDONALD: 18 capital structure for Newfoundland Power,
19 A. Atahighlevel, the economy isclearing in a 19 please explain why you believe it is
20 period of uncertainty. | believe the economy 20 appropriate for Newfoundland Power to continue
21 has been in the process of recovery since the 21 to maintain itscapital structure at the
22 financial crisis, but the stimulusused to 22 current level of 45 percent common equity.
23 address thoseissues have lead us into a 23 MR. MACDONALD:
24 period of significant sovereign debt 24 . | concluded that the 45 percent common equity
25 challenges. | see signsof recovery and 25 ratio is reasonable based upon the following
Page 181 Page 183
1 improvement in stock market results, 1 factors and considerations. There have been
2 unemployment rates and Us housing trends, but 2 no material changes in the business,
3 also concerns with Canadian housing and debt 3 regulatory or financial risk framework since
4 levels. In summary, the economy isin a 4 the 2010 GRA. The allowed equity ratios of
5 period of uncertainty that may take some time 5 itsinvestor own Canadian peers have remained
6 to resolve. 6 constant sincethe 2010 GRA. The company’s
7 GREENE, Q.C.: 7 credit rating, which bBrsand Moody’s, both in
8 Q. Please explain at this point how you 8 terms of the financial matrix and regulatory
9 determined that Newfoundland Power is an 9 environment. In addition to these factors
10 averagerisk utility relativeto its Canadian 10 noted above, | would note that the 45 percent
11 peers? 11 common equity level has beenin place with
12 MR. MACDONALD: 12 Newfoundland Power since 1990. Why | advocate
13 A. | note the Board decision of 2009 that 13 ongoing review of the appropriateness of the
14 concluded that there had been no evidence of 14 common equity level and making adjustments as
15 any material changein therisk profile of 15 required, | am mindful of the sovereign debt
16 Newfoundland Power relative to its peer group 16 issues that continue to create broad economic
17 to warrant changing its assessment that 17 uncertainty. These factors provide further
18 Newfoundland Power is an average risk Canadian |18 rationale for maintaining the common equity
19 utility. My assessment is based upon the 19 component at its current levels.
20 business, financia and regulatory risks 20 GREENE, Q.C.:
21 profile of Newfoundland Power. In considering |21 Q. Turning now to theissue of the automatic
22 the risk profile of Newfoundland Power, | 22 adjustment formula.
23 considered the business profile, Newfoundland 23 MR. MACDONALD:
24 and Labrador economicsand demographics--or |24 . | believe the formula can be an effective and
25 sorry, Newfoundland economics and 25 important regulatory tool, aslong asit can
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1 be designed to produce outcomes that will meet 1 formula provided by Dr. Booth and myself are
2 the fair return standard. The current 2 quite similar. | believe both of us recognize
3 abnormally low risk free rates create 3 that the significant fluctuations we have seen
4 challenges for the formulain thisregard. As 4 inthe long term Government of Canada bond
5 aregulatory tool, it can help reduce costs 5 yields can cause challengesin ensuring the
6 related to rate applications, provide a 6 outcomes of the formulameet thefair return
7 mechanism to maintain an appropriate ROE and 7 standard. We have both recommended changesin
8 ensure rate hearings happen when appropriate. 8 the formulato addressthese concerns. The
9 Toalow theformula to continue to be an 9 formulas recommended are very similar, except
10 effective regulatory tool, I would recommend 10 for the following: Dr. Booth recommends a
11 the following changes: establish afloor and 11 risk free rate floor of 3.8 percent; Dr. Booth
12 ceiling of 100 basis points that would trigger 12 recommends a coefficient of .75, instead of a
13 acost of capital hearing for fluctuationsin 13 coefficient of .5 on the long term Government
14 excess of these amounts; reduce the 14 of Canadabond yields; and | have recommended
15 coefficient from .8 to .5 to mitigate the 15 the use of afloor and ceiling of 100 basis
16 impact of fluctuations of therisk free rate; 16 pointson changes to the return on equity
17 introduce a deadband of plus or minus 25 basis 17 under the formulaand | have recommended a
18 points to reduce the administrative burden of 18 deadband of 25 basis points. | do have a
19 small fluctuations,; and introduce a second 19 concern regarding the 3.8 percent floor. If |
20 adjustment factor reflecting the change in 20 understand the intention correctly, the 3.8
21 spreads between utility bond yields and the 21 percent floor would mean that the risk free
22 long term Government of Canada bond yieldsin |22 rate must increase above thislevel before
23 recognition of other factors that impact the 23 Newfoundland Power received an increase in the
24 return on equity. | believe these adjustments 24 alowed ROE. 1dso note the application of
25 will make the formula a more effective 25 the .75 coefficient would cause similar
Page 185 Page 187
1 regulatory tool and better meet the fair 1 sengitivity to the risk free rate that we have
2 return standard. 2 experienced to date. Given the current low
3 GREENE, Q.C.: 3 rates, this seems to be a burden to
4 Q. Now Newfoundland Power has commented on your 4 Newfoundland Power with delayed increasesin
5 suggested changes, thinking now of the 5 the allowed ROE as the risk free rate changes
6 evidence of Ms. Perry, do you have any 6 during periods of increasing interest rates--
7 observations on the comments that they made on 7 or sorry, yields.
8 your proposed changes? 8 GREENE, Q.C.
9 MR. MACDONALD: 9 Q. Mr. MacDonald, does this conclude your direct
10 A. Yes. Theconcerns expressed would not cause 10 evidence at thistime?
11 me to change any of my recommendations. The 11 MR.MACDONALD:
12 formula is a well-balanced mechanism as 12 A. Yes, itdoes.
13 proposed that creates regulatory 13 GREENE, Q.C.:
14 administrative efficiency. The proposed 14 Q. Thank you.
15 changes, particularly the inclusion of the 15 CHAIRMAN:
16 utility credit spread and the trigger, 16 Q. |think you'reup first, areyou sir?
17 address, to alarge extent, the concerns 17 KELLY, Q.C.:
18 regarding the relationship between the risk 18 Q. Yes, Mr. Chairman, thank you. Mr. MacDonald,
19 free rate and the return on equity. 19 if I understand your evidence correctly and
20 GREENE, Q.C. 20 perhaps we can go to page 27.
21 Q. Now Dr. Booth has also suggested changesto 21 MR.MACDONALD:
22 the formula. What is your view of his 22 A. Page?27 of what?
23 suggested changes? 23 KELLY,QC.
24 MR.MACDONALD: 24 Q. Of your report.
25 A. | believe the recommendations regarding the 25 MR.MACDONALD:
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1 A. Okay. 1 model doesn’t give afair result, that’s kind
2 KELLY, Q.C. 2 of the starting point.
3 Q. Thelong Canadabond yield that you estimated 3 MR. MACDONALD:
4 of 3.04 percent, you did that estimate over a 4 A. That would bethe starting point and then we
5 two-year period? 5 used our professional judgment and determined
6 MR. MACDONALD: 6 the right weightings to use to adjust the cAPM
7 A. That'scorrect. 7 to alevel we believe is appropriate and would
8 KELLY, Q.C. 8 produce afair return on equity.
9 Q. Ifl understand that correctly. 9 KELLY, Q.C:
10 MR. MACDONALD: 10 Q. Okay, now just bear with me with this because
11 A. Yes 11 if 1 take a number from one of your results -
12 KELLY, Q.C. 12 MR. MACDONALD:
13 Q. If wego over to the top of page 28, you built 13 A. Uh-hm.
14 your assessments off the consensus forecast 14 KELLY, Q.C.:
15 for each of the years? 15 Q. - whichyou acknowledged at the beginningis
16 MR. MACDONALD: 16 unfair and put that into an averaging process,
17 A. Thatiscorrect. 17 then you get out of the result aresult which
18 KELLY, Q.C.: 18 is, itself, unfair?
19 Q. Right, soyou'relooking out to 2014. 19 MR. MACDONALD:
20 MR. MACDONALD: 20 A. | wouldn't agree with that because what | did
21 A. Thatiscorrect. 21 is| looked at the adjustments | thought would
22 KELLY, Q.C: 22 be needed to apply to each of the
23 Q. Right. So one of the questionsthat | think | 23 methodologies and then | developed my
24 now take the answer to, let’sjust see if | 24 weighting for that exact purpose so | was not
25 got this right, you're proposing your 25 putting in an unfair amount. | was actually
Page 189 Page 191
1 recommended return for 13 and 14. 1 seeking a weighting that would adjust each
2 MR. MACDONALD: 2 methodology to an appropriate level, which
3 A. Correct. 3 lead me to my 8.91 percent.
4 KELLY,Q.C. 4 KELLY,Q.C.
5 Q. Andthentheformulawould not operate until 5 Q. Canyou point metoany placein your report
6 the end of 2014? 6 where you make asimilar comment in relation
7 MR. MACDONALD: 7 to your other two methodologies, like the
8 A. Thatiscorrect. 8 statement we find on page 33?
9 KELLY, QC: 9 MR. MACDONALD:
10 Q. Okay. Thenextplacel’ll just takeyoutois 10 A. It'sactualy in my conclusion and you will
11 to your comments with respect to capm. Come |11 note there that we recognize there'slimits
12 over on to page 33. 12 and challenges with each methodology.
13 MR. MACDONALD: 13 KELLY, Q.C.
14 A, Okay. 14 Q. Yes
15 KELLY, Q.C.. 15 MR. MACDONALD:
16 Q. Andyou make the observation at line 652 that 16 A. And that we had considered that in our
17 your CAPM return of 6.84 percent on a stand- 17 weightings.
18 alone basiswould result in arequired return 18 KELLY, Q.C.:
19 that is below what we believe to be afair ROE 19 Q. Okay. Let meask you this question then: the
20 for the company. 20 sample that you prepared for your DCF, | think
21 MR. MACDONALD: 21 Is at page 34.
22 A. Thatiscorrect. 22 MR. MACDONALD:
23 KELLY, Q.C: 23 A. That sounds good, okay.
24 Q. Right, so you acknowledge that the application 24 KELLY,Q.C:
25 of the formula, the applicationto the CAPM 25 Q. Justturn over to the--page 34, it'stowards
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1 the bottom of the page, Chris. You'renot in 1 Greene afew moments ago was that in selecting
2 the right spot here, there you go, keep going. 2 your weightings, you selected a weighting that
3 And | take it that in selecting these 3 would, I'll use the word "deliberately" but |
4 companies, youwere looking for companies 4 don’t mean anything necessarily negative about
5 which, asyou indicated wouldn't be the same 5 it, but would deliberately bring down your bcr
6 operating characteristics, per se, but would 6 result on an average.
7 give you a sample with overall similar 7 MR. MACDONALD:
8 investment comparability. 8 A. Thatisabsolutely correct.
9 MR. MACDONALD: 9 KELLY, QC:
10 A. Absolutely, we werelooking to get to the most 10 Q. Andyou did that because of comments from the
11 comparable possible set that we could. 11 BCUC?
12 KELLY, Q.C. 12 MR. MACDONALD:
13 Q. Right, okay. And many of these companiesare (13 A. Wall, and | think there'salot of literature
14 similar to, for example, ones used by Ms. 14 published on this issue, particularly in
15 McShane in her analysis? 15 regulatory circles, but as | was developing my
16 MR. MACDONALD: 16 weighting, | was mindful of the Bcuc
17 A. That'sabsolutely correct, one thing | found 17 commentary which estimated that would be .5 to
18 when | wasdeveloping my sample isthat | 18 1 for an adjustment downward and that’ s why |
19 increased my regulatory asset threshold, 19 selected the weightings | did, leading to a
20 that’ s what really helped me narrow it down to 20 .72 adjustment.
21 7. 21 KELLY,Q.C.
22 KELLY, Q.C: 22 Q. Didyoudo any analysisto determine in any
23 Q. Right, okay, so you selected 7 out of--there’s 23 sense that having deliberated selected samples
24 alarge universe out there. 24 to be comparable, did you do any analysisto
25 MR. MACDONALD: 25 in any sense conclude that they would have a
Page 193 Page 195
1 A. There'salot of them, absolutely. 1 different return on equity, that’ s the piece,
2 KELLY, Q.C. 2 or did you rely on simply literature generally
3 Q. Andsoyouselected 7 to be as comparable as 3 inthe Bcuc?
4 possible from an overall investment point of 4 MR. MACDONALD:
5 view? 5 A. Wdll, you know, | think there's another
6 MR. MACDONALD: 6 important factor that weighed into my decision
7 A. Absolutely from a total comparability 7 iswhen you look at the us companies and you
8 perspective, yeah, recognizing you never get 8 just at a macro level try to understand return
9 the perfect comparability, but from atotal 9 on equity in capital structures of the us
10 perspective. 10 broad set and the Canadian’s, you see that
11 KELLY, Q.C.: 1 there isclearly a difference. So that,
12 Q. Right. Now, having--and | take it one of the 12 combined with the Bcuc statement and | think
13 factors you weighed into that was the larger 13 other in general piecesthat | have read, have
14 capital structures of some of these companies? 14 lead me to that weighting and that conclusion.
15 MR. MACDONALD: 15 KELLY, Q.C..
16 A. Absolutely because what we found or what | 16 Q. Yeah, but with respect, isn'tthat a bit
17 found is that while each company is going to 17 circular? Because you're looking at the broad
18 have differences relative to Newfoundland 18 range of UScompanies, butin Canada these
19 Power, overall though things such asthe size 19 operating utilitiesthat you're trying to
20 of the company and the diversity of it, are 20 figure out the cost of equity, have a
21 important offsetting factors which need to be 21 regulated return. Soyou have tofind a
22 considered as you assess the tota 22 samplethat will giveyou amarket rate of
23 comparability. 23 return.
24 KELLY,Q.C. 24 MR. MACDONALD:
25 Q. Now, oneof thecomments you madeto Ms. |25 A. Could you repeat the question? I’ m not sure |
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1 understood your meaning. 1 be considering.
2 KELLY, QC: 2 KELLY, QC:
3 Q Wadl if |l took your answer, you said you 3 Q. Right, but for the--take those two factors,
4 looked at the broad generic literature, which 4 for the regulatory support, you aready
5 | took it to be from your answer related to 5 factored that by looking for comparable
6 utilities, did | get that much correct? 6 regulatory Moody’sratings, and the point
7 MR. MACDONALD: 7 about regulated earningsisit simply reflects
8 A. Right. 8 the application of regulationin Canada, in
9 KELLY, Q.C: 9 terms of what regulators have said. Soit’s
10 Q. Andl wastryingto understand well have you 10 circular because you're not then getting a
11 specificaly looked at anything that would 11 market rate, you' re discounting simply because
12 make these particular companies not comparable |12 you've got regulators in Canada who have set a
13 and | took it your answer was no, correct? 13 rate.
14 MR. MACDONALD: 14 KELLY,Q.C.
15 A. Correct. 15 Q. I'mdiscounting because | believe that there's
16 KELLY, Q.C.: 16 adifference between the countriesand the
17 Q. Okay, soif you look at the broad spectrum of 17 regulated utilities, so | think it's
18 companies and then you say, well, | look at 18 appropriate.
19 the broad spectrum but returns are higher in 19 (1:45p.m.)
20 the United States, a) you're comparing non- 20 KELLY, Q.C:
21 comparable companies because you'veselected (21 Q. Okay, now, let me moveonand | just want to
22 out the most comparable, and b), you're 22 talk to you alittle bit about the formula.
23 comparing that against regulated returns set 23 MR. MACDONALD:
24 by regulators in Canada, sothat doesn’t-- 24 A. Right.
25 you're then discounting for that which is 25 KELLY, Q.C:
Page 197 Page 199
1 circular, do you see my point? 1 Q. You make some comments about the formulawhich
2 MR.MACDONALD: 2 essentially would seem to indicate to me that
3 A. Well one point of clarification maybe to 3 we should have aformula, if necessary, but
4 address that is | think when you look at the 4 not necessarily aformula. Do | take that out
5 us marketplace for utilitiesand you look at 5 of it, in other words, you have to have some
6 the Canadian marketplace for utilities, 6 need for aformula?
7 there's clearly a difference, and so even 7 MR. MACDONALD:
8 though we have worked--I haveworked very 8 A. Well | believe a formula is appropriate
9 carefully to come to avery comparable set to 9 becauseit creates regulatory certainty so
10 maximize comparability, | ill believe 10 that all the parties around the table
11 there’s a difference between the us and 11 understand what will happen in 2015 if there's
12 Canadian markets overall in terms of a number 12 not arate hearing.
13 of factors and because of that, | have 13 KELLY, Q.C.
14 selected to put in afurther discount that is 14 Q. Right, butin the absence of a formulawhat
15 consistent with the BCuc comment. 15 happensis therate of returnthat isset,
16 KELLY, Q.C.: 16 just like every other cost that the company
17 Q. Wdl what'sthe difference in market that you 17 has, initstest year cost, continues unless
18 focus on then? 18 changed, either by the company applying, the
19 MR. MACDONALD: 19 Board calling the company in or somebody else,
20 A. Well there’'sanumber of piecestoit, | think 20 Consumer Advocate, asking for areview. So do
21 if you look atit, youwill seethat the 21 you not get certainty by that mechanism as
22 Canadian market is broadly more regulatory 22 well?
23 supportive. | think there’s a history of the 23 MR. MACDONALD:
24 differencein the ROES between the countries 24 A. Youget certainty, but | think the challenge
25 and so those would be the kind of things1'd 25 isthat you'rein a situation where it's not
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1 refreshed for changes in influencing factors, 1 your finger right onit in the comment that

2 like the risk free rate. So my 2 you just made, which issignificantly and |

3 recommendations were based upon trying to 3 want to take you to thispoint, you did an

4 establish aformulawhich would address that 4 analysis out to 2014, to the end of 2014 which

5 concern, but also had severa moderating 5 Is how you got your 3.04 percent.

6 factors so that there was significant 6 MR. MACDONALD:

7 variance, it would alow all of the partiesto 7 A. Correct.

8 come back to thetable and determine what 8 KELLY, Q.C:

9 would be fair. 9 Q. Right, andthat 3.04 isonly, it'swhat, 50 or
10 KELLY, Q.C.. 10 60 basispoints higher than where we are
11 Q. And whileon the question | posedto you 11 today.

12 capital is not refreshed, to use your words, 12 MR. MACDONALD:

13 nor are any of the other companies’ costs? 13 A. Correct.

14 MR. MACDONALD: 14 KELLY,Q.C.

15 A. That would be correct. 15 Q. Sowhat are you thinking the forecast is going

16 KELLY, Q.C.: 16 tobe at theend of 2014, looking out into

17 Q. That would be correct, so for example every 17 2015 because you would have factored that into

18 year the Board orders, permits capital 18 your math. It couldn’t have beena very

19 expenditures, so every year there would be a 19 significantly different number.

20 depreciation expense. 20 MR. MACDONALD:

21 MR. MACDONALD: 21 A. So if | followed your question correctly,

22 A. Agreed. 22 you're asking me what | think the forecast is

23 KELLY, Q.C: 23 for 2015?

24 Q. Butthe depreciation expense from the test 24 KELLY, Q.C::

25 year doesn’t increased, even though thereis, 25 Q. Waell let’s start it thisway, what number did
Page 201 Page 203

1 in reality, more depreciation that hasto be 1 you usein your forecast to get your 3.04 as

2 absorbed, correct? 2 your ending up number in 2014, because the

3 MR. MACDONALD: 3 3.04 is effectively atwo-year average.

4 A, Absolutely. 4 MR. MACDONALD:

5 KELLY, Q.C. 5 A. Right, so weaveragedit, welooked at the

6 Q. Sowhenwe'reactually applying aformulato 6 2013 and 2014 consensus forecast and averaged

7 refresh one cost, we're not refreshing al the 7 those.

8 other costs either, are we? 8 KELLY, Q.C:

9 MR. MACDONALD: 9 Q. Okay, sowhat wasthe consensus forecast for
10 A. Thatistrue. 10 2014?

11 KELLY, Q.C. 11 MR. MACDONALD:

12 Q. Anditwould betruefor metosay aswell 12 A. Wdl, if you give meamoment, I'll find that.
13 that from 1951 when the Public Utilities Act, 13 Oh, hereitis. Itis2.7.

14 | think, came into effect, all theway up to 14 KELLY, Q.C.

15 1998, we operated on that mechanism withouta |15 Q. Soit’sonly--very marginally higher than 2.5,
16 formula. 16 2.6 we're at today.

17 MR. MACDONALD: 17 MR. MACDONALD:

18 A. I'll takeyou at your word, and | guess one of 18 A. Correct.

19 thethings | would say about the formula, 19 KELLY, Q.C.

20 generally we are only targeting the formulato 20 Q. Andout of that, that'sat theend of 2014,
21 try to address the return on equity 21 how did you get to 3.04?

22 recognizing that that variable is moving 22 MR. MACDONALD:

23 significantly as capital markets fluctuate. 23 A. Well we averaged the 2013 and the 2014.

24 KELLY,Q.C. 24 KELLY,Q.C.

25 Q. That takes meto my next question and you put 25 Q. What's2013?
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1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 we have to be mindful of isjust the level of
2 A ltis2.2. 2 fluctuation you get in forecasts.
3 KELLY, QC: 3 KELLY, QC:
4 Q. Okay, butif | averaged 2.2 and 2.75, how do | 4 Q. | appreciate that. Sothat | takeit you
5 get 3.04? 5 actually agree with Dr. Booth that well out
6 MR. MACDONALD: 6 into 2015 we are till going to have very low
7 A, Wdll, what wedid is because we were working 7 levels of long term Canada bond yields?
8 with ten-year Canadian bond yield inputs for 8 MR. MACDONALD:
9 that, we looked at the observed spread between 9 A. Wadll actudly | think I’ve got the forecasts
10 the ten year and the long bond, which adds an 10 in my report and | think generally that would
11 additional 59 basis pointsto get to a 30 year 11 be my current expectation, the only thing |
12 long bond risk free rate, and we added that to 12 would note is the volatility at which | think
13 our average of 2.45. 13 we' ve even experienced from 2009 to today that
14 KELLY, Q.C.. 14 things can change.
15 Q. Okay, sothe earlier numbersyou gave mewere |15 KELLY, Q.C.:
16 ten-year bonds? 16 Q. Theworld can change, there's no question.
17 MR. MACDONALD: 17 MR. MACDONALD:
18 A. That'scorrect. 18 A. Absolutely.
19 KELLY, Q.C. 19 KELLY, Q.C.
20 Q. Right, just so we--okay, | got you now. So 20 Q. Now thelast question | wanted to discuss with
21 what is, just give me the--could you just give 21 you then is the concern as to how this would
22 the Board again the 30-year bond rate with the 22 operate, because the concern that Ms. Perry
23 adjustment at the end of 2014? 23 has expressed, that I’m sure you heard.
24 MR. MACDONALD: 24 MR. MACDONALD:
25  A. Well, soworking fromwhat | had inmy report, |25 A. Uh-hm.
Page 205 Page 207
1 again just to walk you through what | did. 1 KELLY,Q.C:
2 KELLY, Q.C. 2 Q. Isthat if you're going to construct a
3 Q. Yes 3 formula, the consensus forecast is a forward-
4 MR. MACDONALD: 4 looking estimate, isn't it?
5 A. | looked at the ten-year Canadian bond yield 5 MR. MACDONALD:
6 for 2013, which was 2.2 and | looked at the 6 A. Correct.
7 ten-year Canadian bond yield for 2014, which 7 KELLY, Q.C.
8 was 2.7, | averaged it and it got meto 2.45. 8 Q. Andyour 3.04 isaforward-looking estimate?
9 | then looked at the observed spread between 9 MR. MACDONALD:
10 theten year and the long bond and | noted 10 A. Correct.
1 that there’s a .59 spread and | added that to 11 KELLY, Q.C.
12 develop my estimated risk free rate of 3.04. 12 Q. Soif you'regoingto build aformulaoff of
13 KELLY, Q.C.: 13 the change in the consensus forecast, in other
14 Q. Sol would makeit, on that math, that the 30 14 words, it's going to apply at the end of 2014
15 year bond estimate at the end of 2014 isonly 15 for 2015 -
16 3.34 percent, 2.75 and 59. spread? 16 MR. MACDONALD:
17 MR. MACDONALD: 17  A. Right.
18 A. Yeah 18 KELLY, Q.C.:
19 KELLY, Q.C.: 19 Q. -thecomparablefactor we should be looking
20 Q. Soyou're not forecasting ahuge change in 20 to isthe starting consensusforecast, as
21 long Canada bond yields, in fact, 3.34 would 21 opposed to an average or a number that you've
22 dtill bewithin, for example, Dr. Booth’'s 22 calculated because otherwise what happensis
23 floor. 23 that, as Ms. Perry demonstrated in her
24 MR. MACDONALD: 24 evidence, you build in adownward biasin your
25 A. That'scorrect and | guessthe only challenge 25 formula. Do you not agree with that?
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1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 formulaat al and we' ve had some discussion
2 A. Canl ask you to repeat the question? It's 2 about that, but if -
3 just hard to follow all thelogic in that. 3 MR. MACDONALD:
4 KELLY, Q.C. 4 A, |just want to make surel follow you.
5 Q. Okay, let metake it step by step then. If 5 KELLY, Q.C.
6 you're going to use aformulato change it and 6 Q. But if there isa formula that the Board
7 you' re using forward-looking estimates. 7 decides on, the formula needs to be balanced.
8 MR. MACDONALD: 8 MR. MACDONALD:
9 A. Right. 9 A. Itdefinitely needsto bebalanced, | just
10 KELLY, Q.C.. 10 want to make sure | understand your point.
11 Q. Soyou'vegot the consensusforecast isthe 11 KELLY, Q.C.:
12 oneyou're goingto useat theend of the 12 Q. Right, okay. So for example, if you look at
13 operation of your formula, you'regoing to 13 259, thisis attempted to demonstrate if the
14 ook at it in November, 2014 out into 2015. 14 circumstances don’'t change, we get to the end
15 MR. MACDONALD: 15 of--thisis done on 2014 but you could take it
16 A. Okay. 16 al the way out to 2015, we're in exactly the
17 KELLY, Q.C.: 17 same place in 2015 and the consensus forecast
18 Q. Inorder to have neutrality in the operation 18 is2.59 4till at that point in time, the world
19 of the formula, don’t you have to compare that 19 hasn’t changed aniota, then by using your
20 consensus forecast with a starting consensus 20 average in the mix, as opposed to the starting
21 forecast? 21 259, you end up with a 45 basis point
22 MR. MACDONALD: 22 aggregate factor down by 50 percent, it
23 A. Starting consensus forecast of ? 23 weights your formula 23 basis points down. So
24 KELLY,Q.C: 24 with your deadband, 6 basis points drops you a
25 Q. Of whatever period you're going to apply the 25 quarter.
Page 209 Page 211
1 formulafrom, if we takea year over year 1 MR. MACDONALD:
2 formula, it would be from the starting point, 2 A. Nowthe 259, if | followedyou correctly,
3 the previous year, but if it's covering a two- 3 represents the November represents the
4 year period, from the starting point at the 4 November consensus forecast, and | believe it
5 beginning? 5 was the 30 year?
6 MR. MACDONALD: 6 KELLY, QC.
7 A. Well what | wastrying to link the formulato 7 Q. Yes
8 wastherisk freeratethat was inherent in 8 MR. MACDONALD:
9 the return on equity that |1 was recommending, 9 A. Right, so what we'redoing, if | follow this
10 so that it would mirror movements going 10 correctly then, I think the point you're
11 forward. 11 tryingto makeis that because I’'m working
12 KELLY, Q.C.. 12 from the 3.04 and you're looking at the 2.59
13 Q. Yeah, | appreciate that that’s the intention, 13 30-year long term bond yield.
14 but when you build it off your average, as 14 KELLY, Q.C.
15 opposed to the starting number, you’ ve biased 15 Q. Theforecast, the starting original forecast.
16 it downward by that difference or by 50 16 MR. MACDONALD:
17 percent of the difference if you're using a 50 17 A. Right, but I think you're just using a
18 percent adjustment factor. 18 forecast from that one month later, isthat
19 MR. MACDONALD: 19 right?
20 A. Soyou're suggesting that it should be the 20 KELLY, Q.C:
21 2013 forecast, plus the differencein the 21 Q. No, no,I'm using theforecast from your
22 spreads, isthat the point? 22 starting point, which is the same as today -
23 KELLY, Q.C. 23 MR. MACDONALD:
24 Q. Yeah,if youjust go to exhibit Jr-1 because 24 A. Okay.
25 the starting pointis whether we need a 25 KELLY, Q.C:
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1 Q. -whichisyour November number. 1 Q. No,we're both starting from the same risk

2 MR. MACDONALD: 2 freerate, you'reusing an average as your

3 A. Okay, so my October number of 2.2 and 2.7 - 3 adjusting factor, instead of the starting

4 KELLY,Q.C.: 4 against the end, that's the fundamental

5 Q. Yeah, we'reusing November smply becausethe | 5 difference.

6 formula operates from November, it's 2.59. 6 MR. MACDONALD:

7 MR. MACDONALD: 7 A. Okay.

8 A. Right, because! think what was happening 8 KELLY, Q.C.

9 here, isthere wasachangein the forecast 9 Q. I'll let you think on that, but let me kind of
10 between October and November, if | followed |10 close the discussion thisway. We'retrying
11 you correctly. 11 to create relatively complicated mechanismsto
12 KELLY, Q.C.. 12 adjust something which may not even need to be
13 Q. No, andthat’snot the point, it'sthe 2.59, 13 adjusted. 1I’'m wondering whether you agree
14 you got to use a November forecast to operate 14 with Dr. Booth that one of the alternatives
15 a formulaon a balance basis against the 15 that the Board should consider is simply
16 following November or two yearsout, if you're |16 setting a rate of return, either party can
17 going to apply it. Otherwise, if you apply it 17 come back and apply to changeit as needed,
18 against the average, you end up with an 18 but since we have two test yearsit’s going to
19 unbalanced formula. 19 be set for 13 and 14 asyou've said in your
20 MR. MACDONALD: 20 evidence in any event.
21 A. Right, and | guess the only thing | was 21 MR. MACDONALD:
22 concerned about thereis it seems to be a 22 A. Right, that’s definitely an alternative.
23 disconnect from therisk free rate | was using 23 KELLY, Q.C::
24 in my development, on my fair return on 24 Q. Okay, thank you, Mr. MacDonald, | appreciate
25 equity, so that we were using aformulathat 25 your time.

Page 213 Page 215

1 was working from a 2.59 which is sort of the 1 MR. MACDONALD:

2 new current forecast. 2 A. Thank you.

3 KELLY, QC: 3 MR. JOHNSON:

4 Q. Becauseyou seethe company’sconcern, on your 4 Q. Mr. MacDonald, just regarding the AAF

5 model, whether it appliesin 14 or 15 doesn’t 5 discussion you were having with Mr. Kelly, |

6 matter, but on your model a 6 basis point 6 think as Dr. Booth indicated the Regie, the

7 reduction in long Canada bond yields would 7 Quebec regulator, felt it important that the

8 drop the company’ s return by 25 basis points. 8 formulabroadly replicate or be consistent

9 MR. MACDONALD: 9 with its previous decisionswhichis why it
10 A. Working from aforecast of 2.59. 10 accepted Dr. Booth’ s recommendations.
11 KELLY,QC: 11 MR. MACDONALD:
12 Q. Yeah, well from whereitistoday; in other 12 A. Right.
13 words, if theworld had only changed by 6 13 MR. JOHNSON:
14 basis points down, it dropsthereturn by a 14 Q. AndI’mwondering have you back tested your
15 quarter of a percentage point. On the other 15 suggested formula to see whether it would have
16 side of your model, if thelong Canada bond 16 given approximately the same return on equity
17 yield risesby 75 basis points, the company 17 to Newfoundland Power as this Board has
18 would not capture any increase in the return, 18 decided was fair and reasonable over the
19 that appears to us to be unbalanced. 19 years?
20 MR. MACDONALD: 20 MR. MACDONALD:
21 A. Right, and | guessthe challenge| had was 21 A. ldidnot.
22 isn't the core of the issue, it’sjust that we 22 MR. JOHNSON:
23 were both starting from different risk free 23 Q. | wonder if you would take, as an undertaking,
24 rates. 24 that you would provide that analysis since
25 KELLY, QC.: 25 inception of the formulain thisjurisdiction.
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1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 Power’ s DBRS credit rating isA?
2 A. Okay. It may take alittle bit of time to put 2 MR. MACDONALD:
3 that together, but - 3 A Yes yeah.
4 MR. JOHNSON:
5 Q. Andintermsof other investor owned utilities
6 in Canada that would have a higher bond rating
7 than A, Mr. MacDonald, | believe Canadian
8 Utilitieswould fit into that. | believe
9 they’'re A+.
10 MR. MACDONALD:
11 A. Okay.
12 MR. JOHNSON:
13 Q. Andl don’'t know if youwould know whether
14 there’'sany other higher than Newfoundland
15 Power at thistime?
16 MR. MACDONALD:
17 A. Off thetop of my head, I’'m not aware of any,
18 subject to check.
19 MR. JOHNSON:
20 Q. Okay. Would it be your professional judgment
21 that this Board should maintain either the
22 allowed return on equity or common equity
23 ratio to preserve an A rating for Newfoundland
24 Power?
25 MR. MACDONALD:
Page 218
1 MR. JOHNSON: 1 A. | personally have the view that it'simportant
2 Q. And one suggestion to that, so as not to have 2 to preserve the credit ratings and the
3 to reinvent the wheel or anything, you'll 3 strength of the utility.
4 recall from page 68 of Dr. Booth's report, he 4 MR. JOHNSON:
5 used long term Canada and corporate spread 5 Q. Okay. Would you accept the proposition that
6 data that | believe Ms. McShane had put 6 we do not give an equity investor a benefit?
7 forward of, you think was inthe line 9 7 In other words, wedon’'t look to key off a
8 hearing (phonetic). So that's already there, 8 return on equity recommendation and provide a
9 so not going all around the mulberry bush, as 9 return to an equity investor that would be
10 asuggestion. | think it might be helpful to 10 higher than they could getina comparable
11 have that before the Board. 11 investment just sothat it would make a
12 MR. MACDONALD: 12 particular credit metric, for instance?
13 A. Okay. 13 MR. MACDONALD:
14 MR. JOHNSON: 14 A. Right. Sol wouldn't say that we were trying
15 Q. Thank you. Mr. MacDonald, on page 21 of your 15 to increase the return on equity just to meet
16 report, you give as a reason for recommending 16 acertain credit metric, if | followed you
17 the continuation of a 45 percent common equity 17 correctly. | would say though, we should be
18 ratio that if it were lowered, Newfoundland 18 very mindful of thefinancial integrity and
19 Power’s credit metrics would be lowered and 19 just ensuring we' re keeping the utility in an
20 that the rating agencies might change their 20 appropriate place.
21 perception of the regulatory environment. And 21 MR. JOHNSON:
22 | think you'd be aware that Newfoundland 22 Q. Andyou would not suggest that the financial
23 integrity of Newfoundland Power would be
24 impaired by having say a40 percent common
25 equity inits capital structure and say five
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Page 219 Page 221
1 percent preferred shares, aswas discussed 1 information that we see in Table 15?
2 this morning? 2 MR. MACDONALD:
3 MR. MACDONALD: 3 A. Itwould have been from Bloomberg and the Bank
4 A. Right. So | actually gavethat obviously 4 of Canada.
5 quite a bit of thought as | was preparing my 5 MR. JOHNSON:
6 report and looked and considered that. My 6 Q. Of course you aso report data from BMO
7 concern was simply that -- and | also think 7 Capital Markets Utilities from 1983 to 20117
8 stated in my opening comments that it's 8 MR. MACDONALD:
9 important to constantly be reconsidering that 9 A. That'scorrect.
10 equity level and if it's appropriate or not, 10 MR. JOHNSON:
11 and | think that should be something that 11 Q. Didthat come from Bloomberg or Bank of Canada
12 continues to happen. The concern | had around 12 or from BMO?
13 the 45 percent and lowering it to 40 was 13 MR. MACDONALD:
14 simply more looking at some of the 14 A. | believeit came from Bloomberg, but I'd have
15 macroeconomic environment that we' reworking |15 to confirm.
16 intoday. So, for example, the Sovereign debt 16 MR. JOHNSON:
17 crisis, particularly in theus, and | was 17 Q. Bloomberg provides data from BMO Capita
18 looking at that and determining that it was 18 Markets?
19 appropriate to maintain it at 45 percent until 19 MR. MACDONALD:
20 we had some clarity on those issues. 20 A. I'dhaveto confirm. | don't recall off the
21 MR. JOHNSON: 21 top of my head.
22 Q. Butthere' sother utilitiesin the country who 22 MR. JOHNSON:
23 are subject to the same economics asyou’'ve 23 Q. | wonder would you confirm that point asto
24 just referred to, whether it be Maritime 24 where that data came from, if it came from
25 Electric or Fortis Alberta. 25 Bloomberg?
Page 220 Page 222
1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 MR. MACDONALD:
2 A Absolutely. 2 A Sure
3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 MR. JOHNSON:
4 Q. Andthey don't require 45 percentin their 4 Q. Andthe series number from Bloomberg, if you
5 common equity, right? 5 could provide that as an undertaking?
6 MR. MACDONALD: 6 MR. MACDONALD:
7 A. Thatiscorrect. 7 A Lwill.
8 MR. JOHNSON: 8 MR. JOHNSON:
9 Q. Mr.MacDonald, you performed an analysis of 9 Q. Thank you. Theresultsthat you arriveat in
10 the historic risk premium in your report. 10 Table 15 are identical to thosethat were
11 MR. MACDONALD: 11 arrived at by Dr. Vander Weide, except that
12 A. Right. 12 you're using a different risk free rate?
13 MR. JOHNSON: 13 MR. MACDONALD:
14 Q. Andif we could turn to that, page 29. Starts 14  A. That's correct.
15 on 28 and then it goes into page 29. 15 MR. JOHNSON:
16 MR. MACDONALD: 16 Q. Andl takeit that you were here and listened
17  A. Right. 17 to our cross-examination of Dr. Vander Weide
18 MR. JOHNSON: 18 and we put to him a revised table as opposed
19 Q. Andthen you have your table over on page 30 19 to having to show what would happen if instead
20 which sets out the historical earned equity 20 of -
21 risk premium for Canadian utilities. 21 MR. MACDONALD:
22 MR. MACDONALD: 22 A, lrecal.
23 A. Right. 23 MR. JOHNSON:
24 MR. JOHNSON: 24 Q. Yourecal, okay, al right. And instead of
25 Q. And wheredid you get your datafor this 25 subtracting the yields or the yields from the
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1 returns, we went returns from returns. 1 stocks minus the return on bonds as opposed to
2 MR. MACDONALD: 2 areturn on stocks minus the yield on bond?
3 A Right 3 MR. MACDONALD:
4 MR. JOHNSON: 4 A Wdl actualy, | wasjust trying to illustrate
5 Q. Andl takeityou followed the same approach 5 abroad concept of risk premium. For this
6 as Dr. Vander Weide? 6 particular example, | was actually focusing in
7 MR. MACDONALD: 7 on applying it relative to the risk free rate
8 A. That'strue. There'sonly onesort of key 8 that I’ ve used here in the bond yields.
9 difference tokeep inmind is when| was 9 MR. JOHNSON:
10 looking at the equity risk premium method, | 10 Q. What source did you consult to determine how
11 was concerned about the companies, the 11 the equity risk premium returns on stock minus
12 constituents of that, of those groups over 12 returns on bonds? Where did that come from?
13 time and the possible inclusion of non- 13 MR. MACDONALD:
14 regulated businesses, for example. So that 14 A. I'd haveto double check.
15 would have been afactor that | looked at in 15 MR. JOHNSON:
16 reducing my equity risk premium conclusion 16 Q. | wonder if you could check that and take by
17 from 10.26 to 8.91 through my weighting 17 way of undertaking what source document it was
18 mechanism, which represents 135 basis point 18 expressed as ERPas return on stocks minus
19 reduction. 19 return on bonds?
20 MR. JOHNSON: 20 (2:10 p.m.)
21 Q. | see. If you go back on the top of page 29, 21 MR. MACDONALD:
22 or actually, it would be more convenient to go 22 A. Happy to do that.
23 to the bottom of page 28. 23 MR. JOHNSON:
24 MR. MACDONALD: 24 Q. |take it, Mr. MacDonald, you've been here
25 A. Okay. 25 throughout the whole hearing?
Page 224 Page 226
1 MR. JOHNSON: 1 MR. MACDONALD:
2 Q. Andyou'redescribing the equity risk premium, 2 A. Since Monday of thisweek.
3 ERP, and you say "ERP analysisis based on the 3 MR. JOHNSON:
4 understanding that itis riskier to hold 4 Q. Don'tremindus. But you'll recall that Ms.
5 equity compared to holding bonds. Financia 5 McShane indicated that up until 2007, at least
6 theory holds that investors are rational and 6 in thisjurisdiction, she was doing it exactly
7 will therefore require a higher return or 7 as described a line 549in your report,
8 premium to compensate them for holding assets 8 taking return on stocks and minusing out the
9 with higher risk relative to bonds." 9 return on bonds?
10 MR. MACDONALD: 10 MR. MACDONALD:
1 A. Um-hm. 11 A. | dorecall that discussion.
12 MR. JOHNSON: 12 MR. JOHNSON:
13 Q. Youcontinue"if the rate of return on arisk 13 Q. Anddid you consider doing alike for like
14 free asset can be determined and the equity 14 study and actually subtracting the average
15 premium to hold risky assetsobserved and 15 bond returns from the average equity returns?
16 established, the required return on equity can 16 MR. MACDONALD:
17 be estimated.” And then at line 549 you have 17 A. ldidnot.
18 stated "ERPequals return on stocks minus 18 MR. JOHNSON:
19 return on bonds'? 19 Q. Why didn't you?
20 MR. MACDONALD: 20 MR. MACDONALD:
21  A. That'scorrect. I'mjust illustrating how the 21 A. Becausel wanted to maintain the integrity
22 concept. 22 with therisk freerate, wheremy risk free
23 MR. JOHNSON: 23 rate was built off of yields.
24 Q. Andso the concept, as you understand it, 24 MR. JOHNSON:
25 properly applied, would be to have areturn on 25 Q. Iftheold-- | guessthe issuethat we have
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1 isthat we end up with giving aweighting -- 1 required return that would be greater than
2 if you can seeon Table 15, we end up with a 2 what you believe would be afair return for
3 weighting being given to the period of 1983 to 3 Newfoundland Power, butyou did make the
4 2011 where we see bonds doing better than the 4 observation that the cAPM result would produce
5 TsX for reasons that we discussed with those 5 alower return than what you thought would be
6 other witnesses, and it leads to the query: is 6 appropriate for Newfoundland Power.
7 it realy helpful to think ona go-forward 7 MR. MACDONALD:
8 basisthat we should consider data whichis 8 A. That'scorrect. Andthereason | didthatis
9 not likely to be accurate ona go-forward 9 that the abnormally low interest rates which
10 basis interms of what the relative risk 10 are affecting the CAPM | think are avery key
11 premiums would be between holding bondsand |11 issuetoday and therefore | thought it was
12 holding equities? 12 particularly important to note that factor in
13 MR. MACDONALD: 13 my section onthe cAPM and then | made my
14 A. Sol sharedthe concernand sowhen| was 14 comment in my conclusions about the broader
15 looking at thisanalysisand preparing it, | 15 comment around the limitations of
16 actually decided that it would be appropriate 16 methodol ogies.
17 -- while | think it's always valuable to look 17 MR. JOHNSON:
18 at historical returns, make sure you 18 Q. Intermsof theresult that you end up with
19 understand what’ s occurred in the marketplace, 19 using historic equity ERPin your report, can
20 | felt it was appropriate to reduce my 20 you confirm that your ERP estimates included
21 conclusion. So | reduced my conclusion from 21 telecom stocks?
22 10.26 to 8.91 with 135 basis point adjustment 22 MR. MACDONALD:
23 and as noted in my conclusion, allowing for 23 A. They would have, yes.
24 the limitations in some of the methodologies, 24 MR. JOHNSON:
25 including this one. 25 Q. Andif we could turn up PUB-48 in that regard
Page 228 Page 230
1 MR. JOHNSON: 1 -- CA-PUB-481 believe it was. And then CA-
2 Q. Sothis --do you expressy statein your 2 PUB-49, Mr. MacDonald. | takeit you would
3 report asto the reason that your adjustment 3 confirm, as you' ve done there, that the index
4 was because of the differences between the two 4 you used implicitly included Nortel through
5 methodologies, whether it be return minus 5 itsindirect ownership by Bell Canada?
6 return or return minusyield? 6 MR. MACDONALD:
7 MR. MACDONALD: 7 A. That'scorrect. The challenge | was referring
8 A. | expressedin my report that | chose my 8 to when you're dealing with equity risk
9 weightings based upon the limitations of each 9 premium method that by its nature, it starts
10 methodol ogy. 10 to pick up non-regulated business activity.
11 MR. JOHNSON: 11 MR. JOHNSON:
12 Q. Okay. Soyou would regard this methodology as 12 Q. Yes.
13 having alimitation by reason of the fact that 13 MR. MACDONALD:
14 you took the bond yield from the stock return? 14 A. Andtherefore you need to make an adjustment
15 MR. MACDONALD: 15 to allow for that.
16 A. That was oneconcern. | mean, my broader 16 MR. JOHNSON:
17 concern, frankly, wasthe quantity of non- 17 Q. Andjust going back to page 30 of your report
18 regulated businesses in these indices, which | 18 again, line 580.
19 think are some of the underlying factors that 19 MR. MACDONALD:
20 are driving the higher premiums as well. 20 A. Okay.
21 MR. JOHNSON: 21 MR. JOHNSON:
22 Q. When youcome up withyour 10.26 percent 22 Q. Youindicate "we note" -- I’'m sorry. You say
23 result using your historic utility method in 23 "we notethat it is possible to determine an
24 your report, | note that you did not -- you do 24 ERP on ago-forward or Ex-Ante basis as
25 not state there that that would result ina 25 described by Dr. Vander Weide." | guessin
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1 several areas on your report, it lookslike 1 sorry, in this hearing, has chosen to adjust

2 there wasa fair bit of referenceto Dr. 2 betain some fashion. So Dr. Booth adjusted

3 Vander Weide' swork inyour report, and I'd 3 to hisview of the long term average to .5.

4 just like to put that to you in terms of, you 4 Ms. McShane adoptedto the relative risk

5 know, we see, you know, identical returns and 5 adjusted level of .65to .7 and Dr. Vander

6 things of this nature and then not considering 6 Weide -- or sorry, Mr. Vander Weide adjusted

7 using the other approach where you’ d subtract 7 to the Value Line adjusted beta, which isa

8 the return from the return, not considering 8 Blume adjustment of .73, and | would also note

9 that asa possibility, and would one of the 9 that in the 2009 Board decision, the Board
10 reasons be that you did not consider the other 10 decided to adjust the betato .6.

11 possihilities because Dr. Vander Weide didn’t 11 MR. JOHNSON:

12 consider another possibility? 12 Q. Butltakeit, going back to my question, that

13 MR. MACDONALD: 13 you're not awareof an instance where a

14 A. No, that’s not correct. It was simply that we 14 regulator has specifically accepted the Blume

15 felt this was an appropriate method to look at 15 adjustment?

16 and in regards to the references to Dr. Vander 16 MR. MACDONALD:

17 Weide swork, wewereinstructed to makesure |17 A. Not the Blume adjustment, but adjusted betas.

18 we referred to other reports from other 18 MR. JOHNSON:

19 expertsin comparing our results. 19 Q. Okay. You refer to Professor Damodaran, who |

20 MR. JOHNSON: 20 understand isin NYU, | believe.

21 Q. Youreferred afew timesto "we" 21 MR. MACDONALD:

22 MR. MACDONALD: 22 A. | believe, yeah.

23 A. Apologies, yes. 23 MR. JOHNSON:

24 MR. JOHNSON: 24 Q. Andagain, that would be subject to check.

25 Q. Youmean "me" or do you? 25 But page 32, line 635, thisisin connection
Page 232 Page 234

1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 with your discussion of the market risk

2 A. | meanme. |apologize. Partnerin an 2 premium and you refer to the Fernandez study.

3 accounting firm, you start referring to the 3 So you were aware of the Fernandez study

4 word "we". It's hardto get out of the 4 independently, | take it?

5 system. 5 MR. MACDONALD:

6 CHAIRMAN: 6 A. Absolutely.

7 Q. Theroya we. 7 MR. JOHNSON:

8 MR. MACDONALD: 8 Q. Absolutely. And then you go on to note that,

9 A. Theroyal we, exactly. 9 at line 635, "Professor Aswath Damodaran at
10 MR. JOHNSON: 10 New York University’s Stern School of Business
11 Q. I'd liketo talk about the issue of beta 11 is the author of several widely used financial
12 adjustments. | take it, Mr. MacDonald, or 12 textbooks and numerous peer reviewed articles
13 I'll ask you if you were aware of any 13 on finance, including risk premiums" and you
14 regulatorsin Canadathat have specificaly 14 go on to say, "Professor Damodaran calculates
15 accepted the so-called Blume adjustment for 15 global equity risk premiums on an annual basis
16 betas? 16 and he most recently updated hiswork in June
17 MR. MACDONALD: 17 of 2012 with Canada having a six percent risk
18 A. | think the acceptance of adjusted betasis 18 premium.” Andthenyou say "he also notes
19 quite common. 19 that according to the Credit Suisse Global
20 MR. JOHNSON: 20 Investment Returns Sourcebook, the historical
21 Q. TheBlume adjustment? 21 arithmetic mean Canadian Equity Risk Premium
22 MR. MACDONALD: 22 from 1900 to 2011 is fiveto 5.5 percent.”

23 A. TheBlume adjustment was how | choseto apply |23 And this confirmed for you or helped confirm
24 an adjusted beta. | would also note that 24 for youwhat you felt would be areasonable
25 every expert in thisreport has chosen to -- 25 market risk premium?
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1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 MR. JOHNSON:
2 A. Correct, yes. 2 Q. Butyouweren't aware of what he had estimated
3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 the cost of capital to befor -- cost of
4 Q. Andl takeit you are now aware that Professor 4 equity to be for electric us-- Us electrics?
5 Damodaran has also made cost of capital 5 MR. MACDONALD:
6 estimates of the electrical utility sector in 6 A. Actualy, | don't recall exactly when | became
7 the United States? 7 aware of it.
8 MR. MACDONALD: 8 MR. JOHNSON:
9 A. Actualy, | was not aware of that. 9 Q. Oh,okay, al right. Well, how doesit strike
10 MR. JOHNSON: 10 you that Professor Damodaran, a respected
11 Q. You became aware of it through this hearing? 11 resource that you relied upon for your market
12 MR. MACDONALD: 12 risk premium confirmation, has provided these
13  A. Yes 13 estimates in January 2012 which show that in
14 MR. JOHNSON: 14 fact hisfair estimate of cost of equity for
15 Q. Andif wecould turnup cA-pUB-33in that 15 these Us utilitiesis pretty in the wheelhouse
16 regard? The question asks"Mr. MacDonald 16 of your 6.84 percent under the cCAPM?
17 references Damodaran’ swebsite. |s he aware 17 MR. MACDONALD:
18 that Damodaran’ s estimates cost of capital by 18 Q. Wdl, hiswork in regards to the market risk
19 sector, January 2012, for theus electric 19 premium would just be one of multiple pieces
20 equity costs are:” and we've provided 20 that we were relying upon.
21 "Electric Utility Central 6.41 percent; 21 MR. JOHNSON:
22 Electric Utility East 6.08 percent; and the 22 Q. Yes, but hiswork that | brought you toin
23 Electric Utility West 6.40 percent” and you 23 answer to CA-PUB-33 where he actually reports
24 indicate that you are aware or | guessyou 24 what his cost of equity assumptions are for
25 confirm iswhat you were saying? 25 those us electric, they come within your cAPM.
Page 236 Page 238
1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 MR. MACDONALD:
2 A, Okay, yeah. 2 A. They do, but as| stepped back and | evaluated
3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 the results of my caPm and considered multiple
4 Q. Okay. And that you also went on to note that 4 methodologies, particularly given the
5 he references the beta for these utilities to 5 challenges that capm is currently
6 be between .70 and .75, et cetera. And if we 6 experiencing, | looked to my other
7 turn to page 33 of your report, we see that 7 methodologies to try and get some
8 your CAPM result, while making allowance for a 8 understanding of what was appropriate. | also
9 50 basis point adjustment for floatation 9 looked at other market risk premium
10 costs, come quite in line with what Professor 10 information as well to make sure | was
11 Damodaran’s estimates were, as we've seenin 11 adjusting appropriately my CAPM result to get
12 that recent study? 12 toaresult that would have been fair for a
13 MR. MACDONALD: 13 return on equity.
14 A. Right. 14 MR. JOHNSON:
15 MR. JOHNSON: 15 Q. That would be an application of your judgment
16 Q. Right, but yougoon to say that "the capm 16 in that regard?
17 return on a stand-alone basis would result in 17 MR. MACDONALD:
18 a required returnthat is below what we 18 A. Absolutely, yeah.
19 believeisa fair ROE by the company” and | 19 MR. JOHNSON:
20 guess you obviously couldn’'t give any 20 Q. Yes,and| guessit would be implied that you
21 influence of Professor Damodaran’s results 21 takeyour judgment over Dr. Damodaran’s in
22 because you weren't aware of them at the time 22 that regard?
23 you wrote your report? 23 MR. MACDONALD:
24 MR. MACDONALD: 24 A. That'sabsolutely correct.
25 A, Waéll, | wasaware of hisoverall work. 25 MR. JOHNSON:
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1 Q. Mr. MacDonald, when you were preparing your Us 1 start looking at Integrys, for instance.
2 sample, did you look at these companies 10-Ks? 2 MR. MACDONALD:
3 MR. MACDONALD: 3 A Sure
4 A. Atahigh level, to get an understanding of 4 MR. JOHNSON:
5 them, yes. 5 Q. That would be one of yours where they’'re
6 MR. JOHNSON: 6 taking losses on unregulated side and would
7 Q. Becauseyou don’t report inyour report in 7 you accept that those losses are significant,
8 terms of your - 8 compared to the regulated side’ s revenues?
9 MR. MACDONALD: 9 MR. MACDONALD:
10 A. That'sjust an oversight. 10 A. Wdl, they're about ten percent of the
11 MR. JOHNSON: 11 business, of the earnings. And actualy, |
12 Q. That would be an oversight? 12 think, as we discussed earlier in the
13 MR. MACDONALD: 13 hearings, there' s been a significant changein
14 A. Yes. 14 Integrys and it's now predominantly a
15 MR. JOHNSON: 15 regulated business, which iswhy it passed our
16 Q. Youindicated on direct that you had a screen 16 85 percent regulated asset threshold.
17 for 85 percent regulated earnings. Isthat 17 MR. JOHNSON:
18 correct? 18 Q. Okay. Why doyou thinkit's important for
19 MR. MACDONALD: 19 this Board to consider the amount of
20 A. No, it was 85 percent of assets, which by its 20 unregulated earnings when comparing these
21 nature led usto very high earnings levels or 21 companies to Newfoundland Power?
22 led myself to very high earnings levels. 22 MR. MACDONALD:
23 MR. JOHNSON: 23 A. |l do thinkitis important to consider the
24 Q. We've had some evidence here interms of the 24 amount of regulated earningsand regulated
25 earnings of certain of these companies. 25 assets and the reason | think that’s important
Page 240 Page 242
1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 iswe'retrying to maximum the comparability
2 A. Correct. 2 of our sample and our bcrFto Newfoundland
3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 Power. Asl noted in my opening comments, you
4 Q. Andintermsof that, what's your view of -- 4 never get perfect comparability. None of the
5 in terms of comparability of these us 5 Canadian companies would even pass the
6 companiesthat have significant amounts of 6 thresholds in factors that I’ ve looked at, but
7 unregul ated earnings - 7 in theinterest of getting information to
8 MR. MACDONALD: 8 understand the fair return on equity, | think
9 A. Wadll, not so much inmy particular sample. 9 it svery important to be able tolook at
10 Broadly speaking, some of the other evidence 10 other comparable companies and making them as
11 presented in some of the other reportsit did. 11 comparable as possible from which you draw
12 My regulated earnings for my set, they were 12 conclusions.
13 al, | believe, 90 percent or higher. 13 MR. JOHNSON:
14 (2:30 p.m.) 14 Q. Andyou heard the evidence in this proceeding
15 MR. JOHNSON: 15 which would indicate that vertically
16 Q. Couldwe turnup CA-NP-310? | think we're 16 integrated companies would be with the
17 going to see that Attachment 1. As| under -- 17 riskiness of the sectorsof these regulated
18 aswego down through thislist, and not to 18 utilities, would you concur with that?
19 belabour it too much, but ALLETE would beone |19 MR. MACDONALD:
20 of your companies, correct? 20 A. Yeah, actually and | acknowledge that in my
21 MR. MACDONALD: 21 opening comments and identified several areas
22 A. Thatiscorrect. 22 where | agree there are differences.
23 MR. JOHNSON: 23 MR. JOHNSON:
24 Q. Okay. Andthat one is not particularly 24 Q. Andsoyou -- would it be fair to say that you
25 significant. Alliant wouldn’t be. But if we 25 would view the American data as informative?
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1 MR. MACDONALD: 1 Q. Thosearemy questions, Mr. MacDonald. Thank
2 A Absolutely. 2 you very much.
3 MR. JOHNSON: 3 GREENE, Q.C.:
4 Q. Butthere'd be no question inyour mind that 4 Q. | haveonefor redirect and it relates to the
5 they’re not the same? 5 discussion with Mr. Johnson relating to
6 MR. MACDONALD: 6 capital structure and | think, without the
7 A. Wdll, that’'swhy | sought and applied an 7 benefit of the transcript, and I'm sure Mr.
8 adjustment to it, to bring my DCF results down 8 Johnson will correct meif | get it wrong, |
9 because | was allowing for the fact that there 9 believe the question was that other utilities
10 are differences between the usand Canada, 10 in Canada have much lower capital structure or
11 particularly in this sector. 11 much lower equity in their capital structure
12 MR. JOHNSON: 12 than does Newfoundland Power.
13 Q. And what other factors did you take into 13 MR. MACDONALD:
14 account, other than unregulated earnings or 14  A. That'scorrect. | think 40 percent is sort of
15 where these companies would have fit in terms 15 acommon threshold.
16 of being vertically integrated, what other 16 GREENE, Q.C.:
17 factors drove youto the conclusion that 17 Q. Okay. Andso why are you concerned about
18 adjustments were necessary? 18 decreasing their capital structure or
19 MR. MACDONALD: 19 adjusting it at this point in time when others
20 A. Wédll, asl was mentioningin the earlier 20 in Canada have lower equity ratios, and |
21 discussion, you know, | think broadly 21 wondered if you' d expand on that.
22 speaking, you can just simply seeit inthe 22 MR. MACDONALD:
23 return on equities and the capital structures 23 A. Sure. Inmany ways, my comment around my
24 alowed in the us versus Canada, so that's 24 concern around reducing it, while | recognize
25 your first indication of difference. When we 25 that many of the other Canadian utilities have
Page 244 Page 246
1 were also try -- or when | was also 1 lower allowed ROES, it was more a broad
2 considering the differences, | was considering 2 comment that | believe we're till in a period
3 the regulatory structure, credit ratings, 3 of significant economic uncertainty. We have
4 earnings volatility, subsectors, customer mix, 4 big sovereign debt issues, both in the usand
5 anumber of factors. 5 in Europe, and a thispoint intime, I'm
6 MR. JOHNSON: 6 concerned that it may not be the right timeto
7 Q. Okay. Soitwould be your suggestion to this 7 adjust our common equity ratio for
8 Board that the data from United States 8 Newfoundland Power, just giventhose broad
9 companies that have been examinedin this 9 factors and concerns.
10 proceeding should definitely not be used 10 GREENE, Q.C.:
11 without adjustment? 11 Q. Okay, thank you very much, Mr. MacDonald.
12 MR. MACDONALD: 12 That concludes my redirect.
13 A. That's correct. | think they’'re very 13 CHAIRMAN:
14 important in terms of drawing a conclusion on 14 Q. Just go back tothat last question. | mean,
15 the fair return on equity, but | also believe 15 what -- we got sovereign debt issues.
16 it's very important to apply an adjustment as 16 MR. MACDONALD:
17 the Bcuc did in 2009 or suggested. 17  A. Right.
18 MR. JOHNSON: 18 CHAIRMAN:
19 Q. Youreferenced the Bcuc adjustment and can you 19 Q. We don't know when they’re going to be
20 confirm what expert they listened to in terms 20 resolved.
21 of making that adjustment? 21 MR.MACDONALD:
22 MR.MACDONALD: 22 A. Correct.
23 A. Off thetop of my head, | don’t recall, but | 23 CHAIRMAN:
24 got asuspicion it's Dr. Booth. 24 Q. They may not be resolved.
25 MR. JOHNSON: 25 MR. MACDONALD:
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Page 247 Page 249
1 A. | suspect at some point economic forces will 1 CHAIRMAN:
2 force some resolution of them. 2 Q. Boy, that’s going to be exciting.
3 CHAIRMAN: 3 KELLY, QC:
4 Q. Andhow will that work? 4 Q. Youthought you enjoyed this.
5 MR. MACDONALD: 5 CHAIRMAN:
6 A. | suspectthat could happen ina lot of 6 Q. We'regoing torender anopinion on what’s
7 different ways. | just think -- oh, actually 7 more exciting, discussing betas or
8 agood example of it is the recent downgrades 8 depreciation schedules. Anyway, | just want
9 we' ve seen of the uscredit rating. So | 9 to say to al the witnesses who appeared al
10 think that'sasign that the capital markets 10 week, also the four cost of capital withesses,
11 are trying to force some resol ution. 11 it certainly was a very enjoyable experience,
12 CHAIRMAN: 12 and if this isyour baptism of fireas a
13 Q. Sowhen the bond guysdon’t show up, when Bill 13 withess -
14 Gross, is it, doesn't show up, we're in 14 MR. MACDONALD:
15 serious trouble? 15 A. Thatiscorrect.
16 MR. MACDONALD: 16 CHAIRMAN:
17 A. | would be concerned, yeah. 17 Q. -it'snot -- there’'s no evidence that you are
18 CHAIRMAN: 18 anovitiate, asthey say.
19 Q. Okay. And you're saying given that 19 MR. MACDONALD:
20 circumstance, your recommendation to the Board 20 A. Well, thank you.
21 isto leave well enough aone? 21 CHAIRMAN:
22 MR. MACDONALD: 22 Q. Very good. So thank you all very much and we
23 A. That is my recommendation. 23 shall adjourn until next Wednesday.
24 CHAIRMAN: 24 MS. GLYNN:
25 Q. Okay. That'sit,is it, for theday? Is 25 Q. Yes
Page 248 Page 250
1 there anything -- we were quite surprised at 1 CHAIRMAN:
2 you. 2 Q. At9:00?
3 KELLY, QC: 3MS. GLYNN:
4 Q. Not touching that one. 4 Q. Yes
5 CHAIRMAN: 5 CHAIRMAN:
6 Q. Wewereherefor thelong haul, you know. 6 Q. Okay.
7 MS. GLYNN: 7 (ADJOURNED AT 2:40 p.m.)
8 Q. I'm surewe could find something to fill
9 another hour if you really wanted us to.
10 CHAIRMAN:
11 Q. Wadl, | haven’'t made-- | haven't annoyed
12 anybody yet, so I’m not going to start. Sol
13 guess we adjourn now to Monday morning?
14 MS. GLYNN:
15 Q. Next Wednesday.
16 CHAIRMAN:
17 Q. Oh. | don't pay attention. | got it marked
18 in the calendar but | don’t -- next Wednesday.
19 Okay, | want to say -
20 MS. GLYNN:
21 Q. For depreciation.
22 CHAIRMAN:
23 Q. Pardon?
24 MS. GLYNN:
25 Q. For depreciation.
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1 CERTIFICATE
2 1, Judy Moss, hereby certify that the foregoing is atrue
3 and correct transcript of Newfoundland Power Inc.’s 2013
4 General Rate Application, heard before the Newfoundland
5 and Labrador Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities,
6 120 Torbay Road, St. John's, Newfoundland and L abrador
7 and was transcribed by meto the best of my ahility by
8 means of a sound apparatus.
9 Dated at St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador

10 this 19th day of January, A.D., 2013

11 Judy Moss

Page 251 - Page 251
Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028



January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

#14 - 6.40

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

#

#1414y 1.7
#2114y 1.9

$

$1.40[y 138:6
$1.50[y 141:5
$1.701y 141:5
$1.8012 138:7,11
$15(y 86:8
$2.00[y 138:7

-&-

& [3 90:22,23 140:7

"0413 89:8127:15,15
"051y 89:8

"08[y 128:24

"09[y 128:24

"121y 78:25

"13[y 10:22

"14[2) 10:23 132:6
"3711 156:6

"80s[1 62:17

Sy 251:3

32511 53:24
43 55:1756:21,22

1.71y 99:14
1.8[2) 18:17 138:3

10(5 21:1349:11 102:8
150:8 151:18

10-151y 107:23
10-K s[y 239:2
10-year [y 123:3
10.26(3) 223:17 227:22
228:22

10.281y 77:8

10.4[2) 132:10134:20

10011y 6:11 80:21 90:10
91:14 104:11 114:5,6
116:11 180:12 184:12
186:15

10:001y 55:19
10:151y 71:10
10:301y 84:23
10:451y 102:6
10:461y 102:21

1115 72:24,2576:1 102:8
150:8

11:07 1y 102:22
11:15(y 110:11
11:30[2) 60:21 126:14
11:451y 139:8
12[2) 94:21 150:8
120[2) 113:11251:6
12:001y 151:21
12:181 171:17
13[2) 189:1214:19
1301 110:25
135[2) 223:18 227:22

19832 221:7 227:3
1990y 183:12

1990s1e] 37:22 106:1,2
107:21 116:13 142:17

199331 64:7 77:3104:6
1993-4 [y 81:22
1994 2] 32:15174:3
19952 32:15 106:19
1997y 142:18
19981 201:15
1999y 174:8
19th [y 251:10
1:08:33[y 169:4
1:151y 171:19
1:21y 171:21
1:45(y 198:19

-2-

2.1 155:10

2.2[4] 204:2,4 205:6
212:3

2.311 117:22

2.45(21 204:13 205:8

2.5(6] 6:16 13:7 148:4,9
160:11 203:15

2.591g 210:18,21 211:2
211:12 212:6,13 213:1
213:10

2.6[2] 110:21 203:16

2.714] 117:23203:13
205:8 212:3

2.7512 204:4 205:16
2.812] 97:1899:21

233:9 244:17

2009’ sy 180:11

201013 2:12 29:19,23
30:10,19 32:2,9 33:9,12
52:6 53:20 183:4,6

201115 8:12,1333:13
45:23 53:22,23 54:23
55:2356:14 60:7 111:11
113:22 221:7 227:4
234:22

201221 8:139:17,18
54:2355:12 57:10 77:18
77:2078:1,4,17,23 79:24
82:4167:24 172:11,13
175:11 234:17 235:19
237:13

201329 1:18:179:317
9:24 10:7,21 24:12 25:2
30:7 132:6,10 135:4,18
135:22 136:16 145:19
147:17 148:22 149:9
175:24 176:6 203:6,23
203:25 205:6 209:21
251:3,10

2014 31 8:16 10:18,21
10:24 12:10 25:3,7,10
25:13 145:20 147:4,17
148:23175:25 176:6
188:19 189:6 202:4,4,16
203:2,6,10,20,23 204:23
205:7,15 207:14 208:14
210:15

201510 12:11111:5
199:11 202:17,23 206:6
207:15 208:14 210:16,17

201627 148:24 175:11
2017 [ 148:24

169:12,14
3.711y 96:4
3.751y 113:13

3.818] 82:17 110:10,25
146:14,15 186:11,19,20

3.80(y 12:11

3019 81:2484:193:14
126:12 204:11 205:14
211:5 220:19 230:17

30-day 2] 93:9,16

30-year 7 204:22
211:13

32[1 233:25

333 189:12 191:8 236:7
342 191:21,25

35(1 129:15

361 154:14

36/37 11 156:1

38014 9:6 10:8,24 110:9

-4-
412 12:11168:4

4.5(3 2:12 49:950:19
4,553 8:16 60:6 111:12
4.711 96:6

401g 82:1996:17,19
169:25 170:5 218:24
219:13 245:14

40-42 (1 95:17
4001 62:13

4214 95:13 167:20 168:4
168:16

4510 81:24 96:16

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

5[16] 55:16,18 104:23 1416 24:2572:25 73:3 2.8811 99:20 2062 178:15,16 182:22,24 183:10 210:21
104:24 105:3,4 107:17 189:1 213:5 214:19 20[g 77:1381:11 106:13 21[7 127:3218:15 218:17 219:13,19 220:4
109:14,16,17,21 125:19 | 1511] 73:5,5102:20 106:24 109:16 1282 2105(1) 148:23
184515 186:13 194:17 120524 142510 159:15 142:23,25 222 120:10 154:13 -5-

5233'3 _ a5t 2001 88:12 2311 210:23 5z 2:2121:1322:8,12

5 [ 20511 Lo mimton 10015 | 20000 160:25 24y 94:22 49:850:19 51:2,7 168:23

.651 233:10 150[ 11025 2000 s[1] 160:21 254 11:24 184:17 5138'24 169:10.14

3 1y 2335 160y 125:22 2000s[z 107:21120:22 | 186:18213:8 5'5[2] 11:16 60:9

7 ([)21 49:16 2335 T o 2001 (2 77:7 106:19 25911 210:13 5.7[21 2:21234:22

72 250 170-180 12 113:23 1141 | 200211 18:18 2013 63:21,22 7025 50 oy 300 5013 64

73 e 173m 12513 20031 332425808 |27 (2 167:2022 LBy 7516 1075 101

(31 2338 1879 11453 60:6 97 173:14 174:9 285 123:11,12188:13 142:24 14616 14810

75[5 105:13107:22 14[8161-1 45:360:697:14 | 5003/2004 (1) 32:18 220:15 223:23 171-12 180:12 202-9

8186'12'_25 O enie | 1801 1141161207 200413 43:17,25442  |28thy 172:13 209:16,17 210:22 236:9

B DYy 200612 60:8173:17  |2914 76:3220:1415  |50-60(y 145:9

o 191 4116 125:24 2007 2 173:17 226:5 2%%21 _— 50-year [z 82:16,17
1900111 23422 2008(s) 4:950:1853:14 | < -1 2= 50/5071 109:2
Ory 11:23 [ 254 53:17 77:9 127:16 155:20 |2:30(1] 240:14 500(z 76:10,16
19305[2] 7:7 155:20 157:5 2:40[1] 250:7 549151 22417 226:7
1- 1933/1934[y 157:9  |2008-20091 126:1 o0 St

10 313165151675 | Lol /19381 15711 12009 (3 2:1114:10 -3 59 [ ]204-i1 205:16
oniasantr " 1945/1946(2) 157:812 | 15:1326213333418 |5 oo oo [2) 0% :

Lo te1e o 1951 (1 201:13 357,14,2436:1040:15 |0 TOE Sl 00
213 55:1556:24 1960511 232 43:11 44:15 45:4 475 3,6 160:9 168:3, -6-

110:22 [ 2o 49:550:4,10 53:14,18 3.04[11) 10:22 188:4 616 1116 49.951:2

1.3 [y 110:22 1961 [3] 56:1,6,8 77:10 79:15 85:6,14 202:5,9 203:1,3,21 204:5 2[(;-]0.24 213'6 . .

1.4[2 18:17 1382 196811 23:2 86:17 99:12 109:21 117:8 | 205:12207:8211:12 6.08 o

160 99:14 1980s[1 93:8 144:12,20 145:10 165:13  |3.34 (2 205:16,21 Uory 235:22

1081-8211 138:19 181:13182:7,12206:13 |35y 9:23 148:12 6.40(1) 235:23
Index Page 1




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

6.41 - American

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

6.4111 235:21 179:11 239:17,20 241:16 | acceptancerz 58:12 214:13232:1824233:2 |ag0|25] 5:11,17 7:4,24
6.5(7 11:13.21 232:18 233:5,6,7,17 8:711:9 37:12 38:3
6.84 [4] 61:17 178:16 -O- accepted [10] 104:10 adj usti ngi4 104:1 32%2242%58 27123;1098
189'17 23716 120:19 137:4,12 139:16 214:3 238:11 245:19 1382 : ;
6.95 ) 911 26:2029:22 30:1 143:13,19 215:10 232:15 adj ustment (s 7:11 107:23118:15 136:1
9o[1 2511 30:18 31:15 32:1,8,11 233:14 25:6.16.10 28:3 31-3.7 142:24 151:1,1,2,18
6?2[8!7814;‘71,32: 5901_14: 16 | 151:13178:20218:7 access(3y 94:11 95:1 31:1321 4912501011 | 941
o1 : ggg [2] 77:2178:3 179:4 52:12 53:24 54:10,11.16 agldt ?93 5?4%8 51511 3121215
: 23111 72:16 accessed 11 887 55:15,16,17 64:7 66:17 1133 11,13,
60-70-80(1 108:9 9.2501 106:6 cor din[ ]1 a1 71'5879:21 1041112 | 48:466:1880:2182:2,7
6004 162:18,23,24 9.3 7023 ecount g [1]9 1t 104:13,14,24 105:3,24 5138525921111%2%%312
163:8 . : (3l 19: 2 107:5 115:16,17 116:12 : :6, i
9.5 41:17 243:14 . . 4 | 114:25116:12 117:17
60s[3] 22:14 23:11,14 119:9,10 120:20,21 121:1 : : !
61 1[ ]36,7 9.6y 77:10 accountant [3 153:13 121:3122:18 146:3,3,4 131:24 135:2 166:4
63&[3] - _ 9.63[1 180:8 173:22 174:10 146:13,22,24 151:6,8,17 | 190:20 206:5 207:25
[2] 233:25234:9 975 2] 136:11 137:20 accountantsy 153:14 163:7 175:24 178:13,17 214:13 242:22
6413 24:20,23 70:6 96 179-1é 240-1é accounted (1 15415 180:7,8,12 183:22 184:20 |agreed (4] 106:12 136:21
6521 189:16 (2 179 : . ' 194:18,20 204:23209:18 | 149:20 200:22
, _ 90s[3] 104:19 150:23 accountingr4 15315 | 227:22 228:3 230:14 agreeing i 132:4
6812 28:19218:4 151:9 154:1174:3232:3 232:15,21,23 233:8,15 agr eemgrlmt] ai
9:001 250:2 accounts(z 15:2516:22 | 233:17 236:9 243:8 32_3 o83 14e B 16794
-7- 9:06(y 1.2 19:22,25 21:4,24 22:9 244:11,16,19,21 ahéa q ' oo '17 13'
. - ) : . 6] 2: :
713 192:21,23193:3 9:30[y 26:25 accuraters 116:10 afg_g%’?}%%?g% 2 | 2819 48:20 1621416
7,000(y 52:12 9:45(1] 43:5 accuratelV i 120:18 61:16 11524 117:25 | aKin(z 7:7 155:20
7.4 136:22 1917 yia 120 142:23143:4177:811  |Alanqy 11:1
7.519 24:12 25:8 32:11 A- ' _ 177:15 183:14 184:24 Albertars 4523.24
145:18 146:1,9,19 147:4 A+ . a%gﬂ&“éﬁd%eﬁl 39:12 190:21 232:12 243:18 46:3 80:6[ 8:1I_:20,21 ,82:19
149:7 A D[l] 217.5? ackhowledged - administer [y 150:20 85:3,14 87:2 96:19
7.58[y 135:15 Dy 251:10 , - administrativers 135:14 169:23,24 170:5
7.75[2 30:1132:11 a.miiz 1:226:2543:5 143'1-11%-2 190:15 , 108:20 150:3 184:18 219:25
7.95[1 135:19 55:19 71:10 84:23 102:6 | ACQUISILION [ 17423 | 51 algorithm g 124:16
: ' 102:21,22110:11 126:14 | acquisitionsiy 17421 |y , Al _
70s[2] 22:1423:14 139'8 act g 5:19 61267 38:8 a m!t [11 69:11 lanty 65:17
7212 180:7,8 AAA (5 3196:3160:14 | 92:16137-13.14 15020 |2dmittedy 156:4 ALLETE 1) 24019
7519 104:2,4,13,16,17 163:15 164:20 201:13 3970295&?7%18512 118:16 §||“ant [1] 240:25
104:20 107:4 146:13 AAF [y 2154 actionzy 111:13,15 : : OW [6] 26:1 28:494:9
21317 ability 1y 4:25:417:21 |actions(g 8:2148:3 :g\olf’;eed [2117;333 233:4 alllgig\:/szfggg 23(;: 3}:8
20:23 81:14 88:3 94:14 51:8 64:3 115:13 156:8 (1 175: (1 236
-8- 95:1101:15 163:20 251:7 | activity (1 230:10 advisor s 132:21 al Ic_)wed [41) 16:1817:1
814 25:230:58146:21 | ablers 82:2398:20 actual 4 23:1881:10  |advocaters) 1.690:3 | 17:57.2118:820:24
1o 161:15 242:9 : : 100:2 183:12 199:20 21:10,1333:942:3 78:1
8.1517 10:2112:14 124:18144:13 , 78:2,8.12 79:23 81:9,14
8.211 60:11 abnormal 1y 12:17 actuariesyy 133:1 Advocate'siy 14324 | oe1i% 105535119 2
o0 97- abnormally 4 177:1 | add g 13:1939:3,7 71:7 |advocating(s 91:5 136:1,4,15,17 137:17
8.25119 25:2027:18 178:18 184:3 229:9 153:2 162:21 100:3 109:15 138:13 139:1,12 141:9
50:24 112:13,16 118:21 : : ' : 2 : : : 1 :
121:11,16,22 147:1,8,15 |aboveiy 97:18 136:7 added (5 63:13 74:22 affect (71 56:1082:4 94:9 | 141:13 169:5 182:6 183:4
148:20,23,23,23,24,24 136:10 137:19,21 138:25 119:22 204:12 205:11 100:18,19 101:18 159:17 186:24 187:5 217:22
149:8 148%5%2146214,15 183:10 addi ng s 40:851:10 affected (3 13:2532:25 243:2'4 246:1
8.4y 14511 : 70:2 116:4 131:7 35:14 allowing 4 17:1092:17
8.5(5 145:11 146:10,11 iﬁ?ﬁ@ 7'19411959' ;io addition 4 18:4 112:8 aggci[(l)ng 2] 56:15 alzlzgviz 2431-3 N
146:21 169:11 [40 4:159: 177:19 183:9 : (2 17: 1
. 14:1917:6 19:1337:19 iti . affectsy 100:14 almost (77 7:20 30:17
g; :[%11 178..20 . 186 49:17 58 14.65.1 aggltlonaj [ 2-04.11. after-te[D]( 1 92:14 o 5[17:]5 e onT
(a8 71:1,272:15,23 67:571:18 79:14 80:16 address[z 178:5180:23 - 142:23
75:14,16 76:19,24 Py . : 185:17 186:8 197:4 200:4 |afternoony 172:5,7 :
84:6 88:19 102:16 103:8 _ aloneiz 189:18 247-21
8.75[3 26:20146:21 103:11 111:14 140:23 201:21 again iz 21:332:4 [2] 163! '
170:5 142:15 143:5 147:25 addresses(g 177:7 40:1148:1556:24 76:22 | @long(z 49:11,15
8.91 ¢ 176:8178:14 154:24 164:18 192:10,17 | 178:17 180:9 77:23 106:22 204:22 alternativersn 25:20
180:6 191:3 223:17 %ggig,zﬁlzfiol;ézl&%%4 adds[z] 120:11 204:10 205.21 230:18 233:24 312221218214,21 147:5,7
22722 : - -5, adiourniz 24813 against (7 5:1567:25 : .
8.92(2 29:2032:9 238:18,24 243:2 24{9;23 . 141:11 196:23 212:15,18 |alter natives[y 214:14
8.93(1 135:23 absorbed iy 2012 | ApJOURNED 1 2144 alwaysiig 14:19,21
8.5y 135:23 academic(3 56:568:23 | 171-20 250:7 agencies(e 92:593:5 26:16 27:24 40:4 52:15
86 - '38 6407 69:18 adjust (11 9:631:4 93:20 97:15 164:10 50:5,10 74:25 75:10
10] 26: : : i . . : . i . !
5020 104.60.101620 | CCEPLIE 2073178 | 5g10145:19 147:4 190:6 | 21820 137:14157:20 227:17
152:12 52:1588:2 154:19 218:5 191:1 214:12 233:1,10 agency [y 5:16 amblg_uousm 56:7
80011 51:9 2417 246:7 aggregate(y 210:22  |American (g 19:2320:1
a5 [75 ]11.2-4 76:13 158:8 acceptabl e[y 64:24 adj usted (9 169:16 AGL g 75:22 20:573:13,18 242:25
Index Page 2




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

among - board

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

amongi1 40:16 appox 1 145:3 attention 2] 51:8 248:17 |baptism 1 249:12 155:15
amongst [ 19:9111:17 |appreciate[s 206:4 attractive[z 82:24 Bar [ 175:10,12 Berkowitzyy 65:9
amount g 7:10 22:16 209:13 214:24 164:14 base(s) 32:2150:964:22 |Bernanke4 11:8
40:6 41:20 156:13 190:25 | approach (11 27:2 AUC 71 26:20 28:9 138:5 169:16 111:16,19 156:4
241:19,24 41:19 42:10 43:13 63:20 32:17 85:14,20 109:18 based [33 25:7 26:17 best [4] 27:1194:22 97:3
amounted (1] 162:18 64:1168:15177:3178:8 | 142:5 29:153:1,3 54:14 57:6 251:7
amountsz 184:14 22352317 August (2] 50:4 55:24 50:21,2560:24,1065:12 |hetajig 23:10,12,16
240:6 appr oached [y 132:1 AUs[y 114:2 65:22 85:19 111:3112:12 | 35:2046:21 49:14,16
analysisizy 20:121:4  |@Pproachesis 41:20  |author [y 234:11 e e 104:23 125:3 1281
21:22 23:17 25:3 37:8 41:21131:23 i . : L, 232:11,24 233:2,7,10
- automaticr4 104:14 175:25 176:24,25 179:21 :
72:2475:1376:199:25 | approaching i 106:3 | 151:17 175:24 183:21 18110 180-95 900:3 236:5
100:24 179:1,5 192:15 ropriaters 2519 : _ _ ; < : beta'siy 128:6
, : : approp (23] 25 available[z 133:8179:9 | 224:3228:9
194:22,24202:4215:24 | 26:9 47:24 95:22 107:4 _ bas o betass 74:7,10 125:5
220:9 224:3 227:15 116:25 170:17 182:17,20 | AVEragesy 107,22 asiCrq 13:235:10 129:22 232:16,18 233:17
, : - b 53:16 59:23 75:19 77:1 64:18 107:18 ; O :
anew [y 170:11 184:7,8 190:7 191:2 79213 90 78.3 12 bas _ 249:7
announced 7 11:10 | 198:18199:8 218:20 13413 19671013 asinsiy 17:19 better (4 79:9171:4
5524 219:10,19 227:16,20 147-18 14813 14913 basis(ss 11:24 30:5,8 185:1 227:4
annoyed 1] 248:11 229:6 231:15 238:8 17621811018 18214 | Soaad 1 TEle | between ) 5:711:23
al : : appropriately 194:6 203:3 204:13 ; >y o | 13:1,2,3,1116:14 26:3
annual [z 182:5234:15 : 112:2,22 113:11,23 114:2 g
annuallV a1 26:9 384 23811 207:21 209:14 210:20 1145 61616 1909324 | 30:336:2251:152:1
Y2 26:9 38 appropriatenessi 212:18 2142 226:14,15 | 13y 0t r s 1aeg | 563 92:25 104:16,20
answer (37 3:139:4 183:13 233:3 : e ; 128:23 132:9 141:19
12:8 16:3,5,7 20:18 . . . 148:10 178:15,16 180:7 15319 159:14 177:17
: . : . approxi mation g aver aged [6] 144:20 180:8.12 184:12.17 . - .
23:19 39:2 41:22 43:15 . . . . -0, -4, 180:10 184:21 185:18
: : - . 103:7 203:5,6,23 204:4 205:8 186:15.18 189:18 202:10 . - -
43:16 47:17 49:25 66:14 -1, : : 197:11,24 198:16 204:9
71:16 77:22 79:1,14 areafs 14.516:1524:6 |averages|iy 75:20 204:11 210:21,23,24 205:9 2’12,10 2'27_11 )
97:11,14 102:4 118:11 24:752:3102:9103:1 aver ag| ngiz 121:12 212:15 213:6,8,14,17 228;4 236;6 243:1'_0
136:20 137:4 139:14 149:16 190:16 223:18 227:8,10,22 bevond i 1115
148:6 188:24 196:3 5,13 |areas(s 28:5130:9 i : 230:24 234:15236:9,17 | PEyoNndy 11l
aversion[y 119:20 b , _
237:23 155:6 231:1 242:21 . i , BC 9 41:14 65:18 85:4 1as[z] 143:23207:24
avoid [z 20:17 31:15 g : ; biased i
answers[i 65:7 argueqy 112:24 d . 86:14 123:21,22 124:3 | [11 209:15
ici : . awardry 26:17 124:11,17 biases(y 69:10
anticipated [ 2:13 argument [1] 166:16 awarded a1 29:22 7718 , (1 69
3:14,185:107:24820  |arisery 122:3 R el BCUC 1) 31:2045:6 | pigig 76:3,12,15 88:16
82:25 ithmeti _ : 45:15104:7,11136:213 | 127:13,18128:17 129:6
_ arithmetic(s 105:6 awardsiy 77:20 142:6 180:11 194:11,16 : .
Anyway [z 171:19 134:9 234:21 : _ ' 161:19 246:4
249:8 N awar eis| 69:6,2285:25 | 199:312197:15244:17 |\ hier 15 76:12 101:25
, _ arrivery 222:9 101:1 218:22 217:17 244:19 169:24
apart 2 15:20119:12 : : . ; ) : , : :
. arrived (3] 109:5144:14 | 232:13233:13234:3 BCUC’ sy 150:24 Bill 10 24713
Apologies|y 231:23 222:11 235:4,9,11,17,24236:22 |pear [y 190:10 biIIi[o]n 1105 1565
) o ) . . 6] 11 X
apologizey 232.? arrivinga 41:17 236:25 237:2,7 becamers 66:17 235:11 | “4goaa [211 T
apparatusiy 251:8 176:11 2376 bit ,14’6 15:17 28:21
. i . 26] . N X
appear [1 111:4 articlesyy 234:12 -B- become|s 48:2256:14 41:[2413 422 437 56:19
appeared 2 30:18 asks[y 23516 b3 31:18172:25196:22 | 66:3 58:16 61:7 62:12 70:20
249:9 assess|z 182719322  (BAA [ 179:17 becomes|s) 26:1039:25 | 78:1579:9 107:1 112:13
appearing(z 17425 |assessed (11 148:22 _ 68:14 120:11 135:18 139:7
175:7 H > . |Bachelor iy 174:2 bed (2 21 170:24 140:2 145:16 165:17
. assessment (5] 15:4 54:7 background [3 131:18 egz 2 : . . .
Appendix 10 239645 | 54:13181:17,19 51 173 ™ |began(y 49 195:16 198:22 216:2
72:22,24.76:2 126:9,21 ' "y _ 143211732 beg_ [ = _ 219:5 231:2
129:13 140'5 172:25 assessmentsiy 188:14 | bad (4 21:1485:18 86:13 |PEJINNING(4 125:4 blind [y 52:2
licati : asset [3) 192:19 224:14 141:5 136:2 190:15 209:5 : .
application g 38:14 >a116 . behalf 11 175:20 blipy 128:13
38:17 39:13 47:20,.23 : balancee 7:980:6 [ 275 block [1 76:4
50125620 60:16 61:9 | aSSetSie] 174:22179:11 | 147:21153:17,20212:15 |belabour 1 240:19 Bl b : _
61:15,18,23178:9186:24 | 224:815239:20241:25 | palanced (3 63:19 210:7 | believes(y 167:1 e I e
189:24,25198:8 238:15 | assumes(y 95:21 210:9 Bell (1 230:5 99117 98 999
2514 assumptioniq 47:21  |balancingis 80:19 below[iz 3:19 10:8 blown [y 158:1
appl ications[y 184:6 93:15 105:6,8 137:13,14 69:15 81:8 99:3,19 Bl 232'_15 2123
appliedig 46:1347:13 |assumptionsig 107:19 |Bangor 1 174:23 138:19,22 149:13 155:10 2g3r-gelf]17 e
63:4,9 78:17 130:14 132:25 237:24 bank 113 12:19 83:7 189:19 236:18 O
1 180: : - [13] 2.9 83 BMO 3 221:6,12,17
150:4 180:13 224:25 astonished (1 98:15 106:10,23133:6,17 134:1 |Ben(y 11811111619 | - et
243:1 Aswath [ 234:9 156:19164:17,221686 | benchmark (z 78:11 | Ppoy (IBLI523 211
applies(y 213:5 ATCO 6 82:15.15.16 221:3,11 136:12 5,18, 213,
I o (6] 82:15,15, bank , 28:429:22 30:1,2 31:1,6
applyy 27.432:7 88:20,20,21 anker (1 168:3 benchmarksiz 160:24 934 330
179:3 190:22 207:14 o bank ] X 33:934:19 38:3 39:8
20825 21517 17 214:17 |Atlanticiy 58:25 ankerspy 168:8 161:4 40:14 43:10 45:24 46:4
23293 24216, ' attached [z 91:20 bankrupt 1 92:16 benefit 7 63:3132:23 59:20 63:1,3 68:1 70:3
09 £ 172:25 bankruptcy [y 92:21 134:17 153:3,19 218:6 72:11 75:14 77:23 79:24
applyings 48:23 Attach _ bank , , 2457 80:6 81:20,21,22 83:8
178:11 199:18 201:6 ttachment [y 240:17 anKS[3] 148:7 158:4 benefitsiz 15316 85:14,21,25 86:19 87:3
2257 attempted [y 210:13 158:19 (A 25 87:23,24 89:7,25 90:2,4
Index Page 3




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

Board’s- Chairman

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

91:9 98:17 99:4 102:14 35:2,637:1838:5,16,21 | brink (1 98:19 105:25 106:3,5,9,11,21 47:13,14,15,20,23 48:1
104:3,9 105:17 108:21 39:1840:3,2142:1,711  |British [z 42:886:10 106:23 107:8 110:7,17 48:13,17 49:150:12
111:24,25 11249 115:1 | 4319,2444:5,192345:3 | (o oeigioay | 111:11113:10,20,24 60:16 63:4,6,12,18 64:21
121:10125:8127:11,20 | 45:9,17 46:1,11,24 47:6 195,10[17] 196:4.17.19. 114:4,8,11,15,22 115:3 65:4,11 66:16 68:4,21
129:9130:16 132:13 47:22 48:5,16,24 50:5 ooen 61 S 115:9,21 116:14,22 117:2 | 68:24 69:15 71:2572:1
133:18 137:4,16 142:3 50:14 51:6 52:5,9,10 N 117:10,11,14,22 118:1,3 | 72:6,1277:24118:4
144:1,7 145:2 146:2,9 53:11 54:4,25 55:5,20 broader (2 228:16 118:9119:11 121:6,12 176:15 177:3,16 178:2,3
146:20 1476 148:21 56:2557:4,13,18,2358:2 | 229:14 123:2130:24 131:12,14 | 178:15,20 189:11,17,25
149:24 150:15 172:12 58:20,24 59:4 60:3,15 broadly (4 197:22215:8 | 133:7,17 134:2 135:8 190:6 229:4,10,13 236:8
175:18,22181:13199:19 | 60:19,2561:6,10,1962:1 | 240:10243:21 138:1,13139:12141:15 | 236:16 237:16,25 238:3
200:18 204:22 210:6 62:6,1163:7,1664:812  |proken (1 72:19 141:16,19142:2,6,12,16 | 238511
214:15215:17 218:11 66:22 67:8 68:17,22 69:2 o o 142:17,18,21,21 143:1,2 turers 120:13 121:3
217:212339,9241:19 | 70:6,10,15,20 71'11,17 bzfagtﬁzgzht [ 3028221 | 14394001452 1466 | orgig "
244:8 247:20 251:5 71:2172:17 73:6,7,15 ' 146:14 150:17 151:12,14 tured o 3516
Board’ sy 89:19 73:22 74:6,18,24 75:6 budget (3 116:17,19 154:12,13,16,17,25 cap [ 3o
boar ds 1s 28:5 37:20 75:18 76:5,8,25 77:6 142:16 159:21 160:3,12,23 161:9 |Carbony 86:8
45.8 52_[21] 85.17 8625 78:579:6 80:1,8,12,17 build 4 116:2207:12 161:11,14,20 164:14,18  |card [y 4:22
5718 19 13712 1393 81:18 82:6 83:3,10,23 207:24 209:14 164:19165:3,6,7 169:22 | cardsyy 111:5
13.9.1,6 143.1.4 2 : 84:5,13,18,24 85:9 87:7 built [4 13:1347:21 184:22 186:4,14 188:3 careful Iy (2] 176:24
' ol 87:1188:6,1889:2,315 | 188:13 226:23 195:18196:24 198:8,12 | “{o-g '
body (y 123:12 89:21 90:9,13,17 91:4 bUMD (1 11312 205:21 206:7 213:7,16 '
bogged (1] 16:13 91121317 9282223 | Fr’][ 1 Bse 218:5217:6 221:4,11 caseo] 30:23,25 74:22
bolt (1 7:20 93:4 94:16 95:6,15,24 uncnz 24:22 39:3 230:5 232:14 234:17 75:20,21 78:18 92:4 99:9
bombed 11 156:15 96:11 97:8,21,23 98:9 burden 3 90:6184:18 | 243:10,24 245:10,20 138:17 146:25
band [ 29015 | 982399:23100:4,913 | 187:3 Canadas(y 115:18 cases(1 62:13
I 220092984 | 10017,251016 10319 | bush [z 162222189 | Canadian o) 16:1 cash (g 65:294:2 95:18
A71153554205919 | 1oeeaimsionniy |Dusinesspe 7:61415 | 531364:16651467:10 | 100:14,20158:49.17
50:22,2360:9,12,1364:4 | 110:19 24 1117 22 112:6 | 14:17,2015:1558:6 70:2381:1182:1488:19 |cashflow 4 36:9,11
79:13 82:13,21 92:17 1221113717 1156 | 59:2360:880:1986:16 93:9 116:24 124:11,15 49:3176:15
94:7,15 97:13 105:25 116:8 117‘]:8’118'19-24 86:22 120:19 147:19 124:18 134:13 160:18 catch [ 120:10
106:9.21 108:16 110:7 : - g 156:19,22 166:8 171:25 161:18 176:24 177:17 .
9, : ; 119:3,8 120:1,5 122:9 ; : ) ; ; ; caused (1] 156:5
110:14.17 111:11 112:12 : . 173:23 181:20,23 183:2 179:19 180:10 181:3,10 .
113102024 114478 | 123125124:610,22 230:10 234:10241:1115 | 181:18182'5,9,15183:5 |CAUSING[2 92:1599:10
110,20, 4,7, 125:9 126:5 127:7,22 g ' o ; S e fi :
114:11,15,23 115:3,9,14 : : businesses|z 223:14 197:6,12,22 204:8 205:5 | caution i 57:15
128:14,18,19,25 129:4 1T 5o,
115:21116:14,23117:3 | 129:1224130:1,45.8 228:18 205:7 2177 220:21 CE [y 41:21
117:10,1114,22 118:1,3 | 130:22131:9 132:15 buy (3 10:10 158:18 234:21 242:5 24525 ceiling (4 5:15 163:22
ﬁgiig ;191%1 %ill:gbli 133:19 134:22 135:10 167:2 Canadian’s(y 19510 | 184:12 186:15
19, : : 136:22,25 137:3,8 139:10 |puvinar 11:24 cannot 4] 98:10 105:8 ceilingsyy 163:12,13
131:14 142:18,20,21 140:3,10,11,15 144:3 yingr _ 162:24 163:1 g _ _
145:2 146:6.14 151:12 . . . bypassed (1 17:19 . central (4 12:19131:14
- -0, - 145:22 147:10,23 149:10 Capac|ty [2 7:1411:19 A .
159:17 160:15 164:5,10 1151 : byproduct [y 3:23 . S 164:22 23521
150:1 151:25 152:3,7,9 ital 12316 12:3
167:16 179:13184:21,22 | 152:14,18.22 153:1.10 03823 4:[;21]47.9-423.2 3 |CEOy 1813
186:4,14188:3204:8,10 | 154:11,23155:5,23 -C- E021 53950261018 |CErtain(m 56:9 76:10
204:12,22 205:5,7,10,15 | 156:20 157:13,19 158:14 672 7614 77-12 78:16 93:24 140:23 155:6
gggigllé%eli; 21212é32 o 159:10,22 160:2,7,19 Cllz‘g 123{519 126:10,21 26890 25 94 79:1.3 5 218:16 239:25
£ P 161:25 162:5,10,15 : 56805 11 855 certainly (4 97:25137:1
226:15 228:14 247:13 164:16 165:10 166:12,19 | CA [y 230:1 o o o0 1 | 1543 i de]
bonds(zz 10:1064:19 | 167:4,15169:18170:21 | CA-32(y 15:22 94:1195:1397:398:20 | certainty g 6:257:3
66:1384110411078 | 171:518521186:L,10 |\ CANP-310(y 240:16 | 101:16103:7,12,13,14 | 8:3199:9,21,24
113:15114:10 160:18,23 | 186:11 206:5 214:14 10318 106.14 108-18
161:3164:2 204:16 2245 | 215:6 233:2 244:24 (32@7239333 2 23505 | 1A 1018 CZEET' FICATEm
224:9,19225:1,1219 Booth’sie 64:1,5 CA-PUB-48 , 116:15,24 117:15 120:9 if _
226:9 227:4,11 126:12 205:22 215:10 - -40[1 230:1 121:4 132:16 133:12 certify [y 251:2
book 1) 137:25 138:2 218:4 cake[s) 22:1,2,2,4 . : . cetera4 79:3116:3
134:7,14 137:23139:5
138:14,18,21,24 1395 | horrow s 83:6,1620 |calculated (s 98:13 140:1 142:8 145:25 125:24 2366
139:18 140:7,16,24 95:13 98:20 152:11 207:22 150:14 151:15 153:24 Chair (4 1:4103:1
goomed (1 129:18 bottom 4 71:776:23 | calculates(y 234:14 ig‘gliig% 58611%2737 (:1;0:'14 172:2
00MS|[2] 7:4,5 192:1 223:23 calculation 2 103:8 ovstin S alrmanie4 1:12,18
Booth (3241 1:102:356 |bottoms(y 127:14 116:6 gg;%ﬁ gﬁ i;é?fg;fj-ls 15 129,723 1222:2, %2,533_8
ggblgfgi(?fgeleggz Boy 1 249:2 calendar [y 248:18 195:9 200:12,18 201:23 154;8:221. lé5:é,l8 156:18
90141001425 1213 | Prakesiy 156:2 Canadajse) 2:110,13,19 | 218:25221:7,17 235:5 157:3.15 15811 159:7
1'2:’24 13:'15’ léi: 12 15:14 break [6] 102:14,18,21 6:158:4 9:22 10:3,10 235:18 237:3 243:23 159:12,24 160:5,16
1522 16:6.11 17-3.14 170:11,16,19 13:6,11,19 17:17 20:10 245:6,10,11,18 247:10 161:22 162:2,7,12 164:12
18:3122319:1220:2 | breakingy 1651 21:9,10.2029:1532:25 | 249:.10 1654 166:6,14,21 167:13
217.2522:18232337 |prilli ; 36:2,17 37:21 42:344:24 | capitalization [y 76:11 | 168:18 169:6 170:9,18
5320 94131 o Dard ri lant [y 171:10 47:10,1149:950:2021 | ~ApPM (72 13:18 14:3 170:23 171:3,18,22
e14 2613 27713 981 |PYiNG[s) 28:2156:18 54:20 59:16,19,22 60:8 A4o5 358171894 187-15,18 232:6 246:13
: : o : 71:8 194:5 243:8 60:12 68:13 69:23 77:18 : il 246:18.23 247:3.12.18
28:12 29:4,13,18,24 O e 36:15 37:6,7,8,17 38:14 18, 3,12,
30:12.20.24 31:11.24 bri ngingi2 28:6 141:17 77:20 79:13 82:13,21 39:11.13 40:16.20 41:2 247:24 248:5,10,16,22
i i : . . 93:12 97:4,20 98:1 104:1 A A Ao : 249:1.5.16.21 250:1.5
32:31233:1934:1021 | brings(z 22:10 150:5 41:20 45:24 46:5,19 11,516, 1,
Index Page 4




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

Chairman’s - contractual
NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Chairman’s[z 12:14
110:13

challenge4 199:24
205:25 213:21 230:7

challenged [y 47:21
challengesie 176:17

180:25 184:4 186:5
191:12 238:5

challengingy 179:19

chancefz 60:17 95:11

changej4g 85 14:9
15:11 33:5,22 49:21
52:20,21 53:1 78:24
82:20 83:12 86:2 94:6
104:25 106:9 111:10
119:11,23,25 129:19
144:9,10 146:14,17
150:22 181:15 182:8
184:20 185:11 205:20
206:14,16 207:13 208:6
210:14 212:9 214:17
218:20 241:13

changed (13 27:11 35:7
45:1279:4 82:3,12,13
86:1 106:10 182:12
199:18 210:19 213:13

changesizs) 15:1557:5
68:11 78:19,21 867
103:14 105:18 122:14,19
129:21 146:16 153:24
182:10 183:2 184:11
185:5,8,15,21,23 186:7
186:16 187:5 200:1

changinge 31:20
52:23 68:10 79:22 120:23
181:17

chapter 1 64:22
chapter sy 64:17,20

characteristics[y
192:6

characterizedy 40:5
chargey 171:24
chargesi1 80:24

chart (s 125:3,12 126:8
126:18 127:13

chartered (3 173:22,22
174:10

charts[y 125:2

check (51 50:1217:18
225:14,16 233:24

checksiz 68:2,6
chickeny 163:14
chief (27 158:25 166:22
childreniy 155:11

choose[3 20:18,19
179:8

chose[z 228:8 232:23

chosen (4 178:8,25
232:25233:1

Chris[ig 22:1024:24
28:21 41:13 44:18 56:18
70:13,19 73:2 76:2,3,5
126:8192:1

circles[y 194:15

circuit[y 23:8

circular [3 195:17 197:1
198:10

circumstancejy
247:20

circumstances(s 27:5
27:11210:14

City [y 175:8,13

civil 71 164:2,9
civilianz 157:6,7
clamped 1 156:2
clarification [z 11:20
197:3

clarify[4 11:932:13
125:7127:11

clarity 1 219:20

clear [9 5:259:4,16
23:12 56:14 80:18,20
142:15178:3

clearing1 180:19

clearly 4 67:2577:12
195:11 197:7

clients[z 134:5175:5
cliff ;77 92:21 162:17
clock [y 72:19

close[n 29:2533:4,9
92:20 96:1 162:20 214:10

closingpy 140:6
Coast 11 99:13
coefficient (g 35:20
49:16 184:15 186:12,13
186:25

coefficients|4 23:10
23:12,16 49:15

collapseis) 37:22114:5
123:19 129:17 138:23

collapsed 3 44:3
125:23 129:18

colleagueiz 65:9 104:7
colleaguesyi) 51:9
Columbiaiz 42:986:11

column [3 50:8 75:16
76:21

combined [4 44:7 99:25
101:11 195:12

comfortz 132:12
143:25

comingiz 49:1160:5
84:9 102:8 106:7 141:16
147:3,5 160:20 163:10
164:19 178:5

commencerz 1:13
174:2

comment 15 18:17 22:9
25:148:20 61:18 62:2
107:5,6 191:6 197:15
202:1 229:14,15 245:23
246:2

commentary 1 194:17

commented (21 46:4
185:4

commentsiiz) 16:21
22:7107:2110:14 185:7
189:11 193:25 194:10
199:1 219:8 242:3,21

commercial (11 93:10
commission (2] 41:14
168:11

COMMISSIONER 1
152:5

Commissioners(z
131:20 251:5
commit [y 92:16
commitment [y 151:19
commodity 1 161:16

common [43] 20:16
66:17,18 79:17,22 80:25
81:12,2382:9 85:12,15
85:22,23 86:1,3,18,21
87:13,16,20,23 94:24
96:13,17,19 101:13,17
102:1169:11 170:1,6
182:22,24 183:11,14,18
218:17 217:22 218:24
220:5232:19 245:15
2467

community (1 68:23

companiesiss 4:19
14:19 26:3 29:6 42:17
65:14,15,21,23,24 66:5
67:11,22 73:13 74:15
76:12 87:2 93:9 140:22
140:25 159:18 167:19
177:21 178:24,25 179:4
179:8,10,20,23 180:10
180:13 182:6 192:4,4,13
193:14 195:7,18 196:12
196:18,21 223:11 239:2
239:25 240:6,20 241:21
242:5,10,16 243:15 244:9

companies’ [1] 200:13

company 2o 14:18,23
15:7 18:14 27:9 65:25
66:2 73:1 74:9 82:15
90:5 128:4 189:20 193:17
193:20 199:16,18,19
213:17 236:19

company’sie] 14:14
23:197:6 183:6 213:4,8

compar ability (g 192:8
193:7,9,23 197:10 240:5
242:1,4

compar abler24 64:23
72:1573:19,21 178:19
179:4,7,9,21,23 180:4
180:13 192:11 193:3
194:24 196:12,21,22
197:9 198:5 207:19
218:10 242:10,11

compareifq 36:7 77:25
96:13 208:19

compared e 15:24 455
135:1 144:12 224:5 241:8
comparingis 165:13
196:20,23 231:19 241:20
comparison i 16:4
comparisonsii 87:21
compensateqy 224:8
competition i 180:1
competitive[y 165:22
completelyz 133:35
complex |z 116:10,11

complexity (1 116:4
complicated s 115:23
117:4 132:17 146:25
214:11

compliment 1 80:13

component [4 110:8
114:22 129:21 183:19

comprised[1 129:15
comprises[i 76:13
compromisei 163:20
concederz 18:10,13

concept (3] 224:22,24
2255

conceptual 11 66:23

conceptually (s 65:1
66:10 107:17

concerniis 4:590:4
177:25178:5 186:19
200:5 206:21,22 213:4
219:7,12 227:14 228:16
228:17 245:24

concerned 18 21:15
80:2390:2 92:11 97:21
98:17,22,25 99:1,18,19
99:20 169:14 212:22
223:11 245:17 246:6
247:17

concernsyiy 21:11
113:3130:13 135:21
178:17 180:9 181:3
185:10,17 186:8 246:9

concludez 187:9
194:25

concluded [5] 178:13
180:5 181:14 182:13,24

concludes[z 152:3
246:12

conclusion i 9:527:6
77:24139:19 176:1,4,8
176:12 178:20 191:10
195:14 223:16 227:21,21
227:23 243:17 244:14

conclusionsz 229:14
242:12

Cconcur [ 242:18

condemningz 171:12
171:15

condition [5] 52:19,25
53:3130:20 180:17

conditionsyzq 39:14
47:20 53:13 54:14 56:8
68:11 77:12 82:11 85:17
85:18,20,24 86:4 87:5
88:10111:9 134:14
149:22 159:15 164:13

conduct [y 179:5
confidence[z 10:6
79:11

confident [z 2:198:8

confirmiwo 41:17 43:16
221:15,20,23 229:20
230:3 234:23 235:25
244:20

confirmation [y 237:12

confirmed 3 41:23
50:1 234:23

Congressys 5:76:1
163:17,20,24
connection [y 233:25
consji 69:8
consensusiig 2:24
10:19,23 55:8 58:5,5
66:20 188:14 203:6,9
207:3,13,20 208:11,20
208:20,23 210:17 211:4

consequence(y 168:19

conservativez 96:16
169:22

consider [iq 112:5
149:24 178:12 214:15
226:13 227:8 231:10,12
241:19,23

consideration[y 177:9

considerationsiy
183:1

considered 121 30:2
97:6 176:17 177:12,14
177:16,19 181:23 191:16
193:22 219:6 238:3

consideringe] 181:21
198:1 231:6,8 244:2,2
consistency (1 104:22

consistent (9] 39:22 687
105:15 106:18 123:20
128:23 180:11 197:15
215:8

consistently (s 49:1
58:7 74:19 123:17 140:18

constant (] 105:2,7,12
119:13 120:15 183:6

constantly 2] 132:16
219:9

constituents[y 223:12

constrained (] 49:4,13
49:22 52:18 110:6 143:10

constraintsiz 67:21
76:10

construct (27 103:6
207:2

constructiony 15:18
consult [y 225:10

consumer [e) 1:6 90:3
100:2 143:24 157:11
199:20

consumer si3 7:10 66:2
168:22

consumption 2] 157:6
157:7

content [y 35:24
continuationy 218:17

continue(s 5:13182:20
183:16 184:9 224:13

continues(s 182:14
199:17 219:12

continuingis) 6:7,8
149:24

contract [y 93:18
contracts[z 156:11
164:5

contractual [z 26:3
164:6

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 5




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

contrary - disappeared
NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

contrary (2 89:18
109:24

contrast (11 171:9
controversial [y 20:22
controversy i 31:16

convenient [z 102:14
223:22

converty 134:9
corers 47:12,14 213:22
corollary(z 27:23
31:23

corporatefio 32:19,22
113:15 167:16 173:10,13
173:14 174:17,18 218:5

cor por atenessiy 53:4
corporation i 153:21
cor porationsyi 153:9

COrrect (125 1:16 2:14
2:16,24 3:94:155:3 6:19
9:1012:14,25 13:16
14:11,1319:1320:321:8
24:14,18 30:11,13 32:2
34:1335:141:23 42:12
44:6,10 45:16,18 46:25
47:750:2,6,1552:9,11
57:170:1171:18,20
72:18 73:14,16,20 74:17
75:17,19 79:8,14 80:9
81:19 82:7 84:6 85:10
95:23 103:8,10,11,20
107:12 108:6,24 110:13
118:20 120:2 122:10
124:23 127:11,23 128:20
128:24 129:1,3 130:21
130:23 131:8,10 135:11
147:11,25 149:11 152:1
175:2,4 188:7,17,21
189:3,8,22 192:17 194:8
196:6,13,15 200:15,17
201:2 202:7,13 203:18
204:18 205:25 207:6,10
220:7 221:9 222:14
224:21 229:8 230:7
231:14 235:2 238:24
239:18 240:2,20,22
244:13 245:8,14 246:22
249:15 251:3

correctly iz 47:276:6
94:20 123:11 186:20
187:19 188:9 202:21
211:2,10 212:11 218:17

correlation [y 128:6

cost (471 13:2159:2,6,18
64:25 71:23 77:11 82:22
83:25 84:15 86:9 88:23
91:20 95:22 96:1,1 103:7
103:12,13,14,18 108:16
108:17,17 117:12,15
122:16 132:16 142:8
144:23 145:24,25 169:18
175:1,5 184:13 195:20
199:16,17 201:7 235:5
235:18 237:3,3,14,24
249:10

COStS[9 32:22 66:6 146:1
153:17 184:5 200:13
201:8 235:20 236:10

coughed 1] 11:4

council [y 175:13
councillorsiy 175:14
counter [1 20:25
countriess 4:1,3,3
154:18 164:20,23 197:24
198:16

country s 20:6 40:20
156:24 166:2 219:22
couplers 1:511:984:9
103:24 107:2 1235
135:12 150:18
coupon i 84:8
Coursejis 4:24 6:25
27:2329:2 38:2 46:21
90:12 112:25127:15
139:20 143:17 150:18
152:19 156:15 221:6

courting(y 92:21
covenant (1 98:13
cover [21 34:20 130:9
coveragej[iz] 94:7,9
97:17,25 98:5,12,18 99:8
99:11,14,17 100:18
covered [y 123:6
coveringi 209:3
crash 4 44:2 156:7
162:13,16

creaters 183:16 184:3
214:11

createsiz 185:13 199:9
credibleqy 142:11

credit (57 4:2252:12
54:14 55:16,17 89:14,22
89:23 90:25 92:5,6 93:3
97:6 99:24 101:8,22
102:2,4 113:15,18,21,23
114:12,20,21 115:12,18
117:3119:9,13,16,17,19
119:23,25 120:6,14,20
146:5,17 182:3,3 183:7
185:16 218:19 217:1
218:2,12,16 234:19 244:3
247:9

Crisis[z4 3:10,18 4:10
4:15 33:452:8,9 53:17
54:1 56:22 59:14 77:9
77:11 123:18 125:20
126:1 127:16,19 128:9
128:11 129:5 155:20
180:22 219:17

criteriaz 93:25 179:22
critical (1 130:25
criticismiz 62:2567:25
criticize[y 62:23
criticized [y 63:8
Crossy 1:22

Cr oss-examination s
61:3 67:18 125:21 150:7
222:17

Cr oss-examine[y
121:24

CUy 88:21
cultural [y 20:8

current s 4:119:2
13:6,16 39:13,23 41:7

44:16 47:20 48:2 60:13
107:7 110:17 114:15
115:8 131:16 134:13
141:9151:11 157:22
158:7 166:10 173:7
180:16 182:22 183:19
184:2 187:2 206:11 213:2

curverz 56:3148:16
customer 2] 180:1
244:4

cut [y 155:11

cuts[z 116:17 162:22
CV [y 172:25
cyclerq 7:659:24 60:8
147:19

-D-

D (3 64:572:24 140:5

damage[1 90:25

Damodaran [s] 233:19
234:9,14 235:5 237:10

Damodar an’ s[5
235:17,18 236:11,21
238:21

danger 1 156:24

data[z7 31:14,1932:16
32:20 36:5 37:4,9 54:15
57:7 66:9,25 67:14,14
67:23 143:3 157:6 176:23
176:24,25 218:6 220:25
221:6,17,24 227:8 242:25
244:8

dateqy 187:2

dated [3 78:23172:11
251:9

days[4) 23:2559:993:14
131:6

DBRS|3 90:20 183:7
217:1

DCy 144:15

DCF [60] 36:13,13,23,25
37:4,11,15,21,25 39:10
40:16,18,20 41:19 42:9
42:14,16,22 43:4,7 45:24
46:9 63:13,19,23 64:3,6
64:9,17 65:13,22 66:5
66:10,21 67:1,16 68:4,6
69:6,14 70:9,22 71:1,3,9
72:15 73:11 74:10,11
75:13 76:6 144:17,23
177:18 179:3 180:7
191:20 194:5 242:2 243:8

deadband (3 184:17
186:18 210:24

deadbandsiy 116:3
deal (4 38:1184:3,12
1485

dealer (1 88:9
dealing4 38:1259:1
64:20 230:8

deals[z 41:1343:9
debate[z 26:12112:19
debated [y 155:25

debt (49 3:10,22 4:4,20
5:5,10,15 7:10 80:23

82:17,17,20,23 83:25
84:3,8,15 88:22 92:18
93:1,7,19,22,23,25 94:4
95:2 96:20,22 100:19,20
146:7 152:10 160:11
161:7,8 163:12,13,22
167:17 169:2 170:1
180:24 181:3 183:15
219:16 246:4,15

debts[y 81:10
decades|y 35:15
December 11 136:3
decide[y 169:11
decided (5 44:8 72:9
215:18 227:16 233:10

decides(4 25:18 146:9
146:21 210:7

decision[iy 1:641:4
43:11,17 45:12,21 131:21
135:25 181:13 195:6
233:9

decisions(s] 34:6 45:5
58:4 104:14 143:14 2159

decline[s 116:22,23
117:16

declining[y 155:14
decreasing[i 245:18
deem 2z 108:15,17

default (s 5:9 114:21
117:3 163:24 164:5

deferral (7 15:25 16:21
18:25 19:22,24 21:4,23

deferringy 19:2
deficient [y 142:13
deficit (3] 106:3 160:9
162:20

deficits[y 3:21
defined (31 132:23
134:17 153:19
definitely[4 155:13
210:9 214:22 244:10
degrees 10:6 116:4
173:25

delayed 1) 187:4
deleted [y 124:5
deliberated (1 194:23
deliberately 2 194:35
demand [y 161:17
Democratsiy 5:8
demogr aphicsis
154:17 155:8 181:24
182:1

demonstrably 1 78:10
demonstrateqy 210:13

demonstrated [y
207:23

depending[1 120:22

depreciation i3 100:1
100:5,14 101:1,7,8 165:3
200:20,24 201:1 248:21
248:25 249:8

depression 5 155:21
156:1,5 157:9,11

derived[y 124:13

describery 78:21
described 71 226:7
230:25

describing(z 127:14
224:2

description i 116:10
deserve[y 163:15
design i 93:18
designationsyi 173:19
designed 11 184:1
detail (3 14:16 23:17
129:14

detailed [y 21:22
details(3 16:348:14
144:14

deter mination [y 132:2

determine(s 177:6
194:22 200:8 225:10
230:23

determined 4 114:8
181:9 190:5 224:14

determiningy 219:18

develop 2z 177:6 205:12

developed 3 130:10,10
190:23

developings 176:19
177:12192:18 194:15

development (3 174:17
174:18 212:24

developsyy 118:17

device[y 103:6

differencezq 7:12,21
9:830:334:1262:12
69:13 92:25 104:16,20
132:1 169:3 195:11 197:7
197:11,17,24 198:16
209:16,17,21 214:5 223:9
243:25

differencesig 16:14
177:17 179:24 180:9
193:18 228:4 242:22
243:10 244:2

different 18 20:827:6
46:1361:7 111:18 120:20
122:16 129:9 131:22,23
132:3 148:18 180:15
195:1 202:19 213:23
222:12 247:7

difficult 3 30:7 133:7
166:18

difficultiesy 44:4
difficulty 1 38:2
dipy 128:22

direct 4 1:11170:15
187:9 239:16

direction[y 145:5

directly s 13:2543:12
51:12 105:5 167:18

dirty 1 140:20
disagreei 87:6
disagreeing(z 8:187:8
disagreement 1] 85:11
disallowed 17 93:16
disappeared 1] 65:22

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 6




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

disappearing - equity

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

disappearing[i 119:19
disappearsiz 126:2,4
disconnect (4 13:1,10
13:11 212:23
discontinued 1 108:1
discount [z 154:5
197:14

discounted s 36:9,11
49:2 65:2 176:15
discounting s 196:25
198:11,15

discuss(4 103:25 104:22
145:16 206:20

discussed [7] 34:24
118:15 129:13 170:14
219:1 2275 241:12

discussingi 249:7
discussion [3s] 14:415:1
16:16 19:21 22:12 28:17
28:20 29:20 34:18 40:6
40:11,13 41:5 46:17 64:6
69:4 73:1 79:20,21 103:3

111:3 123:7 125:5 129:24
130:13,17 138:15 173:2
178:23 210:1 214:10
215:5 226:11 234:1
243:21 245:5
discussionsyy 162:17
dismissyy 72:7
disrupted 1 64:4
disruption 1 68:12
distortionsyy 177:2
Distribution (3 66:3
90:20 99:3
distributor [y 97:19
distributorsiy 98:1
disturbed [y 139:2
divergery 389
divergences[i 36:22
diversity 2] 180:4
193:20

dividend 3 36:1343:1
95:19

dividendsig 92:6,12
92:13,15 94:23 179:12

doable[y 95:21

document [y 225:17

doesn’t 28 29:231:8
35:20,22 48:21,22 52:22
61:16 94:6 99:16 108:22
111:4 112:9 128:5 145:3
146:15 147:6 150:22
153:7 155:1,6 163:19
170:4 190:1 196:24
200:25 213:5 247:14

dollar 7 18:18 84:22
138:4,5,9 141:3 158:2

dollarsqi3 11:2584:7
86:988:13 95:14,17
158:8 162:19,24,25
167:21 168:5,17

dominant [3 116:14
117:1,1

dominated [ 48:3

done(ss 8:1310:20 15:9

16:419:2,25 21:4,9,22
23:19 30:25 33:7 41:10
51:11 53:2 55:25 62:13
68:3,6 71:14,14 88:12
100:23 101:20 102:13
105:20 106:23 124:24
133:9,10 142:25 147:14
153:14 210:15 230:3

doom [y 157:22
double[y 225:14
doubt (17 168:15

down [se 3:216:16
16:13 19:1 24:24 27:17
31:14 41:13,22 43:15
44:18 52:5 54:18,22
55:11 56:19 63:25 70:20
79:13 82:8,21 88:23
89:12 91:10 97:13 106:8
115:20,22 118:3 119:20
125:22 129:20 136:15
139:22 140:12 144:25
145:1,6,9 151:10,11
156:9 160:13,21 161:7
163:1,4 165:15 169:19
192:20 194:5 210:22,23
213:14 240:18 243:8

downgradeis 3:6,19
4:245:3,17 6:2

downgraded 2] 90:6
163:15

downgrades|z 3:5
247:8

downplayed 1 37:21

downward (4 160:17
194:18 207:24 209:16

Dr (356 1:102:3,5,6,9
2:15,233:8,16 4:14 5:2
5:20,24 6:10,18 7:2 8:6
9:9,14 10:9,14,25 12:13
12:24 13:15 14:12 15:14
15:22 16:6,11 17:3,14
18:3,12,23 19:12 20:2
20:16 21:7,25 22:18,23
23:3,7,20 24:13,17,25
25:4,14 26:13 27:7,13
28:1,12 29:4,13,18,24
30:12,20,24 31:11,24
32:3,12 33:19 34:10,21
35:2,6 37:18 38:5,16,21
39:1840:3,2142:1,7,11
42:19 43:19,24 44:519
44:23 45:3,9,17 46:1,11
46:24 47:6,22 485,16
48:24 50:5,14 51:6 52:5
52:9,10 53:11 54:4,25
55:5,20 56:25 57:4,13
57:18,23 58:2,20,23 59:4
60:3,15,19,25 61:6,10
61:19 62:1,6,10,11,12
63:7,16 64:1,5,8,12 65:9
66:22 67:8 68:17,22 69:2
70:6,10,15,20 71:11,17
71:21 72:17 73:6,7,15
73:22 74:1,6,18,20,24
75:6,18 76:5,8,25 77:6
78:579:6 80:1,8,12,17
80:21 81:2,18 82:6 83:3
83:10,23 84:5,13,18,24
85:987:7,11 88:6,18
89:1,3,15,21 90:9,13,17

91:4,12,13,17 92:8,21
92:23 93:4 94:16 95:6
95:15,24 96:11 97:8,21
97:23 98:9,23 99:23
100:4,9,13,17,25 101:6
103:1,9,19 104:5 107:11
107:16 108:5,14,23 109:3
109:8,12 110:12,24 111:7
111:22 112:6,21 113:7
113:17 115:6 116:8
117:18 118:19,24 119:3
119:8 120:1,5 122:9
123:1,25 124:6,10,22
125:9 126:5,12 127:7,22
128:14,18,19,25 129:4
129:12,24 130:1,4,5,8
130:22 131:9 132:11,15
133:21 134:22,23 135:10
136:21,25 137:2,8,10
139:10,11 140:3,10,11
140:15 141:21 144:2,3
144:16 145:22 147:10,23
149:10 150:1,9 151:25
152:3,7,9,14,18,22 153:1
153:10 154:11,23 155:5
155:23 156:20 157:13,19
158:14 159:10,22 160:2
160:7,19 161:25 162:5
162:10,15 164:16 165:10
166:12,19 167:4,15 169:1
169:8 170:21 171:5
185:21 186:1,10,11
205:22 206:5 214:14
215:6,10 218:4 222:11
222:17 223:6 230:25
231:2,11,16 233:2,5
238:21 244:24

dragpy 157:17

dragged (5] 16:1520:3
20:11,24 156:14

dramaticz 119:16,17
119:22 120:4 125:16,20
151:14

dramatically 1 26:22
draw [y 242:11
drawingi 244:14
drawn(y 7:8
driven(4 12:18,22 13:7
163:6

drivings 12:369:13
228:20

dropiz1 9:1910:341:6
55:189:12 91:10 99:19
125:16,20 127:13,18,24
127:25 128:5,8,10,11
129:6 144:23 164:10
2138

dropped 9 9:2375:7,8
97:22 99:3120:7 1285
144:18,19

dropsi4 11:13128:2
210:24213:14

drovery 243:17

duersq 62:19 99:9 112:24
177:1

during(7 85:6128:8
129:22 157:7 174:20
178:23 187:6

Dutchy 166:3

dwindlingy 154:9
dyingpy 154:22
dynamite[1 133:20

-E-

early s 37:22104:18
106:1 129:22 150:23

earniig 16:17 17:5,7,21
18:7,919:9 20:24 21:13
26:8 81:14 101:15 134:15
134:16 147:17,18,20,21

earnedi4 17:119:4
21:13220:20

earningz 149:6,8

earningsiz 19:16
64:23 94:21 141:4 179:12
198:7 239:17,21,22,25
240:7,12 241:11,20,24
243:14 244:4

East (11 235:22

easy 1 134:5
economicig 4:841:6
68:10 107:18 180:17
183:16 246:3 247:1
economically (3 44:17
44:20,24
€coNoMmics[13] 7:22
42:2358:567:3105:11
133:6,17 134:1 144:8
165:16 181:24,25 219:23

economies(y 163:4
economist [z 39:7 61:21

economistsi4 6:21
133:11 134:6 155:25

economy (23 15:19
42:2458:15 119:18
151:16 155:14 156:12,16
157:1,8,23 158:10,20
160:10 161:18,20 162:19
162:25 165:22,24 180:19
180:20 181:4

edition [y 64:15

Edmonton [y 175:9

effect () 4:2524:355:22
100:1 125:25 126:2 129:5
201:14

effectiver4 56:7 183:24
184:10,25

effectively [z 86:20
203:3

efficiency [z 150:3
185:14

efficient 31 150:11
166:16,17

ether (1 28:2110:16
113:1 151:23 155:2
168:12 179:17 199:18
201:8 214:16 217:21

gected 1 158:9

electiony 111:18

electricis 65:2576:7
82:16 88:21 97:19 108:8
136:8 140:8,17 169:23
174:23 219:25 235:19,21
235:22,23 237:4,25

electrical 3 59:1 76:20
235:6

electrics[z 76:21237:4

elements(3 46:20
103:24 116:7

elsewherery 19:2

embedded (4 83:25
84:3,15 132:25

embraced (11 40:18

Emeraig 67:12,14,14
67:16 138:3 174:8,10,13
emerge[y 123:18
emergencery 17:18
eminently [z 122:15,21
emissionsyy 86:12
emphasisis) 36:10
37:1140:15,19 43:3
empirical (3 49:18
66:24 104:18

employ 1] 156:25
employment [ 11:16
44:25

Enbridgers 66:367:10
90:19,20,21,24 99:2
135:13

end (24 9:4 115:20 118:4
118:8 136:16 137:15,18
155:22 158:13 189:6
202:4,16 203:20 204:23
205:15 207:14 208:12
210:14,21 212:18 214:4
227:1,2 229:18

ending 2 158:17 203:2

endsiy 33:25

energy [12] 43:10 65:15
65:24 81:22 86:19 99:4
99:13 123:21,23 124:3
124:11,17

engagement [y 175:17
enjoy 1 150:7
enjoyable[y 249:11
enjoyed [1] 249:4
ensure(4 145:17 149:4
176:18 184:8
ensuringz 186:5
218:19

enteringy 31:3
entirely 2] 39:21 115:10
entitledy 26:8

entity (s 88:16,20 91:11
entriesiy 70:22
environment 1y 47:4
107:8 110:4 115:8 117:13
179:15 182:1,2 183:9
218:21219:15

Epcor [y 175:10

equal 11 128:6
equally 1y 66:11
equalsi 224:18
equilibriumpy 6:20
equities(s] 64:20 227:12
243:23

equityriog 13:1219:17

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 7




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

ERP - five

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

66:6 70:23 77:11 79:12 2465 existencery 67:12 169:17 205:21 228:13 fenced (4 90:24 91:11
79:17,22 80:22 81:23 European [z 4112:19 |exited y 157:11 237:14 243:9 159:20,23
82:9 85-1211.-5,22 86:1,3 Eurozonepy 4:2,10 expand [ 245:21 factor [17] 16:17 18:7 fenClng [3 90:14 91:5
30182187.1017.2024 | o aluatery 50:23 expect (4 12:22 195 32:24101.7,8 104.1 9118
101:14,21,24 102:1,2 evaluated (1] 238:2 136:14 149:13 184'20 195:6 207-19 B0-17 95 23493
115:4,4 117:12 134:7 evaluati ngz2 142:13 expectatl oni[y 206:11 209:18 210:22 214:3 fGN 15’ 9291 22’ 14:4 383
138:5144:23159:19 174:19 expected g 105:1,7 223:15229:12 S 516 0B B os
165:14 166:8 168:23.24 | ey/gnoratedy 106:24 | 151:9,111659,12 factored(z 198:5 :9118:15 121:8 130:
169:11 170:6 172:10 . 91:9118:15121:8 130:11
17523 176:5,9,16,20 event(s) 5:129:3103:8 |EXPectingy 12:10 202:17 164:20 194:1 231:21
177-7 178:14 1805 107:10 214:20 expendituresz 18:18 |factorsisy 14:23,25 fight [y 107:22
182:22,24183:4,11,14  |events(y 177:22 200:19 17:418:419:10 20:9 fi 1 28:
gy . igurer4 9:128:23,25
183:18 184:24 185:19 everybody (s 20:7 expense(z 200:20,24 69:379:386:17,2487:1 | "1oc o
186:16 190:8 195:1.9.20 : ! > . 87:397:20 116:3 180:3 S

: : o 134:12 138:8 142:6 expenses[y 19:2 18319 17 184:23 193:13 filed [4 1:678:18 172:12
201:21 209:9 212:25 156-21. experiencers 12321 1,917 184:23 193; oo
215:16 218:17 217:22,22 : 193:21 197:13 198:3 '
2186,8915,25219:10 | EVer ywherery 86:13 | 249:11 200:1,6 228:19 242:6 filingry 79:19
220:5.20 223:10,16 224:2 e\z/é dlergcia 8[329% égzzgzo:ls e>2<(|§>6e£ é enced 7 187:2 f243:13,17 244:5 246:9 fill (1] 248:8
224:5,14,16 225:11 : -1, : : : . actse] 49:4,5,14,22 final 131 37:8 71:9 166:7
226:15 229:19 230:8 52:11,1868:1 70:7 8110 | experiencing(y 238:6 | 52:19 143:10 e 3l _ _

. . . 85:7 109:23 113:3 117:8 . finance[s 27:15 35:10
234:15,21 235:20 237:4 131°6 13316 14117 expert[g 78:22131:6 fair (s4 3:1710:6 11:1 48:14,17,21 64:14 68:23
231:14,24238:13242:8 | 0 17914 1g | 134317425 175:7,22 31:2 33:24 39:15 40:22 80:4 113'5 141-10 144:8
204:15245:11,20246:7 | o8 n e laee 232:25 244:20 46:2 64:24 66:11 68:8 173:10,13,14 234:13

ERP 10 411194312 | 1571019 507.24 21420 |EXPertspzy 35:23523 | 691610137 18611 |financeq) 15005
177:20 224:3,3,18 225:18 Pyt : : . : 121:7 122:15 131:8,21 . .
230:24 240:10 242:14 117:9 131:22,25 132:17 f al .
229:19,20 230:24 249:17 : ’ 143:18,23,24 144:12 132:2,5,8 133:2 139:16 |n-anC|. [42] . 4:5,16
error (3 50:12 51:10 ' 145:7 23119 141:18 145:10,24 148:13 | 33:343:1853.13.25
50:2 Ex-Ante[y 230:24 . 149:7 172:10 176:5,8,20 56:22 77:11 80:18,19
ciall _ exact[z 120:17 10024 | XPlaiN(e 48:126322 | 1770778193150 80,0 | 87:45 945,10 97:17
especially (s 77:18 ) i 71:13 152:23 181:8 : ; ) : 99:7 101:14,19 123:18
, ) exactly (34 11:712:7 : 185:1 186:6 189:19 190:1
112:1116:2 1795 24-8 35:18.10 182:19 190:8 200:9 212:24 125:20,25 127:16,19
essentially (13 7:16 10104514 46:12 50-17 | €xXplained (7 3:313:22 | 215:18229:2 231:2 128:9,11 129:5 132:21
27:16 29:22 52:11 54:2 5312 62-14.17 18 65:6 52:3 73:23 83:7 105:14 236:19 237-14 23812 143:1 148:15 154:2
56:23 57:6 79:2 98:16 2412 81-2 95 64:95 117:14 242-8.24 244:15 155:19 163:7 166:22
141:24 149:1 164.22 86:1988:2490:16937 |explanations) 1279 |fairnessig 1411922 | 1/415180:22181.20
199:2 ; : ’ 104:4 , : 183:3,8 218:18,22 224:5
. 93:19 103:20 107:12 : 141:25 23411
establishz) 184:11 116:1 122:17 124:2 explorery 14:5 fall (7 56:13 146:23 2snll
200:4 147:24 210:16 226:6 expressed (5 113:4 fallingy 995 financings) 82:22
established 4 90:1 232:9 237:6 177:251851020623  |fallsy 116:6 sal4122:17
167:12179:22224:16  |Examination(s) 1:23 | 225:18 228:8 A finery 102:20
estimateig 13:21 2:3152:7 expressy (1 2282 familiar (g 20:14 finger oy 202:1
36:23,23 37:5 42:22 Examination-in-Chief extensionsy 64:19 far [e] 80:2285:2592:10 |finished [ L14
43:12 59:18 66:5 69:15 : . : 128:22 144:25 169:13 : _
[ 1:14 . firery 249:12
69:18 73:11 102:12 ined . oo extensivers 17:10,22 fashion 1 233:2 iren :
149:11 170:15 188:4 exa_-mln - [4 85:888:2 36:21 64:6 69:4 fault i ) firewall [11 90:7
20515 207:4,8 237:14 | 9>22244:9 extent s 3:621:1417 | auiti 1197 firmz 174:11232:3
estimated (g 128:9 examplepzy 10:19 48:25 185:17 favour 1 151:19 firm’spy 173:12

) . o 14:1517:15 22:21 26:19 . fear 121 116:15 163:21 . ;
188:3194:17 205:12 26:2349:2 777 80'5 external [y 79:2 _[ ] - - first[zy 3:2522:22
224:17 237:2 8539010 10821 136:8 |extrary 18185222  |feasibleqy 122:22 35:16 49:25 55:13,24

estimatesis3) 30:7 37:2 192:14 200:17 205:22 extraordi naryy 53:14 Fed 14 11:2,6 12:2,19 62:16,20,21 63:25 69:11
37:7,21,24,25 39:10,14 210:12 219:16 223-14 extremely (1 96:16 55:25 56:10,14 111:13 69:17 70:19 71:3,13
41:7 42:16 47:24 49:3 205.6 247-8 : 156:2,8 158:20,22 162:4 | 73:12 76:18 103:5,25
51:13 52:14,15 54:9 exCent (71 25:13 47:10 eyen 54:19 162:13 107:2 113:5 125:13
65:13 67:1,16,20,24 68:6 epLin 25134710 Fed’ : 130:12 140:4 141:10

82:13 119:9 137:16 186:9 Siy 119
68:8 69:12,25 72:4,11 iy : : : -F- _ _ 145:20 147:3 174:25
: : ; 222:11 Federal (77 4:1311:23 : ! :
72:1374:11,11 105:15 " . ; — 106:12 116:16 158:17 175:6 187:16 243:25
118:4 133:22 144:15,18 exc_ep 10N [z 74:15 ac_e[41 10:2 31:1 33:3 160:14 164:8 - fiscal (5] 7:14,17,19
144:21,22 208:7229:20 | 8715 87:12 ' : 157-25 162:17
235:6,18 236:11237:13 | EXCESS[1] 184:14 facing(s 18:186:617 |feem 168:3 fit 2 217:8 24315

estimating(z 6424  |exchangerz 129:17 157:16 159:15 feeling(y 62:22 Fitch 21 516,21
66:11 164:24 fact (46 3:12,2512:1 feels(s 26:18 27:24 i o

estimation 4 48:18 excitingz 249:2,7 %213257 1%5%3 1? 539 1_6137 121:17 [ 2\/8? 25\ gg ‘212:5?%4
63:10 65:10 126:3 exclusi Vely [1 34:25 41:6 447 49:6 '52_2 5'9_9 feet [11 92:20 52:12.1 59:9,21 6012,4

el[4 793116312524 | exercisery 39:2546:22 | 5017 66:16.2467:21  |[.Cl (51 1417866817 | 60:10,11 76:22 83:19
236:6 exercised 7 40:482:10 | 68381621 82:1490:14 |, °F11 96:6,17 112:12 121:11

etC(a 4:1322:17 147:14 | o pinit 11 200:24 93:794:16,23 110:3 felt (g 33:2441:379:17 121:13,22,25 122:22

Europz 164:25 165:1 exist 65:03 115:4 129:14 137:2 138:1 | 79:1883:11 215:7 227:20 | 125:17 138:16 142:8

E . . [1 - 140:24 144:21 148:16 231:15 234:24 147:1,9,20 157:18 218:25

UI’Ope[S] 4:206:8 existed (1] 4:8 : : : f | . 234:22
155:4,6,9 163:5 166:1 - 150:21 158:24 160:23,24 |Temale[1 155:11 -
Index Page 8




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

five-year - hearing

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

five-year (4 92:4,13 forecasts(s 157:20 205:12 209:8 212:23 247:19 172:19,24 173:6,18,24
112:17 128:10 206:2,9 213:23 214:2 222:12 givinge 3:1534:1 174:4,12,24 17516 176:3
fix 0 27:333:1159:21  |foregoing(y 251:2 224:14 22517 226:22,22 | 7309:1495:7 134:11227:1 | 176:10177:10,23178:22
79:23112:10121:10,16  |foreign (4 20:6 164:19 | {reely(y 1338 glad [z 16:721:20 180:14 181:7 182:16
121:22 146:25 148:2 164:21 24 frequentlv iz 14:21 ; ] 183:20 185:3,20 187:8
. e €q yi2 14 gl obal (11 8:2112:2 187:13 194:1 245:3.16
fi 2xge;:l 5[;312 2215112%112813 forever [z 7:22104:3 fZgI 12 13:2545:2 48:4 64:4 2a610
17'59:24 60:11 70: 19 25: uel (21 86:13,14 114:9 115:14 161:16 _
80:24 10321 112:11.16 | 1OT9€L (5] 18:1925:22 2 o eenn | 2341510 greenhouse(y 86:11

) _ : 43:8108:8 166:4 full (4 11:15 44:25 55:14 15, ,
118:21 119:10 122:12,21 _ | _ Greenspany 11:2
123:3148:7,1123 149:7 |forgot [y 170:25 55:14 gloomy 157:23 Grosspy 247:14
151:7 167:19 168:13 forgotten 1y 89:8 fully (y 39:12 GLYNN 1y 1:3102:17 96:9
Py i X . . funr 122:2 126:22 127:2 170:13 grossed (1 96:

fixinge) 26:9,20 28:2 formiz 59:1493:19 & : _ e

, : - , 248:7,14,20,24 249:24 | Qroup (12 58:7 73:13

148:14,20 151:24 former 1y 90:3 functiony 113:19 250:3 173:11,14,16 174:16,17
flexibility ) 94:10 formulapusg 28911  |fund(y 168:13 go-forward g 227:7,9 | 174:1820181:16 1825
flexiblery 165:21 28:1329:2,6,7,9,16 31:4 |fundamental 1] 214:4 |“530:04 182:15
float (1] 66:4 31:131732:7,10,15338 | fundamentally 1y 205 |goal (1 170:7 groups(z 20:20 223:12
floatation [z 71:23 33:1122,2334535:24 | fndingy 153:20 06SI7 322223379 |Qrowingz 67:22

: 48:1,13,17,19 50:13 64:7 goes[7) 3:2222:3 37 ,

236:9 : : : fundsi4 4:1311:23 46:18 115:20 145:6 160:10

. 79:24103:2,5,23 104:15
floating(z 148:4 149:12 . . . 167:18,19 220:15 growth g 15:16 36:14
105:18,19 106:5 108:4
floor 13 13:14110:7 109:1 110:5,6 111:24 funny g 117:13 Goldz 175:10,12 42:2561:20,24 75:22

1158119:1215145:1 | 1128101151118:16  |futureps 12:2323:25 |goneo 33:167:1269:7 | 1281 174:19

146:5 184:11 186:11,15 119:10,24,24 120:11,16 31:5 49:22 58:13 67:20 69:23 79:13 119:20 guess[is 3:6 108:2

186:19,21 205:23 120:17 121:1,3 122:6,7 67:24 118:18 133:12 138:24 140:12 145:9 157:4 159:13 167:2
floorsyy 116:2 ﬁgiigﬁgg 1?61%6147 , | 153235161624154:4 | 167:23 g%i%? gggigg ggg%

: , ; :8,11, 4 | 154557 : 7 1a : : ;
flotation py 145:25 149:17,19,23.24 151:17 good 3 267127 18:6 | 555 53550 23820
flow (s 24:23 65:2 151:23 175:24 183:22,24 18:819:57,1032:1620 | 54813

: . : ol -G- 32:2054:12 89:22 102:11 '

100:14,20 159:18 184:4,925185.12,22 102:13114:17 11621 |9UN(1 1665
flowing 1 100:20 186:1,6,8,17 189:5,25 GAAP 11 152:11 : . . . )

: : (1 152: 130:4,6 133:22 148:5 guys[z 163:17 247:13
fluctuateqy 201:23 198:22199:1346814 | gained [y 67:18 153:11 154:17 155:8
fluctuationy 206:2 | 200:4201:6,16,19,20 amern 16313 156:19,22 159:25 160:3
: 207:3,12,25208:6,13,19 |9ame(y 163: ; : ; -H-
fluctuationsis) 177:20 | 200:1.2,7210:1,6,7,23  |gap(s 141:19,22,25 o T har —

184:13,16,19 186:3 212:6,15,19,25 215:8,15 | 153:19,20 191:23 247'8t249'22_ A0 S 3
flushy 158:4 215:25 gasps 141766123  |GOUTIME (2 20 | e s 28 117:22 1185
focusis) 8:228:4112:25 |formulasie 66:17 108:1 | 81:23 82:15 86:6,9,12 106:12.23 11616 14517 | 118:8 132:9 134:8,10,11

131:12 197:18 116:1,13 150:2 186:9 86:16 88:2090:2097:19 | 1,5 Ea 5 10d 10 135:3.7 144:18 170:16
focused (1 16:24 Fortisizq 67:12,17 96:199:2,11 140:8,17 160:3,14,22 161:3164:1 | halfway [z 96:20,25
focusi ng1 225:6 82:19 88:12,12,16,24 Gaz[2 135:18 136:17 164:8 184:22 186:4,13 Halifax (2 173:15

) ) 89:11,14,2291:995:19  |Gaziferern 345 . , :
follow g 7:4,576:6 96519 69:16 12321 22 [ 34 government’s[1 174:11

116:17 130:12 164:7 12431117 16724 GDP{2 106:4 160:10 162:20 handlepy 159:13
f2|0|8:3 2.?4 211:.9 169:23 170:5 219:25 gearsiyy 78:15 gover nmentsi2 4:17 hang [ 92:20

O e e fortuitously 1y 132:4 |9€€Z[y 1:25 G7 13 . happeningy 212:8

2112212 : forward (11 14:23.25 gengral (7 58:4 106:8 1(gxtir7nor [3 11:2,8 happy (gl 10:159:20
followind s 81:21 15:8101:2102:24 122:5 | 139:22,24175:15195:13 ; 120:23 130:8 138:12

28295 12?4[-1]1 8610 160:22 176:23 207:3 251:4 GRA 2 18346 139:1 151:3 225:22

16225184 : 209:112187 gggiilol% :[;é]z .225%2_14 grade(z 73:2099:15 Harbour 1 156:16
follows[y 1055 forvyard-_l ooking2 1417 1307 139:21 gradually 1 126:4 hard[4 18:9156:22
forcery 247:2,11 207:8 208:7 195:2 201:20 206:10 grant[7 86:25173:7,11 | 208:3232:4

[2] 242, found (3 192:17 193:16 & eIl ; 173:13,16 174:5,9 har der (1 156:24
forced 62:7 193:17 generaters 32:1035:1 hia 36:2437-14 '

f : : ' 39:6 grapha 36:243r: harshy 142:23

orcesiz 20:11247:1 | four [17) 54:22,24 59:9 : 123:15 128:18 hates(y 15621
forecastag 8:139:22 | 64:1665:966:78220  |generated (s 21:16 399 | o anpgyy 1.1 [ Loo:

10:19,2313:18 32:25 111:1113:25,25127:15 | 153:6 reat o 14:16 21:16 haul (1 248:6

54:20,23 55:2,6 75:23 131:5,7,22,25 142:7 generates[y 154:1 great [o 14:16 21: Hayek [3 171:49,11

. e i1a ; . 86:14 111:23 133:21,23
105:9110,19 106:5 .113-24 249:10 generating[y 69:21 155:21 156:5 168:2 HAYES|2 126:11,17
117:23146:13157:22 |frame(s 89:91079  |genericrg 114:2123:17 |greater 1517 3710 |head (4 166:5 217:17
165:14 188:14 202:15,22 | 161:24 : : g (4 15:17 37: : _

: , - 150:13,14,17,22 151:5 134:8 229:1 221:21 244:23
203:1,6,9 207:3,13,20 framework (2 35:8 1964 :8229: health o
208:11,20,21,23209:21 |2 ' ' Greece[y 163:3 ealthrz 143:1163:7
210:17 211:4,15,15,18 ' Germansig 155:24 Greeksyz 15510 166:3 |hear (2 109:9 130:8

. . . Franceqy 3:7 156:9 166:3 : ' ) i
211:21212:9,14 213:2 0 Greeneps 130:3.7 heard (s 42:18113:1
213:10 fr ankly [1] 228:17 gl ga oulery 86:8 131:2.17 134:19,24 150:24,25 166:22 206:23

forecastersi3 8:1458:7 |freeqzq 27:1535:11,17 giveniig 5:25 30:6 136:19 137:6 139:9 242:14 251:4

111:9 . 35:22 46:21 62:5,9 177:1 97:20107:7 115:8 129:9 140:13 143:6 145:12 heari ng27 14:1015:13
forecasting4 8:15 177:15178:18184:316 | 130:20131:12 134:13 147:2,12 149:3,15151:22 | 26:24 31:1540:14 47:3

58:6 174:16 205:20 185:19186:11,21187:1 | 146:11147:7178:2187:2 | 152:2171:23172:1,4,8 56:12 87:6 103:12,18

187:5 200:2 204:12 215:16 227:3 238:4 246:8
Index Page 9




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

hearings - January

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

109:14,23 121:22 133:10
133:15 136:2,9,14 150:17
151:5,20 184:13 199:12
218:8 225:25 2331
23511

hearingsiiy 25:18 29:9
71:24 108:10 109:17,20
138:15 142:2,8 184:8
241:13

heavy 117 129:20

Hebrony 15:17

hefty 1 154:16

heldy 106:13

help 2 61:2 184:5

helped (21 192:20234:23

helpful (3 66:14 218:10
227:7

helpspy 84:22

hereby 1 251:2

hidey 144:21

high (13 37:2338:22
116:14,15 131:19 139:7
139:21 140:2 141:14
180:19 239:4,21,22

higher [24) 19:18 22:15
23:1427:20 34:1 37:1
37:16,17,25 60:13 101:25
139:24 143:15,18 196:19
202:10 203:15 217:6,14
218:10 224:7,9 228:20
240:13

highest 11 42:3

highly 11 42:17

hinged[1 11:6

hingesi1 37:6

hire[z 18:1439:3

hired [y 19:19

historici4 36:237:3
49:6 50:19 52:11,14,18
52:2353:16 63:11 67:23
220:10 228:23 229:19

historical 57 176:16,22
220:20 227:18 234:20

historically s 33:18

122:17
housekeeping(1 1:5
houses|y 145:4
housing(z 181:2,3

hugers) 4:1288:16,20
154:1 155:16 156:11
163:13 205:20

humany 171:14
hunkered [y 19:1
hurricane[z 18:19,22
hydro(z 86:15174:23

-]-
i.e[y 102:2

ideas 28:234:4 359
identical (4 179:13,14
222:10 231:5
identified [y 242:21
ignor e[z 142:24,25
ignored 1 99:7

Igor 1 18:22
illustrate[z 135:6 225:4
illustratedy 36:6
illustratingpy 224:21
IMFy 159:1
immediate[z 92:18
99:6

immediately (3 96:18
138:6 141:3
immigration 2] 154:19
155:7

impact [¢] 81:14 120:6
177:14 178:18 184:16,23
impactsyy 120:14
impaired 1] 218:24
impediment (1) 168:2
Imperial 1 135:16
implication 1 30:17
implicit [y 124:17
implicitly g 34:2 105:1
230:4

improvement (4
116:24 119:16,17 181:1
improvementsii
115:12

in-depthy 142:7
Inc(s) 82:1588:19 90:19
90:24 251:3
inception (11 215:25
incidentally [z 18:16
118:25

incipient [1 158:21
includers 94:22,23
146:4

included 4 94:8 177:22
229:20 230:4

includinge 4:12 14:7
174:22 176:22 227:25
234:13

inclusionz 185:15
223:13

incomer4 92:14 167:19
168:13 169:16

incompetent [ 19:14
19:19

inconsistent [y 91:8

incor por aterg 51:12
54:8 55:13

incor porated 1 52:7

incorrect 21 107:18
1435

increase[is 3:2185:12
85:21 86:18 87:13,14,16
87:19,19 139:17 154:16
163:12,22 178:15 186:22
186:23 213:18 218:15

increased (7 14:25
26:22 85:15 86:20 87:13
192:19 200:25

increasesis) 3:2287:4
116:18 162:21,23 187:4

increasing(s) 14:20
15:4 156:3 160:11 187:6

increasingly (i 141:17

incredibly 2 82:18,23

indicating(4) 114:11,20
138:22,25
indication [z 120:8
243:25

indicator [y 162:13
indices[y 228:18
indirect [y 230:5
indirectly 1 43:12
individual [g] 16:14
42:16,17 73:1 87:2
139:23

inexperienced 1 62:14
inflate[y 116:18
inflation g 37:22
106:15 116:23 158:21,24
159:2,6 161:21
inflationary (1 106:7
inflations[y 159:9
influencery 236:21
influenced [y 86:24
influencing 1 200:1
information (25 1:8,9
25:23 32:17 36:3 47:18
49:750:2371:1372:2,4
74:9 101:1 126:23,25
134:4 140:18 148:22
150:14 179:5,9 182:7
221:1 23810 242:7

informativery 242:25
informingy 43:13

infrastructurery
173:11

infusion [y 4:12

ingredient 2 47:14
130:25
ingredientsiy 47:12
inherent [y 209:8
initial [y 4:15

input (1 66:25
inputsiz 33:17 204:8
insight [1] 176:22
instability 2 52:23
120:12

82:18 83:11,13,18 92:6
94:7,8,9,22 97:17,24
98:5,12,18 99:8,11,14
99:17 100:18 101:9 107:7
110:4 138:20,23 143:2
148:1,7,8,19 151:9 156:3
158:5 160:20 167:25
187:6 229:9 242:7

interesting[1 150:5

internal 77 104:21
161:17

internallyy 68:7
international [y 4:5
internet [y 133:8
interpret [y 39:5
interpreting[y 131:1
intersection 21 20:20
73:25

intervenor 1 14:14
introduce[z 184:17,19

invaded [7] 155:24
156:10

invest [ 164:14
investing i 13:22
investment (131 73:20
73:21 88:9 99:15 141:5

165:8 168:3,6,8 192:8
193:4 218:11 234:20

investments|y 132:22

investor [5] 77:25183:5
217:5218:6,9

investor’'syy 13:21

investors[g 13:4,8
21:11,18 64:25 65:3
138:12,25 224:6

invests(y 138:5

involved [z 131:15
174:20

involves[y 178:8
iotafy 210:19
idand [z 58:25 65:19
isolation [y 58:4
issuerzg 38:1182:23

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

49:9,10 implied 2 34523820 |indefiniters 25:21.24  |instancerq 152:10 e S
h!story [2] 50:21 197:23 !mpll%[z] 43:20 65:2 5813 21812 233:13 241:1 98.10.10'99:5 145:25
hit 21 18:24 119:12 Important (3 18:11 indefi nltely 5 11:12 instead 10 55:16,17 147:1'3 152:10 161:1,6
hold (4 93:5173:25 33:2144:967:1968:14 | 11:22,24 147:8 151:24 114:15116:18 117:1 169:9 182:17 183:21

224:415 85:1387:2292:10105:17 |indenturery 94:7 143:3186:12 214:3 194:14 213:22 226:25
holder 1y 802210124 | 100 5o 00310710 findependent 17 11513 | 222:19.24 2291123211

102:2 oo - 128:7 133:11 134:6 instructed iy 231:17  |issued (7 82:16,19 88:12

176:25 183:25 193:21 ; : : 53 020 OF B 167
holder S[2] 19:18 92:17 105:6 215:7 218:1 219:9 |, 146:18,22 175:22 INnsurancej 167:19 . 91:23 93:9 96:6 167:24
holdings] 90:5140:22 | 229:12241:18,23,25 independently (1 234:4 integrated (2 242:16  |ISSU€S[10] 31:1559:2

224:5,8227:11,12 242:9 244:14,16 index (7 531376:7,16 | 243:16 103:4 122:3 180:23
holds(y 224:6 importantlyy 68:11 | 76:20162:8,9230:3 integrity (4 101:19 183:16 219:20 246:4,15
honest[s) 14:1958:14  |imposes(y 80:23 indicate[is 15:6 72:4 218:18,23 226:21 Italians(z) 155:10 166:2

67:5111:14 165:17 : : . 72:11 85:13 114:6,17 | ntegrys(z 241:1,14 ItaIy [2] 155:13 163:3

IMmposingy 90:6 144:17,22,23199:2 N Ltem 4 1-8.9 126:23 25
honestly 1 15:5 imposition [z 80:23 23092 235:24, 24215 intention 2] 186:20 _ 4 18, 123,
hoperz 113:18 136:14 81:10 indicated (11 50:2564:1 | 209:13 Itemsyy 1:5
hopelessly (1 19:14 impossible(z 168:7 _ : a1 |INteresties) 6:14,208:8 |itselfz 5:1190:18
1€ 87:1299:23 121:13 1314 | om0 0% S0 o
horrificiy 125:25 170:2 151:7192:5215:6 22655 | 10.5711'17 194 10 2510
: : i essionisticu 239:16 R o e -J-
hour (g 102:12170:16 | IMPYESSONISUC] 29 26:22 27:17,19 37:23

248:9 1623 indicates(s 104:24 53:1055:256:4,5,10,13 |Januaryg 1:1127:14

house[s 96:21,25 Impressivery 133:19 139:6 1416 56:15 57:11 58:9,12 127:15 128:24,24 235:19
Index Page 10




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

Japan - MacDonald

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

237:13 251:10 14:1315:10,21 16:9,20 197:25 214:9 183:11,14 186:22190:7 | 137:25144:9,9,10,12
Japany 154:18 203212102250005 |\ MOt 1598 25204 | 15591575 161416316
j%psanese[.l] 156:15 23:5,8,15 24:5,15,19 tnowledge[ll] 122 ) o elsig 144:9,10 170,16 | 1644416931957
J (2 129:7,14 25:11,15 26:5,14 27:1 nows[z 75:15133:4 181:4 183:19 206:7 196:17,18 197:4,5,21
ersey 2 74:16,22 27:10,22 28:10,14,15 239:21.22 208:14 210:12 218:7
iobg 181319:17 29:5,10,17 30:9,14,15 -L- , 227:17 231:15 239:2
L ol sa 1500 | 3022 31:9.22 32.6 33:16 leveragery 81:3 242:9
los.s e : 34:8,14,23 35:4,737:13 |Labrador 5 175:21 liabilitiesie 153:34.6  ||ooked (30] 11:20 19:23
John'sial 251:6.9 38:1,7,19 39:16,24 40:4 181:24 251:5,6,9 ]:53:23 154:5,6 33:6 45:24 46:6,9 56.12
Joh (2] R 40:941:1142:51543:6  |lack [z 18:5165:24 Light 1 166:23 70:11 72:13 94:13,14
o ool 1> 2820 432122441 142021 | lacks(y 61:23 likely 14 113:14,14 99:23 100:23 124:20
171121531322 218:1 | 47-16 48:8.25 49:23 50.7 | 1291 138:21 |.164123 221:9 T e
218:14 217:4,12,19 218:4 '5351-4 52 6 |laid [y 149:19 Imity 421 o onet A ’
50:23 51:4 52:1,7,4 53:6 oo 204:9 205:5,6,9 219:6
218:21 219:21 220:3,8 53:12,19 54:17 55:3,10 |anguage[1] 38:13 I!m!tat!on [1] 228:13 293:15 238:6,9 2426
220:13,18,24 221:5,10 56:17 57:2,8,15,16,20 largers 116:21185:17  |limitationsg 227:24 | Jovio oo o0 411 15
221:16,22 222:381523 | 57:2558:18,2259:560:1 | 19794 228:9 229:15 KING[43 20:4,11.1
223:4,20 224:1,12,23 60:14.22 61-4 8.13.22 : limited ] 20:23,25 22:1 36:2 45:19
225:91523226:3.1218 | pp4 6 o4 6315 6413 largely (11 4:25 Imitedy 75:14 50:18 59:7 63:18,18,19
226:24 228:1,11,21 12 R7E B B0 1 larger (17 193:13 limits[z 17:24 191:11 67:9,17 69:1,3 73:19
66:13 67:5,6 68:9,19,25 : D )
229:17,24 230:11,16,21 "4 70; : last 10 15: limory 11:4 87:2196:21 111:11
69:4 70:5,12,17 71:12 (27 14:10 15:13 _ 134:10 139:23 140:19.20
231:20,24 232:10,20 71:15,19 72:14,19,21 34:24 36:2540:1358:8  |line[21 22:8,12 24:25 14021 1438 1548
233:11,1823234:7 2353 | 73:917 74:4,142175:4 | 60:6,8,21 61:11 69:23 31:15 41:16 45:3 70:25 17623 188:19 162:4.10
235:10,14236:315237:1 | 75:12,24 76:17 77:4,15 77:13,16 79:12 81:11 123:14 125:17,22,24 195:17 1665 20216,
237:8,21 238:14,19,25 78:1379:15,2580:10,14 | 91:6 106:13,24 109:16 130:10 189:16 218:7 207-4.18 21112 519:14
239:6,11,1523240:315 | g0:1581:1682:183:1,5 | 138:16,16 142:10149:16 | 224:17 226:7 230:18 21818 293:10 297:15
240:23241:417242:13 | g3:14,22 84:11,16,21 150:15 168:1 206:20 233:7,25 234:9 236:10 Sy '
oir1n s oaes | BILBSZIETOI2EEL | 24614 link 1 209:7 looksin 22:223:2337:8
25, = 88:15,2589:6,17,24 laters 61:1162:1765:8  ||iquidi : [7] ccc 2583 5/
Johnson’s(y 119:6 00111591:26,7.1521 | J047 liquidity 1y 158:3 90:23 93:22 146:20 231:1
ioined s 173:13174:8 | 92:1993:2 94:12 95:3,9 , list (3 68:583:17240:18 ||osses(z 241:6,7
g SIS LS o025 06807510 |laLter [ 97:14 listed [y 179:20 lost (2] 65:24 142:19
oini _ 98:7,1499:2,22100:7  |LAURENCE @ 23 | jigten 1 141:10,12 I ) :
joiningy 174:5 100-11 15 53 1014 1027 | 1527 _ 10, OW [30] 11:11,17 12:22
JP-1111 209:24 oo A : . listened 4 38:23127:12 | 20:20 38:14,20 39:14,20
S S 102:19,25 103:16,22 lawy 26:12 222:16 244:20 30:21 41:8 51:10 58:13
judge(s 39:12105:3,11 | 106:25107:13,24108:12 ||aws(1 20:8 oo : Py ety
: . ) . (U literallv 1 98:10 59:18 70:25 74:2 75:10
133:12 170:4 108:19,25 109:6,10,25 _ Yy 98: ; PP
. ; : lawyer 1) 28:24 : , 82:18,21 110:4 136:24
d : 110:19 111:2,15,21 literatureq 52:25
ud ¢ ~moq | 112:18,23113:9 114:24 [4] 180: - 194:13 195:2 196:4 : : :
juagment (33 13:6 39:1 115:25 117°6 118:13.22 191:3195:14 litioated i 177:1,14 178:18 184:3
40:1,4,7 41:9 43:13 : v , itigated (3 109:13,16 187:2 206:6 229:9
: e 119:1,2,5,21 120:3 leader 1 173:13 109:22
19501 17 b baps | 12125122111241254 |leadership(n 16525  |litigationry 13521 | ooy L3 819342
5,02 9L £ 998 O 1241481925 12511 || o ) g [ 3o 84:14 99:10 114:19
61:2463:10 130:14,19 126:7151924 127:49 | eadingy 194:19 litmus(z 97:24 99:1 123:17 136:17 141:8
131:1,15132:14 143:8,9 : : leads(y 227:6 li -8 120: 142:20 143:2 158:5 165:9
14310 1776 178:11 128:12,16,21 129:2,8,23 ivers 105:8 120:13
1905 21790 238 1521 | 130:9.14,17 14516 least (9 9:7 12:4 14:21 122:7 165:12 229:5 245:10,11
1u dy oedp 11 149:20150:6 187:17,23 | 72:1091:6110:7138:16 ||jved 1] 153:22 I 24512(;4611
(21 251:2, 188:2,8,12,18,22 189:4 165:15 226:5 : _ owered (3 79:19 218:18
July 2y 53:21,24 189.9,1523190:914  ||eavery 247:21 livesyy 171:16 21819
Junes 5255320543 | 191:4131824192:12 |} e 95.8171:7 loath g 20:9 loweringz 1182
111:10 234:16 192:22 193:2,11,24 194:9 led 121 23921 '22 ' local 17 65:20 219:13
e : 194:21 195:15 196:2,9 (2] 239:21, logici 208:3 _ :
jurisdiction(y 26:6 196:16 197:16 198:2.14 | left [ 127:19 gicy 2083 |lowest (g 11:16 13548
215:25 226:6 19820 25 199:13 206:10 longer (7 7:248:1926:1 | 138:3
jurisdictional (21 26:11 | 200:16,23 201:5,11,24 :eft;;Jhand 2 54195719 | 65:2398:20161:2163:7 || ydlow’s[y 18:16
1223 202:8,14,24 203:8,14,19 | €98 (1] 148:25 longest 1y 31:18 lunch 27 170:11 171:20
justification 2y 66:23 | 203:24 204:3,14,19 205:2 |legality (1 148:21 look (98] 10:18 12:25
109:14 205:13,19206:3,15,19  |legally [z 27:892:24 16:17 19:13 20:9 21:9 M-
2617042001225 | CoISAON Iy 1414 | %1224 | MacDonald s 6016
K- Ll .1z, it . : : .12, [214] 60:
K 210:5,11 211:6,14,20,25 I‘i%'lt,'zr?%f_ 1 1014316 1 37:21942:20,20,34 62:20 63:8 69:14 101:10
K [z 75:17 76:21 212:4,12 213:3,11,25 ' : 45:1549:1952:11,13,14 | 118:5133:23153:12
I h ;
keep (7 10:111:1154:19 | 214:823215:5248:3 engthy 109:5 53:22 57:9 60:18 64:2 172:35,6,16,22 173:4,9
61:14 158:12 192:2 223:9 | 249:3 |eSS[6] 97:16 114:21 67:15 68:13 69:11,24 173:20,21 174:1,7,14
: , o | keot 1 31:20 139:3141:20 148:11 81:1,483:1587:16 88:12 | 175:3,19176:7,14 177:13
keepingz) 11:22 218:19 kep 4[ ]25,7 1872038 | 15116 91:14 93:5,7,19,21,22 178:7179:2 180:18
keepsiy 19:15 zeyzg[ 1]0 I ESEESE | asser (27 3:641:19 95:11 96:3,497:1598:24 | 181:12182:23183:23
Kelly(ssg 1:17,21 2:34 ' level 24 47-10 56:19 99:16 100:5,21 101:3,9 185:9,24 187:9,11,18,21
2:7,8,173:1,11 47,23 Keynesz 171:4,9 97_22[ 9]8,18' 13119 101:13,21 117:7,9 124:14 | 187:25188:6,10,16,20
5:12,226:6,12237:25  |Kind iz 831852423 | 12500 50 125:17 131:18 132:19,22 | 189:2,7,13,21 190:3,12
8:249:11,1210:411,12 | 28:1732799:25125:16 | ;2700000 200 132:24133:19,21134:1 | 190:19191:9,15,22 192:9
10:16 12:6,2113:914:2 | 159:21 161:23190:1 e : 134:25 1351 136:4 192:16,25 193:6,15 194:7
Index Page 11




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

MacDonald’s - nail

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

194:12 195:4,24 196:7
196:14 197:2,19 198:23
199:7,23 200:14,21 201:3
201:9,17 202:6,12,20
203:4,11,17,22 204:1,6
204:17,24 205:4,17,24
206:8,17,24 207:5,9,16
208:1,8,15,22 209:6,19
210:3,8 211:1,8,16,23
212:2,7,20 213:9,20
214:6,21,24 215:1,4,11
215:20 216:1 218:12,15
217:2,7,10,16,25 218:13
219:3220:1,6,9,11,16
220:22 221:2,8,13,19
222:1,6,13,21 223:2,7
223:24 224:10,20 225:3
225:13,21,24 226:1,10
226:16,20 227:13 228:7
228:15 229:7,22 230:2,6
230:13,19 231:13,22
232:1,8,12,17,22 233:16
233:21 234:5 235:1,8,12
235:16 236:1,13,24 237:5
237:17 238:1,17,23 239:1
239:3,9,13,19 240:1,8
240:21 241:2,9,22 242:19
243:1,6,19 244:12,22
245:1,13,22 246:11,16
246:21,25 247:5,16,22
249:14,19

MacDonald’s[s 61:9
61:15,18 132:7 170:15

macroj[iy 195:8

macr 0economic iy
219:15

magnified 1 81:12
magnifies[z) 80:24 81:4
magnifying(z 81:6,7
magnituder: 110:20
main i 123:12
mainline[z 17:16,20
Mainline sy 86:21
maintain s 182:21
184:7 217:21 219:19
226:21

maintainingi 183:18

major [5 3:2515:18
93:25 135:16 164:22

majoringi 174:2

maker (e 8:2112:2 48:4
64:4 114:9 115:14

makersiy 14:1
makes(z) 41:2 50:24
maniiy 11:3
manage[z 18:14 161:15

203:15

Maritime[s 65:24
136:8 219:24

mark [z 153:15,25

marked [z 1:9248:17

marker 27 82:8,10

mar ket (100 12:313:3
13:20 23:23 35:19,21
37:639:1343:2 44:3
46:20 50:21 51:1,12
52:10 53:5 54:14 64:5
67:2 70:23 76:11,13,14
77:1279:1,10 82:11 83:2
83:4 85:16,18,20,24 86:4
88:8 105:2,7,12 110:14
111:9 113:20 114:7,11
115:14 116:16 118:1
120:14 125:23 128:1,2,8
129:16,19 130:21 133:12
134:7,8,14 137:25 138:2
138:14,18,21,23 139:5,5
139:18 140:6,7,16,24
141:4,11,12,12,13 145:25
149:21 150:14 153:15,25
156:7 166:23 167:10,10
167:16 173:16 176:22,23
179:6 181:1 195:22
197:17,22 198:11 234:1
234:25 237:11,18 238:9

mar ketable[y 168:14

marketplaces 197:5
197:6 227:19

mar kets[s7n 4:6 12:16
39:2347:9 48:353:2
50:11 68:12 78:22 79:3
79:12 82:4 87:5 92:11
94:11 95:2 98:21 106:14
112:3114:18,20 115:13
116:24 119:16,18 120:9
121:4 137:23 140:1 146:8
151:15 153:24 197:12
201:23 221:7,18 247:10

Mary’siy 174:3

material [14 30:3,5,6,8
84:17,19 99:21 104:16
120:6 150:22 156:12
181:15 182:10 183:2

math [z 202:18 205:14
mathematical [y 116:5
matrix[z 182:3183:8

matter (5] 107:19 131:4
131:7 135:24 213:6

matter s[4 107:20
171:24 175:5178:12

maturefy 67:22
maturity [z 94:1,2
maximize[y 197:10

M cShanez4 20:16
31:14 33:14 62:9,15,15
62:17 73:25 77:19 85:7
86:5 110:16 132:11
133:20 136:9 137:9 144:2
144:17 177:24,25 192:15
218:6 226:5 233:4

M cShan€ s[10 14:16
34:4 74:16,19 75:9 78:3
78:6 111:1 136:5 178:20

mean [54] 21:15 30:1
32:13 36:1 45:10 50:16
52:16 55:6 57:1,5,14,15
59:562:13 69:3,14 72:19
75:8 79:9 80:3 82:18
84:20 96:2 98:25 106:22
120:2 121:9134:18
138:11 147:15,15,24
149:6 154:25 158:4,12
158:16 159:20 160:8
164:13,14 165:7 166:8,9
166:15,24 169:2 186:21
194:4 228:16 231:25
232:2 234:21 246:14

meaningz 11:5196:1

meansji2] 36:13 56:2
119:18 138:4,12 141:2
142:2,11 144:10 14511
151:6 2518

measur e[y 128:2
measur esy 23:22

mechanical [3 38:14
38:17 47:23

mechanism 25 13:14
25:6,16,19 28:3 29:19
31:8,21,24 54:10,12
79:21 105:3 108:21
122:19 146:3,4,22 151:6
151:8 184:7 185:12
199:21 201:15 223:18

mechanisms|iy 16:22
19:22 21:5,5,24 23:18
24:1 120:22 146:24 182:3
214:11

mediafy 59:12
median [z 71:175:17
medium [4 98:4,11 99:6
148:17
meet (6] 94:6,19 184:1
185:1 186:6 218:15
members[y 132:19
mention [z 60:565:8
mentioned (12 7:4
16:12 17:15 18:4 19:10
27:1455:21 67:11 69:13
72:18 130:23 158:7

mentioning[i 243:20

229:16 238:4,7

methodology (11 42:8
43:14 44:10 63:23 131:24
177:18 179:3 191:2,12
228:10,12

methods|3 176:12,17
177:3

metriciz 218:12,16

metrics(g 97:7,17 99:24
101:9,23 102:2,4 218:19

Metroqy 136:17

M etropolitan 1
135:18

mid [s] 106:1,2 116:13
142:17 151:9

middle[z 60:7 70:21
77:8

midway [1] 128:23

might (12 31:254:11
60:23 67:9 96:6 133:3
143:22 150:6 170:16
171:7 218:10,20

million (10 18:17 84:7
88:13 95:14,17 154:13
154:14 167:20 168:4,17

mimicsqy 33:12
mind [3 127:8 223:9
243:4

mindful 4 183:15
194:16 206:1 218:18
minepz 23:17 34:11
minimum [y 138:6
Minuss 184:17 224:18
225:1,2,11,18 228:5,6
minusingi 226:8
minutes 73:4 125:12
153:18

minutes(s 14:4 38:3
63:16 102:10,20
minutia[y 16:13
mirror [ 209:10
mirrors[y 88:23
Mmisimpression [2]
127:20,24

miss[y 122:2
missed [ 32:4
mistakes[y 19:15
misunder standingi1
48:15

mitigatery 184:15
miX[3 180:2 210:20
244:4

model (221 32:24 36:8,9

moment [17] 12:16 17:18
18:140:11 46:19 47:25
59:16 110:15 114:14
117:21118:1121:5
135:20 160:9 161:13
162:1 203:12

momentsi4 70:891:9
118:15194:1

Monday [2 226:2
248:13

monetary (3 7:19 158:2
158:6

money (¢ 35:11,12,13
83:6 163:2,3

month (3 12:1 158:8
211:18

monthly [y 144:16

months(s] 60:6 64:17
94:21 122:14 163:10

Moody’ sie 5:21,23,25
179:18 183:7 198:6

morning iy 1:4 2:5,7
102:11 111:4 123:7 130:4
130:6 162:3219:2 248:13

morphed 1 4:9

mortgage o 83:15,16
122:10,11,12,13 148:2,4
149:12,14

Moss[2 251:2,11

most [18) 6:20 20:10
41:18 42:9 44:9 58:16
84:197:25111:9 123:6
128:11 130:9 150:21
169:22 177:4 192:10
196:22 234:16

motivated [y 116:20

mover4 14:5110:8
123:5198:21

moved [y 142:17
movements[y 209:10
moving(z 145:13
201:22

M sz 1:314:16 20:16
30:431:14 33:14 34:4
62:9,14,15,17 73:25
74:16,19 75:8 77:19 78:3
78:6 85:6 86:5 95:4,4
101:23 102:17 110:16
111:1113:1 126:22 127:2
132:11 133:19 136:5,8
137:9144:1,17 170:13
171:23 177:24,25 178:20
185:6 192:14 193:25
206:22 207:23 218:6
226:4 233:4 248:7,14,20
248:24 249:24 250:3

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

management ] 18:8 : _ _ 36:13,1537:1,4 38:18 mulberryy 218:9
19:5 7911 15 19[ ) maximum i 242:1 Mercer [5) 42:23105:10 41:2 48:23 64:18 65:11 ltip| yu )
N . . . 133:6 134:2 165:13 104:24 109:2 115:16.17 multiple[iy 43:11
managerial (1 18:11 | May (30 4:218:109:15 _ : o e | 44:10,1245:15,19 72:7
mandated 1 899 1519 38:9 56:20 57:3 MesS[3] 44:16,20,24 116:11117:5190:1 2135 | 50076 000200
: [ S5 57:10 67:3,17 75:8 78:16 | method (10 48:18 213:6,16 o283
Manitoba(z 104:810 | 78:2379:19 89:4 95:10 176:16 177:4,16,20 modelled (1 166:9 municipal i 1087
manner [1j 177:5 95:11101:8 127:19 129:9 | 178:12 223:10 228:23 modelsqie 36:1139:9 paliy 108:
March [z 53:1855:11 130:8 131:3167:9168:12 | 230:9231:15 64:3,6,9,10,17 21,22 must (7 98:15 186:22
marging 50:1251:10 | S8k5182:721412216:2 | methodologiesiss) 65:4,11 66:10 69:6
52:2 M24f|313 6'24a| g 34:16 68:14 176:12,18 116:20 130:24 131:13 -N-
; . cDonald 1 10:20 176:21 178:10 190:23 moder ating 11 200:5 : ,
marginally 2 84:14 1017 227-94 2985 gy nail (11 107:22
Index Page 12




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

naive - page

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

naivers 13:1814:3
36:12,14 41:8

narrowi[z 113:16
192:20

national [3] 81:22 86:19
173:12

natural [y 86:12

naturers 230:9 231:6
239:21

near 11 135:9

NEB [19 17:2318:129:1
29:7,8,1531:17,18 32:14
33:1,7,8 104:12 106:4
109:17 135:12,15 142:5
150:24

necessarily 2 194:4
199:4

necessary (3 163:6
199:3243:18

need [25) 26:24 55:1
67:2368:1371:783:2,4
108:20,22 109:11 111:23
116:11 120:16 123:7
150:10 157:20,21 167:10
178:12 179:3193:21
199:6 209:25 214:12
230:14

next 421 2:21,22 5:14
10:17 12:4 24:6 28:16
34:1540:12 43:9 48:10
49:24 53:21,22 55:11
56:20 60:6 69:19 70:6
70:24 78:14 84:991:24
103:1110:1 112:15114:4
121:7,10,14 125:1 135:5
137:7 138:10 148:3
149:11 171:25 189:10
201:25 248:15,18 249:23

nexus(z 20:19 73:24
nicery 10:20

night (3 60:2161:11
119:6

niner4 106:21 134:10
134:10 145:10

NLP[2 167:1,2

nobody s 3:185:10
82:24133:4 167:1

nonis 6:3,19 196:20
223:13 228:17

non-accelerating
11:14

non-equilibrium y
6:22

non-payment (1 164:5

212:16

novitiatery 249:18

NOW [109] 6:16,24 7:7,21
9:111:6 19:21 20:22
22:15 24:6 28:16 29:2
34:9,25 36:7 37:2,11
38:12 40:10 41:12 44:15
44:25 45:14 46:16 47:2
49:24 51:2 52:5,13 53:20
54:22 55:11,15 56:9,18
58:11 62:5 63:16 66:3
67:14 69:3 75:9,25 76:5
77:16 78:14,15 79:9 80:1
82:9,23 85:2 88:289:1,7
90:8 103:23 105:19,25
106:14 107:20,25,25
110:1,21,21 112:2 116:4
116:25 117:12 119:22
126:8 130:19 140:10,14
142:20 148:10 151:17
154:14 158:23 160:24
161:4,7 162:4 163:10
165:13 167:23 170:11,19
172:25176:11 177:24
180:15 182:17 183:21
185:4,5,21 188:24 190:10
193:12,25 198:21 204:20
206:20 211:2 235:4
241:14 248:13

obviously 11 3:221:15
55:7 60:13 115:19 131:3
144:4 156:23 161:19
219:4 236:20

occasions[y 175:9
occurred[y 227:19
October [21 212:3,10

OEB [15] 28:7 43:17 44:7
44:12 45:4,7,12,14 99:7
109:19 120:16 135:22
137:16,18 142:4

off [19] 13:2,525:7 29:1
32:21 49:8 50:22 79:9
86:16 94:2 155:11 188:14
207:12 209:14 217:17
218:7 221:20 226:23
244:23

Officer [y 166:22
offset [y 7:14

offsettings 7:18 180:3
193:21

often[y 150:11

oil (3 81:24 135:14,17
old y 226:25

oncejz 44:16 66:20
onefio3 2:205:14 25:16

91:1182:1192:6 195:19
operation [ig 55:18,22
55:25 56:1,23 108:2
113:22 114:25 208:13,18
operationsyy 140:21
opinion i1 130:15,19
155:21 165:5 175:22,25
176:11,19 178:2,6 249:6
opportunit i 145:23
opportunitiesyi
174:19
opportunity [z 13:21
35:564:25 113:2 125:6
127:10,23
opposed [7] 4:2557:12
207:21 209:15 210:20
222:18 225:1
opposite[1 161:8
optimist (1 165:19
option 4 27:15112:4
122:8 149:21
optionsyy 111:25
order [13 19:931:12
32:7 73:18 76:9 89:19
102:1,3110:20 121:3
143:1 171:25 208:18

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

needed 2 190:22 214:17 | non-regulated 2 nowherery 96:1 S | dered y 89:25
needs(a 27:25130:25 | 174:22 230:10 NP3 33108479720 | 4810 4095 5351 eegq | OF d€r Sy 200:18
210:7,9 none(s 59:868:2242:4 | NP-CA [y 3:13 5514 56.2057-759-11 | Of19inal (2 116:20
negativers 75:2281:8 | nonsensery 1521517 |NP-CA-05(y 41:12 50:1465:11,13,1566:15 | L11O
83:8 94:25 194:4 152:19 NP-CA-15 67:25 68:20 70:22,24 Orlglnal |y [11 104:6
neutrality m 20818 | nor g 200:13 Ao 439 71472:573:127423  |otherwiserz 207:22
: : oa NP-CA-271y 97:11 751976:1085:2186:7 | 212:17
Never [ 32:23109:17  |normal (1 3:237:15 NP-CA-29 . : 2 02 O3
127:8137:12 138:17 8:15 12:15 47-8,10 59:23 -CA-2911 49:24 86:2487:3 90:393:8 outcomesiz 184:1
167:17 193:8 242:4 110:1517 112:12 1215 |nub 1 38:11 100:20106:11,16 107:5 | 186:6
New (13 29:950:22 74:16 | normalization (z 22:22 | NUMDEr (21 313408 | 11524 1e 3990 r0es.  |OUtlier g 41:2542:2,12
74:22 94:19,20 159:8 243 719972157517 76:23 | 1565015766 19916 45:5,6,7,11 136:23 137:1
162:13,16 174:19 1827 Ihormally (s 4:1814:13 | 1/%15179:6 190:11 130:13 132:13 136:6 outliersa 45:875:21
213:2 234:10 14:18,18 49:5 197:12,20 202:19,25 138:19,22,25 140:10 output (3 16:18 21:9
Newfoundland 100 020 A 203:2 207:21 209:15 SR _ osn
[100] t : ; P 141:2,9,18143:21 147:5 | 23:21
14:9.24 15:2.6.12.25 normativery 65:5 212:1,3 222:4 244:5 : : : .
924 19:5,0,12, Nortel 111 230:4 . 149:21 150:17 151:1 outsidery 106:15
18:2419:3 21:21,23 B - number s[i3 31:16,25 153:13,18 160:20,21 .
22:21 24:3,11 28:25 northy 58:25 38:15,20,22 39:3,5,6,8 164:20 166:11 169:22 outstandingz) 167:6,9
56:2165:18 78:10,17,19 |Northern [ 135:16 63:13,14 70:3 204:15 170:20 188:23 190:11 overall [11] 15:12 42:24
78:23 79:16 82:5,8 83:25 NorthTé (2] 129:6,15 numer ous[y 234:12 192:17 193:12,25 197:3 84:10 169:18,20 180:16
8853,4,7,17 ?39:9,12,19 h . nutshell (1] 139:14 201:7,18 208:12 211:18 19257 193:4,19 197:12
80:23,2591:319,20,23 | NOrthwest 2 135:13,14 NY U ) 214:14 2182 2238 236:25
94131518 95117 97.2 | nOlELy 64512316 [ 233:20 22725 228:16 231:9 overnight (1 11:22
119 99: ; : 12181 237:19 240:19,24 241:5 ' .
121:17 124:20 132:5 182:9 183:10 186:24 O- 454 2484 oversight(z) 239:10,12
144:11 147:16 167:6,8 191:11 206:12 228:24 onesis 4187615786 | CVUn [ 46:555:7 132:23
168:16169:21,25170:2 | 229:12230:22,23 232:24 |Obamay 163:10 139,531 19010 132:24183:5
170:7 172:10 175:21 233:8 234:8 236:4 objective[r 16:1754:8 0 IO owned [6] 65:25 66:2
176:15178:4179:13,15 |noted (4 183:10205:10 | 54:15133:34,5177:4 ongoing2 159:16 78:1135:16 137:20 217:5
179:21,25 181:9,16,18 227:23 242:3 objectively (11 143:22 Ollg\;ISI:\jS _ ownership 2 93:15
181:21,2223251828 ' Ipntegry 08:4,1199:6 | objectsiy 35:9 [ 19:2 230:5
182:11,13,18,20 183:12 . Lo Ontario[g 43:1099:4
185:4 186:23 187:4 23118 obligationy 164:6 108:2,6 135:17 136:18
193:18215:17 218:18,22 |NOthings) 7:2282:312 | obligations(y 15211 | 137:21 168:13 -P-
217:14,2321823229:3 | 212140101580 1594 | ohservation s 14:24  |openinga 2272198  |P.M7 151:21 17117
229:6 241:21 242:2 % 137:13 139:4 189:16 242321 171:21 198:19 225:20
245:12 246:8 251:3,4,6 notice[y 66:14 220:4 - 240:14 250:7
251:9 ; . ' . operate[4 89:10 189:5 ' :
NEWMAN (1l 1605 notingy 179:18 observationsyi 1857 | 506:22 212:14 pagess) 22:7 24:20
1] : . - . . .
' Novary 16:2 observed (3 204:9 205:9 | oper ated 1 201:15 28:19 36:7 70:6,21 72:24
newsii 161:19 November 121 167:23 224:15 oper atesiy 212:6 72:2573:3,3,576:3
newspaper (3 40:25 172111320814 2113 |obvious(y 4511748 | oPo creowd 212 123:11,12 125:13 126:12
50:7 132:19 211:4 212:1,5,6,10,14 95:16 operatinge 21:5,23 140:6 187:20,22 188:13
Index Page 13




: ™ . .
January 18, 2013 Multi-Page paid - price
NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA
189:12191:8,21,25192:1 | 160:24 167:11171:15 Perry (7 30:4 95:4 213:6,15221:23223:18 | 179:15182:8,11 218:19
2184,15220:14,1519 | per (4 25:13113:21 101:23 113:2 185:6 227:22 236:9 245:19 217:1
223:21,23 230:17 233:25 155:11 192:6 206:22 207:23 246:5 247:1 pr actical [2 95:5,12
paid s 18:1592:3,14 6:11,16 8:16 9:2310:2 | person (1 48:23 371154316 pre-filed (27 172:14,20
94:2 169:18 10:2211:1319,2112:12 | nersonal (1 132:20 pointing[y 38:22 preciser 53:9 10419
panalopy (1 108:3 137211314 2412252 | hev sonally ) 21811 pointsz 11243058 |0 oot 2910619
panel (s 44:7,8,11 25:8,21 26:20 29:22 fi ) 54:1369:5 7158 72:16 | P& [ L0
132:19 142:12 30:11,1932:1,99,11 per spec I\{e[5] ?6'2 107:14 110:9,22,25 predicted 1 33:8
paper [ 93:10 335 41:18 49:9,10,12 14716 1495193810 | 1155511323 114:256 | predominantlyz
aradox (1 19:17 50:1951:2752:1228 | PESSMISKIC[y 165:18 | 120:24,24 123:5,8 144:25 | 140:25 241:14
par aco ([;S Y gggigzzl 33%3’%‘2’%1 petition (1 92:17 145:9 148:11 176:21 pref(y 96:18
P 481622504751 | G024 1011 611y pﬂasgtg [ 168:21 T B 18 I prefer 12 16:16 10513
paramountu &4 | S8/ TS0 PIISEA0® | sossaraseian  |Pideedin to2
paraphrasery 4:21 §217208317,1921  |phrasers 4106125 | P01and 2 15624156110 | gg15 139190 53 6.0
pardon 4 1:202:1 84:885:2190:1091:14 | pick (3 114:4 1236 policy 17 7:14,17,1919 | 921225 93:69,11,16
170:24 248:23 96:7,17,17,17,19,20 230:10 8:2111:10 12:2 13:25 93:17,18,21,24 94:3,25
parent (3 82:1599:13 104:2,4,8,10,11,12,13 icked 11 162:3 48:464:4114:9115:14 95:18 96:2,4,25 101:18
99:16 104:16,17,17,20,20 106:4 | PICKEA 11 162 157:25158:2,6 161:1,6 166:7,24 167:2,5,8,24
part o 3:104:15:4 106:6,11,16,21107:45 | Picking(z 107:14 political 27 111:15 168:5,17 169:4,10 219:1
63:25 68:3 84:1 97:14 110:10111:12112:12,13 | 116:22 165:23 preferredsiz 96:5
110:2 168:20 173:15 113:25116:11117:23,23 | picks(z) 119:24161:19 | politically 1) 165:25 168:25
particular (g 19:24 | 185821 12LILI3L7 pieceq 28:1840:12 | pool (3 154:10 prefixed y 28:7
274 36:24 38:25 48:18 128:2 129:15 134:9,11 77:16 195:1 P i ! dimi ]
: $£790.29 70, K 134:11 135:3,8,19,23,24 . 105:13 167:20 00r'S[3] 90:22,23 140:7 |[preliminary [y 171:24
O s o83 1923 1 137201441819 145110 | PISCSold 199319720 popylar y 111:17 prematurefz 79:18
: Pty 145:11,18146:1,9,10,12 | <>" lati : 156:4
150:20 196:12 218:12 ; ' Pipe[y 82:16 population s 154:16 .
2256 240:9 148:6.0.15 15113 1610 | pipeliners 9021 135:14 | o223 P A S e
. 6,9, : : 3 : : . . -
particularly i3 420 | 160:11 165:15 167:5 Pl Portugal iy 163:3 S Py
11:17 54:9 79:12 176:25 141093 94 165: . posed [y 200:11 36:8,1516,16,2337:1,3
1721 185:15 19414 168:4,4,10,23,24 169:10 | pipelines(s) 29:14 88:21 ' 37:24 41:7 46:20 51:13
219:17 229:12 238:4 169:11,12,14,15,25 170:1 | 135:12 posgg[l] 155:16 52:11,9,14,17,20,22,24
: ; ' 170:5,6 171:13176:8 ' : position s 24:9145:18 | 53:1,3,1554:163:11
240:24 243:11 : : pIpes(z 81:23,24
- ' 178:14,21179:11,12 I PPN 149:17 173:7 182:8 64:9,22 65:4,10,11 66:10
partiesiz 199:10200:7 | 180:6 182:22,24183:10 |P!ace[is] 23:18 29:3 ibiliti . 69:6 71:4 130:24 131:13
, 186'11.19.21 1884 90.797:16110:1 125:1  |Possibilitiesyy 231:11 e o
partly (21 32:22,23 111,19, : S ey i _ 142:19 176:16 220:10,21
189-17 191:3 2025 146:2 164:14 165:7 168:4 |possibility (4 164:25 : _
partner [z 173:10 232:2 1620017 18 210-22 | 183:11 189:10 191:5 165:2 231°9,12 223.10,16 22428, 15
205116 209:17,18 210:22 ; ; ' RS 225:5,11 230:9 234:2,18
partsiy 167:16 218:17,24 219:1,13,19 210:17218:20 possiblern 120:18 177:5 | 234:21 25 237:12.19
party (1 214:16 220:4 228:22 234:17,22 | placed [s] 64:8 146:6 192:11 193:4 223:13 2389
pass(3 22:9 165:19 235:21,22,23 237:16 167:18 168:11,12 230:23 242:11 femiumsie 511
242:5 239:17,20 240:13241:10 | placement 1y 167:22  |possibly 2 53:16 p65:12 227;ﬁ ]228:20
passed (1 241:15 241:16 245:14 plan (4 132:24 133:1 108:10 234:13,15
past [4] 36:439:10 per (?entag_e[G] 53:25. 134:17 153:19 posterity [y 163:6 prepared 13 172:9
105:20 130:20 31922 108:23241699 Iplanningry 15721 |potential (g 38:20 175:20 191:20
pay [12] 4:45:551:7 ot , 174:15 115:19 155:16 174:21 preparings 219:5
0119951410 1483 |PSICEPLIONIS] 537 Plant ;2 175:10,12 177:8,17,19 227:15 2391
153:6 164135?92;1;1;3 c1821 playersiy 67:13 Pousiy 10(5 1526 prescriptiveqy 65:5
payer s 9l : : . leasant [1 129:24 power [7e 14: 2, resentation [z 94:5
160:19 perfectis 6137525  |P P 15:12,2516219:3 2121 |Pogng .
: 193:9 242:4 plus(7 36:14 56:23 2929 24411 2895 :
payIngrs 92:15148:12 | ner fectly 4 59:20 72:16 145:25 146:16 ; o B . presented [z 74:7
164:1 : , : 78:11,17,23 83:25 88:4 ,
, 101:13,16 121:15 184:17209:21 887,17 89:9,13,19,25 240:11
payment 11 92:18 perfor med [ 220:9 point (751 2:20,25 3:4 91:3,24 94:18 95:1,17 presenting[y 20:13
PBR 1 175:11 perhapse 27:1141:14 | 814251317 25826111 | 67:308:19118:11 121:17 | pr€Serverz 217:23
Pearl (11 156:16 53:22 1257 165:19 29:18 40:10 45:14 48:2 124:20 132:6 144:12 218:2
peer (4 181:16 182:515 | 187:20 537,23 54:21 55:14 147:16 166:23167:68 | presidential [y 111:18
234:12 iod o 59:17 77:2 78:8 84:4 168:16 169:21,25 170:2 , _
: period2s 3:24 8:4 85:3 86:7,25 91:18 96:25 170:8 172:11 176:1.6 pressiz 102:24 182:4
peersis 181:11 182:9 25:21 26:2,10 28:8 31:18 97:12 107:3 113:5,11 1784 179:14,21,25 181:9 pressurefs 160:17
183:5 33:759:12 85:6 92:4 114:16,16 117:21,21 181:16,18,21 22 1821 161:12,12,21
PEI [y 65:20 ﬂg;flg?izlzég?ége’z . 131:11,16 135:11 137:22 | 182131820 183:12 pretty (12 8:99:16 36:1
pension (g 132:24 133:1 | (o eg= 50a 5500, | 14925 1511215710 185:4 186:23 187:4 40:23 45:11 85:18 97:3
134:17 153:3,19 167:18 s SO | 158:7166:17173:3 193:19 215:17 217:15,24 | 154:15,17 155:8 159:20
people2o 11:20 18:14 227"3(1246'2 10 36 178:1516 180:8,12 181:8 | 218:23220:36241:21 | 237:15
28:2558:17 67:371:24  |PE/100S() 81936:21 | 190:2,4 191:5193:4 242:3245:12 246:8 2513 | previous(iy 7:12 33:7
e \ 36:21 37:15 38:9 69:10 197:1,3 198:6 202:3 : a1 _ i
72:6 867,16 87:15 10516 15810 187°6 2002429 58 210.10.1g | POWEr’S[i6] 14:921:23 | 34:6,13 4555 57.7 71:24
100:21 106:14 132:16 D 40 ' 1091 9111092 91513 | 781979:1682:5988:3 | 78:22109:20 209:3 215:9
148:18 154:14 156:22,24 | PErMItS[y 200:18 ' i ' 89:23 94:13,15 99:24 pricery 128:3
Index Page 14

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

prices - reason

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

prices(4 125:23159:5 17:10 22:17 97:16 13:914:215:102116:9 | qualify [y 42:15 42:2553:10 55:2 56:4,5
161:16 167:12 providepo 16:218:10 | 16:2017:1218:22119:8 |qualitativery 16:16 56:11,13,16 57:11 58:9
primari |y [2] 20:13 48:14 175:22 178:3 19:20 21:2,19 22:5,20 quantity (2] 177:4 58:12 64:24 82:18 83:12
97:15 183:17 184:6 215:24 22:25 23:5,15 24:5,15 208:17 ’ 83:13,18 112:20 113:10

- , 8222 24:19 25:11 26:5 27:1 ' 115:3117:10,11,15 133:2
e 63:24 pzrf\'/?jéé'; a115 27:10,2228:101529:10 |quarter (4 122:20 13312 138:20,23 143:2
principiesiz 351016 1F o o et 29:17 30:9,15,22 31:9 170:19210:25 213:15 148:1,8,8,17,17,17,19
privaters 13:38167:22 | o35 2c2 005 31:22 32:6 33:16 34:8 quarterly [z 103:12,13 | 151:9 156:3 158:5 160:20
pr |vately (2] 65:25 66:2 rov'des 179.-7 34:14,23 35:4 37:13 38:1 Quebec [3] 52:7 65:19 167:25177:2,15 181:2
Probabiliti o |P (2 179: 38:7,19 39:16,24 40:9 5157 184:3 187:3,6 213:24

robabilitiesiy 1629 | 351:17 4111 42:5 436,22 44:1 229:9
problemis) 6:2438:12 |providing 4 30:2041:5 | 44:14,2145:1,132046:8 | AUErY W 2276 rather (4 15:337:2
45:1856:102450:16 | 119151344 46:1547:1,16 48:8 49:23 |questioned [y 26:15 10771
eo 1018 10801177 |provincer 135:17 50.7 51:4 52:1,74536 | questioning(y 149:16 | ating o4 51618 6:4
1541825 155:1 160-13 | Provincial (3 151619 | 2919387755390 - questionsiiz 4:224:23 | 89:14,22,23 90:25 925
problematic(g 26:10 |Proxy 103:17 58.18,22 60-1,1420 614 | 2are cenie aoag | 92798:152097:14,19
. -0, il - 147:6 152:4,6 175:14 99:15 160:15 164:10.10
59:3,5 PUB [¢ 15:2247:18 61:8,13,22 62:4,8,24 18823 245:1 1837 21820 217-1 623
problemspg 3:104:8 | 48:1063:2178:20104:10 | 63:1566:13 67:6 68:9 Uibblera 29:1214 oarg o
4:115:136:7 25:17 PUB-48[1) 229:25 68:19,25 70:5,12,17 au K S .
39:10,11 69:5,21 106:7 PUB-491 230:2 71:15,19 72:14,21 73:9 QUI CK[1 103:3 rati Ngsi7 46:6 159:17
116:19 142:16 146:7 PUB-CA 11 63 73:17 74:4,14,21 75:4 quickly (s 8:934:2224 | 179:13182:3198:6 218:2
154:20 155:17 165:21,23 "y 6321 _ 751224 76:17 77415 quiteqs) 10:112:8 20:4 244:3
pr oceduresy 20:8 PUB-CA-151y 78:14 78:13 79:25 80:10,15 23:12 52:6 111:10 120:22 |ratio[27n 79:17,22 82:9
pr oceedi ngs 17221 PUB-CA-18(4 47:5 81516 82:183:1,5,22 149:18 151:3 157:22 85:22 86:1,3,18,21 87:14
175:1 18 24214 244-_ o PUB-CA-19(1 48:10 84: ll,1§,21 85:1 8§:23 186:2 219:5 232:19 87:20,24 94:7,9 98:12
1, : : PUB-GA-231n 7700 | S19881152589617 | 53510 248:1 99:8,11,14,17 100:19
process(3 54:6 180:21 . [2 77 89:2490:11,15 91:2,7 uoter 4310 101:14 102:1 138:2
190:16 134:25 91:15,21 92:19 93:2 q [ 2 139:18 182:25 218:18
produce(s 184:1190:8 |PUB-CA-24(2 1356 | 94:1295:39,2096:8 217:23 246:7
220:4 136:21 97:5,10 98:7,14 99:22 -R- rational [1 224:6
producedps 71:12  |Publicua 267388 o a3 rampry 83.13 rationaler 183:18
74:11 16-719 10'175: 1'5 o1 ’ 106:2’5 lb7:l3,24 168:12 rangejis 25:130:651:1 ra.tiOS[lY] 81:2385:12
pr OdUCQS[l] 69:14 201:1’3 2515 ’ 108:19,25 109:6,10,25 106:16 113:11,13 136:1 85:15 87:17 97:25 100:21
production i 156:13 publicly 31 137:20 110:19111:2,21 112:18 | 137:15,18,19,22 1797 138:1,14,18,21,24 139:5
pr ofessional (5] 173:19 178:20 1826 . 112:23 113:9 114:24 195:18 140:7,16,24 183:4 245:20
177:5 178:10 190:5 Ub|IShed 19414 115:25117:6 118:13,22 rangesiy 77:25 RBC 4 8:14 42:2355:8
217:20 p blich [1] " 11951,5,21 51.2023 EI.22:1 rapic“y[l] 111:10 60:5'
professor (11 365 PUDIISNES[y 29:5 1oe s aleaasd Irareym 285 re-directy 170:22
64:14 80:4171:8 233:19 | Pull [y 157:25 : ' 0 t 119:22 11: 171:2
234:9,14 235:4 236:10 urposery 190:24 126119,24127:4,0128:12 |F&IC1 241 5224103 di o
9,14 235:4 236 purposery 190: 1281621 129:2.8,23 11:14,16,18,22,2315:16 |f€-ready 9:15
236:21 237:10
- . purposes(s 92:7 94:4 130:3,7 131:2,17 134:19 19:18 24:10 27:4,21,25 react 3] 14:22 137:24
pr ofilen 14:1015:12 157:22 134:24 136:19 137:6 28:431:232:11 35:11 138:9
181:15,21,22,23 182:12 | put [s0] 8:10 14:23,25 139:9 140:13 143:6 35:17,22 38:4 39:1542:7 | rggction [3) 52:2 72:2
profitsiy 21:17 15:817:16 27:12 35:24 145:12 147:2,12 149:3 ggii 34215% igigg ggi E 140:1
r oi ecti : 41:842:131543:346:3 | 149:15 151:22 152:2 113 65:3,16,20 66: :
projectingy 134:6 48:2156:2,1158:2368:4 | 172:1,4,8,19 : 68:669:16 91:19 10321 | SACISIH 17:9
rojectsy 15:18 ' 481924 173:6 die 24: :
projectsSiy 15: 71:1672:3.9,10 82:8 173:18,24 174:4,12,24 106:5107:8 108:10 110:4 |F€ad (9 24:11,16 40:25
ted . DY ' v 60:23 61:1 113:2 123:15
promptedy 86:17 90:7 101:2,11 104:15 175:16176:3,10 177:10 | 112:1,10,11114:18 159919513 :
properly (1 224:25 114:13 116:12 122:5 177:23 178:22 180:14 118:16,21 119:10 121:16 e
proponent (1 63:5 126:8 138:9 142:13 145:1 | 181:7 182:16 183:20 121:20,21122:1213,14  |readilyy 134:4
roponentsral 6520 146:2158:19 160:17,21 | 185:3,20187:8,13,17,23 | 122:21138:5145:24 readingy 9:10
p68_£’4 904 [3] 56: 164:24,24 165:1,3166:5 | 188:2,8,12,18,22 189:4 146:12 148:4 149:12 ready(y 1:13
: ; 168:2 190:16 197:14 189:9,15,23 190:9,14 151:7,24158:1 159:2,6 :
) ) -y I . . .
proportionately 1 201:25 216:2 218:6 101:4131824 192:12 | 169:13,16,19 178:19 réala 4:1737:23111:25
163:2 222:18 231:4 102:22 163:2,11,24 1949 | 184:6,8,16 185:19186:11 | 151:16
proposal (1] 175:11 putsqy 41:1 194:21 195:15 196:2,9 igg:ﬁ 1271:3551129?522 realistically [ 112:5
: : . . 196:16 197:16 198:2,14 11, 112, reality 1 201:1
p; gpgilf[lil?gél S ey ey | 198:2025190:13200:10 | 200:2 204:12.20 205:12 realizé[u]] 164:3
broposed 1 3 1531710025 | 2001628201511.24 | FIBRIEEILI0 | cally g 54,6 8:19:3
propo 6] 34:5 . - 202:8,14,24 203:8,14,19 222:12 224:13 225:7 ' y [26.] “+0 8. 9.9
103:24 166:11 185:8,13 | puzzled (3 24:7 30:16 203:24 204:314.19 2052 | 226:22,23 251:4 16:24 36:6,15 58:10 72:2
185:14 123:22 205:13,19206:315,19  |rated s 90:19,21,22 L
proposing s 86:7110:5 |puzzlingy 28:18 207:1,7,11,18 208:4,10 164:20 179:16 15114 153:29.25 164:20
188:25 208:17,24 209:12,23 rater (1 97:13 156-16 1615 14 19250
proposition 4 97:2 -Q- 210511 2116142025 |\ ategrrg 210206:14 | 227:72489
110:2 113:5 218:5 212:4,12 213:3,11,25 . . o . ’ :
Q.Ciaso) 117,21234 | 214:823245:316 246:10 | 02088,1618239:220 |y eason 12) 21:8 22:6
Fp’f oSl ?9:8 o 2817311147,23512 | 24832493 | 500310 50:15 74:23 78:7 104:21
rospectusiz 98:1,2 5:22 6:6,12,23 7:25 8:24 i : . o : : 156:23 218:16 228:3,13
protection 4 16:19 0121041516 12621 | AUAITICALIONSI 1733 | 271710 35:1337:23 229:8 241:25
Index Page 15




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

reasonable - rewarded
NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

reasonable[zs 13:20
33:2537:539:22 41:4
43:149:1360:10 67:1
67:2171:12 97:1 112:7
115:10 121:23 136:11
137:18,19,22 163:18
182:25 215:18 234:24

reasonably 1 125:18

reasoningiy 81:25

reasonsjii 3:337:20
39:20 50:9 66:15 86:22

87:17 122:5 160:20 227:5
231:10

rebound [y 165:24
received (3 174:2
175:14 186:23

recent [s5] 45:21 123:19
128:11 236:12 247:8

recently 2 60:7 234:16

recession i) 3:20,23
3:25 4:17 7:9,18 156:1
156:14 162:8 163:6

recessionary i 159:15
recessionsys 7:5,5,13
recognition 1 184:23
recognizeps 179:24
186:2 191:11 245:24
recognizesyy 134:12
recognizingiz 193:8
201:22
recommend g 10:10

24:10 25:5 121:2 146:5
147:1157:2 184:10

recommendation [2g
25:13,20 30:10 35:1
59:25 72:6 96:15 100:6
112:11 114:14,19 118:7
132:10 134:21 135:1,3,7
136:22 139:6,17 141:8
143:11 145:21 147:3
149:23 218:8 247:20,23

recommendations(zo
25:15 30:14 50:3 100:2
132:3137:3,11 143:13
143:15,17 144:11,13,15
144:24,25 145:14 185:11
185:25 200:3 215:10

recommended (211 9:16
10:1 104:8,9 112:8,14
112:16 132:7,8,21 139:2
139:25 145:8 146:8,18
150:15 186:7,9,14,17
189:1

recommendingis
24:8 30:18 31:13 94:24
121:1 145:15,18,23 146:1
149:2,18 209:9 218:16

recommendsiz 186:10
186:12

reconsideringqy 219:9
recordz 85:13135:24
recover 11 8:9
recovered(z 79:1199:8
r ecoveriesyy 7:16
recoversii 161:10
recoveryiii 7:8,21,23

8:18 21:5 58:16 157:24
161:13,15 180:21,25

redeemable[z 92:2
96:5

redirect 71 245:4 246:12

reduce(7 86:1195:13
136:12 184:5,14,18
227:20

reduced [3 59:6 115:5
227:21

reduces|y 85:22
reducingz 223:16
245:24

reduction (5] 96:23
99:20 114:12 213:7
223:19

refer (31 136:20 233:19
234:2

referencery 71:2 231:2
referenced [y 244:19

referencesi4 130:18
231:16 235:17 236:5

referred 4 1365
219:24 231:18,21

referringia 44:6 230:7
232:3

reflect (9 13:567:21
71:6 85:16,24 86:2,3
115:11 148:18

reflectingy 184:20
reflectiony 5:6

reflects|4 121:7 178:15
180:6 198:7

refreshiy 2017
refreshed 2 200:1,12
refreshingy 201:7
refusesiy 154:19
regardiz2 3:96:19
11:13 30:4,5 41:7 59:22
60:10 74:1 86:12 96:15
117:19 118:6 137:17
150:13 170:6 184:4
228:12 229:25 235:16
238:16,22
regarded 4 23:2431:3
75:10 137:20
regarding7z 176:19
178:17 180:9 185:18,25
186:19 215:4

regardsis 69:16 175:12
180:3 231:16 237:18

Regie[iz 1:733:20 34:3
52:22 105:14,16,22
106:17 120:10 135:21
142:4 215:6

regular 1 7:6

regularly iy 175:4

regulated 23 16:19
17:10,22 22:17 65:16,21
140:25 159:18 174:21
195:21 196:23 198:7,17
223:14 228:18 239:17
240:12 241:8,15,16,24
241:24 242:17

regulatesyy 108:7

regulation 2 18:6
198:8

regulator [ 17:9,25
42:13 142:12 175:8 215:7
233:14

regulatorsizq 20:10
33:2,12 40:16,18,23
47:1363:17 77:21 85:2
85:3 107:25 120:21
139:13,20 150:19 196:24
198:9,12 232:14

regulatory [sg 66:19
97:16 133:10 138:15,21
143:14,19 179:10,11,15
179:17 180:1 181:20
182:2,2 183:3,8,25 184:5
184:10 185:1,13 192:19
194:15 197:22 198:4,6
199:9 218:21 244:3

reinvent [ 218:3

reinvest 1 1413

rejected(s 109:18,19
109:20

relateqy 49:5

related (7 52:380:2
128:10 175:5 179:25
184:6 196:5

relatesi4 77:17 104:21
177:21 245:4

relating(s 87:1130:14
245:5

relation s 10:18 21:21
79:4 123:9 191:6

relationshipz 159:14
185:18

relationshipsiy 26:3

relativerie 23:1384:10
88:16,20 128:17 177:18
179:24 181:10,16 182:8
182:15 193:18 224:9
225:7 227:10 233:4

relatively 1 214:11

releases[y 182:4

relevancey 138:13

relevant [y 97:20

reliabley 32:21 49:2

reliancery 43:14

relied [y 237:11

relief[y 99:7

relyq 14:1455:7 133:5
195:2

relyings 47:2550:20
237:20

remained [z 123:19
1835

remarkable[y 6:5

remember [10] 22:11
43:25 46:12 50:16 62:21
67:11 79:15 94:20 106:2
136:6

remindy 226:4

render [y 249:6

repeat (2] 195:25 208:2

repeatedly 2 47:9
50:15

repetitiverg 25:17
151:2,4

rephraseq 32:4

replace(y 101:17

replaced (1 94:24

replacement 1 155:12

replacingpy 96:21

replicatery 215:8

report 43 9:110:20
24:10,16,21 25:3 60:17
71:2 78:18,23,25 104:22
123:12,13 159:1 165:13
165:16 172:9,11 173:1
175:20 187:24 191:5
204:25 206:10 218:4,16
219:6 220:10 221:6 226:7
228:3,8,24 229:19 230:17
231:1,3232:25 236:7,23
239:7,7

reportsis 62:3182:5
231:18 237:23 240:11

representsis 211:3,3
223:18

reprotection iy 17:23

Republicansie) 5:7,8
111:17 163:11,23 164:7

request (3 25:23 47:18
74:9

requirers) 46:22 220:4
224:7

requiredis 47:448:1
65:3 130:20 143:9 153:9
177:8,15 183:15 189:18
224:16 229:1 236:18

requirement 2 96:23
148:25

requirementsz 94:15
94:18

researchs 56:5,7
150:5

reserve(s 4:13158:17
158:19

reserves|iy 164:24
resolutionz 247:2,11
resolvey 181:6
resolved (2] 246:20,24

resour cepz 74:16
237:11

I esour cespy 161:17

I espect [11 45:4 62:19
130:15 139:21 149:17
152:9176:4 178:1,24
189:11 195:16

respected (1 237:10
respond iy 4:18
responded g 4:18
120:21 163:9

respondingi 38:24
responsesiz 51:852:1

responsiblerz 150:21
174:18

resty 16:5
restriction[z 98:6,12
result (32 4:256:137:15

13:10 16:19 33:18 37:24
71:376:24 91:22 115:2
115:10,21 116:6 118:9
119:19 157:1 168:22
180:7 189:18 190:1,17
190:17 194:6 228:23,25
229:4,18 236:8,17 238:11
238:12

resultingpy 137:14

results[ig 33:2434:1
47:24 50:17 73:2 101:11
105:15 136:16 177:2
178:2,3,16 181:1 190:11
222:9231:19 236:21
238:3243:8

RESUME 1 102:22

retained [y 141:4

retireesy 154:10

retractable[s 92:3,13
96:3

returniis) 13:2,5,12
17:118:8,919:9,18
24:11 26:8,9 27:21,25
31:232:11 35:13 375
38:439:15 42:7 49:8
50:22 64:21,25 65:3,16
65:20 66:12 68:8 69:16
70:23 80:24 83:9 96:2
96:12 99:10 101:21
104:25 105:1,7,12 112:1
114:19 115:4 118:17
121:21 131:21 1325
133:2,12 145:20,24 149:7
172:10 175:23 176:5,8
176:20 177:7 178:4,14
180:5 184:2,24 185:2,19
186:6,16 189:1,17,18
190:8 195:1,8,21,23
199:15 201:21 209:9
212:24 213:8,14,18
214:16 215:16 217:22
218:8,9,15 224:7,13,16
224:18,19,25 225:1,2,18
225:19 226:8,9 228:5,6
228:6,14 229:1,2,5 231:8
231:8 236:17,18 238:13
242:8 243:23 244:15

returnsiyzy 43:281:4,8
134:7 159:19 165:8,11
165:14 176:22 196:19,23
223:1,1,1 225:11,12
226:15,15 227:18 231:5
234:20

revenue[s 93.8,12
96:23

revenuesi4 3:21153.5
154:7 241:8

reversei 158:23
reversed[y 162:22

review4 28:8,11
183:13 199:20

reviewed [3 27:25182:4
234:12

reviewingz 28:13,14
revisedy 222:18
revisionsiz 172:14,17
revisity 79:16
rewarded (3 19:6

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 16




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

RFI - solution

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

101:25 102:3

RFI 1 1355

RFIs[2 14:7 130:18

rids 151:2,3153:24

ridiculous(z 93:12
168:8

right o 2:183:24:8
8:1,2511:6 17:4 18:3
19:21 24:6 25:12 26:14
26:17 27:8,9 29:11 30:16
31:10 32:13 33:20 39:17
44:15 46:16 50:9 52:6,8
53:20 54:5,18 55:1,21
72:19 75:5,16 769,18
76:23 77:5 78:6 89:8
91:3101:5 107:17 109:1
109:4 120:4 121:19 125:4
126:18 132:14 134:25
141:23 144:1,4 146:10
154:24 157:14 167:20
169:2 171:12 188:19,23
188:25 189:24 190:6
192:2,13,23 193:12 196:8
198:3,24 199:14 202:1,9
203:5 204:20 207:17
208:9 210:12 211:9,17
211:19 212:8,21 213:21
214:22 215:12 218:14
219:4 220:5,12,17,23
222:24 223:3 236:14,16
237:9 246:6,17

right-hand 1 128:22

ringzn 90:14,24 91:5,11
91:18 159:20,23

riserg 57:11110:22
113:10 115:3 117:10,11
117:12,15

risespy 213:17

risingr4 115:20118:9
118:10 138:20

risk (136 13:2,4,20 14:9
14:15,17,20,23,25 15:1
15:12 16:14 20:20 22:15
23:1335:11,11,12,17,18
35:19,19,21,22 36:2,8
36:14,16,16,23 37:1,3
37:24 41:7 46:20,21 49:7
50:22 51:1,12 52:10,13
52:16,20,21,23 53:1,3
53:15 63:11 64:9,21,22
65:4,10,11 66:10 69:5
70:25 71:4 74:2 75:10
80:19,19 81:12 85:23
86:6,16,22 87:13 90:5
105:4 113:21 114:21,21
119:19,20 120:20 130:23
131:13 134:13 136:7,10
136:13,23 176:2,16 177:1
177:15 178:18 181:10,15
181:18,22 182:12,14
183:3 184:3,16 185:18
186:11,21 187:1,5 200:2
204:12 205:12 209:8
212:23 213:23 214:1
220:10,21 222:12 223:10
223:16 224:2,9,13 2255
225:7,11 226:22,22
227:10 230:8 233:4 234:1
234:13,15,17,21,25
237:12,18 238:9

riskier (21 23:24 224:4
riskiest [y 17:17
riskinessyy 242:17
riskspy 181:20
risky 2] 78:10 224:15
Road 1 251:6

ROE (78 10:116:18 17:5
17:7,21 19:4 21:10,16
26:1 28:14 29:7,9,15
31:3,8 32:24 41:18 42:3
50:9 59:21 64:7 66:16
79:23 80:2,4,7 81:9,14
85:16,19,24 86:3 87:14
87:19,20,23,25 101:3,7
101:25 108:16 115:22
118:2,3,6,10 119:13,15
120:6,17,23,25 121:7,10
122:19 131:8 132:2,7,8
135:19,22 136:15 137:14
137:17 139:2 141:18
144:11 145:8 146:10,19
146:25 169:5 170:5 184.7
186:24 187:5 189:19
236:19

ROESs|23 20:24 21:11
33:634:1778:1,2,8,11
78:12 123:3136:1,4,17
138:13,22 139:1,12 141:9
141:13,20 165:6 197:24
246:1

rolers 18:1139:1131:13
131:14 174:13

roll iz 84:2,3
rolledy 93:13

room 2 133:15138:8
roughlypy 132:5
routinely 1 64:8
royal (s 133:6,17 134:1
23279

RRSP[2 134:16 138:10
rubber 11 34:11
ruiningpi 171:16
rulespy 152:12

runiis 43:158:2581:13
91:10 105:9,10,12 124:15
134:7 141:11 165:14
171:11,11,11,12

-S

S& P4 76:7,9,15 140:16
sale[y 168:20

sampleis) 42:2065:13
70:25 73:10,10,19 74:17
75:1,9,14 76:19 191:20
192:7,18 195:22 239:2
240:9 242:2

samplespy 194:23
satisfies[y 148:25
satisfy 1 98:11
savingy 169:14
savings[s 96:22 168:22
169:13

Saw [1] 62:15

says[9 28:8 35:18 49:16
81:2 90:23 126:3 133:18

148:21 162:13
Scarejqi 154:3
scenariosyi 166:9
schedulen 28:7 76:1
78:2,7 126:9,21 136:5

schedulesy 249:8
School (11 234:10
scopery 175:17
Scotiay 16:2
screamingi 20:4
sCreenpio 1:1116:5

22:11 24:22 37:14 56:19
70:7,14 126:9 239:16

scroll s 41:13,22 43:15
44:18 123:13

Se[3] 25:13113:21 192:6

second [12] 22:8 42:3
50:8 63:25 80:1 89:1,7
104:21 107:6 110:2
140:10 184:19

section [4) 26:6 38:8
124:2 229:13

sector [3) 235:6,19
243:11

sector sy 242:17

Securejy 165:7

Securitiesis) 11:2598:4
168:9,11

seesg 13:3,23 15:5,15
15:20 22:13 24:2 28:5
35:25 36:20 55:1 61:5
72:2377:7,9 81:9 90:18
104:15 112:3 113:6
118:17 125:18,20 127:25
128:8 139:17 149:21
151:12 158:21 161:7
162:16 165:15 168:1
180:25 188:24 195:10
197:1,21 213:4 215:15
221:1 223:21 227:2,4
231:5 236:7 240:17
243:22

seeing s 13:454:21
58:11

seeking i 191:1

seem (7 10:23120:14
127:14 139:19 163:19
164:3 199:2

select 27 73:13,18

selected (11 74:23
176:20,24 179:10 192:23
193:3 194:2,19,23 196:21
197:14

selecting(s 179:23
192:3194:1

sell (2 168:9,16

sending iy 156:11

senseqi2) 41:345:2
50:24 81:8 82:10 129:10

151:8 153:7 167:20 170:4
194:23,25

sensitivity (i 187:1
sentencery 64:1

separate(s 31:580:5
114:22

September (5] 53:17,23
53:25 54:23 55:23
sequencery 7:6

seriesig 1:1032:2072:1
77:193:8 141:15 148:14
222:4

Seriousi4] 63:2161:1,6
247:15

seriously 1 64:3

servantsiz 164:3,9

service[z 18:1091:20

Services[y 175:11

Set [33] 20:15 26:7 27:3
28:17 29:9,15 32:8,14
38:4 72:3,10 73:25 75:2
77:25 81:23 85:15,19,23
89:19 103:13 106:4 112:1
118:16 178:25 180:4
192:11 195:10 196:23
197:9 198:12 199:15
214:19 240:12

Sets[3 65:13 85:7 220:20

settingy 214:16

seven 7 86:9123:14
132:9134:8,8 135:3,7

several [g] 4:1912:23
39:1 45:22 200:5 231:1
234:11 242:21

Sever ez 56:9 154:20
severity (2 3:1753:17
shall [y 249:23
shapejz 160:1,4
share(s 88:892:12 93:6
sharedy 227:14

shareholder 71 80:25
81:15

shareholdersi4 19:6
81:13 85:23 93:13

shar es|sg 13:24 65:12
88:4,11,13,22 89:12,13
91:10,23 92:10,25 93:10
93:11,17,17,18,21,24
94:3,25 95:18 96:3 97:1
101:18 128:3 129:18
166:7,24 167:2,5,9,24
168:5,17 169:4,10 219:1

sheet [3] 7:9153:17,20
Shermany 62:16

shift ] 40:19 63:17 64:7
64:11 66:15 78:15 86:16
102:9

shifting[y 40:15
shocksiy 160:24
shops(z 159:4,5
short e 23:856:481:13
148:16 171:11,12
short-term y 108:17
shortager: 160:22
shorter [y 94:1

shot [y 7:20

show e 17:20 128:17
222:19 237:13 247:13,14

shows|y 37:17
side[g 54:18,1957:9

128:23 136:24 139:7
150:4 213:16 241:6
side’ sy 241:8
sideways[2 127:6
140:14
sign(z 9:19 247:10
signallingy 64:11
significant 277 9:19
10:3 40:6 63:5 86:6
96:24 106:6 115:12
130:25 144:22 160:12
163:21 165:2 176:23
179:6,8,10,11 180:2,24
186:3 200:6 240:6,25
241:7,13 246:3
significantly 13 10:8
23:1334:1,2 36:25 37:25
60:12 106:10 141:8
142:20 201:23 202:2,19
signs(1 180:25
similar 1y 51:267:2
135:5 157:16 179:16

186:2,9,25 191:6 192:7
192:14

similarly 1 49:14

simples] 39:12 41:2
47:2353:8 131:4,6

simply 22 3:2420:17
29:8 39:7 40:18 50:16
51:11 52:3 63:18 66:8
66:16 72:12 80:20 195:2
198:7,11 212:5 214:15
219:7,14 231:14 243:22

single[r 43:14 103:14
115:16 120:17 122:19
138:4 158:2

Sit[3 10:580:383:6
sitting[1 98:16
situation s 11:7 33:13
117:17 157:16 199:25
situationsyy 155:13

SiX[10] 52:188:13118:5
118:8 122:14 138:16
163:9,21 168:1 234:17

size[z 180:3193:19
skewed [z 75:21,22
skimpy 1 15:3
sKip 2] 63:2570:24
sKy 1] 99:5

dightly 2 15:19180:15

slow [3] 7:2067:22
157:23

slower [1] 8:18
slowingy 163:1

small (77 34:12 41:20
76:19 108:13 123:5 167:1
184:19

smaller 2 128:22 167:7
smart [y 80:11
smooth [y 120:15
smoothing1y 120:19
smooths[y 124:16
so-called [y 232:15
solution [z 150:23

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 17




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

solutions - test

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

163:18 spread’s[y 114:1 Sterny 234:10 177:3193:19 takes(1 201:25
solutionsiy 165:20 spreadsyis) 25:932:16 | Stevery 62:16 suddeny 164:8 taking(s) 104:3 153:4
solveq 165:23 32:19335113:15 1145 | otj|| 20 10:21 29:5,6 suddenly 7 83:13 153:16 226:8 241:6
solved (1) 142:16 114:12115:18 117:3,4 42:2 47:25 57:10 76:2 161:10 target (77 102:3106:12
solvesy 25:17 119:13146:517184:21 | 97.299:15108:4 114:1 | gufficery 100:13 tar getingy 201:20

Vi 2. 209:22 116:25130:11 13512 I qufficient 2 61:24 tasked (1 131:20
solving[y 122:16 springa 9:1879:10 169:21 197:10 205:22 179:4 ' ) '
someonery 170:1 112:14 206:6 210:18 246:2 i cient] . |tastingry 22:1
sometimesyyy 75:20  |squabblingy 5:6 stimulusiz 1608 =u 'gs” Y1y 18210 Jtaught y 141:10
somewhat (4 3:316:23 | Sty 174:3251:69 1801k22 SUgeS [ 2 tg)g_gg(s_eg 21 %1286

63:2 98:15 stabilizery 14922 |SOCK (19 23227910 | 781983142011122 | 1547 162:21 1691617
somewhere( 27:14 | stables 120:25125:19 ; o 132:18 137:11 146:11 )

31:6 111:5 168:12 179:12 129:16,19 156:7 181:1 21822 taxesiy 35:14

. ; 225:11 228:14 ' :
8(1)(7)2 I 7:1115:17 staff 7 15:23 47:18 stockspy 224182051 |SUggestedm 22:10 El_aépa)g ZSZ[lG]B 7134;3;) .
i 48:10 63:21,22 77:23 ; gy 133:2 185:5,21,23 215:15 [7] 42:2267:3 105:
sooner (1] 17:24 78:20 ;25248 226822921 | H4p97 133:6,17 134:1 165:16
sophisticated [y 40:24 |stage(s 2:1855:12 2P 1o 24259215 suggesting g 15:11 teaﬁher S[1 168:13
: 57:10 ' 31:740:17 83:23,24 90:8 |techy 77:9
sore-off (1) 133:24 < . . strength s 97:15 S e i (4 _
SOrry 9 1:2517:13 agnant [y 155:14 . . . L £09 ecnniquerz 63:24
44:2255:17 60:769:15 | stamped [1 34:11 10115 1611618 2183 I qyggestion 4 92:1 69:22
e o SO (1 o strengthen y 85:5 : 7 o
TABTEDIOE |dand maoiery | TILMEDS | iocn T enniguey o
1877 2302223316 |Siand-aloners 8910 Igyikery 2379 e 107 e 190
. - -4y 89:11,20 90:1 91:11 e . summarizey 107:1 TecRec[21 129:6,22
Sort(2e) 8:1211:1514.22 | 23517 strikingy 3:24 summary 4 10:2050:2 | Tel 21 65:18,19

222 W3 123, |standard g 39:248:13 |Strong(y 161:14 50:3 181:4 tel-cos(y 65:16

oT 1260t gl | 481768:2590:1822  |sStronger 2 15:1958:16 [sUmMMer (3 8:113313  |telecom [y 229:21

101:16 105:18 107:9 90:2397:18 140.7 1447 | strongest (3 11:368:20 | 113:22 telecommunications

119:14 12015 163:1 184:2 185:2 186:7 68:24 Super [y 1735 (1] 65:14

213:1 223:8 245:14 startiis) 1:42929:19 Igtruck [y 18:16 superior [y 43:13 telephoneis 65:18,19
sorts(y 164:9 O o UL Idtructurezs 78:1620 |supply(z 17:18182:2 | 6521
sought (17 243:7 oa1'1 24812 78:2579:580:2,782:5  |support (7 48:1849:19 |[telling(s 22:2,398:16
sound (1] 251:8 ted 111 20: 93:6 95:13 97:3 148:1 102:1175:8179:17 180:1 | 116:9 141:13

; started (11 20:15,23 166:10,18 169:15,21 1984 tallSial 7219 170:2
sounds[y 191:23 36:4,1264:2 74:7 123:18 172:9 175:23 182:18,21 supported 2 4813 2 72 -
sourcez) 225:10,17 155:20156:3,10 1716 | 21825244:3245610 | L PDOMEAIA 48 tgg g 671314848

00 |Startingpeo) 25:8117:20 | 245:11,18 o 6 102: 4 112:
Sourcebook [y 234:20 | SATUNGLE0) 28 172 _ supportivery 197:23 | 120:23134:11 15718
southerniy 155:9 : S : structuresis 85:6 : : :
sovereign 3 101467 | 190:4207:20208:20.23 |7 193:14105:9 24323 supports(y 41:6 204:10 205:10 241:10
(7 3 7| 209:2,4,15,25 210:20 , . supposed (11 123:24 ten-year 5 122:23

18024 1831521916 | 2111522 213232141 | Sy 14 226:14 23423 sufgl ust 3][ ot 204°8,16 205:5,7

246:4,15 214:3 H 11 8318 156 160:25 1611 tend (4 16:12,15 165:18
Spain(z 163:3171:13 : Stutt [z 83:18158:18 ' : :

startsig 72:24,25 b . surplusesiy 161:6 165:20
span (1 44:15 220:14 230:9 Sub y 82:20 : A Terason (3 14:17 86:6
Spanish (1 166:3 stater 12175314 |Subject (g s0:185:10 | SUMPriseiy 46:14 99:10
spare(y 11:19 105:23 155:16 228:2,25 135:20 138:14 145:13 surpr IS€d [1] 248:1 termpze 6:14 12:4,17
speak 17 58:1 statement (5 125:7 217:18219.2323324 —\surprisingly (4 1559 | 13:6,19 25:956:4,5,15

eakinara 452 240-10 | 13922 180:11191:8 subjectivers 54:7,13  |surroundings 8:22 84:8 98:4,11 99:6 148:1
S‘g 139 gl3) 45:2.240: 195:12 178:9 9:21,25103:4 148:16,17,17 149:14

f ) . statements|4 45:494:5 subsqy 90:24 survey 4 36:537:4 163:7 184:22 186:4,13
o 8218, 173,94 154:2 subsector 3 179:25 50:17,25 206:7 211:13218:5 233:3
ificall _ states(ss] 3:59,194:12 |subsector sy 244:4 survival (1 157:1 termsiaq 12:1438:13
specitically o) 88:5 5:5.14.18 6:8 11:15.18 . . 40:20 50:21 53:8 58:8
101:23 109°18.19 20 -9, L% - -9, subsequently [21 104:15 |SUSpect [4 58:13,15 . . . .
P 21:647:22105:1111:16 | 168:15 24716 61:962:59 76:11 81:13

123:9196:11 232:14 111:19 141:1.7.20.21 L. 7 82:24,24 88:10 92:9

233:14 142;22 143;3’1’55:’1 subsidiaries|z 88:23 suspended [2] 79:24 94:17,25 96:22 97:4
spectrum 2] 196:17,19 | 156:11 158:3.22 161:9 oLl 108:2 101:14,22,25 110:13
speed 1y 157:25 162:4 163:14.23 164:11  |SUbstandard iy 21:16 |suspicion [y 244:24 121:5132:14,21 137:1
spending (4 3:22160:8 | 165:6,25196:202357  |substantial ;2 15:15  [swornpz 172:23 155:12159:19 160:14

160:13 162:23 244:8 36:22 system (3 4:16 59:1 S I ara e TS
spent [y 158:21 statistician (3 39:4 substgntlal lyry 3418 | 2325 9308 24 24045 24315
spot [y 192:2 61:20 158:25 substitutery 103:17 2441420
spread 2o 52:12535 | Sty 12:22 subtract [y 231:7 -T- test (16 2:12 23:25 25:3

53:2456:22113:1823  |Stays(y 7:22 subtracting(z 22225 |tablepy 28:2272:9,10 | 32:1533:2370:1894:19

114:16,17 119:9,2325  |step(4) 69:17,20208:55 | 226:14 76:3 199:10 200:8 220:19 | 94:2097:24 99:1 112:2

iggg;}l%fglgggl_g " stepped (17 238:2 successful (17 174:22 221:1 222:10,18 227:2 %gggﬁ ggf<138199117

20516 2185 stepsiy 85:4 such 4 129:20 159:25 tacticsiy 154:4 . .

Index Page 18




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

tested - utilities

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

testifyingy 150:4
testimony [2g 2:18 3:15
8:10 9:15,17 14:15,17
21:122:1323:928:19
40:557:6 60:5 64:2 68:4
78:3 95:5 104:6 105:24
123:10 124:3 126:13
127:12,21 151:3,4 155:19
tests[iz] 38:943:11
44:10,13 45:15,19,25
46:3,1370:9 72:8,8
textbook [2] 64:14,16
textbooksyy 234:12
TGl 11 41:18
thank [16] 103:1 129:25
130:2 137:7 152:3,6
187:14,18 214:24 215:2
218:15 222:9 245:1
246:11 249:20,22
theme[s 48:6 117:1,2
themselves(z 58:1
132:20 134:15
theoretical [y 107:3
Theoretically 2 36:19
81:19
theory (e 48:14,17,21
80:18 148:15 224:6
theredy 2434
thereforee 165:8
179:7 182:13 224:7
229:11 230:14
they’'verio 11:1041:3
65:21 132:23 139:24
140:1 143:4 144:19
154:20 158:1
thinking e 2:157:10
67:4 68:15 185:5 202:15
third s 18:6 64:15
75:16
Thornton s 173:8,11
173:16 174:5,9
Thornton’s[y 173:14
thought (10 41:24 60:23
67:7 74:8 105:22 190:21
219:5 229:5,11 249:4
threateningy 5:17
threepes) 5:117:4,248:7
12:5 35:10 37:11 46:19
64:20 66:7 70:22 79:12
83:17,21 106:11,16
113:13 115:23 121:19
132:2 133:15 151:1,5,20
178:9
three-year (11 122:22
threshold (3 192:19
241:16 245:15
thresholds(y 242:6
throughsn 4:106:7,8

throughout (1 225:25
thrust [y 117:8
times[12] 39:153:14
94:19 97:18,22 98:5 99:1
99:3,17 150:8 169:15
231:21

Tiny [y 108:15

today[12] 10:548:7
61:15 66:18 177:1 202:11
203:16 206:13 211:22
213:12 219:16 229:11

today’ s 47:4

together (g 5:196:2
8:10 41:1 56:11 68:4
101:11 150:16 216:3

t00[14] 41:845:761:14
80:11 138:22 139:13,21
140:2 141:14 146:9,24
166:15 167:1 240:19

took (g 45:22,22 85:4
129:10 196:3,5,13 228:14

tool (4 183:25 184:5,10
185:1

tools[y 158:22
tooth [y 107:22

top (3 41:1571:573:3
73:4,576:4137:15,18
188:13217:17 221:21
223:21 244:23

topicry 180:15
Torbay 1 251:6

Torontos 95:7 129:16
173:12

total (4 152:11193:7,9
193:22

totally 2 37:755:7
touchy 77:17
touching 1 248:4
tough 1y 150:6

towards(s 40:16 41:4
100:20 105:14 191:25

track [y 59:12

trades 13:2,549:8
50:22 167:12 168:15

traded (2 167:17 182:6
tradingi 168:23
traditionally i 131:12
tragedy 1y 171:14
Transiy 135:15

TransCanadais 17:16
56:12 86:20

TransCanada’ s[y
17:21

transcribed [y 251:7

transcript je] 81:195:12
125:14,15 245:7 251:3

trends[y 181:2

tried (s 9:128:23,24
69:24 1335
trigger [2 184:12 185:16
trillion[z 152:12 158:8
trouble[z 43:18 247:15
trough [y 128:17
TROY [y 172:3
truers) 23:2128:2 38:6
57:24 83:11 96:12 152:13
152:15 157:12 166:24,25

167:1 201:10,12 223:8
251:2

trustee[y 98:3

try (7 28:2561:14 141:11
195:8 201:21 238:7 244:1

tryingie 8:258:25
86:15 157:4 159:13 166:2
195:19 196:10 200:3
209:7 211:11 214:10
218:14 225:4 242:1
247:11

TSX 21 129:21 227:5

Tuesday 11 171:6

turnio 34:15103:2
127:5 171:25 191:25
220:14 229:25 235:15
236:7 240:16

Turninga 180:15
182:17 183:21

twice[y 72:20

twist [g] 55:18,22,25 56:1
56:2,3,23 113:22

twWo[s4 12:417:418:4
20:20 25:15 31:1 35:16
40:11 53:23 58:8 64:15
64:17 65:10,13 69:23
73:12 75:2 85:21 97:22
98:599:1,3,12,17,19
107:14 110:21 112:2,15
113:19 114:4 115:17
117:22 121:14,18 123:8
131:7,7 135:25 136:6
140:4 148:12 151:1
154:15 163:9 166:9 175:9
176:6 191:7 198:3 209:3
212:16 214:18 228:4

two-factor [ 115:16
two-threeqy 144:19
two-year [2 188:5203:3

typers 13:14 19:25
50:11 159:15

typesiy 93:24
typical [z 13:19 105:4
typicallyy 164:4

-U-

145:6,8
unanimousdly (1 74:2
unattainablepy 170:7

unbalanced [z 212:19
213:19

uncertainty[ig 8:22
9:20,25 17:6,8,9 18:5
58:19 59:2,10,13 116:7
151:10 153:23 180:20
181:5 183:17 246:3

under [17] 26:6 38:8
39:13 70:21 75:17 88:10
145:1 147:14,18,21
152:11 161:12,20 174:17
186:17 237:16 240:17

underlyingi 228:19

under stand [1g 24:9
41:1 47:2 70:8 81:20
119:23 166:1 186:20
187:19 188:9 195:8
196:10 199:11 210:10
224:24 227:19 233:20
242:8

under stated (11 53:16
understood (4 145:15
145:17 149:5 196:1
undertakey 7:14
undertakingiq 1:7
215:23 222:5 225:17
undone[y 90:8
unemployment 7]
11:12,14,17,21 156:9
171:13181:2
unfair [g 26:18,23
121:20 190:16,18,25
unfortunately 2z 47:11
156:21
Unicor [ 66:1
Uniony 66:1
Uniphase[z 129:7,14
United 3 3:5,9,194:12
5:5,13,18 6:8 11:15,18
21:6 111:16,19 141:1,7
141:19,21 142:22 143:3
155:1 156:11 158:3,22
161:9 163:14,23 164:11
165:25 196:20 235:7
244:8
universey 192:24
university [z 173:25
174:3
University’ s 234:10
unless(7 6:183:11
98:11 151:14 161:10
166:5 199:17

unlikes 18:24 85:17
169:2

unrealisticiy 39:14

tested [y 215:14 69:24 70:24 73:281:25  |treasury i 36:17 UK [9 155:6,7,8156:10 |unreliable[z 42:18,22
testified (7 62:21,22 22251867112226111613131172%2212 treat 4 92:593:23,25 1%1%14 160:25161:3  |ynstable[y 19:16 21:10
95:10 136:9 137:16 : : : 94:4 : unsustainablen 6:21
175:13 177:24 140:19 159:18 164:7 treatment : Um-hm iy 224:11 o
- 167:12,21 205:1 223:17 | Lreatmenty 93:16 . unusual (7] 15:7,8
testify (27 62:15141:7 530.4 935:11 240:18 trendz 85:12139:24  |Unanimousis) 6:3 117:17,19,20,24,25

unusually i 177:14

upeo 2:20 3:22 5:14
6:14,15 8:16 12:11 17:20
22:11 27:19 28:18,21
31:2532:8 33:11,13,25
35:23 39:3,8 40:8 41:15
53:20 60:5 61:11,17
63:13 65:8 66:25 69:17
70:1,2,7,13 72:5 75:2
83:13,19 89:20 96:9
99:12 102:8 113:12 114:5
115:21,22 116:22 118:4
118:8 119:24 123:6,13
125:2 126:8 129:19
130:12 131:7 136:16
138:18 144:5 148:9
152:12 153:2 157:25
158:13,17 161:8,19 162:3
162:21 163:18 165:1
167:23,25 187:16 201:14
203:2 210:21 212:18
226:5227:1,2 228:22
229:18,25 230:10 235:15
240:16 247:13,14

updated 1] 234:16

updatesiy 172:13,17

upsidery 140:12

urgency [y 111:23

used (34 11:2 31:14,16
34:25 35:7 46:5 63:23
65:25 66:1,8 68:3,5 72:8
73:10,10,25 74:2,13,25
74:25 108:7 131:22
138:17,18 145:19 178:10
180:22 190:5 192:14
218:5 225:8 230:4 234:11
244:10

useful [y 54:9

uSses|[4 47:15 60:16
108:4 109:1

usingzg 2:12 36:4 37:3
48:16 52:4 53:24 65:2
71:22,23,25 72:7,12
74:10 75:13 105:19 208:7
209:17 210:19 211:17,21
212:5,23,25 214:2 222:12
228:23 229:19 231:7

utilities|zg 16:1,14
18:25 19:24 20:1,5,12
20:15,18,21,23,25 21:6
22:14 23:11,13,24 26:7
28:6 38:841:14 49:16
67:10 73:14,18,20,21,24
74:2 75:2 78:1,9 80:20
81:5,7 82:14,22 85:4
88:19 97:4 104:9 108:3
108:8,11,13,18 123:2
124:15 125:18,23 136:7
136:18 137:21 138:24
140:8,17 141:1 167:7
175:21 177:18 179:6
195:19 196:6 197:5,6

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

7:1_2 10:21,22,24 14:.6 transferred [y 174:16 U-Tubers 171:7,8,9 unreasonable[y 26:19 19817 201:13 21758
14:16 16:16 22:9 28:3 transatesy 12:1 Uh-hm 5 152:25167:14 |unregulated (s 159:19 | 21922 220:21 221:7
54:18 63:24 68:5 69:8 (e 169:7 190:13 206:25 240:7 241:6,20 243:14

Index Page 19




January 18, 2013

Multi-Page™

utility

- Zimbabwe

NL Power Inc. 2013 GRA

236:5 237:15 242:18
245:9,25 251:5

utility jeg) 13:22 16:25
16:2517:1,17 18:7,15
21:12 26:8,16 27:4,16
27:24 32:22 58:24 67:20
75:11 76:20 78:2 81:11
89:10,11,20 90:1,6 92:14
92:16 94:10 101:15,19
104:23,25 105:4 109:15
114:3117:15 121:20
122:18 123:16 124:11,18
129:18 132:4 134:13
136:10,13 138:1,4 140:21
140:22 143:18,23 165:6
169:24 176:2 179:20
181:10,19 182:14 184:21
185:16 218:3,19 228:23
235:6,21,22,23

utility’sis) 13:12 115:4
117:11

utilized [y 176:15

V-

valid 3 66:1168:8
105:13

validity 1 31:12

valuable[z 27:16
227:17

valuation [z 175:9,13

valuator [y 173:23

value[s) 64:18,19 76:13
129:16 233:7

valued 3 35:11,11,12

values[z 37:10141:4

Vander [24) 42:19 62:10
62:12,18 80:22 81:2
132:11 133:21 134:23
137:10 139:11 141:21
144:2,16 150:9 222:11
222:17 223:6 230:25
231:3,11,16 233:5,6

variability [z 21:17
52:16

variables 122:13,14
201:22

variancery 200:7

variesyy 77:12

variety (s 46:352:24
66:4 72:13 104:13

Vebert[y 74:1

Velbert' sy 74:20

verify 2 60:2167:24

Versusis] 69:6 120:25
151:6 154:10 165:6 166:8
171:11 243:24

vertically [z 242:15
243:16

video[s 171:7,8,10

view 17 26:1159:17
107:3,4 113:6 136:23
147:8 157:10 166:17
176:19 180:16 185:22
193:5 218:1 233:3 240:4
242:25

views[y 63:4

Vilbert [y 20:16
violates|z 93:14 107:18

volatility 3] 154:2
206:12 244:4

volume[y 167:11
vouch [y 137:10

“W-

wait [4] 22:10 70:13
112:2 149:21
walk [y 205:1

wantsy4 70:3121:10
146:2 167:2

war [3 156:12,19 157:7
warmer [ 99:9
warningi 6:1
warrant [y 181:17
Waste[z 175:10,12
Water (3 175:10,11,12
waysi4 66:11122:16
245:23 247:7

weather [3) 22:22 24:2
99:9

website[y 235:17
wedded 71 121:9 151:16

Wednesday (3 248:15
248:18 249:23

weeds[y 139:23

week [4 5:16 178:23
226:2 249:10

weeks(g] 11:9 64:15
79:12 88:14 135:25 163:9
163:21 168:1

Weidezz 42:1962:10
62:13,19 80:22 81:2
132:11 133:21 134:23
137:10 139:11 141:21
144:2,16 150:9 222:11
222:17 223:6 230:25
231:11 233:6,6

Weld€e s[z 231:3,17

weighed 2] 193:13
195:6

weight [11] 41:18,19,21
42:9,14,16 46:9,12 64:8
66:21 97:16

weighting i1 177:6,12
178:1190:24 191:1 194:2
194:16 195:14 223:17
227:1,3

weightingsie 178:11
190:6 191:17 194:2,19
228:9

weights[1 210:23

well-balanced
185:12

West [21 99:13 235:23

whatsoever 7 17:7
168:16

whesd [ 218:3
wheeglhouse[y 237:15

whereas(3 65:387:24
112:16

whoa[y 69:18

whole[13 43:358:6,6
67:268:5,23 70:23 72:1
72:376:20 108:3 148:14
225:25

widely 1 234:11
willingness(1 5:8
wind[z 126:3,3
window [y 140:20
within(s 34:1160:6
113:11 205:22 237:25

without (1 92:15 104:2
139:22 153:4 154:6
161:14 162:25 163:4
201:15 244:11 245:6

withstand [y 156:13

witness[g 57:17,19
62:14 69:7 141:18 175:1
1757 249:13

witnesses[i17 14:14
20:13 35:23 38:24,25
45:23 74:3,12 109:15
132:4 133:16 134:3
141:16 150:25 227:6
249:9,10

witnesses' [y 62:2
won i 109:17

wonder (4 157:16
215:23 221:23 225:16

wondered [y 245:21

wondering(z 214:13
215:14

word 3 194:3201:18
232:4

words[7 16:4 40:14
199:5 200:12 207:14
213:13 218:7

worked (4 174:8,10
197:8,8

workersqy 164:1
worksy 18:9

world[g 11:353:886:14
116:10 164:23 206:16
210:18 213:13

world’ sy 140:12
worried [y 42:6
WOorsejq 157:9
WOr st (2] 134:12 153:14

worth (7 11:2524:21
05:18 138:6,11 168:17
179:18

WOow 1 138:11

Wrongiig 34:3,7 58:8
69:19,20,25 105:21
139:14 141:24 142:3,4,4
142:5,5,6,9 144:5 157:20
245:8

wrote[z 9:17 236:23

-Y-

year [41] 2:128:1125:3
28:8 32:15 42:4 44:15
52:6,6,16 60:6 82:20
84:1111:20112:2 120:18
120:24 122:20,23 147:1

148:3,12 149:11 150:9
150:17 151:1 158:9
162:19 199:17 200:18,19
200:25 204:10,11 205:10
205:15 209:1,1,3,4 211:5

year’sy 148:12

yearsiez] 2:21,225:11
7:4,24 8:7 125,23 23:25
25:24 26:2,4 34:7,13
36:25 37:11 44:11 49:7
50:20 58:8 67:13,14
69:23 75:3 77:14 81:12
82:2584:9 91:6 106:13
106:24 107:23 109:16
112:16 114:4 121:8,11
121:15,19,23,25 127:15
138:17 142:10,23,25
147:9,20 150:16,18 151:1
151:1,5,18,20 157:18
175:25 176:6 188:15
212:16 214:18 215:19

yesterday (20 1:11 3:4
6:16 13:23 16:12 22:6
29:21 42:19 48:7 55:22
81:1 96:15 125:2,8,14
126:20 127:1,12,20
139:11

yet[3 142:22 143:4
24812

yield (40 2:1312:18
13:19 36:14,17,17 47:11
54:20 56:3 59:19,22,23
60:12 82:13 100:19
108:16 112:12 114:7,23
115:9116:23 117:3 121:6
124:17 130:24 131:14
142:20 145:2 146:6,14
148:16 188:3 204:8 205:5
205:7 211:13 213:17
225:2228:6,14

yields(ss 6:158:513:6
13:12,24 32:25 43:1 60:9
60:13 79:13 82:21 105:25
106:9,22 110:17 111:12
113:25 114:3,4,15 115:21
116:15 117:22 118:3,10
119:11 123:16,17,20,22
124:12,13,13,14,17,18
124:21 142:18,21 151:13
167:22 184:21,22 1865
186:14 187:7 205:21
206:7 213:7 222:25,25
225:8 226:23

York 1 234:10
youthy 171:13

Z-

Zerojqy 128:6
Zimbabwe|s 158:13
158:16,23,24,25

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 20




